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1. Strategic Report 
 
 

Welcome to our Annual Report which covers the financial period from 1st April 2014 to 31st 
March 2015. 

Trust profile 

Originally established in 1998 from the 
merger of Ashford and St Peter’s 
Hospitals, the Trust has been on a long 
journey of development and improvement 
to its current position as the largest 
provider of acute hospital services to 
Surrey residents, and having become a 
Foundation Trust in December 2010. 

Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust serves a population of 
over 410,000 people living in the boroughs 
of Runnymede, Spelthorne, Woking and 
parts of Elmbridge, Hounslow, Surrey 
Heath and beyond.  The Trust employs 

3,700 individual members of staff and in 
2014/15 our turnover for the year was 
£263 million.   

The Trust provides a whole range of 
services across its two hospital sites in 
Surrey - Ashford Hospital, situated along 
the A30 close to the border with 
Hounslow, and St Peter’s Hospital in 
Chertsey.  The majority of planned care, 
like day case and orthopaedic surgery             
and rehabilitation services, is provided at 
Ashford hospital, with more complex 
medical and surgical care and emergency 
services at St Peter’s Hospital.

 

       

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Our catchment area   

Contains: Ordnance Survey data © Crown copyright and database 
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Our services 

We provide the following hospital and community based health services to our catchment 
population: 

• Admitted patient care for planned surgery and emergency medicine and surgery 
• Accident and emergency services 
• Critical care 
• Outpatient services, both in the hospitals and across a number of community settings 
• Community midwifery services 

 
Services are split across our two main hospital sites as follows: 
 
 

Ashford Hospital 
 

St Peter’s Hospital  

Day-case surgery  Accident and emergency services 

Stroke and rehabilitation care Intensive care 

Elective orthopaedic surgery Emergency surgical and medical care 

Ophthalmology Elective and day-case surgery 

Outpatients (including paediatrics) and 
diagnostics; X ray, ultrasound, and MRI 
scans 

Orthopaedics (Rowley Bristow unit) 

 Maternity care 

 Paediatric services (children’s services) 

 Neonatal intensive care unit which provides 
care for acutely ill babies  

 Outpatients and diagnostics; X ray, 
ultrasound, CT scans, endoscopy (using 
cameras to look inside the body) and MRI 
scans 

 Pathology services 

 Paediatric services 

 
We run many specialist clinics in the community - for example at Woking, Weybridge, Walton and 
Cobham Community Hospitals, at the Heart of Hounslow Centre for Health, Teddington Memorial 
Hospital and others – providing more accessible care, closer to where our patients live.  

We’ve been busy ….. 
Over the last year we have: 
 

• Treated 25,000 emergency admissions 
• Admitted 36,000 people for planned inpatient and day case treatment 
• Seen 94,000 people in our A&E department 
• Treated over 380,000 patients in our outpatient clinics 
• Helped deliver over 4,000 babies 
• Had a turnover of £263m with a financial deficit last year of just under £1million 
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Statement by the Chairman and Chief Executive 
 

Overall this has been a positive year for Ashford & St Peter’s Hospital NHS Foundation 
Trust, despite continued pressure and rising demand for local NHS services.

Providing high quality, joined up patient 
care is at the heart of our vision and we 
were proud to be described as ‘a caring 
organisation’ by the Care Quality 
Commission following their inspection of 
our hospitals last December.  Overall we 
received a ‘Good’ rating which is a 
fantastic achievement for the Trust, our 
staff and importantly for patients. 

This was the first time our hospitals had 
been inspected under the CQC’s new 
inspection regime, which involves a much 
more rigorous approach. In today’s 
climate, particularly post the Francis 
Review, a ‘good’ rating is not awarded 
lightly and only a minority of acute Trusts 
have received either this or a higher 
rating.  There were some real highlights 
and areas of outstanding practice as well 
as areas for improvement and we are 
already well underway in putting in place 
robust action plans to address these. More 
detail on the report and its findings is 
given later in this report. 

We are delighted to have just won the 
Quality of Care Award from CHKS (a 
leading provider of healthcare intelligence) 
in their recent Top Hospitals Awards, 
which is a significant achievement.  CHKS 
also named us once again as a Top 40 
Hospital and we were also shortlisted in 
the same awards for the Patient Safety 
Award.  This is further reassurance of the 
high quality of care we offer local patients 
and firmly puts Ashford & St Peter’s on the 
national platform. 

This year has seen the completion of 
several major capital developments at St 
Peter’s Hospital; the Abbey Birth Centre, 
our midwifery led unit officially opened in 
October by celebrity Mum Abbey Clancy, 
the completion of our Cardiac Unit in 

November, and our new surgical 
Admissions Lounge which opened last 
autumn.  These developments all offer a 
modern, state of the art environment and 
are part of our strategy to provide the best 
possible experience for patients.   

This has been a year dominated by rising 
demand and emergency pressures, not 
just in our hospitals but up and down the 
country.  Sustained pressure during 
December and early January culminated 
in our decision to declare a Major Incident 
on 3rd January.  We took that decision, in 
partnership with commissioners, to secure 
the continued safety of patients at a time 
when our A&E department and the rest of 
the hospital were quite simply full.   

We are proud of the way staff coped with 
this surge in demand demonstrating a real 
and continuing commitment to patients in 
their care.  Throughout this period we 
continued to receive incredibly positive 
feedback from patients, and indeed the 
CQC - who visited our A&E department in 
December - commented on the calm 
atmosphere they observed even when it 
was clear staff were under intense 
pressure.  We would also like to thank our 
partners, our commissioners, the 
ambulance service and colleagues in 
mental health, community, primary and 
social care whose support was invaluable 
both during this time and on an ongoing 
basis. 

However, as a result of sustained 
demand, not just in hospital services but 
across the whole local NHS, we have 
struggled to consistently meet the four 
hour waiting target.  Much of our focus 
therefore remains on improving our 
emergency care pathway and on working 
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collaboratively with partners across the 
local health system.  It’s clear this is not 
just a hospital issue but one that requires 
a whole system approach and we will 
continue to work together to secure the 
right solutions for local patients. 

As the NHS continues to battle with rising 
demand, an ageing population and a 
reduction in funding in real terms, it’s clear 
we need to find new ways of delivering 
care.  We are working on a number of 
transformation projects within our 
hospitals and continue to develop our 
wider strategy working closely with our 
partners.   

This year we have continued to work on 
our proposed merger plans with The Royal 
Surrey County Hospital NHS Foundation 
Trust although work has been delayed 
following the decision by the Competition 
and Markets Authority to consider our 
plans in more detail in a second 
assessment phase.  There is no doubt the 
rationale for merger remains as strong as 
ever, and whilst a delay is disappointing, 
this gives us more time to engage with 
stakeholders and partners on our future 
plans. 

With sustained pressure on services it’s 
even more important that we continue to 
develop the right culture within our 
organisation and that we position Ashford 
& St Peter’s as an employer of choice.  
We have done a lot of work to progress 
our Staff Experience and Culture 
Programme and were pleased to see 
improved staff survey results this year.  
These show a marked improvement in 
how colleagues feel about working here 
including recommending the Trust as a 
place to receive care.  

Knowing that a positive culture is directly 
linked to high quality care, this is good 
news.  Over the past few years we have 

made continued improvements for patients 
yet hadn’t necessarily seen this reflected 
in how our colleagues were 
feeling.  These latest results show a 
different picture, with staff telling us they 
feel more satisfied with the quality of care 
they give and describing effective 
teamwork, elements which sit at the heart 
of our values.   

We continue to maintain a positive 
working relationship with our Council of 
Governors and wider membership, and 
Governors have continued their 
involvement with the work of the Trust – 
particularly around our merger plans -
offering fair challenge to the Board. We 
would like to take this opportunity to thank 
and say goodbye to Public Governors 
Keith Goodger (Richmond Upon Thames) 
and Susan Lockwood (Runnymede) who 
both resigned this year, and to welcome 
Danny Sparkes as our new public 
Governor for Runnymede. 

On the Board we were sorry to say 
goodbye to Jim Gollan who left due to 
increasing other work commitments.  In 
his place we were pleased to welcome 
back Peter Taylor and Nadeem Aziz who 
have both previously served on our Board 
and know the Trust well.  We were also 
pleased to welcome Heather Caudle to the 
Board as Chief Nurse last September, 
taking over from Suzanne Rankin our new 
Chief Executive. 

We would also like to say a big thank you 
to everyone who has made a contribution 
over the last year; to our staff and 
volunteers but also to NHS colleagues and 
commissioners, our partners in local 
voluntary and community organisations, 
carers, our Leagues of Friends, Hospital 
Radio Wey and all those who raise funds 
for our hospitals, thank you. 
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Last summer we were of course sad to 
say goodbye to Chief Executive Andrew 
Liles who joined the Trust in January 
2009.  Over the last six years, Andrew led 
the Trust through some substantial 
changes, not only achieving Foundation 
Trust status but also to a position where 
we are widely recognised as a high 
performing and successful Trust. 

In Andrew’s place, we have been 
delighted to welcome Suzanne Rankin as 
our new Chief Executive and we look 

forward to the next 12 months from solid 
foundations.  There is no doubt the 
coming year will be one of great 
challenge, with a rising tide of demand 
and an ever tightening financial picture.  
However, we remain confident that the 
commitment of colleagues, the 
improvements we are making and our 
positive relationships with local partners 
will stand us in good stead as we continue 
to work together on behalf of our patients.    

 
          
 

      
 
 
 
Aileen McLeish     Suzanne Rankin 
Chairman      Chief Executive  
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Business Review 
In this section we give an overview of the business of our Foundation Trust, including our 
vision and objectives, performance and future plans. 
 
Business Overview

Overall the Trust has performed well 
against its corporate objectives this year 
(see our Directors’ Report for a more 
detailed analysis).  With a particularly 
challenging year financially including 
severe winter pressures which resulted in 
additional unplanned spend, the Trust 
ended the year with a deficit of just under 
£1.0 million against a plan of breakeven.  
Within this we managed to achieve our 
plan cost improvement plan of £14.9 
million within a turnover of £263 million. 

This financial performance, against a 
backdrop of severe financial pressure 
across the Foundation Trust sector, meant 
we were still able to achieve a Continuity 
of Services Risk Rating of 3 from Monitor, 
the healthcare regulator. 

The Trust was inspected by the Care 
Quality Commission in December 2014, 
our first full inspection under the CQC’s 
new inspection regime.  Taking place at a 
very busy time of year in the middle of 
winter, the Trust was reassured to receive 
a ‘Good’ rating overall.   

The CQC also provides individual ratings 
on five key elements looking at whether 
the Trust is safe, caring, effective, 
responsive and well-led.  Under the safety 
domain, the Trust was rated as ‘Requires 
Improvement’ which relates predominantly 
to staffing shortages and having the right 
number of skilled permanent staff in place. 
Feeding back at the Quality Summit, the 
CQC made it clear that they are not saying 
our hospitals are unsafe; rather that safety 
can be improved.    

The inspection report also focuses on 
eight core services (urgent and 
emergency services, medical care, 
surgery, critical care, maternity and 
gynaecology, services for children and 
young people, end of life care, outpatients 
and diagnostic imaging) and so provides a 
comprehensive view of the level of care 
and service the Trust provides.   Overall 
Ashford Hospital received a ‘Good’ rating, 
with St Peter’s rated as ‘Requires 
improvement’ largely relating to staffing 
shortages and difficulties in recruitment.  
Importantly the CQC commented that 
quality and safety were a priority reflected 
from the executive level down, and 
specifically highlighted our positive 
reporting culture. 

Our mortality rates continue to match with 
those of our peers, despite a spike 
(replicated across Surrey) during the 
months of intense activity over the winter, 
across the range of mortality indicators.  
We reported just one case of hospital 
acquired MRSA bacteraemia and despite 
low levels of clostridium difficile (18 cases) 
which were spread throughout the year, 
didn’t meet the target of no more than 9 
cases.  More detail on our full range of 
quality targets is given in our Quality 
Report which starts on p. 70. 

Much of our work has been focused on 
improving our emergency care pathway 
and in particular to improve performance 
against the four hour waiting target.  
During the winter months – like many 
hospitals across the country – we 
experienced unprecedented levels of 
demand on urgent and emergency care 
services and despite concerted efforts 
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were only able to meet the target for the 
first Quarter of this year, achieving 95.6%.   

Performance dipped in Quarter 2 (93.8%), 
with further deterioration in Quarter 3 
(85.6%) when, due to sustained pressures 
we declared a Major Incident (3rd January 
2015) to secure the continued safety of 
patients in our hospitals.  Since then – 
when nationally we saw a deteriorating 
picture - we have worked hard to improve 
performance which rose in Quarter 4 to 
88.3% although there is more to do to get 
us back on trajectory – see more detail on 
p. 37.   

To put this into context, in December our 
hospitals experienced a significant 
increase in activity (compared to the same 
time last year) particularly for the over 75 
age group – patients more likely to be frail, 
with multiple conditions and who require 
complex care and discharge packages – 
which led to the position at the beginning 
of January.   

This spike in demand was not confined to 
the acute sector, but replicated across all 
health services including primary, 
community and social care.  As an acute 
Trust we were extremely well supported 
by colleagues including North West Surrey 
Clinical Commissioning Group, South East 
Coast Ambulance Service, Surrey County 
Council, Virgin Care and our primary care 
colleagues to provide a system wide 
response.  Moving forward we recognise 
the need to work collaboratively with local 
partners to find ways of increasing 
capacity within the local health system. 

During the year we received a substantial 
increase in cancer referrals, up by nearly 
15%.  As a result we have had difficulties 
meeting some of the waiting targets 
although performance is improving. 
Patient care has not been compromised 

by these delays.  Outpatient referrals also 
increased well above predicted levels, with 
a 6.5% increase in new referrals 
compared to 2013/14.  Similar high levels 
of demand were experienced for elective 
(planned) admissions, with almost 7000 
procedures completed for patients 
requiring an overnight stay.  More detail 
on our activity is given on p. 18. 

During the year we have worked hard to 
resolve the problems we incurred last year 
around the delivery of the 18 week referral 
to treatment target, bringing our 
performance back into line.  However, 
there remain a number of pressures within 
individual specialties (including urology 
and endoscopy) caused by rising demand 
which is impacting on our performance.  

We have continued to invest in developing 
our services particularly in specialist 
services such as cardiology, vascular, 
trauma and orthopaedics and maternity.  
This includes our new Cardiac Unit which 
brings together our coronary care ward 
and cardiac catheterisation laboratories, 
our new Abbey Birth Centre for midwifery 
led care and a number of specialist 
Trauma and Orthopaedic consultant 
appointments. 

We continue to work closely with our 
commissioners, in particular North West 
Surrey Clinical Commissioning Group 
(CCG) who commissions the majority of 
our services (representing over 70% of our 
income).  We also have good relationships 
with our other commissioners, including 
Hounslow CCG (representing c. 5% of our 
income) and CCGs in Berkshire (who 
represent c.2.5%).  We continue to work 
well with NHS England who commissions 
the specialist services we provide 
including cardiovascular and neonatal 
services with a contract value of around 
£32.5 million (c. 15% of our income). 
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During the year we have progressed plans 
for our proposed merger with The Royal 
Surrey County Hospital NHS Foundation 
Trust.  A substantial amount of work has 
been undertaken developing a business 
case and financial plans for the proposed 
merged Trust, with a detailed patient 
benefits case.  However, as part of the 
regulatory process, the Competition and 
Markets Authority (CMA) made the 
decision to refer our plans to a second and 

longer assessment phase.  Until our plans 
receive clearance from the CMA we have 
had to pause the majority of our merger 
planning.  A decision is expected later this 
year – see more on p.25.   

However, as a Trust we continue to 
consider and develop a number of future 
strategies to secure the clinical and 
financial sustainability of services for local 
patients. 
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Summary of performance with the Monitor Risk Assura nce Framework  
 

 

Surgery 94% 94% 100% 95% 100% 87% 95%

anti-cancer drug treatments 98% 98% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

urgent GP referral 85% 85% 82.2% 72.0% 84.1% 77.5% 78.8%

NHS Cancer Screening Service 90% 90% 92.0% 97.3% 100.0% 100.0% 96.1%

93% 93.5% 93.4% 93.8% 91.0% 92.9%

symptomatic breast patients 93% 93% 93.4% 91.1% 97.2% 95.5% 94.3%

0.5 Quarterly No No No No No No

4.0 Quarterly No No No No No No

Monitor 

Discretion
Quarterly No No No No Yes Yes

Monitor 

Discretion
Quarterly No No No No No No

4.0 Quarterly No No No No No No

Monitor 

Discretion
Quarterly No No No No No No

2.0 Quarterly No No No No No No

Monitor 

Discretion
Quarterly No No No No No No

Indicative Governance risk rating G G G G

Continuity of Service Risk Rating 100 3 3 3 3 3
  

*Please note, although the Q3 cumulative figure  for Referral to Treatment times met the target, we missed this for Oct 2014;  to meet the full quarter's target we also have to meet the target each month, therefore this is classed as red.
** Subject to final confirmation by Monitor

Failure to comply with requirements regarding access to healthcare for people with a learning disability

Weighting

Clostridium Difficile - meeting the Clostorium Difficile 

objective
9 1.0 Quarterly 5

Quarterly 92%

2. Liquidity

CQC compliance action outstanding

CQC enforcement action within last 12 months

1. Debt Service Cover 1.77x

0
9
/

Q4

50% Annual 1.78x 3

3

Q1
0
9
/

Q3
Monitoring 

Period
14/15 PlanGovernance*: 

Moderate CQC concerns or impacts regarding the safety of healthcare provision 

CQC enforcement notice currently in effect 

3

Q4**Q2

-9.40 50% Annual -6.80 3

3

33

2

3

3

95.17%

Financial Risk Score Forcest Score Weighting
Monitoring 

Period
Current 
Score

90.71%

1.0 Quarterly 95%

1.0

0
9
/

Q3

Risk of, or actual, failure to deliver mandatory services

Major CQC concerns or impacts regarding the safety of healthcare provision 

Trust unable to declare ongoing compliance with minimum standards of CQC registration

Referral to treatment waiting times - Incomplete pathways 92% 1.0

92.0495.20%

0
9
/

YTD

Q1

95.16% 95.41%

95.81% 95.74%

95.80%

87.39%

0
9
/

Yr End 

Yr End 

95.49%

95% 92.74%95.23% 88.55%

0
9
/

Q3Q214/15 Plan Q1 Q4

99.1% 98.8%

93%
Cancer: 2 week wait from referral to date first seen

All Cancers: 31 day wait from diagnosis to first 

treatment
96% 0.5 Quarterly 96%

All Cancers: 31 day wait for second or subsequent 

treatment (surgery)

All Cancers: 62 day wait for first treatment from urgent 

GP referral to treatment
1.0 Quarterly

98.3%

0
9
/

Q2 Q3
0
9
/

Q4

YTDQ3 Q4
0
9
/

0
9
/

Q2

5 3 187

Q1

1.0

Threshold Weighting
Monitoring 

Period
14/15 Plan

YTD

Threshold 

95% 1.0 Quarterly

Quarterly

3

95.11%

95.38%

Weighting

95.27%

Monitoring 
Period

83.10% 87.46%90% 88.85%

Safety:

97.9%

Quarterly

Q2

Referral to treatment waiting times - non admitted 95%

Referral to treatment waiting times - admitted 90%

all urgent referrals (cancer 

suspected)

14/15 Threshold Weighting
Monitoring 

Period
14/15 YTD 

Plan
Q1

Quality: 

Patient Experience: 

A&E (maximum wait time of 4 hours from arrival to 

admission/ transfer/ discharge)

0.5 Quarterly

100.0%
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Monitor risk ratings 
 

The Trust is regulated by Monitor, to whom it submits its annual plan for the forthcoming 
year. On the basis of the information contained in the annual plan, including financial plans, 
and the national targets set by the Care Quality Commission (CQC), Monitor assesses and 
assigns risk ratings for each Foundation Trust.  These are updated every quarter. 

Continuity of services risk rating – 
assesses financial risks that could lead to 
a Foundation Trust’s financial failure and 
so threaten the continuity of its key 
services.  There are four rating categories 
ranging from 1, which represents the most 
serious risk, to 4, representing the least.   
 

Governance rating – assesses how well a 
Foundation Trust is governed, including 
how they oversee care for patients, deliver 
national standards and remain efficient, 
effective and economic.  Trusts are rated 
green if no issues are identified and red 
where Monitor is taking enforcement 
action. 

Risk ratings 2013/14 

The following table gives our ratings for each quarter of 2013/14: 

Risk ratings 
April – 
September* 

Annual 
Plan 

2013/14 

Quarter 1 
2013/14 

Quarter 2 
2013/14 

New ratings 
from 

October* 

Quarter 3 
2013/14 

Quarter 4 
2013/14 

Financial risk 
rating 

(Annual Plan 
rating under the 
new Continuity 
of Services 
criteria from Oct 
2013) 

3 

 

(4) 

 

3 3 Continuity 
of services 

 

3 3 

Governance 
risk rating 

Amber 
Red 

Amber 
Red 

Green New 
governance 
rating 

Green Green 

*In October 2013 Monitor changed the way it assigned risk ratings.  Prior to this date Monitor was 
using the former ratings as follows: 

Financial risk ratings - reflecting the likelihood of a financial breach of an NHS foundation trust’s terms 
of authorisation  (with 5 reflecting the lowest level of risk and 1 the highest). 

Governance risk ratings – measuring compliance/performance against a Trust’s terms of 
authorisation: Red; Amber-red; Amber-green; or Green. 

From October the risk ratings changed to the current ratings; Continuity of Services and 
Governance Risk Rating. 
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Risk ratings 2014/15 

The following table gives our risk ratings compared to our annual plan for 2014/15: 

Risk ratings  Annual 
Plan 

2014/15 

Quarter 1 
2014/15 

Quarter2 
2014/15 

Quarter 3 
2014/15 

Quarter 4 
2014/15 

Continuity of 
Services risk 
rating 

3 

 

3 3 3 3* 

Governance 
risk rating 

Green Green Green Green Green* 

*Subject to final verification by Monitor

Continuity of services – the Trust reported 
a financial deficit of just under £1.0m in 
2014/15 compared to a surplus of £1.4m 
in 2013/14. This generated a full year 
Continuity of Services Risk Rating of 3 for 
the full year, against a plan of 3 within the 
Annual Plan submission to Monitor. 
Commentary on the financial performance 
for 2014/15 can be found in Section 5 of 
this Annual Report. 

Governance risk ratings – the Trust has 
maintained its Governance risk rating of 
Green for the year, within the context of a 
particularly challenging winter and failure 
to consistently meet the four hour waiting 
target.  However, the latter means that the 
Trust is subject to regular monitoring by 
both our commissioners and regulator with 
a robust improvement trajectory in place to 
meet this target in 2015/16.   
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Detailed activity review 

Over the last year the total number of 
patient contacts in our hospitals increased 
by 8.5%, which reflects a growing demand 
for NHS services and includes our busiest 
ever winter period. 

We have seen a significant increase in the 
number of first outpatient appointments 
compared to last year and an associated 
increase in follow-up appointments, 
reflecting a 6.5% increase in referrals 
overall. Outpatient procedures also show 
a significant increase, mainly due to 
improved data capture and recording 
which was agreed with our 
commissioners.  

Overall our emergency activity has grown, 
by 2.5% for A&E attendances and 4.8% 
for emergency admissions; whilst these 
both represent an increase – reflecting the 
national picture of high pressure on 
emergency and urgent care services – of 
greater significance has been the increase 
in the number of frail, elderly patients 
particularly in the +75 age group.  This 
group of patients needs much more 
complex treatment both in our ambulatory 
and short stay assessment units (which 

have seen an 18% increase in 
attendance) and on the wards, creating 
significant challenge for our A&E team and 
pressure on available beds, staffing and in 
sourcing the right discharge packages.  
This is reflected in the Trust’s difficulties in 
sustaining the emergency four hour 
waiting target which we were unable to 
meet for the year (achieving 92.7% 
against the target of 95%).   

In terms of planned surgery, day case 
activity (day cases and regular day 
attenders) and inpatient activity (patients 
staying at least one night in our hospitals) 
increased as a result of higher demand 
and our need to catch up on meeting the 
18 week referral to treatment target. Our 
day case and regular day attenders rose 
by 4% and inpatient activity by 6%. 

Finally, the Trust saw an increase in the 
number of births, partly attributable to the 
opening of our new Abbey Birth Centre, 
and partly in line with the growing birth 
rate. 

 

 



19 | P a g e  

Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Annual Report 2014/2015 

1. New outpatient 
attendances   

This year sees a rise in new 
outpatient appointments, 
reflecting the continuing rise in 
referrals to the Trust which 
increased by 6.5% 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2. Outpatient follow up 

attendances 
This year saw a slight rise in 
follow up outpatient 
attendances from 198,436 this 
year to 204,102, as a result of 
increased referrals. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3. Outpatient procedure 

attendances 
Outpatient procedures have 
increased significantly. The 
main reason for this marked 
change is related to an 
improvement in reporting in 
cardiology, respiratory and 
neurophysiology and a change 
in how we record some day 
case procedures. 
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4. A&E attendances   
Having been relatively static for 
the last three years, A&E 
attendances have seen an 
increase this year from 92,215 to 
94,497 (2.5%) reflecting the 
intense pressure felt this year 
particularly during the winter 
months.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5. Emergency admissions 
Emergency admissions have 
returned to similar levels recorded 
in 2012/13 and represent an 
increase of c.5% since last year. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6. Day case procedures   
The number of day case 
procedures and regular day 
attenders has seen an increase 
this year from 31,911 to 32,355, 
an increase of c. 4%.  This is due 
partly to growth in referrals and 
additional funding from our 
commissioners to clear our 18 
week backlog. 
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7. Elective (planned)  

admissions   
 
We have seen a rise in the 
number of planned overnight 
stays, from 6,147 to 6,782, and 
increase of c. 6%. The key reason 
for this growth was an increase in 
referrals and the need to clear our 
18 week backlog. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8. Births   
We have seen a slight increase in 
the number of births from 3,963 to 
4,045, which is likely to be as a 
result of our new Birth Centre.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



22 | P a g e  

Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Annual Report 2014/2015 

 

Our vision and strategy

Our vision ‘Creating excellent joined up 
patient care’ captures our ambition to join 
up care within our hospitals and care into 
and out of hospital, stressing the need for 
excellence and putting patients at the 
centre of everything we do. 

This year we revised our Trust strategy 
and key objectives – described in the 
triangle below - to deliver this vision, with 
two over-arching missions: 

• To develop integrated care for our 
local population – working to join 
up care pathways with primary, 
community and social care 

• Deliver high quality specialist 
services in Surrey – with our aim to 
become an Emergency Centre for 
Surrey 

These are underpinned by our four 
strategic objectives; Best Outcomes;  
Excellent Experience;  Skilled, Motivated 
Teams; and Top Productivity. 

Our objectives for 2014/15 were 
developed within the context of our two 
missions and strategic objectives, and our 
agreed contracts with Clinical 
Commissioning Groups (particularly North 
West Surrey CCG) and NHS England. 
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In summary our four strategic objectives are: 

• Best Outcomes  – reducing in-hospital mortality, eradicating avoidable harm and 
reducing inappropriate re-admissions. 

• Excellent Experience - improving patient experience, ensuring delivery of key 
national operational targets, improving the response management and use of the 
learning from complaints, improving staff experience of delivering care. 

• Skilled Motivated Teams  - recruiting, retaining and developing the workforce, 
improving staff engagement, experience, wellbeing and team working, improving 
education and development and developing and implementing a pay and reward 
framework. 

• Top Productivity  – delivering a cost improvement programme, driving clinical and 
corporate efficiencies, securing profitable activity growth and delivering our long term 
capital plan.

Progress against these objectives for 2014/15 is given in our Directors’ Report on p. 33. 

 
Future plans and development 

There are a number of external factors 
and uncertainties that will impact on the 
future of our business and our ability to 
continue to offer the best healthcare to 
patients.   

Our more detailed plans for 2015/16 have 
been devised to be consistent with the 
national context recently set out in the 
NHS Five-Year Forward View and the 
local context informed by local and 
specialist commissioning strategies, and 

by the Surrey Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy. 

Like many other healthcare providers 
across the NHS our key challenge is that 
of continuing to deliver high quality care 
for our patients, whilst underlying demand 
for our services increases and funding is 
decreasing in real terms.   
 
In particular, our future planning needs to 
take into account: 

 
• Continual difficulties in sustaining 

our performance in the face of 
rising demand – this requires a 
system wide response across 
North West Surrey which will be 
led by our commissioners 

• A further reduction in the tariff (the 
price we are paid for our services) 
by 1.6% for 2015/16 

• The impact of The Better Care 
Fund (which is moving income 
away from acute hospitals such as 
ourselves into social care and 
community health)  

• Higher quality improvement targets 
set by our commissioners (which 
also carry potential fines if we don’t 
meet them) 

• Significant recruitment and 
retention challenges, particularly 
for certain staff groups (reflected 
nationally) 
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• An increasing number of frail, 
elderly patients who often require 
longer and more complex care and 
treatment packages 

• An increased focus on quality and 
transparency - particularly 

following the Francis and Berwick 
reports – with tougher quality 
standards set by the Care Quality 
Commission and requirements to 
deliver seven day working. 

 
In order to deliver our vision of high 
quality, joined up care, particularly for 
patients with chronic and complex needs, 
we are increasingly seeking new ways to 
work with our partners in primary, 
community and mental health services, 
and in social care, particularly around 
integrated care.   

North West Surrey CCG have signalled 
their intention to move as much care as 
possible out of hospital and into primary 
and community settings and to strengthen 
and procure additional community 
services to reduce hospital admissions.  
Much of this will be at a lower tariff and we 
will need to take this into account when 
planning and developing our own business 
models and in seeking additional business 
from our wider catchment.  

In the medium term we recognise the 
challenge in meeting increasingly more 
demanding clinical standards and in 
addressing the financial challenges we 
face.  A key priority remains to progress 
our proposed plans to merge with The 
Royal Surrey County Hospital NHS 
Foundation Trust (see below), although 
we continue to maintain and develop 
relationships with other partners too.  This 
will help us to increase scale and 
resilience, and to improve the quality and 
financial sustainability of the services we 
provide. 

Our longer-term strategy is to continue to 
develop our hyper-acute services at St 
Peter’s Hospital at the same time as 
developing Ashford Hospital as a centre 
for elective surgery and diagnostics, with a 
strong outpatient department for the local 
community.   
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Our merger plans 

In April 2014, our Board approved an 
Outline Business Case to pursue a 
proposed merger with the Royal Surrey 
County Hospital NHS Foundation Trust.  
This will help to strengthen our future 

development and put us in a stronger 
position to realise our long-term ambitions. 

In addition, the Board believes the 
proposed merger would bring a number of 
key benefits including:    

• Strengthening seven-day 
consultant presence in a number of 
key specialities including stroke, 
gastroenterology and interventional 
radiology 

• Consolidation and growth of 
specialist services – notably 
cardiovascular and cancer services 

• Development and expansion of 
diagnostic, elective and cancer 
services at Ashford Hospital 

• Creating opportunities for 
significant financial savings  
 

• Creating further opportunities for: 
o Supporting the delivery of 

integrated care 
o Improving staff recruitment 

and retention 
o Enhancing research and 

education 
o Maximising benefits of 

digital technology, for 
example by developing an 
electronic patient record 

During 2014 and early 2015 a Full 
Business Case for the proposed merger 
has been developed.  In February 2015, 
the Phase One review by the Competition 
and Markets Authority (CMA) 
recommended a more detailed 
investigation into the competition issues in 

a number of specialities where it was 
perceived there was a risk of a significant 
reduction in competition.  This is likely to 
take at least six months, meaning the 
earliest the potential merger could take 
place would be during the next financial 
year. 

 

Additional strategic options - in parallel 
and complementary to the work on the 
proposed merger, during this period of 
additional review by the CMA, we also 

plan to undertake a review of other 
strategic options which could also support 
delivery of our longer-term vision.   
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Principal risks 
Taking into account both external and internal factors and uncertainties, as part of our risk 
management process we have identified the following key risks to our strategic objectives 
which are summarised below:   
 
Object ive 1 - Best Outcomes                                                  

Key Risks  

1.1 If the quality governance and impact assessment processes fail while we are developing our cost 
improvement plans, this could lead to poor quality of care. 

1.2 Our different organisational priorities could compete with and undermine staff engagement, leading to 
a distraction from the focus on high quality care. 

1.3 If there is poor capacity and flow in the emergency care pathway and not enough senior decision 
making this could result in poor outcomes and patient experience. 

1.4 If we don’t align our workforce with the demand and acuity of patients, agency usage and pay costs, 
this could lead to poor patient outcomes. 

1.5 If our CQC inspection action plan slips, this could risk quality of service delivery, reputation and further 
regulatory action. 

Objective 2 - Excellent Experience  

Key Risks  

2.1 The Friends and Family results are not used as a driver for improvement leading to persistently poor 
experience. 

2.2 Lack of awareness of key issues relating to vulnerable groups may lead to compassionless care and 
poor patient experience. 

2.3 If the Trust fails to adopt the culture of a listening, kind and compassionate organisation in dealing with 
complaints then our patients, within the course of their care and treatment, will have a poor experience. 

2.4 Administrative delays and cancellations to appointments leading to poor patient experience. 

Objective 3 - Skilled, Motivated Teams  

Key Risks 

3.1 The inability to recruit and retain high calibre staff would lead to lack of skilled and motivated teams. 

3.2 If individuals and teams do not feel valued or motivated this could result in poor patient care and staff 
experience and ineffective team working. 

Objective 4: Top Produc tivity  

Key Risks 

 4.1 Poor alignment of the clinical workforce around the Trust’s efficiency improvement programme could 
lead to insufficient productivity. 
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For more detail on how we manage and respond to risk see our Annual Governance 
Statement on p. 183.   
 
Our business model  
We have a devolved business structure, 
which comprises four clinical divisions 
giving accountability and strong 
performance management.  Performance 
is reviewed monthly both at Clinical 
Divisional level and across individual 
clinical specialties.  This has also helped 
to strengthen accountability. 
and generates positive engagement 
between the Executive Team and front 
line clinicians.   
 
This new structure has strengthened 
quality and efficiency within each Division, 
as well as allowing more opportunity for 
direct staff engagement in divisional 
objectives.                  
                                   
Our four clinical divisions are: 

• Medicine & Emergency Services 
• Theatres, Anaesthetics, Surgery & 

Critical Care 
• Women’s Health & Paediatrics 

• Trauma & Orthopaedics; Therapies 
& Diagnostics 

Each division is led by a Divisional 
Director, Associate Director of Operations 
and Associate Director of Nursing.   
Further support for our business priorities 
is given through our Programme 
Management Office, particularly for those 
transformation projects which are more 
complex and go across divisions (see p. 
63 for more details).  Further support is 
given by our corporate teams who have 
their own delivery plans and performance 
targets – including health informatics, 
estates and facilities, research and 
development and communications and 
engagement. 
 

 
Employee matters  – employee matters (including workforce performance and planning 
and our approach to equality and diversity) are described in our Directors’ Report on p. 49.  
 
 
 

4.2 A failure to deliver the clinical quality incentives (CQUINS), performance standards or to respond to the 
admission thresholds/readmission caps/ambulance turnaround penalties within the 2015/16 contract 
could lead to an-under recovery of income and reduction in productivity. 

4.3 Failure to deliver our 2015/16 cost improvement plans and/or if pay and non-pay expenditure exceed 
our budget without an increase in income this could lead to a reduction in productivity. 

4.4 Financial or service pressures on our partners (who provide health and social care) or on our 
commissioners that cause operational difficulties or lead to a stronger enforcement of contract levers 
than we were expecting, could lead to reduced income and the inability to achieve productivity. 

4.5 Excess demand could increase the financial pressure due to the income we receive for over-
performance being paid at a lower tariff whilst additional staffing is paid at premium rates. 
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Environmental matters 
In today’s environment it is important for 
all organisations to take responsibility for 
conducting their business in a sustainable 
manner and the impact their business 
makes on the environment.  As a large 
local employer and healthcare provider the 
Trust also wants to demonstrate sound 
corporate and social responsibility.  

Being sensitive to the environment also 
makes good business sense as we reduce 
the cost of transport, the waste that we 
generate as well as water and energy that 
we use.  

There is now a drive for organisations 
such as ours to consider and reduce the 
environmental impact of our activities. This 
is measured using a “carbon footprint” to 
gauge the overall environmental impact of 
our activities. “Carbon” is also used as a 
shorthand way of referring to all the 
polluting gases released into the 
atmosphere that cause climate change 
through the process of global warming.   

In 2014/15 our total carbon footprint (in 
tonnes) was made up from the following 
sources: 

Procurement  

Energy Use 

Transport 

Solid Waste 

Water/Sewage 

24000 

12000 

226 

51 

117 

66% 

33% 

0.6% 

0.1% 

0.3% 

 

 

 

Performance and progress to date: 

Following the Climate 
Change Act in 2008, the 
NHS committed to 
meeting the government’s 
target of reducing our 
carbon footprint by 34% 
by 2020 and 80% by 
2050. As an NHS Trust 
we are expected to make 
our own contribution 
towards this. 

Last year we reduced our 
carbon footprint by 3.4%, 
and against our base year 
(2007) we have reduced 
emissions by 8.1%.  

Carbon Sector 
% change against 

previous year 
% change against 
base year (2007) 

Energy use -0.3% -17% 

Business Transport 2.7% -68% 

Staff Travel -3.6% -13% 

Waste production 6.3% -59% 

Water/Sewage 9.2% -35% 

Procurement (outsourced 
emissions) -5.0% -2% 

Overall change in 
our carbon footprint  -3.4% -8.1% 

 

Although short of our half-way target of 
15%, this is still a good result, given that 

this data does not account for a 17% 
growth in our services over the same 

Procurement 
66% 

Energy use 
33% 
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period. If this is taken into account then 
the Trust has achieved a carbon footprint 
reduction of -22% which is in line with our 
target. 

Further achievements this year include: 

Reducing waste 

• Waste disposal costs the Trust 
around £300,000 per year. Since 
2007 we have reduced the carbon 
footprint of our solid waste by 60%, 
from 123 tonnes to just 50 tonnes 
of CO2. None of our waste goes to 
landfill; it is either recycled or sent 
for processing where useful energy 
is extracted.     

Greener and leaner by a million   

• By installing improved lighting and 
better heating pumps and fans we 
have improved both visitor 
experience and our electricity 
consumption by 6.5%. That’s 
1,000,000 units of electricity or the 
equivalent power used in 300 
homes in Surrey over a year. 

• To further improve the indoor 
environment, we are upgrading our 
boilers at Ashford and have 
introduced a new computer 
controlled heating and ventilation 
system. This has saved more than 
1,750,000 units of gas - equivalent 
to heating 100 Surrey homes for a 
whole year.   

Buying smarter 

• Much of the Trust’s carbon 
footprint comes from the goods 
and services we use to provide 
healthcare services. To make sure 

we choose sustainably, the Trust is 
developing a “building design 
guide”. This will help us with larger, 
complex projects such as ward 
renovations or new buildings. 
Overall the guide focuses on 
lifetime value for money and will 
set better and more consistent 
standards for products and 
designs.  

• Taking the issue of procurement 
further we will review the 
environmental performance of 
suppliers and consider the whole-
life costs of ownership, rather than 
considering the cheapest list price. 
By applying this approach to the 
procurement of clinical and non-
clinical goods and services we will 
influence our suppliers to secure 
reductions both to Trust costs and 
carbon footprint.  

Promoting sustainable travel and living 

• To encourage walking and cycling 
to work to work a “pedometer 
challenge” competition was held as 
part of Sustainability Month, 
together with promotions for a 
Surrey-based environmental 
incentive award scheme called 
Eco-Awards. This rewards 
travelling to work by bike or by 
foot.  

• At our cafés we adopt the use of 
seasonal menus and provide local 
supplier information. All meat 
supplies and diary used at the 
Trust have the “Red Tractor” 
accreditation. This guarantees 
quality and origin in the food 
supply chain.  
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Disclosures 
The accounts for 2014/15 (see p. 196) have been prepared under a direction issued by 
Monitor under the National Health Service Act 2006.  After making enquiries, the directors 
have a reasonable expectation that Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.  For 
this reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the accounts. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Suzanne Rankin 
Chief Executive 
28 May 2015 
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2.  Directors’ Report  

 
 

Introduction 

The Directors present their report for the financial year 1st April 2014 to 31st March 2015, 
which incorporates a summary of our overall performance against our corporate objectives. 

Our Executive Team
Our Executive Team over the last year has comprised: 
 

• Andrew Liles, Chief Executive – until September 2014 
• Suzanne Rankin, Chief Executive from September 2014, prior to which Suzanne was 

Chief Nurse 
• Valerie Bartlett, Deputy Chief Executive and Chief Operating Officer 
• Heather Caudle, Chief Nurse from September 2014 
• David Fluck, Medical Director 
• Simon Marshall, Director of Finance & Information 
• Louise McKenzie, Director of Workforce Transformation  

 
Non-executive Directors
During the year our Non-executive Directors have been: 

• Aileen McLeish, Chairman 
• Philip Beesley, Deputy Chairman 
• Nadeem Aziz – from September 2014 
• Sue Ells 
• Jim Gollan – until July 2014 
• Clive Goodwin 
• Terry Price 
• Carolyn Simons 
• Peter Taylor – from September 2014 

 
More details on our directors are given in Section 4 of this report.   
 
Director disclosures 
For each individual director currently in post at the time of approval of this report, so far as 
each director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which our auditor is unaware.   
 
Each director has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to 
make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that our auditor is 
aware of that information.  Each director has also made such enquiries of their fellow 
directors and of the Trust’s auditor for that purpose and taken such other steps required by 
his/her duty as a director of the Foundation Trust to exercise reasonable care, skill and 
diligence. 
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Directors have taken the necessary responsibilities in preparing this Annual Report and 
Accounts.  They consider that the Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, are fair, 
balanced and understandable and provide the information necessary for patients, regulators 
and other stakeholders to assess the Trust’s performance, business model and strategy. 
 

Progress against our strategic objectives 

The following section describes our progress against each of our four corporate objectives;   
 

• Best Outcomes; 
• Excellent Experience; 
• Skilled, Motivated Teams; 
• Top Productivity. 
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Corporate objective 1:  Best Outcomes  

 

‘Outcomes here are generally better than elsewhere’  – was how the CQC inspection 
team described our hospitals in their feedback [in March], following our full hospital 
inspection last December.  In their summary report, the CQC noted that ‘all services [in our 
hospitals] were found to be effective’, with ‘care and treatment delivered by trained and 
experienced medical staff and committed nurses’ with services accurately following national 
guidelines, practice and directives.’ 

In particular the CQC highlighted: 

• Our specialist palliative care team, 
chaplaincy and bereavement 
services (see p.  42) 

• Our dedicated acute pain team and 
their accessibility to ward staff and 
the use of the Bolton Pain 
Assessment Scale to support 
patients with cognitive impairments 
in their pain assessments 

• The Abbey Birth Centre - although 
relatively new, was already 
reporting improved outcomes for 
reduced uptake of pain relief, 
improved mobility in labour, less 
use of drugs for bringing on labour 
and fewer operative deliveries (see 
more on p. 43) 

• Our Older People’s Assessment 
and Liaison team – a dedicated 
service providing specialist advice 
on the management of complex 
frail patients as well as early 
intervention and assessment by a 
multi-disciplinary team.  The 
overall aim of the service is to 
improve experience, safety and 
outcomes of older people whilst 
receiving emergency care, and 
their transition back into the 
community.  The team work from 
our Medical Assessment Unit and 

provide in-reach into A&E 
(proactively identifying and 
managing appropriate patients).   
 
Through the reduction in length of 
stay and the avoidance of 
readmission older people are 
enabled to live as independently as 
possible in their usual place of 
residence.  Over the last year the 
average length of stay (LoS) and 
readmission rates have decreased 
for the over 85 age group – from a 
LoS of 9.96 to 9.55 and a reduction 
in readmission rates (within 30 
days) from 16.5% to 15.6%. 

• Early Supported Discharge Team 
in Orthopaedics - working hard to 
get people home quickly after 
surgery, where we know they 
recover more effectively, 
continuing to give patients acute 
care in their own home to allow this 
to happen.  The team comprises a 
physiotherapist, nurse, 
occupational therapist and therapy 
assistants, who provide: 

o Specialist therapy for 
patients at home for up to 
14 visits  
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o Advice and emotional 
support to patients, carers 
and their family   

o Support so patients can 
make their own decisions 
and set their own goals in 
their home environment    

o The team have a close 
working relationship with 
the Orthopaedic 
Department and the 
orthogeriatricians which 
helps reduce complications 
and readmissions 

• Our children’s ward staff and their 
work with our clinical nurse 
specialist to ensure that patients 
with diabetes have a high standard 
of care with a good transition to 
adult services 

• The electronic patient record 
system in the intensive care unit 
which was described as 
outstanding.  This allows patients 
to benefit from comprehensive, 
detailed records in one place, 
where all appropriate staff are able 
to access and update them at all 
times.   

 

Developing our specialist services 

We continue with our strategy to develop our specialist acute services, with highlights as 
follows: 

Improving cardiology services - during the 
year we moved and refurbished our 
coronary care wards at St Peter’s 
Hospital.  Previously located on the fourth 
floor at St Peter’s Hospital, the wards have 
joined together and have been renamed 
Birch Acute Cardiac Care.  They are now 
located adjacent to our Cardiac 
Catheterisation labs so all our inpatient 
cardiac care is in one place, creating a 
single Cardiac Unit.  This now comprises 
ward areas, a quiet space, an echo room 
for echocardiograms, the Cath labs, two 
recovery areas and a day ward.  Bringing 
everything together means care is less 
disjointed and more efficient for both 
patients and staff, helping to improve 
outcomes.  The new unit also has direct 
access for the ambulance services, so 
patients can get treatment immediately. 

Developing a dedicated Urology Suite – 
we have now opened a dedicated Urology 
Suite in the space formerly occupied by 
the former Day Surgery Unit at St Peter’s 
Hospital.  The new suite is able to 
accommodate urology surgery (for both 

day and inpatients), flexible cystoscopy 
lists and an ambulatory area for urology 
treatments which were formerly 
undertaken in the urology treatment area 
at Ashford Hospital, bringing all elements 
of the service together.  This is helping to 
provide an effective, streamlined and 
patient focused service for urology 
patients, improving experience and 
ultimately improving patient outcomes.     

Top outcomes for hip fracture patients – a 
report published last autumn by the Royal 
College of Physicians detailing outcomes 
for hip fracture patients [data from 2013], 
shows that the Trust was in the top 12 [out 
of 182] for low mortality and in the top16 
hospitals for achieving ‘Best Practice’ in a 
range of criteria including operations 
within 36 hours of admission and a multi-
disciplinary approach to assessment and 
after-care.    

Our average length of stay is also falling 
steadily for hip-fracture patients and is 
now around 18 days.  Hip fracture is one 
of the most serious consequences of falls 
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in the elderly. Patients with hip fractures 
have complex medical, surgical and 
rehabilitation needs and we are 
demonstrating that a well-coordinated 
multidisciplinary team approach is 
essential for the best outcome. 

Developing our cancer services – this year 
has seen a number of positive 
developments for our cancer services, 
including the appointment of a new clinical 
Cancer Lead.  Other developments have 
included: 

• Expanding the Acute Oncology 
Service – this specialist service gives 
cancer patients with acute cancer 
conditions access to specialist 
oncology advice, provides an expert 
oncological assessment with 24 hours 
(Mon-Fri) and a single advice route to 

all clinicians.  This enables admissions 
to be avoided, length of stay to be 
reduced, oncological expertise can be 
provided to support both patients and 
their families and avoid unnecessary 
investigations. 

• Development of our new 
Chemotherapy service at Ashford 
Hospital (see p.  42)    

• We are continuing to work with our 
commissioners, GPs and community 
partners for a more integrated 
approach to cancer care 

• More participation in research trials 

• An increase in the number of clinical 
nurse specialists across the service 

 

 

Quality and Safety 

Mortality rates 

The latest mortality data shows the Trust 
continues to benchmark well with other 
local and similar sized Trusts, although 
our absolute mortality rate rose during the 
year.  In particular there was a ‘spike’ in 
mortality rates during the winter months 
which coincided with the time of most 
intense pressure on our services.  This 
‘spike’ was replicated across the country 
with an unprecedented demand on NHS 
services. Towards the end of the year, 
rates were beginning to return to former 
levels. 

Despite the in-year increase, specific 
mortality measures which take into 
account individual patient factors such as 
age, other health problems and type of 
illness show that the mortality rates for the 
Trust continue to be better than expected.  

Re-launching the Safer Surgical Checklist 
- the WHO (World Health Organisation) 

Safer Surgery Checklist was introduced 
across all hospitals in the UK in 2010 to 
ensure key patient safety checks e.g.  
VTE (blood clot) prophylaxis take place in 
theatre and to improve teamwork and 
communication. It stemmed from a 
worldwide study which demonstrated 
marked improvement in mortality and 
outcomes with its use. Our compliance 
with this checklist is almost 100% (the 
standard set by our Clinical 
Commissioning Group) but it was felt that 
it could be done to a higher quality with 
more team involvement.  

Therefore a multidisciplinary team 
organised and ran an innovative ‘How to 
WHO’ promotion Week during November 
2014 to improve checklist quality and team 
engagement. Overall the week was a 
great success with lots of enthusiasm and 
engagement. The on-going challenge will 
be to regularly monitor practice and 
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ensure these high standards continue to 
improve. 

Patient Safety Workshop – during the year 
the Trust held an innovative evening 
workshop taking a closer look at hospital 
‘never-events’ and how to ensure the right 
learning takes place.  The event included 
a presentation from the NHS England 
National Patient Safety Investigation team 
and was attended by around 60 members 
of staff from across the Trust, including 
colleagues from the CCG, with very 
positive feedback on how useful and 
informative the event was. 

Reducing post-operative infections in 
colorectal surgery -  a survey by Public 

Health England (published in November 
2014) has shown that patients who have 
operations on their large bowel at St 
Peter’s Hospital have a lower than 
average risk of contracting an infection 
afterwards.   

Over a three month period, only 8.3% of 
patients contracted post-operative 
infections compared to the national 
average of 12.1 % and the best result 
since the Trust started to participate in the 
National Surveillance scheme in 2008.  
This is a result of the great efforts that 
have been made by Trust staff in recent 
years with changes in practice in colo-
rectal surgery including introducing an 
innovative antibiotic prophylaxis regimen. 

 

Enhancing Quality and Enhanced Recovery Programmes  

The Trust actively participates in the 
Enhancing Quality and Enhanced 
Recovery Programmes, a regional 
coalition across Kent, Surrey, and Sussex 

which use evidence based quality 
standards to improve patient care and 
experience. This year’s results from each 
pathway followed are given below:  

 

ENHANCING 
QUALITY  

Actual  
2013/14 

Actual  
2014/15 

Target  
2014/15 

Heart Failure 68.0 64.5 75.1 

Community 
Pneumonia 

63.7 76.3 N/a – setting 
baseline 

   

ENHANCED 
RECOVERY 

Actual  
2013/14 

 

Actual  
2014/15 

 

Target  
2014/15 

Hip and Knee 
Replacement 

69.6 88.9 82.9 

Gynaecological 
Surgery 

73.6 91.8 82.7 

Colorectal 
Surgery 

88.9 92.2 90.0  
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Under the Enhancing Quality programme, 
heart failure performance has dipped as 
the evidence that patients received 
information on their condition at discharge 
hasn’t always been available.  The 
Enhanced Recovery surgical pathways 

are now well established  with 
performance showing favourable results 
with the majority of pathways exceeding 
both last year’s performance and the 
improvement target, with new pathways 
being considered for rollout next year.   

 

Further clinical outcomes  

More detail on our work to improve clinical 
outcomes and improve quality standards 
in areas such as infection control, 
reducing pressure ulcers and hospital 

acquired blood clots (venous thrombo-
embolisms) are contained in our Quality 
Report which starts on p. 70. 

 

Improving the Emergency Care Pathway  

One of our key priorities this year has 
been to continue to make improvements to 
the way we manage our emergency 
patients, in particular the journey these 
patients make through our hospitals, from 
admission (usually via A&E), through 
treatment to final discharge.  We know 
that it’s in the best interests for patients – 
particularly our older more frail patients – 
to have as short a stay in hospital as 
possible as sometimes a prolonged stay 
can cause loss of independence and 
deterioration in a patient’s overall health 
and wellbeing. 

In partnership with North West Surrey 
CCG we have developed a programme 
which reaches across the health economy 
as it’s clear from the recent surges in 
demand for NHS services that we 
experienced this winter, only a system 
wide approach will deliver the changes 
necessary for sustained improvements .   
The Trust is taking the lead on delivering 
changes to our hospitals and operational 
processes, and supporting our partners in 
addressing factors relevant to emergency 
care which are outside our direct control.   
These include providing better support to 
nursing homes so that they can avoid 

sending a patient to A&E, and giving 
specialist advice to GPs. 

As outlined elsewhere in this report, we 
have faced particular challenges on the 
emergency care pathway over the year, 
with for example 13% more admissions in 
December 2014 than in the previous 
December, an additional 233 patients in 
that month.  This mirrors the situation 
experienced nationally.   Our work to 
improve the emergency care pathway is 
designed to give us greater resilience in 
the face of the kind of extreme pressures 
that we felt over the Christmas period and 
to put us back on track regarding our 
performance against the four hour waiting 
target. 

Changing the configuration of our A&E 
Department - we have made plans, which 
will be put in place before next winter, to 
reconfigure our A&E department.  This will 
ensure that patients are treated in an area 
most suitable for their needs, and that 
pressure in the Majors area of the 
department is minimised.  Patients able to 
self-present to the hospital will be treated 
where possible in a separate Minors or 
Ambulatory Care Unit, leaving the main 
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department for those patients with more 
serious conditions.   A senior nurse will 
rapidly assess patients’ level of need 
when they first enter the department to 
ensure that they receive treatment in the 
correct area.  We are planning also to 
provide a separate entrance increasing 
the security and capacity in Paediatric 
A&E, which often becomes overcrowded.   

We have been reviewing whether the 
inpatient bed capacity at St Peter’s 
hospital is suitable for the number and 
type of patients we are now treating.  We 
opened Swift ward for temporary winter 
escalation in October last year and have 
now taken the decision to fully establish 
this facility, consisting of 26 beds, so that it 
has its own team of staff and can be 
available for use on a permanent basis.  
To further support access to the right 
inpatient facilities for emergency patients 
we have now established a dedicated 
stroke ward and new cardiac unit (see 
more on p. 43). 

Speeding up diagnosis and treatment - to 
minimise the time that patients need to 
spend in the A&E department we have 
been planning the introduction of point of 
care diagnostic testing, working with 
Surrey Pathology Services.   In May 2015 
we have opened point of care laboratories 
in both the A&E department and our 
Ambulatory Care Unit, where routine tests 
such as blood gas analysis and full blood 
counts can be done in a few minutes, 
rather than being sent to the central 
laboratory.  In partnership with our 
managed equipment service provider 
Philips we have also carried out a 
successful trial of a dedicated ultrasound 
sonographer in the A&E department, 
which showed that the mean time to 
discharge from the department can be 
improved by around two hours for patients 
who require an ultrasound.   Plans for the 

permanent introduction of this service are 
currently under discussion.    

We have launched a surgical ‘hot’ clinic to 
add to the suite of rapid access clinics that 
A&E clinicians are able to refer patients 
into and have plans for a second CT 
scanner.   This means that patients do not 
have to remain in the department 
unnecessarily to obtain a specialist review 
for their condition. 

To ensure that patients’ assessment, 
diagnosis and treatment are progressed 
as rapidly as possible, senior clinicians 
supported by our Programme 
Management Office have been putting 
together standard procedures and 
admissions pathways.  These now exist 
for a number of A&E processes, and for 
acute hub and OPAL (Older People’s 
Assessment and Liaison) operational 
processes.   We do however continue to 
face challenges to recruiting the numbers 
of senior clinicians required in all these 
areas, and this has limited the impact of 
these developments.   We have been 
recruiting overseas for A&E middle-grade 
doctors with some success, but similar to 
the national picture recruiting additional 
consultants remains a challenge.  We 
recognise recruitment is a key priority and 
are developing a new recruitment strategy 
with a particular focus on A&E. 

Seven day working – we have made 
positive progress in planning for the 
implementation of seven day consultant 
cover to our medical wards.  Over the 
winter period we extended our OPAL 
service to work across seven days, 
following the recruitment of two new 
consultants.   In addition, the Ambulatory 
Care Unit has been open at weekends, 
and there is additional consultant ward 
presence to support discharge at 
weekends.   Our objective in the coming 
year is to recruit an additional eight 
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consultants by October to enable full 
consultant ward rounds to take place 
every day of the week, with continuity of 

consultant cover built in over a number of 
days at a time. 
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Corporate objective 2:  Excellent Experience  

 

Our aim is to deliver a great patient experience and for patients to be confident in the 
care and treatment we provide 

‘A caring organisation’

When the CQC fed back on their 
inspection of our hospitals last December 
at the Quality Risk Summit, they described 
Ashford & St Peter’s as ‘a caring 
organisation’ and ‘a good place to come 
and get your care’. 

Overall the CQC rated the Trust as ‘Good’; 
individually Ashford Hospital also received 
a ‘Good’ rating, with St Peter’s Hospital 
rated as ‘Requires Improvement’ largely 
relating to staffing shortages and 
difficulties in recruiting to some areas. 

In their report the CQC noted that ‘all 
services were found to be effective’ with 
better than average outcomes, and that 
‘care and treatment is delivered by trained 
and experienced medical staff and 
committed nurses’. 

A number of areas were highlighted as 
areas of outstanding practice, including: 

• How we care for patients nearing 
the end of their life 

• Good team working 

• Caring staff throughout our 
hospitals 

• Our dinosaur trail distracting 
children on their way to theatre 

• Our new Abbey Birth Centre (see 
more on p. 43) 

During their feedback at the Quality 
Summit, the CQC made a number of very 
positive reflections on what they had seen 
during their inspection including: 

• “Having a positive reporting culture 
from the executives down is really 
good.” 

• “Safety is definitely an authentic 
priority.” 

• “Outcomes here are generally 
better than elsewhere - this is a 
good place to come and get your 
care.” 

• “A&E - even when things got 
busier we saw staff continue their 
caring attitude – very calm when a 
surge happened.” 

• “Our attitude towards Duty of 
Candour –‘Gold in the bank’.” 

 

Safety as a priority 

As well as an overall rating, the CQC 
provides individual ratings on five key 
elements looking at whether the Trust is 
safe, caring, effective, responsive and 
well-led. 

Under the safety domain, the Trust was 
rated as ‘Requires Improvement’ which 
relates predominantly to staffing shortages 
and having the right number of skilled 
nursing staff in place.  In their feedback, 
the CQC made it clear that they were not 
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saying our hospitals were unsafe; rather 
that safety can be improved.  Importantly 
the CQC commented that quality and 
safety were clearly a priority from the 
executive level down and specifically 
picked out our positive reporting culture. 

However, we know we have difficulties in 
recruiting a number of staff groups, nurses 
and middle grade doctors in particular, 
and whilst we fill gaps with agency or bank 
staff, we recognise that is not as good – or 
as safe – as having staff who are 

permanent members of the team.  See 
more on our recruitment strategy on p.55. 

Trust Chief Executive, Suzanne Rankin:  
“To receive a ‘good’ rating from  the CQC 
in the current climate particularly at what 
was an incredibly busy time in the middle 
of winter, should not be under-estimated.  
Under the new tougher inspection regime 
a ‘good’ rating is by no means standard.  
This is a fantastic achievement and I am 
really proud to lead such an outstanding 
and committed team.”

Putting patients first 

We have been working on a number of specific projects to improve the experience of 
patients in our hospitals including: 

Releasing Time to Care – looking at more 
efficient ways of working on the wards to 
free up more time for nursing staff to 
spend on direct care with patients.  

This project was re-launched in 
September 2014 and is based on a 
number of specific modules.  Examples of 
improvements made include: 

• As part of the Discharge module, staff 
on Maple Ward devised a new process 
for their discharge summaries.  To 
organise what needs to be done, the 
nursing staff introduced a designated 
board in the doctors’ office to indicate 
priorities for the current and next day.  
By filling this in each morning, time 
has been saved ‘chasing’ the doctors, 
saving everyone time and nicknamed 
a “chasing saving intervention”.  

• As part of the Medication module, 
Kingfisher Ward has introduced 
pictorial guidance to help nursing staff 
organise their drugs trollies, 
minimising room for errors and saving 
time, which can then be released back 
to patients. 

The project is helping to drive a team spirit 
and pride in continuous improvement, as 
well as encouraging positive competition 
between areas to produce the best 
outcomes.   

Improving experience patients with 
dementia – improving the experience of 
this important patient group is a key 
priority.  Earlier this year we appointed a 
Dementia and Admiral Lead Nurse - a 
specialist dementia nurse able to give 
much-needed practical and emotional 
support to carers and patients.   

We have now introduced a training 
programme for all staff within the Trust to 
help improve skills and competencies in 
the care and treatment of someone with 
dementia, which comprises different levels 
of training for specific staff.  We have also 
started to review our Dementia Strategy.   

Our Estates and Facilities departments 
are supporting this with all building/capital 
projects going through the Dementia 
Steering Group to ensure they meet 
dementia best practice.  We launched a 
Memory Café (May 2015) for carers of 
dementia patients staying in our hospitals  
to offer support and advice.    
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Outpatient transformation – a project 
started towards the end of this year to 
improve the administration processes 
supporting our outpatient services.  In 
particular we want to: 

• Reduce waiting times for first 
appointments following a GP referral 

• Improve our booking process so 
patients attend the right clinic, first 
time with minimal cancellations from 
the hospital with less than 2 weeks’ 
notice 

• Improve how we communicate clinic 
outcomes with patients particularly 
through the electronic solution,  
DICTATE IT for dictating letters 

• Improve the training for our 
administrative staff  

• Improve the accuracy of information 
we send in patient letters 

 
This project will be a major focus for 
2015/16. 
 
Our new Chemotherapy service at Ashford 
Hospital - this year we have introduced a 
new Chemotherapy service at Ashford 
Hospital, delivered in partnership with The 
Royal Surrey County Hospital NHS 
Foundation Trust.  This is an important 
development in providing chemotherapy 
for cancer patients locally, rather than 
patients having to travel to Guildford or 
London.  Phase one was to provide 
chemotherapy for breast cancer patients 
and now this has been successfully 
achieved we are looking to expand the 
service to other cancer patients.   

This project has been developed as part of 
our partnership with The Royal Surrey 
County Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 
and is an example of the type of patient 
benefits we believe we could expand on 
through our proposed merger. 

Improving palliative and end of life care - 
we have continued our work to improve 
the experience for patients at the end of 
their life, and their families.   This year we 
appointed two palliative care medical 
consultants, who are importantly delivering 
care across both hospital and community 
settings.  This helps to ensure consistency 
of care and that patients are, wherever 
possible, cared for in the most appropriate 
setting.   

In the recent CQC inspection, the Trust’s 
end of life care was highlighted as an area 
of outstanding practice.  In particular the 
CQC commended the way teams work 
together – our palliative care team, the 
Chaplaincy team, bereavement and 
mortuary services and the commitment 
from wards, all supporting the delivery of 
high quality end of life care.  Comments 
included: 

 ‘There was evidence of good 
multidisciplinary working across the trust; 
of note was the competent specialist 
palliative care team who worked 
successfully throughout the hospital. They 
were accessible, visible and well-utilised’. 

‘Good joint working between the wards 
and departments, the bereavement 
services, chaplaincy services and the 
mortuary services to ensure as little 
distress as possible to bereaved relatives.’ 
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Continued investment in the patient environment  

During the year we have continued our programme of investment in the patient environment, 
with a number of exciting new capital developments including:

The Abbey Birth Centre – opening its 
doors to new mums-to-be last May, on the 
International Day of the Midwife – our new 
£1.5 million Abbey Birth Centre is a real 
flagship unit.  Situated next to our existing 
maternity unit, Abbey Wing at St Peter’s 
Hospital, this has been purpose built to 
provide a modern, homely and relaxing 
environment for women who have normal 
and uncomplicated pregnancies and want 
to give birth in a less clinical setting.  The 
unit includes four en-suite birthing rooms, 
three with pool facilities and extra touches 
such as iPod docking stations and a small 
outside garden space.  The unit was 
officially opened by model, TV presenter 
and celebrity mum Abbey Clancy, who 
described the unit as ‘an amazing facility, 
it’s like being in a hotel.’ 

New Admissions Lounge at St Peter’s – a 
£1.2 million development, the new Lounge 
offers greater comfort for patients and is 
situated in a purpose built unit much 
closer to our main Theatres.  Now a 
completely independent area with the 
latest facilities, the new lounge consists of 
separate male and female waiting rooms 
and fully equipped consulting rooms, 
meaning patients can now be assessed 
more quickly whilst enjoying more space, 
privacy and dignity.  

At the same time, in developing the space 
for the new unit, the porters lodge, travel 
office and post room were moved into 
newly refurbished facilities on the level 
below providing an improved environment 
for staff in those departments. 

Reconfiguring our wards – this year we 
continued our progamme to reconfigure 
some of our ward space to help ensure 
patients get to the right and most 
appropriate place as quickly as possible.   

This included moving and upgrading our 
coronary care ward (Birch ward) at St 
Peter’s Hospital so it is now adjacent to 
our Cardiac Catheterisation Labs, creating 
a complete Cardiac Unit.  This means 
more efficient treatment can be provided 
for patients, all from one modern, bespoke 
location.  Our thanks to local charity 
HeartBeat who kindly donated a range of 
new equipment to the unit. 

This year we also created a dedicated 
Stroke Ward – Cedar ward – improving 
the experience of patients suffering from a 
stroke, so they can be transferred as 
quickly as possible to a specialist stroke 
bed.
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Good patient environment scores – once 
again we received broadly good scores for 
the quality of our environment in the 
Patient-Led Assessments of the Care 
Environment (known as PLACE).  The 
inspections were carried out in March 

2014, with the reports not available until 
the summer of that year.  The scores were 
as follows: 

 

 

 Ashford 
Hospital 

St Peter’s 
Hospital 

National 
Average 

Cleanliness (of hospital areas) 
99.5% 99.7% 97.3% 

Food and hydration 
95.1% 94.9% 88.8% 

Privacy, dignity and wellbeing 
78.0% 88.3% 87.7% 

Condition, appearance and maintenance 
(of sites) 

86.9% 86.1% 92.0% 

 

For both cleanliness and food and 
hydration both hospitals scored above the 
national average.  Our cleaning schedules 
are constantly reviewed to ensure our 
clinical and public areas achieve the 
highest standards.  The workforce is 
highly motivated and trained, with very low 
staff turnover and sickness and one of the 
highest staff survey satisfaction scores in 
the trust.   

Our food and hydration scores were 
particularly high compared to the national 
average, which can be directly associated 
with the development of our catering 
contract and improvements put in place 
since the new contract began in 2012.  
This includes a regular review of menus 
and an enhancement of our ‘essential 
goodness’ brand with a new logo and 
branded crockery.  Our catering 
department was also shortlisted for two 
national awards for their food service. 

At Ashford Hospital our privacy, dignity 
and wellbeing score was below the 
national average, due in part to the small 
number of audit questions, just 13 with 

little room for non-compliance.  On the day 
of inspection there were several isolated 
areas of non-compliance (e.g. a broken 
shower rail) and not all patients have 
access to their own TV which dictates a 
lower score.   

On condition, appearance and 
maintenance, both sites scored 5% below 
the national average, mainly due to 
general wear and tear of some of our 
estate, despite our significant programme 
of refurbishment and new capital 
developments.   

Our PLACE funding of £100k was 
prioritised, in partnership with patients and 
public Governors who led the inspections, 
to address some of these areas and bring 
them up to the required standard.  Recent 
inspections from March 2015 will be 
reported publicly later this summer.   

During the year all ten of our public and 
staff restaurants (including our two 
nurseries) were given the top five-star 
food hygiene rating by local Environmental 
Health Inspectors. 
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Listening and acting 

We continue to gather and act on patient feedback, whether positive or negative, to make 
the right improvements in our hospitals and ensure patients have the best possible 
experience.  We do this through a number of different ways: 

National surveys – in this year’s National 
Inpatient survey, (sent to patients who had 
spent at least one night in hospital in the 
summer 2014) we showed a significant 
improvement compared to last year on 10 
questions, with no scores showing a 
significant worsening.  On the remaining 
50 questions we scored about the same.  
Improvements include choice of food, 
having confidence and trust in nursing 
staff, privacy when discussing treatments 
and being treated with dignity and respect.  
Due to the General Election, the nationally 
benchmarked scores have not yet been 
published (as this report goes to press) 
which compare our results with other 
Trusts across the country. 
 
The A&E Patient Experience Survey – 
published by the CQC in December 2014 
– shows considerable improvement since 
last year, with improved scores on 27 out 
of the 33 areas measured.  These include 
privacy when talking to the receptionist, 
improved refreshments and better 
information when discharged, with no 
scores worsening significantly.  Compared 
to other Trusts patients also rated us more 
highly on a number of measures including 
a better experience on arrival at A&E, the 
amount of time waiting to be examined, 
doctors and nurses listening to patients, 
the cleanliness of the department and 
overall being treated with dignity and 
respect.     

NHS Choices - NHS Choices and other 
websites, such as Patient Opinion, have 
become a popular way for people to 
instantly share experiences and feedback. 

We have developed the way we monitor 
and respond to these comments, making 
sure we post timely and personalised 
replies.  Both Ashford and St Peter’s 
hospitals currently have 4.5 star ratings on 
NHS Choices (the highest being 5), 
reflecting users’ ratings of the hospitals. 

Friends and Family Test - this year the 
Friends and Family Test (FFT) - which 
asks the simple question “How likely are 
you to recommend our ward to friends and 
family if they needed similar treatment?” 
was extended from our ward areas, A&E 
and maternity services to outpatients and 
paediatrics. 

We receive a monthly score on areas 
surveyed, plus any extra comments that 
patients write on their questionnaire. The 
scores help us compare our performance 
against other hospitals and guide where 
and how we can make improvements.  

In October 2014 NHS England modified 
the scoring method for FFT from a ‘net 
promoter score’ (which gives a score 
based on highly recommend and xx only) 
to a simpler percentage recommended 
score.   

The percentage recommended score for 
our ward areas has increased during the 
course of the year, from 89.7% last April to 
96.7% by the end of March 2015, with an 
average of 93.9% across the year. A&E’s 
recommended score for the year was 
83.6% which reflects a fairly static score 
across the year, actually peaking during 
January, the month we declared a major 
incident.   
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Maternity achieves consistently high 
scores with an average satisfaction score 
for the year of 95.8%. 

Average response rates for the year were 
37% for our ward areas, 17% for A&E and 
12.5% for maternity (a more intense 

survey which asks for feedback at four 
points in the maternity journey) all of which 
mirror the national response rate patterns. 

 

PALS and Complaints 

PALS - over the past year there have 
been 1815 concerns raised through our 
PALS service, an increase of 33% 
compared to the previous year.  Our PALS 
concerns have increased from 0.23% of 
total activity to 0.31%. 

Complaints - there has been an increase 
in formal complaints received this year, 
from 548 to 589, an increase of 7%.  
However, as a % of total patient activity 
the number of complaints has remained 

relatively constant at 0.1% (0.09% for 
2013/14).  

During 2014/15 the Trust was notified               
of 16 complaints referred to the 
Parliamentary and Health Service 
Ombudsman (PHSO) for review.  Of these 
three requests have not been upheld, one 
has been returned to local resolution and 
one has been partially upheld.  Eight 
cases are still active, with a further three 
under consideration for local resolution.   

 

Issues raised through complaints 

The chart (right) provides a breakdown of 
the 589 formal complaints raised in 
2014/15.  Themes are consistent with 
last year with the majority pertaining 
to aspects of treatment and care and 
communication / information.  Related 
to treatment and care, 85 complaints 
were due to clinical decisions / 
treatment, 33 were around nursing 
issues, and 30 logged to missed / 
wrong diagnosis.   

Each of our clinical divisions takes 
responsibility for monitoring their level 
of complaints and importantly the 
issues raised, with appropriate 
actions and learning taking place as a 
result.   
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Ensuring the right learning takes place – 
we take all feedback very seriously and 
we regularly meet patients face to face to 
discuss their concerns in more detail and 
to help them understand where things may 
have gone wrong.  Wherever possible we 
act on the feedback we hear in a 
continuous cycle of listening and learning. 
We continue to offer to meet with 
complainants to hear their experience as a 
routine part of our complaints handling. 

Examples of improvements that have 
been made as a result of patient feedback 

include improving the experience for 
women during ultrasound examinations by 
providing towels and the offer of locking 
the door during their scan, updating a 
number of patient information leaflets to 
provide clearer information, and updating 
our Adult Nursing Assessment form 
following feedback from a family who had 
not been contacted about their relative 
who had been admitted to hospital with a 
fractured hip.  The form now includes a 
space for staff to record what attempts 
have been made to contact relatives.

 

Duty of Candour  

Following recommendations from the 
Francis Review, healthcare providers are 
now subject to a statutory duty of candour 
which requires care organisations to act in 
an open and transparent way.  In 
particular, organisations must tell a patient 
and/or their family if a notifiable safety 
incident has taken place (i.e. an incident 
that has, or could, cause unintended 
harm) – this must include a full 
explanation including what further 
enquiries/investigations are to take place. 

The Trust is fully supportive of the new 
legislation and promotes a positive safety 
and sharing culture, offering face to face 

meetings with patients and/or their families 
to discuss any such safety incidents and 
other concerns, noted as a positive by the 
CQC in their inspection report.  We are 
currently developing an animated video for 
staff to promote Duty of Candour with an 
accompanying  e-learning package and 
will also be hosting a number of roadshow 
events across our hospitals to engage with 
staff and stress the importance of this new 
legislation.    

 

Working with our patients and the local community

Good engagement with our patients and 
the wider community continues to be of 
upmost importance to the Trust, helping 
us understand what people need and 
expect from the services we provide.              
We continue to use a variety of ways to 
engage with these key groups, including 
the development of our social media 
strategy with increasing use of Twitter (up 
from just over 1000 followers last year to 
over 1,800 currently) and more recently 

Facebook (with over 460 likes, increasing 
from just over 200 last year).  

We have continued our proactive 
approach to engagement, linking with 
appropriate local groups on issues 
relevant to them. In particular we have 
been working with local disability groups 
on parking issues and local stakeholders 
and members on our proposed merger 
plans with The Royal Surrey County 
Hospital NHS Foundation Trust. 
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Governors and members – we have been 
helping our governors to reach out to their 
individual membership groups and 
continue to publish a quarterly ‘Members 
Matters’ newsletter and run a programme 
of Member’s Health Events to keep our 
members up-to-date. See p. 171 for more 
details. 

Members of our Patient Panel continue to 
meet on a monthly basis to ensure the 
Trust is in touch with the patient 
perspective.  The patient panel has been 
involved in numerous projects such as 
supporting improvements in outpatient 
processes, PLACE (patient-led 
environment) inspections, improvements 
to cancer patient experience, and offering 

feedback and opinions on many aspects 
such as patient information leaflets, and 
policies.  Members offer a critical eye to 
the Trust and their support is greatly 
appreciated.  

Public accountability – we keep dialogue 
open through regular contact with Surrey 
County Council’s Health Scrutiny 
Committee, local MPs and county and 
borough councillors, making sure they are 
kept aware of key Trust developments. 
We continue to work positively with Surrey 
Healthwatch, particularly over the 
development of our quality priorities. 
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Corporate objective 3:  skilled, motivated teams 
 

A positive culture with staff who feel motivated and valued can be directly linked to the 
provision of high quality care 

Developing our staff 

Right Culture  

During 2014/15 we have continued to 
build a culture where strong, united 
leadership, empowered teams, a sense of 
citizenship and continuous learning lead to 
behaviours that support our values, the 
4Ps (Patients First; Personal 
Responsibility; Passion for Excellence; 
and Pride in our Team). Our proposed 
merger planning served as an opportunity 
to examine our culture even more closely 
via a culture audit, and to put some of our 
refreshed approaches to engagement into 
practice with staff. 

As well as considerable improvements in 
our National Staff Survey results (see 
overleaf), positive progress with the 
culture programme is also borne out in the 
number of staff who now tell us they would 
recommend the Trust as a place to work 
and to be treated. Our leaders and 
managers are developing and 
implementing strategies for creating the 

right culture within their teams, and we are 
seeing a demonstrable spirit of 
volunteerism, with staff across the 
organisation embracing opportunities to 
get involved in debates, shadowing 
initiatives, and leading service 
improvement. 

We are using our improved levels of 
engagement to constantly monitor the feel 
of the organisation, listening to staff who 
share their views at the Chief Executive’s 
Sounding Board and drop-in mornings, 
through natural escalation using reporting 
lines, and through a virtual online 
discussion ‘Wall’ and social media. 

Developing the right culture is a journey, 
and it will continue into the next financial 
year, with particular focus on developing 
individuals and teams, on building 
capability to forward-plan, and on ensuring 
that all staff know that they can safely and 
effectively raise concerns. 

 
Leadership and resilience  

Over the past 12 months there has been 
considerable investment in our leadership 
and development activities, including 
action learning sets, coaching, leadership 
programmes, e-learning and the recent 
implementation of the new ILM (Institute of 
Leadership Management) accredited 
management development programmes. 

 
The Trust has also developed a leadership 
and management framework, to clarify 
expectations for leaders and managers in 
their personal development, in terms of 
expected behaviours, and to enable 
planning of learning activities. 
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We have built on our current programmes 
and resources to ensure these are aligned 
with the framework, but also to create a 
sustainable approach by maximising the 
contribution of internal experts. This is 
being supported by the development of an 
internal faculty for leadership and 
management development. 
 
Over the past 12 months we have looked 
at ways of improving our communication in 
relation to learning opportunities, in 
particular overhauling the current Skillsnet 

pages of the intranet and developing a 
leadership portal. 
 
To further support staff, we have also 
been successful in a bid to Health 
Education England (Kent, Surrey & 
Sussex) to roll out training in leadership 
resilience, and have completed a 
resilience audit of the Trust. 

 

 

Team ASPH coaching legacy and next steps  
We have completed the second year of 
Team ASPH, the Trust’s clinical speciality-
level team coaching programme, and have 
seen how teams have used it to improve 
their own performance, clinical innovation 
and service improvement, and to improve 
team dynamics.  The Trust instigated 
Team ASPH to empower teams to take 
ownership of and solve their own issues, 
to work better across traditional clinical 
hierarchies increasingly involve and 
include support disciplines such as 

management, administration and 
information technology.  
 
Last autumn we launched the Team ASPH 
coaching hub (an interactive online 
resource for accessing innovations stories, 
team tools, techniques and tactics used to 
achieve innovation success), in order to 
sustain and build on the benefits we have 
experienced from this programme, and a 
dozen internal coaches graduated from 
the Lane4 coaching programme.   

 

Education and training 

During the year mandatory training 
requirements have continued to be 
embedded across the Trust, making it 
clear to all staff exactly what training they 
need to do and how to access it. By the 
end of the year the Trust’s compliance 
rate was 82% of all mandatory training 
completed. The Mandatory Training 
Committee continues to monitor divisional 
plans and compliance. 
  
We continue to work with a local training 
provider to offer current non-clinical staff 
(bands 1-4) the opportunity to gain a 
qualification via the apprenticeship route.  
The first group are due to finish in July.  

Clinical bands 1-4 have the opportunity to 
complete the City and Guilds accredited 
Diploma in Healthcare at either level Two 
or Three. This is seen as the stepping 
stone on the pathway for a healthcare 
registered qualification.  
 
Further to the introduction of an extended 
shadowing period for first year Foundation 
Doctors has been a success and will 
continue for the future.   This has been 
key in improving the handover between 
the outgoing and incoming Foundation 
Year One Doctors resulting in improved 
continuity of patient care. 
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We continue to support undergraduate 
medical, nursing, midwifery and allied 
health professional students and to 
provide work experience placements 
throughout the year to promote NHS 
careers to young people in our local 
community. 
 
Facilities for junior doctor teaching have 
been improved and the lecture theatre at 

St Peter’s Hospital has been completely 
refurbished including new improved 
technology. 

We have also had very positive reviews 
from the Kent, Surrey and Sussex 
Deanery for our doctor training and from 
both Imperial College, London and St 
George’s, University of London for our 
medical students.

 
 
Front line service improvement

Following our junior doctors’ successful Be 
the Change campaign, last July we held 
our first Be The Change awards 
ceremony.  This showcased 14 projects 
ranging from ‘improving documentation’ to 
‘a fun teaching day bringing together ward 
staff’, with 88 improvement projects 
underway in total.  Launched in February 
by a team of junior doctors, the campaign 

was a great example of how we can 
transform service delivery and quality of 
care by empowering front-line teams.  Be 
the Change is now being embedded in the 
organisation as a way of supporting staff 
to make improvements (see more on p. 
64).  The 2015 Be The Change campaign 
(One Small Thing) is currently underway. 

 

Celebrating ‘WOW’ achievements 

More than 130 members of staff and 
guests of Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals 
celebrated the Trust’s Staff Achievement 
Awards in April 2015. 

Hosted by Trust Chairman, Aileen 
McLeish, with Derek Williams, Chief 
Executive of The WOW! Awards as 
master of ceremonies. Widely regarded as 
the guru of customer service, Derek is 
passionate that people should be 
recognised for getting things right and 
being ‘WOW!’ in their working lives. 

The WOW! Awards scheme was 
introduced to the Trust in 2012 as a 
means of thanking and rewarding staff 
who exceed expectations in areas such as 
leadership, living the corporate values and 
volunteering. Since then hundreds of 
nominations have been received about our 
staff by their colleagues and patients and 
some of these were shortlisted for the 
awards ceremony. 

Congratulations to everyone who was 
nominated. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

52 | P a g e  

Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Annual Report 2014/2015 

National and regional winners  

During the year we have continued to celebrate the success of our staff on regional and 
national platforms including:   

• Best NHS Trust at the national WOW! Awards ceremony in November 2014  
• At the same ceremony, Maple Ward was highly commended in the WOW! What a 

Team category 
• And we had two other finalists: Debbie Edwards from Finance in the Supporting the 

Front Line category and Angela Knapp from Midwife Antenatal Screening in the 
WOW! You Changed My Life category. 

• Dr Radcliffe Lisk, consultant geriatrician and specialty lead for care of the elderly, 
won the prominent award for Emerging Leader at the NHS Kent, Surrey & Sussex 
Leadership Collaborative Recognition Awards for 2014. 

• Ashford & St Peter's joint clinical lead in Radiology, Dr Robert Davies was presented 
with a prestigious award for the 'most significant improvement in quality, safety, 
patient outcome and experience' by the president of the Royal College of 
Radiologists (RCR) Dr Giles Maskell. This was for his work in streamlining chest x-
rays reporting and making dramatic cuts in the waiting time for the results for patients 
and the doctors treating them. 

• Dr Mike Irani was awarded a Fellowship of the Royal College of Surgeons of England 
for his commitment to medical education and examinations. He is one of very few 
from the Royal college of Physicians to have been awarded this fellowship.   

• Chief Nurse Heather Caudle, received a Health and Social Care BME Network 
EMBRACE award 

• Dr Keefai Yeong, Carly Chu and Claire Matthews, winners of three individual awards 
at the DAPS (Doctors Advancing Patient Safety) Global Summit   

Staff Survey 2014 

The National Staff Survey provides an 
opportunity to build up a picture of staff 
experience and, with care, to compare and 
monitor change over time and identify 
variations between different staff groups. 
Such feedback is vital for driving real 
service improvement in the Trust. 

For the 2014 survey, 44% of staff returned 
a completed questionnaire, which was the 
same response rate as last year. This was 
above average for acute trusts in England 
(42%). 

There was a marked improvement on how 
staff feel about working at the Trust 
compared to last year’s results.   
 

With 18 of the 29 key findings in line with 
or above the national average, and two 
findings (suffering work-related stress and 
staff witnessing potentially harmful errors, 
near misses or incidents – i.e. lower 
numbers of each) being in the top 20%. 

We were particularly pleased to see our 
staff engagement score was better than 
the national average, which looks at:  

• Contribution towards 
improvements at work  

• Friends & family test – 
recommendation of the Trust as a 
place to work or receive treatment 

• How motivated staff feel 
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Our top five ranking scores follow and compare well with other Trusts nationally
. 

 2013/2014 2014/2015 Trust commentary 

Top five ranking 
scores 

Trust National 
Average 

Trust National 
Average 

 

% of staff witnessing 
potentially harmful 
errors, near misses or 
incidents in last month 

30 33 30 34 Static result (against 
an increase in 
national score) 

% of staff suffering 
work-related stress in 
last 12 months 

34 37 31 37 Improvement on 
previously year’s 
score. National 
average is static. 

Staff motivation at work 
(score out of 5, the 
higher the score the 
better) 
 

3.86 3.86 3.93 3.86 Improvement on 
previous year’s 
score. National 
average is static. 
 

Work pressure felt by 
staff 
(score out of 5, the 
lower the score the 
better) 

3.10 3.06 3.01 3.07 Significant 
improvement on 
2013/14 score. 

% of staff reporting 
good communication 
between senior 
management and staff 

27% 29% 33% 30% Although the national 
trend has only 
improved by 1%, 
ASPH score has 
improved by 6% on 
2013. 

 
These scores indicate that staff are showing signs of resilience to the demands of every day 
work and are motivated. 
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However, it was disappointing that some of our results did not compare well with those of 
other Trusts. Here are our five bottom ranking scores. 
 

 2013/2014 2014/2015 Trust position 

Bottom  four 
ranking scores 

Trust National 
Average 

Trust National 
Average 

 

% of staff working 
extra hours 

74% 70% 75% 71% Deterioration by 1% 

% of staff 
experiencing 
discrimination at 
work in last 12 
months 

14% 11% 14% 11% Static scores at both 
local and national 
level. 

% of staff reporting 
errors, near misses 
or incidents 
witnessed in the last 
month 

90% 90% 88% 90% Deteriorated by 2% 
(this relates to 
whether staff are 
reporting incidents 
they have witnessed) 

% of staff appraised 
in last 12 months 

84% 84% 80% 85% ASPH has now 
dropped below the 
national average. 

% of staff receiving 
health and safety 
training in last 12 
months 

72% 76% 72% 77% Static score. Trust 
mandate is for such 
training to happen 
every three years. 

 
 
When the National Staff Survey 2014 was 
issued to staff in October 2014, the Trust 
was in the initial stages of the 
development of a new appraisal policy and 

associated training to adapt to new 
national guidelines. It is expected that this 
project will support better scores for 
numbers of staff appraised in 2015.    
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Staff Friends and Family Test 

Since April 2014, staff have also been 
given the opportunity to participate in the 
Staff Friends and Family Test. Staff are 
asked quarterly [except when the National 
Staff Survey is issued in the autumn] 
whether they would recommend the Trust 
as an employer and provider of choice.  

Results have seen a continual 
improvement during the year with 
increasing numbers of staff saying they 
would recommend the Trust as a place to 
work and receive care – see table below. 

 

 

Recruitment and retention 

Difficulties in recruiting and retaining staff 
in some areas of our hospitals were 
highlighted by the CQC as a key concern 
during their inspection of our hospitals in 
December and will remain a key focus for 
us moving forward.   
 
During the year, recruiting to our nursing 
vacancies continued to be a high priority 
and we have put in place a proactive local 
and overseas recruitment campaign.  This 
has included recruitment in Portugal and 
the Philippines, monthly recruitment open 
days and attending University recruitment 
fairs.  We have been working closely with 
local schools to inspire school leavers 
about career opportunities in the NHS, 
and have been encouraging non-
registered staff wishing to progress their 
careers to consider nursing opportunities. 
 

In 2015/16, as part of a more creative 
recruitment strategy, we will be re-
launching our recruitment materials and 
branding including new-look recruitment 
pages for the website, a recruitment toolkit 
to support recruiters in attracting and 
engaging with candidates.  As part of our 
strategy we will also be promoting staff 
benefits available both in the NHS and 
locally through a high profile staff benefits 
campaign. 

We have developed close links with the 
Faculty of Nursing at Surrey University, 
and support student nurses on placement 
at the Trust, and have successfully 
recruited high numbers to join the Trust 
after they graduate. We have also been 
doing some collaborative work with The 
Royal Holloway University of London for 
the last couple of years by organising 
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visits for Biomedical Science students to 
give them an insight into the scientific 
advances which are leading to faster and 
more accurate diagnoses in the NHS – the 
visit includes lectures and visits to clinical 
areas such as Imaging, the Cardiac Unit, 
Pathology Labs and Endoscopy Suite. It is 
evident from an evaluation of the 
programme that the majority of students 
had not considered the NHS as a career 

choice prior to the visit but had been 
positively influenced by the experience. 

The Trust is a popular choice for medical 
students to return as Foundation Doctors 
after graduation for their postgraduate 
medical training and there are many 
examples of students who have actively 
chosen the Trust as a place to work after 
previously undertaking work experience.

 

Workforce planning 

During 2014/15 we took actions to assess 
and ensure provision of safe staffing levels 
for our in-patient ward areas, including the 
delivery of seven-day consultant delivered 
care.  Our next phase of work will be to 
strengthen and reduce the variability that 
currently exists in how we deliver seven 
day working through a detailed workforce 
and roster planning programme for our 
nursing, therapy, pharmacy, junior and 
senior medical workforce. This will focus 
on the numbers of staff needed within a 
ward area and within each professional 
group, an assessment of how we could 
improve scheduling and utilisation of staff, 
and assessment of any gaps that exists. 
 
The actions arising from this are likely to 
be both a need to increase our 
establishments and recruit more staff as 

well as a change to the working practices 
of our existing workforce in terms of hours 
of work, days worked and how we flex our 
resource in response to operational 
pressures. 
 
This work is complementary to the plan we 
are developing to meet the ten national 
clinical standards for seven day working.  
In order to meet these, the Trust will need 
to continue to develop innovative 
workforce models that best meet the 
needs of patients, and have in place a 
resourcing plan reflecting the staff and 
skills needed.

 

Roles and responsibilities 

Equality and Diversity 

The Trust continues to ensure that it is 
compliant with the Public Sector Equality 
Act and is undertaking Equality Impact 
Assessments.  In January 2015 we 
published our annual Equality and 
Diversity Workforce report in line with the 
Public Sector Equality Act.  Equality and 
diversity data is also captured on a 

quarterly basis allowing for early 
identification of trends.  Equality 
Champions have been appointed from 
within our workforce who have direct 
access to discuss issues with our 
Executive Team through the Equality and 
Diversity Steering Group.  
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Relationship with unions and formal staff engagemen t  

We continue to enjoy good working 
relationships with our union and staff 
representatives and our Staff Governors. 
Our Employee Partnership Forum meets 
on a monthly basis and is where staff 
representatives meet with managers to 
share information and work together on 
important issues affecting our 

organisation.  In addition, Staff Side 
representatives are invited to attend other 
groups and committees to develop true 
partnership working. The Trust also has 
an active Local Negotiating Committee, 
which is supported by the British Medical 
Association. 

 

Appraisal refresh 

In August we launched a new appraisal 
process, supported by a new policy, 
improved paperwork and a comprehensive 
training programme.  One of the drivers for 
the new policy was to incorporate a values 
based behaviour assessment into the 
appraisal process, and to enable us to link 

salary increase to achievement of 
performance objectives.  We are hopeful 
that this refreshed approach will improve 
the quality of appraisals for staff, and also 
illustrate that staff are rewarded based on 
both what they achieve and how they 
achieve it.   

 

Health and wellbeing  

Occupational Health 

Our Occupational Health (OH) Services 
have continued to work in partnership with 
The Royal Surrey County Hospital NHS 
Foundation Trust, sharing best practice, 
policy and procedures over the last 12 
months.  

Trust has signed up to pledges under the 
Public Health Responsibility deal for OH 
Standards and Staff Health Checks. 

OH Standards - we successfully renewed 
our annual accreditation for SEQOHS 
(Safe Effective Quality Occupational 
Health Service) and were commended for 
improving our approach to customer 
feedback and our continued commitment 
to maintaining SEQOHS standards. 

Staff Health Checks - health and wellbeing 
is being prioritised within the Trust’s 
culture. The first initiatives included 
individual reviews offering one to one 

assessment and lifestyle advice. Over 
time these strategies have developed to 
encourage staff take a more proactive 
approach to looking after their own health 
and include: 

• A weekly “Healthy Numbers” clinic, 
where staff can drop-in and keep track 
of their blood pressure, weight, BMI 
and cholesterol.   

• Ward Walkabouts / Summertime 
MOTs – where the Occupational 
Health team visit staff in their places of 
work. 

• Mental Health Our Trust - 
acknowledging the emotional and 
mental health needs of staff, including 
‘Schwartz Rounds’, which offer a 
chance for staff to come together and 
reflect on their experiences of 
delivering care and for some provides 
an outlet to help them cope with 
difficult or pressurised situations.   
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• Each year a calendar of Health and 
Wellbeing events is arranged including 
national schemes such as Work out at 
Work.   

• Back to Basics – an annual event for 
staff focusing on back problems. 

 

Health and Safety 

The Trust maintains a strong commitment 
to maintaining the highest health and 
safety standards to help protect its 
patients, visitors and staff. This has 
resulted in a reduction of reported 
incidents and near misses by a third over 
the last five years, although we have seen 
a very slight increase since last year – see 
opposite. 

 

 

 

Physical assaults, inoculation injuries, falls 
and manual handling incidents remain the 
main causes of injuries as shown in the 
chart (right). 
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Types of injury 
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Workforce Performance 

 

The Trust employed 3,282 (whole time 
equivalent) staff at 31 March 2015 
increasing from 3,106 last year.   There 
were 2,542 members of staff working full-
time (69%) and 1,160 working part-time 
(31%), a total of 3,702 members of staff 
overall (headcount) with the full time to 
part time ratio remaining the same as last 
year at 69:31. 

Our male/female ratio at the end of the 
year was as follows:    

  

  Female  Male 

Directors 7 12 

Senior 
Managers 

129 40 

Other staff 2665 849 

  

 At the beginning of the financial year our 
vacancy rate was 9.4% as we added to 
our establishment through investment in 
new posts.  The vacancy rate reduced to 
7.1% as a result of active recruitment 

during the year with 586 new starters 
joining the Trust; 320 of these new staff 
were nurses, midwives and healthcare 
assistants.  

As part of our recruitment strategy for 
nursing we have run several overseas 
campaigns, successfully recruiting 62 
Portuguese nurses during the year, with 
60 new Filipino nurses joining us during 
2015/16.  Our local monthly nursing 
recruitment open days also continued 
resulting in over 320 offers made.    

In 2014/15 the Trust’s internal temporary 
staffing service ‘Bank On Us’ continued to 
grow our temporary workforce,  providing 
additional staffing to cover for vacancies, 
and other absences. As clinical demand 
has grown, the number of staff working via 
our ‘Bank on Us’ scheme has increased 
from an equivalent of 174 full-time posts 
per week to 215 per week in March 2015.  

Staff turnover this year reduced from 
14.6% at the end of 2013/14 to 14.4% with 
significant improvements in our retention 
of healthcare assistants, resulting from an 
enhanced induction programme. Exit 
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interview with leavers during the year has 
helped to understand reasons for staff 
leaving and to identify hot spots and 
trends for follow up action.   As a result, 
the stability of our workforce has improved 
from 87.7% to 88.4%. 

Our standards for mandatory training have 
remained high although compliance has 
dropped below target.  However all our 
staff are partially compliant and working 
towards full compliance. 

  
 

Voluntary Services 

Ashford & St Peter’s is proud and 
appreciative of its volunteer workforce 
which has risen in number to 350 
volunteers in the last year. Volunteers 
enhance the patient and family experience 
and support staff in over 50 different 
locations across both sites. Volunteers 
offer services including guiding to clinics, 
patient mealtime and listening support, 
fundraising, gardening and administration. 
Specialist services with volunteer input 
include the Pastoral Care Team, 
Community Radio Wey and Heartbeat.  

Highlights over the year include: 

• At Christmas volunteers enjoyed a 
special Thank You Lunch and enjoyed 
the inaugural concert of the impressive 
and talented ASPH Staff Choir. 

• Hospital Radio Wey won a prestigious 
National Radio Award in April 2015 
and celebrated their 50th Anniversary 

• Volunteers nominated for the annual 
WOW awards in recognition of 
exceptional work 

• Launched Patient Experience 
Stewards in A&E 

 

Our Hospital Leagues of Friends 

The teams of volunteers who work with 
both hospitals’ Leagues of Friends – the 
Friends of Ashford Hospital and the 
Friends of St Peter’s – continue to               
make an invaluable contribution to both 
hospitals.   

Ashford Hospital League of Friends 
highlights – the last couple of months of 
2014 saw takings in the shop reach an all-
time high which has continued into 2015 
thanks to a dedicated team of volunteers 
manning the hospital shop and a loyal 
customer base. 

All profits generated are used to benefit 
Ashford Hospital.  During the year the 
League of Friends purchased four 
additional “Stryker” wheelchairs for 
patients and carers, a Vitalograph Alpha 

Touch Machine for the Pre-assessment 
Unit, some “home comforts” for a room on 
the Stroke Unit used by relatives and 
updated equipment for Hospital Radio 
Wey to enable patients to listen to radio 
broadcasts at Ashford Hospital. 

The League of Friends held two Easter 
craft and cake sales which raised a further 
£700.  The Craft group is now working 
towards the next event – Christmas!  

St Peter’s Hospital League of Friends 
highlights – The Friends of St Peter’s 
Hospital continue to actively support the 
hospital, and in their financial year ending 
31 July 2014 made donations totalling 
£137,660. The Friends have also 
continued with their project of refurbishing 
and buying new, where necessary, patient 
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waiting area chairs around the hospital – 
over 180 chairs were completed. 

In recent months the Friends have turned 
their attention to looking at completely 
refurbishing some of the older staff rooms. 
The therapies clinics and outpatient staff 
rooms have just been completed and 
officially opened by the Trust’s Chief 
Executive. Patient waiting rooms in the 
Blanche Heriot Unit were also completely 
refurbished by the Friends and officially 
opened by the Chairman of the Trust. 

The Friends continue to support the 
Hospital Chapel and maintain the Chapel 
garden. To raise their profile in the 
hospital and promote their activities the 

Friends recently completed the 
refurbishment of the old Flower Shop in 
the Duchess of Kent wing into a new 
Friends shop. 

The Friends continue to provide and 
distribute presents for inpatients in St 
Peter’s on Christmas morning, and also 
provide parcels of food and refreshment 
goods for staff on duty over the Christmas 
Eve/Day period to enjoy. 

 

We would like to publicly thank both our Hospital L eagues of Friends and all the 
volunteers for their continued hard work on behalf of our patients and staff. 
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Corporate objective 4: Top Productivity 

 

The Trust ended the year with a small deficit of just under £1 million (£958,000) against a 
planned break-even position, and the achievement of £14.9 million cost savings.  This gave 
us a Monitor Continuity of Services Risk Rating of 3. 

Achieving our cost improvements

In order to withstand future financial 
challenges and achieve efficiency gains, 
the Trust has adopted an approach of 
‘transformational change’ to the way 
services are delivered. 

This transformational change approach 
aims to optimise effectiveness and 
productivity but also requires careful 

consideration of the impact of cost 
improvements on quality and safety to 
ensure no disadvantage to patients or to 
the staff that provide those services.   

Over the year we achieved £14.9 million of 
cost savings (on plan), split across areas 
as follows: 

 

 
 

A Cost Improvement Programme (CIP) of £13.5m, equating to 5.2% of income, has been 
developed for 2015/16.  All schemes within the programme have detailed, supporting plans 
including an assessment of any impacts on service quality and how this will be managed 
during the year. 
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Improving delivery of our quality payments 
(CQUINs) – Commissioning for Quality 
and Innovation (CQUIN) is a quality 
improvement initiative run by NHS 
England to encourage and reward 
excellence.  This works by linking a 
proportion of the Trust’s income to being 
conditional on certain local quality 
outcomes and improvement goals.   

The CQUIN framework is intended to 
reward best practice and encourage a 
culture of continuous quality improvement 
in all providers whether acute hospital or 
community services.  In 2014/15, the 
Trust’s CQUIN programme was work 2.5% 
of the hospital contract, this is 
approximately £4m of the Trust’s income.   

Delivery of the CQUIN programme has 
continued to benefit from a structured 
programme management approach.  Key 
achievements in quality outcomes were: 

• Continued expansion of Friends 
and Family Test 

• Expanded  Staff Dementia training 
programme 

• Increased usage of the Sepsis Six 
bundle in A&E 

• Full compliance with national 
guidance on ‘Do Not Attempt 
Resuscitation’ orders 

 
The Trust achieved 70% of the CQUIN 
goals in 2014/15, which equates to £3m.  
Goals we didn’t fully achieve included 
targets for the Safety Thermometer, end of 
life planning: Do Not Attempt 
Resuscitation (DNAR) which was partially 
achieved; reducing cardiac arrests for 
patients outside critical areas; prevention 
of emergency readmissions which was 
partially achieved and ward level 
discharge – see our Quality Report from p. 
70 for more details on our quality targets.  

 

Strengthening our approach to service improvement 

To continue to provide high quality 
health services in the face of current 
challenges, we know we need to make 
significant and transformational changes 
over the next few years.  This year we 
have strengthened our approach to 
service improvement, with the 
introduction of a new Service 
Improvement Strategy by our 
Programme Management Office. 

Service Improvement Strategy - this 
builds on the PMO’s approach to service 
improvement over the past three years, 
looking at embedding improvement 
methods throughout the organisation – 
so it becomes part of business as usual 
with our Divisions and local teams - as 
well as strengthening the PMO’s ability 
to support change at all levels.In 
developing the strategy a project 
prioritisation exercise was carried out 

last summer to gain a deeper 
understanding of all the projects being 
undertaken across the Trust and to 
determine appropriate support level – 
those led by the PMO, those supported 
by the PMO and those which simply 
required mentoring. 
Improvement Hub - to support the 
improvement strategy, this year we 
developed an Improvement Hub, an online 
resource available to all staff via the 
Trust’s intranet providing: 

• Training and development 
materials 

• Project documentation and 
templates to support different 
approaches 

• Quick guides to enable staff to 
identify the level of support that 
they might require 
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• An online portal for ideas to be 
submitted as part of the ‘Be the 
Change’ programme, supporting 
and promoting bottom-up change. 

Be the Change 

This was a successful improvement 
campaign, by our Junior Doctors in 
February 2014, with 88 change projects 
identified to be taken forward.  As part of 
the campaign: 

• Champions to encourage ‘change’ 
initiatives were identified for each local 
area 

• Successful projects have been written 
up as case studies and made available 
via the Improvement Hub 

Building on the success of this campaign, 
‘Be the Change’ has been re-launched 
and is now promoted as a technique to 
encourage staff from all levels to suggest 
improvement ideas.  

This approach supports a cultural shift 
towards continuous improvement so staff 
feel they are; 
• Part of an empowered culture, able to 

identify issues, suggest solutions and 
make changes themselves in a 
supported way  

• Not held back or dissuaded from 
making change by a decision making 
hierarchy or bureaucracy 

• Able to impact change in their own 
team or environment regardless of 
their position  

• Not held back by organisational 
barriers between teams 

• Engaged and empowered by senior 
and executive colleagues to make 
change and improvements. 

In March 2015 a ‘Be the Change 
Roadshow’ took the online Change Portal 
out to staff and resulted in the submission 
of 28 further ideas for change. 
 

These have all been followed up and 
some are being taken forward, working 
with local ‘Change Champions’ to support 
staff to make their desired changes.  A ‘Be 
the Change’ committee has also been 
formed and this meets monthly to review 
progress. 

Moving forward, successful projects will be 
publicised as case studies and further 
ideas can be submitted through the 
change portal by any member of staff at 
any time.  Focussed ‘Roadshow’ events 
will be held periodically to support and 
encourage further ideas. 

Further transformational/efficiency projects 
undertaken this year include: 

Reducing readmissions  – aimed at 
reducing the number of patients 
readmitted to hospital within 30 days of 
their discharge, focused on two key 
objectives: 

• For every patient to be contacted by a 
clinician the day (or two days) 
following discharge to see if they need 
further support or information to keep 
them well and prevent readmission.  
This included a pilot project by the 
junior doctors in cardiology who 
contacted every patient the day after 
discharge with a number of related 
questions.  The pilot finished in March 
2015 and results are currently being 
analysed to understand the impact of 
the calls.  

• For all admitted patients to be given an 
automatically generated LACE score – 
this measures a patient’s risk of being 
readmitted to hospital.  Any high risk 
patients can be identified so the ward 
team can ensure an appropriate 
discharge plan to mitigate the risk.  
These patients will also have an 
automated risk alert sent to their GP 
on discharge.   



 

65 | P a g e  

Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Annual Report 2014/2015 

Patient facing pharmacy 

In facilitating timely discharge for patients, 
delays to take home medicines (known as 
TTOs), are often cited as a reason for 
discharge delays. 

The Pharmacy Team identified a potential 
solution to this problem which involved a 
new way of working – increasing the time 
pharmacy staff spend on the wards and 
the introduction of ward-level ‘dispensing 
hubs’ – enabling pharmacists to dispense 
simply medication direct from the ward. 

In this way the team could;  

• Reduce turn-around times for 
prescriptions sent to the hospital 
dispensary as a result of reduced 
demand and a reduction in 
prescribing errors 

• Medication for discharge would be 
ready sooner; reducing potential 
discharge delays.  

In addition, by ensuring that patients’ drug 
charts are pre-screened by the ward 
Pharmacist, any potential prescribing 
errors – found to be the biggest cause of 
delay - are corrected early and do not 
result in delays further down the line. 

Local dispensing ‘hubs’ were piloted and 
then introduced on our Medical 
Assessment Unit and Medical Short Stay 
Unit in November/December 2014 and 
demonstrated a time saving of 78mins 
compared to going through the 
dispensary. The plan is to introduce other 

dispensing hubs in key areas over the 
coming months.  

The second and wider reaching phase of 
the project involved a new way of working 
for called Near Patient Working. Starting 
at the beginning of March this has already 
demonstrated some significant benefits; 

• 67% of TTO drug charts have been 
checked by a ward pharmacist before 
reaching the hospital dispensary, 
compared to an original baseline of 
25% 

• The prescribing error rate seen in the 
dispensary has reduced to 8% from a 
baseline of 31% 

• The percentage of TTOs turned 
around in less than 2hrs has 
increased to 82% from 58% 

• Also, during March, the monthly % of 
patients discharged before 2pm 
increased to 42% from an average of 
36%. This suggests that these 
changes have had an impact. 

Over the whole project, the team have 
been producing regular ‘Think Pharmacy’ 
Bulletins keeping the wider organisation 
updated and helping to engage medical 
and ward teams in the important part they 
have to play. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

66 | P a g e  

Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Annual Report 2014/2015 

Harnessing technology to effect change 

This year has been a positive year in 
Health Informatics, securing funding for 
two key upcoming projects.  

• Our Electronic Medical Record project 
has received £3.9m in funding from 
the Department of Health. This project 
has been running for two years in the 
procurement phase, working as a 
collaborative with Frimley Health NHS 
Foundation Trust. The procurement 
phase is now complete, with the Full 
Business Case approved by Cabinet 
Office, and the providers (solution 
provider and scanning services) 
selected through a thorough 
procurement process. The four year 
project will begin in May 2015, 
digitising our medical records, thus 
improving patient safety and taking the 
Trust along the path to being 
paperless. 

• We successfully bid for funds from the 
Nursing Technology Fund to purchase 
a Vital Signs solution – this, using 
handheld mobile devices, will enable 
nursing staff to record their 
observation data electronically, 
ensuring results can be immediately 
acted on if required. This project is 
now underway and will be fully 
operational by mid-2015. 

Other achievements include: 

• Completing our roll-out of self 
check in kiosks  

• Metavision (Critical Care electronic 
patient record) has been extended 
to be used in the High Dependency 
Unit 

• ePrescribing for chemotherapy is 
now live and delivering patient 
safety benefits 

• An automated process has been 
set up which checks patients’ GP 
and address against the national 
spine database 

• Continued and widespread 
deployment of near real-time 
reporting via our Qlikview 
dashboards. 

From an infrastructure perspective, in 
anticipation of the large, upcoming eMR 
project, new high speed storage has been 
purchased, ready for installation, and a 1 
GB network link between Ashford Hospital 
and St Peter’s has been installed to 
provide additional resilience. The 
Windows 7 upgrade is complete, and we 
maintain our ongoing programme to 
upgrade and replace our suite of PCs.  

A pilot Single Sign On solution was trialled 
during the year, with mixed responses. 
However, it has given us good insight into 
our requirements and a simple, more 
economical solution is likely to be 
procured in 2015/16. 

 

 
 



 

67 | P a g e  

Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Annual Report 2014/2015 

Developing our business

Expanding our business – the total 
number of referrals to the Trust has 
continued to rise during 2014/15, in 
particular for our dermatology, colorectal 
and urology services.  

At the same time, our market share has 
decreased within some Clinical 
Commissioning Group areas – for 
example within the Guildford & Waverley 
area - due to the introduction of new 
referral support services to manage how 
and where referrals are made.    

Tenders – North West Surrey CCG gave 
notice on a number of services early in the 
year including dermatology and urology, 
aiming to re-provide these services within 
primary care. However, this was 
subsequently rescinded in preference to 
working more closely with the Trust on 
managing the existing pathways.  

The Trust was also given notice from the 
CCG regarding a wide scale procurement 
of musculo-skeletal services with the 
intent to commission these under a ‘lead-
provider’ model. The Trust has been 
involved in a number of potential bids and 
has been successful in the initial stages 
with a number of these. This process is 
currently paused to allow for further data 
to be validated.    

New services – we are currently 
developing a number of new pathways in 
partnership with North West Surrey CCG. 
For example, a new nurse-led micro-
suction service has been introduced for 
ENT (Ear Nose Throat services). Urology 
services are now being offered within the 
Cobham area and we have started a new 
vascular one-stop clinic in Hounslow 
offering services to patients within the 
Feltham and Hounslow area.  

We are working with the CCG to develop 
dermatology and neurology pathways to 
ensure they meet the needs of the local 

population and provide best value for 
money. There are a number of services 
under discussion for provision at 
Bronzefield Prison where the Trust is 
working with the healthcare team to 
develop services for the prison population. 
A proposal for sexual health services is 
currently under consideration for potential 
implementation from June 2015.  

Our strategy remains to continue to bid for 
services where we believe we can provide 
high quality care for patients and which 
also provide a positive financial return for 
the Trust. 

Further partnership working - we continue 
to be proactive in developing relationships 
between partner organisations within 
North West Surrey – particularly with our 
commissioners, with community services 
(Virgin Care) and Social Services – 
working together and to develop more 
services outside hospital.  

We are continuing our work with Virgin 
Care and Social Services on a number of 
joint projects including supported 
discharge and admission avoidance 
schemes and will continue to explore 
opportunities to integrate care pathways 
across Surrey.  This is of particular 
importance to support our ageing 
population and to reduce the acute 
pressures on emergency admissions 
experienced over the winter period. We 
are also working closely with the CCG in 
the development of services under the 
national ‘Better Care’ initiative.  

We continue to support programmes of 
care that deliver services within patients’ 
homes through our partnership 
arrangements with Medihome and Virgin 
Care for example, commissioning services 
directly from them to support discharge 
and ensure that patients continue to 
receive the care they need when they get 
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home, (e.g. home visits to administer 
intravenous antibiotics) without which they 
would need to spend longer in hospital.   

The Trust has further developed the 
relationship with EpsoMedical who run 
Cobham Day Surgery and we have 
expanded the range of services available 
on the Cobham site.  

We have also been working closely with 
Surrey Pathology Services to develop the 
anti-coagulation services offered and 
support the repatriation of stable patients 
back to primary care. This work will 
continue over the next year. 

Working with local general practice - the 
Trust continues to develop relationships 
with GPs and practices both within the 
North West CCG area and other 
neighbouring CCG areas such as 
Hounslow.  Our business development 

team has regular contact with practices 
within our catchment area and provides a 
GP liaison service.  The team also 
provides a hotline and dedicated secure e-
mail for GPs to contact to resolve issues 
and problems quickly.  This continued 
close contact is enabling the development 
of new services in a variety of specialities 
particularly for common conditions.  

We also hold regular meetings between 
our consultants and GPs to help improve 
communication and resolve issues.  We 
distribute our electronic Clinical 
Publication, ‘GP Link’ to practices across 
our catchment area and beyond to ensure 
that GPs and other referrers are kept up to 
date with clinical developments and 
services within the Trust.

  

Our Capital Programme

The 2014/15 capital programme saw the 
completion of two major construction 
projects to provide new patient facilities, 
our Midwife Led Unit (The Abbey Birth 
Centre) and the new Admissions Lounge 
at St Peter’s Hospital (see more on p. 43).   
We also completed a £0.75m relocation 
and major refurbishment of the cardiac 
ward to bring the coronary care unit and 
ward beds adjacent to two new state of 
the art cardiac angiography suites (see 
more on p. 43)  

Upgrading and maintaining services 

• Upgrading and maintaining our 
equipment and facilities is a vital part 
of our capital programme to keep our 
hospitals running efficiently and in 
providing high quality services.  Work 
this year has included: 

• The first year of a programme of 
operating theatre ventilation 

equipment replacement and 
upgrades. In 2014/15 works were 
completed in three operating theatres 
at St Peter’s Hospital 

• Medical High Dependency Unit on 
Aspen ward upgrade and provision of 
new patient monitoring equipment.  

• The start of a defibrillator replacement 
programme and the continuation of 
the Managed Equipment Service 
(MES) X-Ray imaging equipment 
replacements and upgrades across 
the Trust. The MES replaced dental 
and general X-Ray equipment in year 
together with relocating the 
Interventional Suite and commencing 
works to provide a second CT 
Scanner at St Peter’s Hospital.  A 
wide range of other equipment 
purchased included theatre tables, 
anaesthetics machines, monitoring 
equipment, beds and trolleys. 
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Future capital planning 

Looking ahead, the 2015/16 £10m plan 
features two major projects:  

• We are spending £1.8m to implement 
an electronic medical record project 
and a further £1m on IT infrastructure 
to support our existing systems.   We 
have also received a further grant 
from the Department of Health to 
support the electronic medical record.  

• The £2m+ managed equipment 
service (for imaging equipment) will 
complete the installation of a second 
CT scanner at St Peter’s Hospital 
prior to replacing both existing 

scanners. In addition, our ultrasound 
machines will be replaced this year 
and their rooms refreshed. 

In addition, £0.75m has been earmarked 
for A&E and ward improvements and 
around £0.38m for operating theatre 
ventilation equipment replacement and 
upgrades at Ashford Hospital. Other 
funding allocations will support buildings 
infrastructure, clinical development works 
and medical equipment replacements. 
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3. Quality Report 
 
 

Introduction  

 

 
 

The Trust Chief Nurse, Heather Caudle and Medical Director Dr David Fluck welcome you to 
this year’s edition of the Quality Account. 
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Introduction  

The Quality Account (Quality Report) is an annual report to the public about the quality of 
services that providers of healthcare deliver and their plans for improvement.  The 
requirement to produce a Quality Account is outlined in the NHS Act 2009 and the terms set 
out in the collective Quality Accounts Regulations1. 

The Quality Report incorporates all the requirements of the Quality Account Regulations as 
well as a number of additional reporting requirements set by Monitor.  The Quality Report 
specifically aims to improve public accountability for the quality of care and is contained 
within the Trust’s overall annual report2. 

The purpose of the Quality Account is to help improve public accountability for the quality of 
care provided by NHS Foundation Trusts3.  Quality improvements are reported in 3 
categories: patient safety, clinical effectiveness and patient experience. 

This Quality Account summarises performance and improvements against the quality 
priorities and objectives which were set for 2014/15 and outlines the quality priorities and 
objectives which have been set for 2015/16.  This report also includes feedback from our 
patients, Governors and North West Surrey Clinical Commissioning Group on how well they 
think we are doing. 

 

Your feedback 

If you have any comments or suggestions on this Quality Account, we would welcome your 
feedback. Please contact: Mrs Heather Caudle, Chief Nurse, through our Patient 
Experience Team’s advice and liaison service on: email: PALS@asph.nhs.uk or 
telephone 01932 722216. 

 

                                                           
1 NHS (Quality Accounts) Regulations 2010 as amended by the NHS (Quality Accounts) Amendment 
Regulations 2011 and the NHS (Quality Accounts) Amendment Regulations 2012 (collectively “the 
Quality Accounts Regulations”). 
2 Detailed requirements for quality reports 2013/14, p. 2 (Monitor: www.monitor.gov.uk). 
3 Detailed guidance for external assurance on quality reports 2014/15, p. 4 (Monitor). 
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Part 1: Statement on Quality from the Chief Executi ve of 
Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Tru st   

Welcome to our sixth 
Quality Account for 
Ashford and St Peter’s 
Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust.  This 
is an annual report to 
the public about the 

quality of services that the Trust delivers 
and describes just how seriously we 
consider quality and safety within our 
hospitals.  Our vision is to create excellent 
joined-up patient care both within our 
hospitals and in partnership with our 
community and other health system 
partners, putting patients at the centre of 
everything we do.  We are now in year two 
of our refreshed five year Trust strategy, 
and our quality priorities for 2015/16 have 
been aligned with this and national 
guidance including Hard Truths: the 
Journey to Putting Patients First4 and the 
NHS Five Year Forward View.  We want 
patients, carers and visitors to feel 
confident in the quality of services we 
provide and this report sets out our quality 
priorities for 2015/16 and details how we 
have performed against key quality 
measures last year.  However, this report 
can only give a snapshot of the work we 
are doing, and there are many other 
initiatives and pieces of work continuously 
taking place in our hospitals to improve 
care and safety for our patients.  

A big highlight for us this year was our 
Care Quality Commission inspection 
(which took place in December 2014) and 
the subsequent inspection report, 
published in March this year.  Overall the 
Trust was rated as ‘good’, a considerable 
                                                           
4 Hard Truths: The Journey to Putting Patients First, 
Volume One of the Government Response to the 
Mid Staffordshire NHS Foundation Trust Public 
Enquiry, Department of Health, January 2014. 
 

achievement within the acute hospitals 
sector where only a minority of Trusts 
have been rated as good or above.   Each 
registered site also receives its own rating 
and Ashford Hospital was rated as ‘good’ 
overall and St Peter’s Hospital as ‘requires 
improvement’ relating mainly to difficulties 
in staff recruitment which is a key element 
of the safety domain which we know we 
need to address.  And whilst of course the 
CQC highlighted areas for improvement – 
particularly around safer staffing levels – 
overall they described the Trust as ‘a 
caring organisation’ and ‘a good place to 
come and get your care’.  To receive a 
‘good’ rating from the CQC in the current 
climate, particularly at such a busy time in 
the middle of winter, should not be under-
estimated and should give reassurance to 
the local community of the standard of 
care we offer.  The CQC also highlighted a 
number of areas of outstanding practice 
including how we care for patients nearing 
the end of their life, good team working 
and how well we use electronic patient 
records to improve health.   

Of course the year has not been without 
its challenges and this year we 
experienced our busiest ever winter with 
unprecedented demand on our emergency 
and urgent care services.  Despite making 
the decision to declare a Major Incident on 
3rd January to secure the safety of patients 
in our hospitals, throughout this whole 
period of intense pressure we continued to 
receive extremely positive feedback from 
patients about the care they were 
receiving in our hospitals.  More detail on 
this and the measures we are putting in 
place to improve our emergency care 
pathway is given in our main Annual 
Report for 2014/15 on p. 37. 
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One of the areas highlighted by the CQC 
in their inspection report was the 
importance of safety within our culture and 
how they felt it was a priority reflected 
from the Directors right through the 
organisation, specifically picking out our 
positive reporting culture.  Learning from 
when things go wrong is fundamental in 
being able to continuously improve and we 
continue to listen, not only to what patients 
and their families and carers are telling us, 
but also to our staff, particularly those 
working on the front-line.  We actively 
encourage all feedback, good or 
otherwise, and continue to offer face to 
face meetings with patients and families to 
discuss any or all aspects of their care.   

Led by the Board, we also spend as much 
time as possible talking directly with our 
staff, through organised listening events, 
sounding boards, informal walkabouts and 
other engagement activities, hearing what 
it’s like on the front-line and continuing to 
create a more open and transparent 
culture.  For me personally, creating the 
right culture is key to developing a really 
caring and high performing organisation 
and we were particularly pleased this year 
to see improving staff survey scores5 with 
staff telling us they would recommend our 
hospitals as both a place to work and to 
receive care. 

Our key quality challenges for next year 
focus on continuing to provide excellent 
service whilst developing longer-term 
strategies to ensure we are able to provide 
sustainable, high quality services into the 
future in the face of considerable external 
challenge.   Rising demand coupled with 
an ageing population, a reduction in 
funding in real terms and ever-rising 
quality standards mean we have to look at 
different ways of working if we are to 
                                                           
5 More information on our staff survey scores 
is given in the Trust’s Annual Report for 
2014/15 on p. 52. 

secure a positive future for our hospitals.  
We believe our plans for a proposed 
merger with The Royal Surrey County 
Hospital NHS Foundation Trust will help to 
drive the quality agenda – particularly in 
providing more seven day consultant care 
for example – although the process is 
currently paused while the Competition 
and Markets Authority conducts further 
analysis of the impact of these plans on 
patient choice and competition.  At the 
same time, we continue to look at other 
future strategies and opportunities – 
particularly around developing more 
integrated pathways – that will help drive 
the quality agenda and secure a 
sustainable future for our organisation. 

Once again we are pleased to have had 
such good engagement from our 
stakeholders in developing our priorities 
for next year and in reflecting on this 
year’s achievements.  Your input and 
insight is critical in helping us continue to 
provide the very best care we can for 
patients. 

As Chief Executive I am confident in the 
quality of services we provide across our 
services and that for the majority of our 
quality and performance targets6 we meet 
the standards expected by and acceptable 
to our regulator and commissioners.  
Further, the information in this Quality 
Account is provided from our data 
management systems and our quality 
improvement systems and to the best of 
my knowledge is accurate, and provides a 
true reflection of our organisation, with the 
exception of the following indicators which 
KPMG LLP Statutory Auditor has tested 

                                                           
6
 Key national targets are outlined along with 

benchmarked information in Section 2.3 
Performance Against Core Indicators and 
Section3.2 Performance against Monitor 
Indicators. 
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and is unable to issue opinions over for 
the below reasons.  As Chief Executive I 
am therefore unable to confirm these 
items are accurate owing to the 
exceptions notified below. 

Mandated indicator 1 - Percentage of 
incomplete pathways within 18 weeks for 
patients on incomplete pathways at the 
end of the reporting period (“18 week 
RTT”) contained underlying system design 
weaknesses and sample testing errors 
relating to clock start and stop dates. 

Mandated indicator 2 - Maximum waiting 
time of 62 days from urgent GP referral to 
first treatment for all cancers (“62 day 
cancer waits”) contained system design 
weaknesses, limited data validation 

checks and sample testing errors including 
date exceptions. 

Local indicator - To improve the quality of 
care and clinical outcomes of patients with 
Sepsis (“Sepsis bundle”) has issues with 
the imprecise definition and reporting of 
data and its wider control environment and 
also with data errors pertaining to 
treatment times. 

The Trust is actively scoping the 
improvements needed to resolve the 
above issues as priority. 

 

 
Suzanne Rankin 

Chief Executive 

28 May 2015
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Part 2: Priorities for Improvement and Statements o f 
Assurance from the Board 

2.1 Priorities for Improvement 
This section of the Quality Report describes areas for improvement in the quality of relevant 
health services that the Trust intends to provide or sub-contract in 2015/16. 

Part 2.1.1 contains the 2015/16 priorities for improvement as agreed by the Trust’s Board at 
its meeting on 26 March 20157.  This includes narrative on priority choice and progress 
which indicates the relationship between identification of the priorities and reviews of data 
relating to quality of care. 
 
2.1.1 Priorities for Improvement for 2015/16  

In February and March 2015 a consultation exercise was undertaken with Governors, 
Healthwatch Surrey, Surrey County Council, North West Surrey Clinical Commissioning 
Group and other external representatives who attended our Quality Stakeholder Workshop, 
and also with staff, in order to obtain feedback on draft Quality Report priorities for the 
coming year.   The consultation exercise process included: 

• a presentation and interactive feedback session on indicative priority areas at the 
Quality Stakeholder Workshop event on 3 February 2015 

• presentation of a paper to the Council of Governors on 9 March 2015 updating on the 
quality report engagement initiatives the Trust is undertaking in respect of the quality 
priorities for 2015/16  

• circulating draft priorities to the above internal and external stakeholders for 
consultation in March 2015. 

The views of the following staff groups were included in the consultation exercise: Executive 
and Non-Executive Directors, Divisional Directors, Associate Directors of Nursing, Directors 
of Operations, Clinical Specialty Leads, Specialist Nurses and Quality Leads.  The views of 
patients and the wider public were considered through including Healthwatch Surrey, 
Governors and our Clinical Commissioning Group in the feedback process. 

Non-Executive Directors have been actively involved in quality priorities including monitoring 
at the Integrated Governance and Assurance Committee, the Quality Governance 
Committee and through involvement at interactive workshops and improvement events. 

The Quality Report measures for 2015/16 were approved by Trust Board on 26 March 2015. 

Progress to achieve these priorities will be measured as described in each of the 9 priority 
areas below.  Quality priorities will be monitored quarterly and reported to Trust Board in the 
Quality Report8.  Progress will be reported to stakeholders in the quarterly Quality 
Stakeholder Workshops. 

                                                           
7 The Manchester Patient Safety Framework indicator has been subsequently included as a carried 
forward priority from 2014/15. 
8 This is the monthy Quality Report presented to Trust Board at a meeting held in public. 



 

77 | P a g e  

Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Annual Report 2014/2015 

Patient safety 

Priority 1 - Improving  harm -free care  

The Trust will participate in the recently released Medication and Maternity Safety 
Thermometers and continue with the existing Safety Thermometer areas of hospital 
acquired falls, catheter associated urinary tract infection, pressure ulcers and new harms 
including venous thromboembolism (VTE).  

The Medication Safety Thermometer and Maternity Safety Thermometer are to be 
implemented by the end of Q1 2015/16. 

We will set and agree with clinical divisions trajectories for falls and hospital acquired 
pressure ulcers reductions by the end of Q1 2015/16. 

The Trust aims to maintain Safety Thermometer performance better than (i.e., 
demonstrating a lower rate than) the national average. 

Other harm free care improvement work will include: 

• Risk assessing 97% of adult inpatients for VTE on admission 

• Undertaking root cause analysis of 100% of identified cases of hospital associated 
thrombosis 

• Auditing the documentation of the prescription of appropriate chemical 
thromboprophylaxis with the aim of achieving 85% 

• Achieving VTE Exemplar Centre Status by 31 March 2016. 

Priority 2 - Embedding and measuring the safety culture to strengthen transparency  

The duty of candour is a new priority for next year and a training programme will be 
incorporated in Trustwide induction from April 2015.  Dissemination of a wider training 
programme to other staff groups will be fully rolled out by the end of Q2 2015/16. 

Compliance with the duty of candour requirements will be audited quarterly with exception 
reporting to the Integrated Governance and Assurance Committee.   

An ongoing priority is continued rollout of the Manchester Patient Safety Framework 
(MaPSaf).  Completion of the specialty rollout will be achieved by the end of Q2 2015/16 
with feedback via Team Brief.  The Board will be updated on progress through the  quarterly 
reports to Trust Board.  Action plans for each area including a heatmap will be in place by 
the end of Q3.  Implementation of improvement work will progress in Q4.  
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Priority 3 - Preventing death a nd promoting successful recovery from an ill health  
episode through identification and management of pa tients with sepsis  

Sepsis will be a National CQUIN for 2015/16 and a sepsis measure will be formulated once 
the CQUIN programme is finalised in conjunction with our Commissioners.  Performance will 
be to the Integrated Governance and Assurance Committee (IGAC). 

Why were these priorities chosen? 

Harm-free care, as measured with the Safety Thermometer, was a priority in 2014/15 and 
this national focus area will continue to be a Trust priority this year.  The aim to risk assess 
97% of inpatients for VTE is 2 percentage points above the national target of 95% and 
remains in line with 2014/15.  The measure for root cause analysis for hospital associated 
thrombosis remains at 100%, as per 2014/15.  The measure for prescribing appropriate 
chemical thromboprophylaxis has been increased from 80% in 2014/15 to 85% this year, as 
a stretch target.  VTE Exemplar Centre Status is awarded by VTE Prevention England, 
which is a programme of NHS England.  Achievement of the above clinical care measures 
are anticipated to support our application for Exemplar Status. 

The statutory duty of candour forms part of the Trust’s registration with the Care Quality 
Commission (CQC) and requires staff to be open with patients when things go wrong.  The 
duty of candour became a new legal requirement for Foundation Trusts from November 
2014 onwards.9 

Sepsis was chosen as an improvement area because this is both a national improvement 
priority area and also the Trust’s own performance monitoring including learning from 
complaints indicated that identification of patients with sepsis is an area where we need to 
improve.   

 

Patient safety - progress made since 2013/14 

Priority 1 – Improving harm- free care 

The measure carried forward from 2013/14 was maintaining Safety Thermometer 
performance better than the national average.  This was achieved in 2014/15 as outlined in 
Section 3.1 Priority 5 on p. 129. 

Priority 2 – Duty of candour 

This is a new priority area for 2015/16. 

Priority 3 – Sepsis 

Sepsis was a new priority area in 2014/15 and is reported on in Priority 7 on p. 133. 

                                                           
9 Regulation 20 Health and Social Care Act 2008 (Regulated Activities) Regulations 2014. 
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Clinical effectiveness 

Priority 4 – Work to improve diagnosis and treatment for patient s with diabetes to 
improve efficiency of pathways and patient outcomes  

The population of eligible admitted patients to be screened for diabetes will continue to be 
audited on a spot day each month, with target performance to remain at 98% as per 
2014/15.  

The Trust will implement quarterly audits of the documentation of the prescription of insulin 
from Q2 2015/16 with an action plan to be rolled out by Q3 2015/16. 

By the end of Q3 2014/15 the Trust will undertake a review to identify an opportunity to work 
with external stakeholders to improve pathway working for patients with diabetes. The 
review will include setting a trajectory for implementation. 

Priority 5 - Readmissions  

The Readmissions Project10 led by the Medical Director is to continue.   

Target 30 day emergency readmissions will be no greater than 12.2% by Q4 2015/16. 

The project will review the current pilot of contacting patients following discharge by the end 
of Q2 2015/16.  If analysis of the data demonstrates that the pilot resulted in benefits (of 
which one was reduction in readmissions) an action plan for expanding the post discharge 
contact of patients will be implemented by the end of Q2 2015/16. 

The Trust will contribute to the feedback process of the locality hub pilot project in Woking 
and continue dialogue with external partners as to a trajectory for potential system wide 
expansion. 

Priority 6 – Improve dissemination and learning from national au dits, National 
Institute for Health and Care Excellence (NICE) gui dance, and Technology Appraisals  

NICE Technology Appraisals are to be implemented within the mandatory 3 month deadline 
(target: 100%). 

Implementation of relevant NICE Clinical Guidelines – monthly status report on progress 
including a gap analysis with reasons for non-compliance identified.11 

Monthly status report to be prepared identifying the introduction of new NICE Interventional 
Procedures12 to the Trust with clinical audit to provide evidence of safe practice. 

                                                           
10 The Readmissions Project commenced in April 2013. 
11 NICE Clinical Guidelines are not required to have 100% implementation.   
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Why were these priorities chosen? 

Diabetes is an ongoing priority area for the Trust from 2013/14 and a significant national 
priority area as an estimated 2.7 million patients in the UK have diabetes,13 many of whom 
are undiagnosed.  

The Trust has an ambitious strategy to reduce emergency readmissions to fewer than 7.5% 
by 2017, and this is a continuing priority area from 2013/14. 

The Trust’s internal monitoring has identified that we could improve the dissemination and 
learning from national audits and guidance.  The above targets are aimed at demonstrating 
prompt response to these aspects of clinical effectiveness. 

Clinical effectiveness - progress made since 2013/1 4 

Priority 4 – Diabetes 

Diabetes screening is a measure carried forward since 2013/14.  The Trust did not achieve 
the target for screening in either 2013/14 or 2014/15 as outlined in Priority 8 on p. 134. 

Priority 5 – Readmissions 

The Trust has not achieved its 30 day emergency readmissions target for either 2013/14 or 
2014/15 as outlined in Section 3.1 Priority 9 on p. 135. 

Priority 6 – Improve dissemination and learning  

This is a new priority area for 2015/16. 

 

 

                                                                                                                                                                                     
12 NICE Interventional Procedures are not required to be implemented. 
13 Diabetes prevalence is currently 6.0% in England, affecting approximately 2.7 million people [2013 
data, reported February 2014 www.diabetes.org.uk] 
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Patient experience 

Priority 7 – Work to improve the experience of vulnerable groups ; those with 
dementia and their carers, those with a mental heal th issue and cancer  

The review of Mental Health Act policies and procedures by Q2 2015/16 will demonstrate 
good practice within the sector.    

Implement a process to ensure all applicable staff have had Mental Health Act training 
specific to their role by Q4 2015/16. 

Surrey Public Health’s 2015/16 suicide prevention training programme is to be released in 
2015/16.  The Trust will identify applicable front-line staff to attend and complete training by 
the end of Q4 2015/16. 

It is anticipated that innovations to improve the care and treatment of dementia will form a 
National CQUIN for 2015/16.  A further quality account priority measure for dementia will be 
considered once the CQUIN programme is finalised with our Commissioners. 

The Trust will improve the engagement with and feedback from carers of people with 
dementia via: 

• The carer survey 

• Establishment of a memory café within the trust by end of Q2 2015/16. 

We will ensure that at least 50% of people with a dementia diagnosis who have significant 
memory impairment have a targeted document (either This Is Me14 or REACH15) to improve 
staff awareness of their history and preferences by the end of Q3 2015/16. 

A review of an aspect of dementia friendliness of the physical environment in clinical areas 
will be undertaken by the end of Q2 2015/16 and an adaptation or modification of the 
environment will be impact assessed for potential wider rollout.16 

The Trust will demonstrate an improved dementia training programme for staff by the end of 
Q4 2015/16 by: 

• Implementing a mandatory level 1 update for all staff 

• Developing and delivering level 2 training to staff who frequently work with people 
who may have dementia 

                                                           
14 The This is Me tool is a booklet which people with dementia can use to inform staff about their 
needs, interests, likes and dislikes.  Refer to the This is Me section of alzheimers.org.uk 
15 REACH is a special response plan for patients with dementia and is often undertaken in the 
community setting. 
16 The aim of improving the physical environment for patients with dementia is to endeavour to reduce 
the potential agitation and distress of patients, especially for those patients who experience an 
extended length of stay in hospital. 
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• Exploring the need for level 3 training for specialist staff and Executive Directors. 

Priority 8 – Obtain patient feedback on outpatient experience in  conjunction with the 
Trustwide outpatient service improvement project 

We will implement a system for communicating waiting time in Outpatients to patients 
attending clinics by end of Q3 2015/16.  

The Head of Patient Involvement and Experience will implement a process for obtaining 
feedback from patients and other service users regarding their experience of the new 
communication process by end of Q4 2015/16.  

Priority 9 – Improve inpatient experience including discharge  

We will prepare a business case for expanding the Orthopaedic Supported Discharge 
methodology to other divisions in order to implement this service more widely.  The 
business case is to be developed by the end of Q2 2015/16. 

We will implement a review of ward moves of patients during their inpatient stay including 
identification of a baseline, reasons for ward moves and an action plan for minimising 
moves.  A trajectory for improvement against the baseline is to be set by Q3 2015/16. 

By Q2 2015/16 we will implement a review of the process for discharge assessment of 
patients returning to care homes. 

We will maintain follow-up complaints to fewer than 10% of complaints received, on 
average, across the year.  Where the limit is exceeded we will perform root cause analysis 
and implement action plans to improve performance. 

The Trust will continue design and implementation of end of life care outreach partnership 
working with hospices and other community organisations.  

Why were these priorities chosen? 

Working to improve the experience of vulnerable groups - those with dementia and their 
carers, those with a mental health issue and cancer, forms part of the NHS Five Year 
Forward View17. 

In 2013 the Outpatient Improvement Programme was established to deliver one of the firm 
foundations of the Trust Strategy relating to accessibility and responsiveness to patients and 
general practitioners.  The programme identified that there was not a consistent process for 
notifying patients of outpatient clinics running late on the day.  The need to improve 
communication with patients was another finding of the programme, and obtaining greater 
feedback will enable the Trust to better respond to service users’ needs. 

                                                           
17 NHS Five Year Forward View.  NHS England: 23 October 2014 
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Our commitment to improving patient experience of discharge including co-ordinated 
integrated planning and discharge arrangements aligns with the NHS Patient Experience 
Framework18. 

Patient Experience - Progress made since 2013/14 

Priority 7 – Improving experience of vulnerable gro ups 

Dementia screening is a measure carried forward since 2013/14 and this was achieved in 
2014/15 also as outlined in Priority 1 on p. 120.  We have included new priorities on patients 
with mental health issues for 2015/16. 

Priority 8 – Outpatient experience 

As outlined above this is new measure for 2015/16. 

Priority 9 – Improve patient experience including d ischarge 

This has been a priority area since 2013/14 when the focus was on reducing the number of 
complaints pertaining to discharge.  These improved in 2013/14 so a new measure was 
introduced for 2014/15 namely to increase the proportion of patients being discharged before 
15:00 hours.  There is no 2013/14 comparison data as the baseline was set this year.  The 
other priority areas within patient experience, including discharge, are newly introduced for 
next year. 

Priority areas discontinued from 2014/15 

Priority 3, improving communication with patients, has focussed on the review of our 
complaints process and Friends and Family Test scores.  The complaints process review 
was a specific improvement measure for the current year.  The Friends and Family test has 
been a priority for several years, so this will be replaced with the new priorities above. 

 

 

                                                           
18 NHS Patient Experience Framework. National Quality Board: October 2011. 
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2.2 Statements of Assurance from the Board  

These statements of assurance follow the statutory requirements as set out in the 
National Health Service (Quality Accounts) Regulations as amended. 

During 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015 Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 
provided and/or subcontracted 113 relevant health services.  

Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust has reviewed all the data available 
to them on the quality of care in 100% of these relevant health services. 

The income generated by the relevant health services reviewed in the 12 months ended 
31 March 2015 represents 100% of the total income generated from the provision of 
relevant health services by Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust for 
the 12 month period ended 31 March 2015. 

Participation in national clinical audit 19 and national confidential 
enquiries 20 

During the 12 months ended 31 March 2015 32 national clinical audits and 6 national 
confidential enquiries covered relevant health services that Ashford & St Peter’s 
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust provides.  During that period Ashford & St Peter’s 
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust participated in 87.5% of national clinical audits and 
100% of national confidential enquiries which it was eligible to participate in.  

The national clinical audits and national confidential enquiries that Ashford & St Peter’s 
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust was eligible to participate in during the 12 months ended 
31 March 2015 are listed on the table below. 

The national clinical audits and national confidential enquiries that Ashford & St Peter’s 
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust participated in, and for which data collection was 
completed during the 12 months ended 31 March 2015, are listed below alongside the 
number of cases submitted to each audit or enquiry as a percentage of the number of 
registered cases required by the terms of that audit or enquiry. 

                                                           

19
 Clinical audit involves reviewing clinical practice against evidence based standards in order to 

improve the quality of patient care and treatment. 

 
20 A confidential enquiry involves investigating clinical standards and clinical decisions in specific 
circumstances to determine whether the outcome could have been potentially avoidable. 
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National clinical audits and national confidential enquiries  
Percentage of cases 
submitted 

National Audits  
(A shaded box indicates no national data being coll ected) 

2013/14 2014/15 

Acute Coronary Syndrome  
Acute Coronary Syndrome or Acute Myocardial Infarction in the Myocardial 
Ischaemia National Audit Project (MINAP).  Managed by The National Institute for 
Cardiovascular Outcomes Research.  Refer to www.ucl.ac.uk/nicor/audits/minap 

100% 100% 

Adult Community Acquired Pneumonia  
Adult Community Acquired Pneumonia Audit. Managed by The British Thoracic 
Society.  Refer to https://www.brit-thoracic.org.uk/audit-and-quality-improvement/ 

 0%21 

Anaesthesia  
Anaesthesia Sprint Audit of Practice (ASAP) of The Association of Anaesthetists of 
Great Britain & Ireland.  This audit tests whether patients receive a nerve block for 
pain relief as part of their hip fracture care. Refer to www.aagbi.org 

44%  

Asthma  
Asthma in Children National Audit.  The Royal College of Emergency Medicine.  
Refer to www.rcem.ac.uk.  This audit did not get rolled out in 13/14. 

  

British Society for Neurophysiology  
British Society for Clinical Neurophysiology (BSCN) and Association of 
Neurophysiological Scientists (ANS) Standards for Ulnar Neuropathy22 at the Elbow.  
Refer to www.bscn.org.uk  

 0%23 

Cardiac Rhythm Management  
Cardiac Rhythm Management (CRM).  Managed by The National Institute for 
Cardiovascular Outcomes Research (NICOR).  Refer www.ucl.ac.uk/nicor 

100% 100% 

Epilepsy  
Epilepsy 12 Audit managed by The Royal College of Paediatrics and Child Health.  
Refer to www.rcpch.ac.uk/epilepsy12 

 100% 

Fitting Child  
Fitting Child (Care in Emergency Departments) Audit managed by The Royal 
College of Emergency Medicine (RCEM).  Refer to www.rcem.ac.uk 

 26 cases24 

Inflammatory Bowel Disease  
Inflammatory Bowel Disease Programme.  Managed by The Royal College of 
Physicians.  Refer to www.rcplondon.ac.uk/ibd 

0% 100% 

Intensive Care  100% 100%25 

                                                           
21 The Trust did not participate in this national audit, but instead fully participated in the regional 
Enhancing Quality Community Acquired Pneumonia audit. 
22 Neuropathy is damage to a nerve.  The ulnar nerve passes close to the surface of the skin at the 
elbow region. 
23 The Trust did not participate but did attend the national audit feedback event. 
24 No certificate of participation has yet been received, provisional result with case numbers only 
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Intensive Care National Audit and Research Centre (ICNARC) Case Mix Programme 
(CMP).  Refer to https://www.icnarc.org/Our-Audit/Audits/Cmp/About 

Major Trauma  
Major Trauma.  Managed by The Trauma Audit and Research Network (TARN). 
Refer to www.tarn.ac.uk/ 

79% 58.9%26 

Mental Health  
Mental Health in the Emergency Department Audit of The Royal College of 
Emergency Medicine.  Refer to cem.l2s2.com 

 0%27 

National Adult Diabetes  
National Adult Diabetes Inpatient Audit (NADIA). Managed by The Health and Social 
Care Information Centre.  www/hscic.gov.uk/nda 

100%  

National Audit of Dementia  
National Audit of Dementia of The Royal College of Psychiatrists.  The third round of 
the National Audit of Dementia is from 2015 to 2017, with main data collection 
period to be from April until December 2016. Refer to www.rcpsych.ac.uk 

  

National Bariatric Surgery Registry  
National Bariatric Surgery Registry data of the British Obesity and Metabolic Surgery 
Society (BOMSS).  There is currently a delay in submitting data from October 2014 
onwards.  A business case is to be presented for funding with the aim of supporting 
prospective data submission going forward. 

100% 100% 
April-Sept 

National Bowel Cancer Audit Programme  
National Bowel Cancer Audit Programme (NBOCAP).  Managed by The Royal 
College of Surgeons of England.   

95% 100% 

National Cardiac Arrest Audit  
National Cardiac Arrest Audit (NCAA).  The NCAA is a national audit of in-hospital 
cardiac arrest which is a joint initiative between The Resuscitation Council (UK) and 
The Intensive Care National Audit and Research Centre. Refer to 
https://ncaa.icnarc.org 

100% 100% 

National  Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease  
National Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease (COPD) Audit is managed by The 
Royal College of Physicians.  Refer to www.rcplondon.ac.uk/COPD 

100% 100% 

National Clinical Audit of Rheumatoid and Early Inf lammatory Art hritis  
National Clinical Audit of Rheumatoid and Early Inflammatory Arthritis.  Managed by 
The British Society for Rheumatology.   

0% 100% 

National Comparative Audit of Blood Transfusion Pro gramme  
National Comparative Audit of Blood Transfusion Programme.  Managed by NHS 
Blood and Transplant.  Refer to www.nhabtaudits.co.uk 

100% TBC28 

National Elective Surgery PROMS – Hip Replacement  
National Elective Surgery Patient Reported Outcome Measures (PROMs)29 for 

70% 92.4%30 

                                                                                                                                                                                     
25 Data for December 2014 to March 2015 is currently being validated. 
26 Figure is for 9 months’ data, submission is 3 months in arrears. 
27Did not participate. 
28 Audit of patient information and consent – awaiting publication of report.  Participation figures are 
not anticipated to be published for this data. 
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Hip Replacement.  www.hscic.gov.uk/proms 

National Elective Surgery PROMS – Knee Replacement  
National Elective Surgery Patient Reported Outcome Measures (PROMs) for 
Knee Replacement.  www.hscic.gov.uk/proms 

84.3% 114.3%31 

National Elective Surgery PROMS – Groin Hernia  
National Elective Surgery Patient Reported Outcome Measures (PROMs) for 
Groin Hernia Surgery.  www.hscic.gov.uk/proms 

40.5% 50.5% 

National Elective Surgery PROMS – Varicose Vein  
National Elective Surgery Patient Reported Outcome Measures (PROMs) for 
Varicose Vein Surgery.  www.hscic.gov.uk/proms 

13% 22.9% 

National Emergency Laparotomy Audit  
National Emergency Laparotomy Audit (NELA).  Refer to www.nela.org.uk/. National 
data entry commenced in January 2014 so there is no comparative data. 

 90% 

National Head and Neck Cancer Audit  
National Head and Neck Cancer Audit managed by The Health and Social Care 
Information Centre.  www.hscic.gov.uk/clinicalaudits 

n/a n/a32 

National Heart Failure Audit  
National Heart Failure Audit.  Managed by The National Institute for 
Cardiovascular Outcomes Research (NICOR).  Refer 
www.ucl.ac.uk/nicor/audits/heartfailure 

100% 100% 

National Hip Fracture Database  
Falls and Fragility Fracture Audit Programme – a national project designed to 
facilitate improvements in the quality of hip fracture care. Refer to 
www.nhfd.co.uk/ 

107.6%33 100% 

National Joint Registry Data  
National Joint Registry data collection on hip, knee, ankle, elbow and shoulder 
joint replacements.  Refer to www.njrcentre.org.uk 

82% 96%34 

National Lung C ancer Audit  
National Lung Cancer Audit (NLCA).  Managed by The Royal College of 
Physicians.  Refer to https://www.rcplondon.ac.uk/resources/national-lung-
cancer-audit 

100% 100% 

National Oesophago -Gastric Cancer Audit  
National Oesophago-Gastric Cancer (NAOGC) Audit.  Managed by The Health and 

n/a n/a35 

                                                                                                                                                                                     
29 PROMS are patient reported outcome measures.  NHS Choices defines PROMS as patients’ 
assessments about their health and quality of life before an operation compared with their health after 
the operation. 
30 For all procedures provisional data available for April 2013 to March 2014 (published February 
2015). 
31 For participation rates above 100% this shows a discrepancy between the cases we have included 
in the audit and the numbers of cases identified within our computer systems (HES – hospital episode 
statistics) and so have submitted more cases than were expected. 
32 This audit is not undertaken at this Trust as patients are treated at the Royal Surrey County 
Hospital. 
33 Awaiting confirmation via report of submission dates for this study. 
34 96% of patients consented to their data being submitted to this registry. 
35 The Trust does not submit this data as patients are treated at the Royal Surrey County Hospital. 
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Social Care Information Centre.  Refer to www/hscic.gov.uk/og 

National Paediatric Asthma Audit  
National Paediatric Asthma Audit of the British Thoracic Society.  Refer to www.brit-
thoracic.org.uk 

Did not 
take part 

 

National Paediatric Bronchiectasis Audit  
National Paediatric Bronchiectasis Audit of The British Thoracic Society.  Refer to 
www.brit-thoracic.org.uk 

Did not 
take part 

 

National Paediatric Diabetes Audit  
National Paediatric Diabetes Audit (NPDA).  Managed by The Royal College of 
Paediatrics and Child Health (RCPCH).  http://www.rcpch.ac.uk/national-paediatric-
diabetes-audit-npda 

100% 100% 

National Pleural Procedures Audit  
National Pleural Procedures Audit of The British Thoracic Society.  Refer to 
https://www.brit-thoracic.org.uk/audit-and-quality-improvement/ 

 0% 

National Pregnancy in Diabetes Audit  
National Pregnancy in Diabetes Audit managed by The Health and Social Care 
Information Centre.  Refer to www/hscic.gov.uk/ 

100% - 

National Prostate Cancer Audit  
National Prostate Cancer Audit.  Refer to www.npca.org.uk.  The Trust does not 
submit this data as patients are treated at Royal Surrey County Hospital for 
radiotherapy, brachytherapy and prostate surgery.   

 n/a 

National Vascular Registry  
National Vascular Registry (NVR) is a national clinical audit commissioned by The 
Health Quality Improvement Partnership.  Refer to www.vsqip.org.uk. 

100% 100%36 

Neonatal Intensive and Special Care Audit  
Neonatal Intensive and Special Care Audit Programme (NNAP) managed by The 
Royal College of Paediatrics and Child Health. Refer to www.rcpch.ac.uk/nnap 

100% 100% 

Non-Invasive Ventilation of Adults  
Non-Invasive Ventilation of Adults Audit Managed by The British Thoracic Society.  
Refer to https://www.brit-thoracic.org.uk/publication-library/bts-reports/ 

 n/a 

Older People’s Care  
Older People (Care in Emergency Departments) Audit of The Royal College of 
Emergency Medicine.  Refer to cem.l2s2.com 

 100% 

Primary Coronary Ang ioplasty  
Primary Coronary Angioplasty (PCI) National Audit.  Managed by The National 
Institute for Cardiovascular Outcomes Research 
(NICOR).http://www.ucl.ac.uk/nicor/audits/adultpercutaneous/documents/annual-
reports.  

100% 

 

100% 

 

Renal Replacement Therap y 
Renal Replacement Therapy data managed by The Renal Registry.  Refer to 

n/a37 n/a 

                                                           
36 Provisional results for both years as the national reports are awaited. 
37 Trust patients are included in submissions from the renal unit at Epsom and St Helier University 
Hospitals NHS Trust. 
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www.renalreg.org 

Sentinel Stroke  
Sentinel Stroke National Audit Programme (SSNAP).  Refer to www.strokeaudit.org 

100% 93%38 

National Confidential Enquiries  
(A shaded box indicates no national data being coll ected)  

2013/14 2014/15 

Child Health  
Child Health Clinical Outcome Review Programme.  Delivered by National 
Confidential Enquiry into Patient Outcome and Death (NCEPOD).  Refer to 
www.ncepod.org.uk and http://www.rcpch.ac.uk/chr-uk . 

100%  

Maternal, Newborn and Infants  
Maternal, Newborn and Infant Clinical Outcome Review Programme: Mothers and 
Babies: Reducing Risk through Audits and Confidential Enquiries across the UK 
(MBRRACE-UK).  Managed by The National Perinatal Epidemiology Unit, University 
of Oxford. Refer to www.npeu.ox.ac.uk/mbrrace-uk 

100% 100% 

NCEPOD – Alcohol Related Liver Disease  
National Confidential Enquiry into Patient Outcome and Death (NCEPOD) Alcohol 
Related Liver Disease.  Refer to www.ncepod.org.uk 

100%  

NCEPOD – Gastrointestinal Haemorrhage  
National Confidential Enquiry into Patient Outcome and Death (NCEPOD) 
Gastrointestinal Haemorrhage.  Refer to www.ncepod.org.uk 

 100%39 

NCEPOD - Lower Limb Amputation  
National Confidential Enquiry into Patient Outcome and Death (NCEPOD) Lower 
Limb Amputation.  Refer to www.ncepod.org.uk 

94% 100% 

NCEPOD – Sepsis  
National Confidential Enquiry into Patient Outcome and Death (NCEPOD) Sepsis.  
Refer to www.ncepod.org.uk 

 100% 

NCEPOD - Subarachnoid Haemhorrage  
National Confidential Enquiry into Patient Outcome and Death (NCEPOD) 
Subarachnoid Haemhorrage.  Refer to www.ncepod.org.uk 

100%  

NCEPOD - Tracheostomy  
National Confidential Enquiry into Patient Outcome and Death (NCEPOD) 
Tracheostomy Care.  Refer to www.ncepod.org.uk 

60% 60%40 

National Review of Asthma  
National Review of Asthma Deaths.  In 2013/14 the Trust fully participated 
however no cases for review were identified.  
http://www.rcplondon.ac.uk/projects/national-review-asthma-deaths. 

No eligible 
cases 

100% 

                                                           
38 The Trust provided data on 93% patients which is more than nationally required, and this received 
an ‘A’ grade. 
39 To be confirmed, report due for publication summer 2015 
40 Study spanned 2 years with a single participation rate of 60% 
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National Clinical Audits Reviewed  

The reports of 32 national clinical audits were reviewed by Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals 
NHS Foundation Trust in the 12 months ended 31 March 2015 and Ashford & St Peter’s 
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust intends to take the following actions to improve the 
quality of healthcare provided, as outlined in the below table.   

An update on actions planned for 2014/15 where these were outlined in the 2013/14 
Quality Report is also provided for applicable audits. 

National Clinical Audits Reviewed with Improvement Actions  

Acute Coronary Syndrome or Acute Myocardial  Infarction in the Myocardial Ischaemia National 
Audit Project (MINAP) 

Improvements in data quality will continue to be progressed in order to drive risk modelling.  

Cardiac Rhythm Management Audit  

Upgrade of the PRISM system has enhanced data collection. 

Intensive Care National Audit and Research Centre ( ICNARC) Case Mix Programme  

Current 2014/15 results are within national average except for two areas, delays in discharging patients 
from critical care to ward areas and the number of cardiac arrests occurring outside critical care areas.  
The Trust is actively working to improve patient flow which will improve the timeliness of step-down from 
critical care to wards.    Cardiac arrests in non-critical care areas have decreased from 10 in February 
2015 to 5 in March 2015. The Resuscitation Team is currently exploring the training needs and overall 
approach to patient resuscitation status. A fairly new sector initiative involves considering resuscitation 
as part of a wider planning of patient care levels upon admission in an approach called the Treatment 
Escalation Plan (TEP). The TEP was evaluated at an extraordinary meeting of the Resuscitation 
Committee on 8 May 2015 which involved the Medical Director and senior clinicians and it was decided 
to implement the TEP process in the next 6 months.  

National Bariatric Surgery Registry data  

Outcomes are above the national average. 

National Bowel Cancer Audit Programme  

Patient outcomes are within the expected range with the 90 day adjusted mortality rate lower than the 
national average.   
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National Cardiac Arrest Audit  

In respect of the 2014/15 audit data demonstrated that following a cardiac arrest the initial survival rate 
was higher than the national average, however, the rate of survival to discharge rate was lower than the 
national average.  Case note reviews will be undertaken to assess decision making surrounding 
suitability of patients for resuscitation.  Training will be implemented on completion of Do Not Attempt 
Cardiopulomonary Resuscitation forms. 

National Comparative Audit of Blood Transfusion Pro gramme  

Actions include progressing the development of near patient point of care testing and intraoperative cell 
salvage.  

National Elective Surgery Patient Reported Outcome Measures (PROMs) for Hip an d Knee 
Replacement 

Provisional data indicates that practice is within the national range meaning that patients report an 
improvement in quality of life following the procedures. Submission rates are good.  

National Emergency Laparotomy Audit  

Outcomes are within the national average.  Mandatory pre-operative p-POSSUM41 scoring is to be 
introduced.  There is a plan for applicable high risk patients to be monitored in a higher dependency 
area post-operatively. 

National Heart Failure Audit  

Improvement actions to be undertaken next year are to focus on improving the identification of eligible 
patients for inclusion within the audit.  The final outcome report is not yet available. 

National Hip Fracture Database (NHFD)  

We have used NHFD reports to monitor, benchmark and improve our practice. In 2009/10 only 39% of 
our patients were operated on within 36 hours, 28% achieved the best practice tariff (BPT) and crude 
30 day mortality was 7.8%. We have improved the patient pathway with fast tracking to the ward and 
improved patient assessments. We have improved access to theatre via prioritising by surgical need, 5-
day orthogeriatrician rounds and 7-day physiotherapy working. Crude 30 day mortality is now <5% and 
BPT attainment exceeds 80%.  Between January and December 2014 83% of operations were within 
36 hours.  For January to March 2015 the monthly results were 85%, 72% and 93%.   

                                                           
41 P-POSSUM is a surgical risk prediction tool – Physiological Operative Severity Score for the 
enUmeration of Mortality and Morbidity. 
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National Joint Registry (NJR) Data Collection on Hi p, Knee, Ankle, Elbow and Shoulder Joint 
Replacements 

The Trust performed 1051 operations predominantly on hips and knees which are included in the 
Registry.  The Trust is within the national range for mortality and revision rates. In respect of the 
improvement actions which were planned for 2014/15 the following areas are ongoing priorities: 
increasing the number of cemented procedures, reducing the number of arthroscopies, review of 
infection rates at trauma meetings and reviewing the type of prostheses used.   

National Vascular Registry  

Surgeon outcomes in 2014 for abdominal aortic aneurism and carotid endarterectomy demonstrated 
mortality rates lower than the national average. 

Primary Coronary Angioplasty National Audit  

Data collection processes are being adapted for changes in national data collection methods.     

Sentinel Stro ke National Audit Programme (SSNAP)  

The Clinical Outcomes Steering Group has reviewed SSNAP outcome data including responsiveness time 
between admission and assessment.  

 

The reports of 6 national confidential enquiries were reviewed by Ashford & St Peter’s 
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust in the 12 months ended 31 March 2015 and Ashford & 
St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust intends to take the following actions to 
improve the quality of healthcare provided, as outlined in the below table.   

 

National  Confidential Enquiries into Patient Outcome or Deat h (NCEPOD)   

NCEPOD – Lower Limb Amputation  

Areas for progress include having an amputation/discharge co-ordinator post, development of 
anaesthetic pre-assessment, and limitations on access to emergency theatre lists. 

NCEPOD – Tracheostomy  

Actions areas include training on complex tube management and core competency updating. 
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Local Clinical Audits Reviewed  

The reports of 45 local clinical audits were reviewed by the Trust in the 12 months ended 
31 March 2015 and Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust intends to 
take the following actions to improve the quality of healthcare provided, as outlined in 
the table below which contains a selection of Trustwide and divisional local audits. 

Results from key local audits are presented by specialties to the Clinical Effectiveness 
and National Audit Review Group (CENARG), Quality Governance Committee (QGC) 
and to Trust Board as applicable.  Learning from audits is shared in educational 
meetings such as Quality and Safety Half Days (QuASH Days). 

Local Clinical Audits Reviewed with Improvement Act ions for 2015/16  

Divisional Local Audits  

Acute and Emergency Medicine Division  

In addition to participating in the Trustwide Best Care and Compliance in Practice Audits the division 
has undertaken audits of health records and consent and diabetic management. 

Diagnostics, Therapies, Trauma and Orthopaedics Div ision  

An audit of consent forms for orthopaedic surgery identified a future action is to promote the use of the 
national training website.42 Audit of the WHO surgical safety checklist in interventional radiography had 
results of between 94% and 99% monthly, which is narrowly below the target.  The checklist is actively 
being promoted. 

Theatres, Anaestheti cs, Surgery and Critical Care Division  

The Colorectal Surgical Site Infection Audit was undertaken between April and June 2014 and reported 
in October 2014.  The audit demonstrated an infection rate of 8.3% against a national average of 
12.7%.  Changes in practice have already been implemented. 

The 2014/15 Vascular Surgical Site Infection Audit was undertaken between July and September 2014 
with 100% data completeness.  The infection rate was slightly below the national average.   

An audit of satisfaction with the TENS43 pain device was undertaken and as a result of this patient 
information is to be improved and the clinic location is to be considered. 

An audit of knowledge of doctors in training regarding nasogastric tube placement identified a training 
need which has been met with an e-learning  module alongside a lecture presentation. 

                                                           
42 Orthoconsent.com which is has been endorsed by the British Orthopaedic Association 
43 Transcutaneous Electrical Nerve Stimulation (TENS) 
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Women’s Health and Paediatrics Divisio n 

The shoulder dystocia audit identified good overall management with the action of skills drills to 
complete pro-forma documents during emergencies.  The Birth Centre Audit of care demonstrated 
good outcomes overall.   

Trustwide Clinical Audits  

Enhancing Quality Programme (Trustwide)  

Heart Failure performance has dipped since June 2014 in respect of evidencing the provision of 
discharge advice.  Prior improvement initiatives have included electronic data capture and prompts to 
document this.  The Heart Failure Specialist Nurse is promoting documentation in clinical areas. 

Enhanced Recovery Programme (Trustwide)  

Performance in the Hip and Knee Surgery, Colorectal Surgery and Gynaecological Surgical Pathways 
has exceeded the improvement target for the year.  The Enhanced Recovery surgical pathways are 
now well established across the region and new pathways are being considered by the regional 
network for future rollout. 

Other Trustwide Audits  

The Trust has not achieved its Q4 target of 90% of deaths being subject to mortality review with only 
44% being undertaken in March 2015.  A Divisional improvement process is being progressed by the 
Chief of Patient Safety and this is being overseen by the Trust Executive Committee. 

The Best Care Audit monitors clinical care trustwide and improvement actions are overseen by the Best 
Care Surveillance Panel. 

Monthly nutrition audits are undertaken using the Malnutrition Universal Screening Tool (MUST).  The 
headline result is that the target of 95% of nutrition scores to be completed within 48 hours of admission 
was exceeded every month in 2014/15.   
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Participation in Clinical Research  
 

The number of patients receiving relevant health services provided or sub-contracted by 
Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust in the 12 months ended 31 March 
2015 that were recruited during that period to participate in research approved by a research 
ethics committee44 was 1600. 

 

Chart 1:  Patients recruited to participate in ethics committee approved research by year 

Patients recruited to participated in ethics commit tee approved research by year  

2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 

215 556 683 508 1179 1600 

 

The key priorities of our Research & Development strategy are to:  

• Offer patients opportunities to participate in clinical research and increase patient 
recruitment year on year thereby enhancing the Trust as a hospital of choice for 
patients. 

• Increasing the quality and value of research. 

• Enhancing research capacity and capability.  

• Translating research findings into benefits for patients and the Trust. 

• Strengthening Trust partnerships with academia and industry. 

 

Clinical research across the Trust is varied and diverse. Our aim is to have a range of 
studies within all major specialties. We undertake both interventional and observational 
studies.  Complex interventional studies directly influence the treatments provided.  
Observational studies expand our knowledge of disease processes.  Currently the Trust 
participates in some 90 research studies, examples of which are outlined below. 

CHIC - The UK Collaborative HIV Cohort (CHIC) study and the UK HIV Drug Resistance 
Database (UKHDRD) involves the outcomes and response to treatment of HIV-1. 

PAINTED – The Pandemic Influenza Triage in the Emergency Department study is a pilot study 
of identifying an accurate measure of prioritisng patients with suspected pandemic influenza. 

 

                                                           
44 Within the National Research Ethics Service 
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FEMME – The FEMME45 study measures changes in the quality of life when fibroids are 
treated with either myomectomy or uterine artery embolisation.   

PREDNOS – This evaluates use of the steroid prednisolone to treat nephrotic syndrome in 
children. 

FOCUS – The Fluoxetine Use Following Stroke (FOCUS) study considers the use of fluoxetine 
following stroke to improve upper limb recovery. 

Noctura400 Treatment for Diabetic Retinopathy (CANDLE)  – This trial is a pilot study to 
evaluate the care pathway for diabetic retinopathy involving Noctura400 light masks. 

Persephone – This cancer trial considers the duration of chemotherapy using the trastuzumab 
in women with early breast cancer.  

 

 

 

                                                           
45 FEMME: Treating fibroids with either embolisation or myomectomy  
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Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN) Pa yment 
Framework 46  
 

A proportion of Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust income in the 12 
months ended 31 March 2015 was conditional on achieving quality improvement and 
innovation goals agreed between Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust and 
North West Surrey Clinical Commissioning Group for the provision of relevant health 
services, through the Commissioning for Quality and Innovation payment framework. 

A summary of the agreed goals for the 12 months ended 31 March 2015 are shown below. 

Further details of the agreed goals for the 12 months ended 31 March 2015 and for the 
following period are available electronically at 
http://www.ashfordstpeters.nhs.uk/quality/cquin.  

 
Chart 2:  Income conditional upon attaining quality improvement goals under the CQUIN 
framework is shown below. 
 

Income conditional upon attaining quality improveme nt 
goals under the CQUIN framework  

2013/14 2014/15 

Monetary total of income conditional upon achieving quality 
improvement and innovation goals 

£5,068 k £4,800 k47  

Monetary total of the associated CQUIN income received £4, 450 k Refer to 
note48 

 
The section below provides a summary of some of the agreed goals for 2014/15 and how 
they align with local and regional strategies. 

National Goals  
 
National goals set by NHS England reflect areas where improvement across the NHS is 
needed and enable collation of data nationally, sharing best practice and benchmarking.   
 
National goals for 2014/15 pertained to 3 areas: the NHS Friends and Family Test (FFT), 
NHS Safety Thermometer and dementia.   
 

                                                           
46 The CQUIN payment framework was introduced in the 2009/10 reporting period and it enables 
healthcare commissioners to reward excellence by linking a proportion of a service provider’s income 
to attaining a quality improvement goal (NHS Institute for Innovation and Improvement 
www.institute.nhs.uk). 
47 Plan value 
48 The Trust anticipates 92% recovery from NHS England against national goals and 73.8% recovery 
against local goals with North West Surrey CCG, with the final value to be determined. 



 

98 | P a g e  

Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Annual Report 2014/2015 

The Friends and Family test was selected to measure the experience of patients in line with 
Domain 4 of the NHS Outcomes Framework.  The programme included implementing the 
staff FFT, early implementation of FFT in Day Surgery and Outpatients and increasing 
response rates for the Accident and Emergency Department and inpatient wards.  This was 
fully achieved. 
 
The NHS Safety Thermometer is a spot test on a nominated day of the month to test for 
hospital harms and a priority improvement area was pressure ulcers.  This goal was partially 
achieved as the Trust tracked below the national average for new pressure ulcers for three 
months in November and December 2014 and March 2015. 

The Dementia CQUIN has specific targets for case finding and screening patients with 
symptoms of dementia, implementation of a training programme and undertaken a dementia 
audit.  This was fully achieved. 

Local Goals  
 
Local goals are agreed targets set in partnership with North West Surrey Clinical 
Commissioning Group.  Goal areas for 2014/15 included sepsis, end of life care planning, 
rapid response to concerns, preventing readmissions and a patient flow bundle.   
 
The severe sepsis care bundle is a national initiative which has the anticipated benefits of 
early diagnosis and targeted use of resources with the aim of reducing mortality and 
morbidity associated with sepsis.  The Trust aimed for 90% compliance and this is reported 
within Priority 7, p. 133. 
 
Improving the care and decision making for patients who are near the end of life is a local 
priority area.  The improvement goals centre upon evidence of assessment of resuscitation 
status and reducing the number of cardiac arrests in non-critical care areas.  The target of 
90% compliance with inpatient documentation was not achieved nor was the 70% reduction 
in baseline. 
 
In order to demonstrate responsiveness to improving patient experience through 
empowering patients, carers and staff to access a systematic rapid response to clinical 
concerns that have not been addressed through existing means49 the Trust committed to 
implementing a designated 30 minute rapid response telephone hotline.  This local goal 
aligns with the Domain 4, increasing the number of people having a positive experience of 
care.  The Trust fully achieved its target of 100% for implementation and calls being 
responded to in 30 minutes. 
 
Prevention of emergency readmissions is part of the Trust’s Business Plan and this was to 
be supported through implementing the LACE50 protocol to promote identification of patients 
at higher risk of readmission. This was partially achieved as whilst LACE scores are 
calculated for inpatients the Q4 readmission figure of 12.2% (refer to Priority 9, p. 135) was 
not met. 

                                                           
49 Such as direct liaison with clinical teams or through the Patient Advice and Liaison Service (PALS) 
50 Refer to the glossary 
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The Trust committed to a patient flow bundle to support patients receiving care at the right 
time and setting.  The bundle includes measures for bed occupancy, discharge time and 
discharge planning from admission onwards.  Achievement of the quality standard in 90% of 
admissions in March 2014 was achieved as was occupancy rate of below 92%.  The Trust 
did not achieve the target of more than 50% of patients being discharged before 2pm. 
 

Specialist Commissioning Goals 
 
The Trust fully participated in a Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Prevention (QIPP) 
initiative which included input to the scheme’s design. 

 

Care Quality Commission (CQC) Registration  

The CQC undertook announced and unannounced inspections of both Ashford Hospital 
and St Peter’s Hospital in December 2014 and issued its Inspection Report on 10 
March 2015.  The report for the Trust and for each site can be obtained from the CQC 
on http://www.cqc.org.uk/provider/RTK. 

Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust is required to register with the 
Care Quality Commission and its current registration is ‘registered’ with the following 
ratings: 

The Trust’s overall rating is ‘good’.  This is a considerable achievement against the 
sector benchmarked position for acute trusts, whereby only 35% of acute trusts have 
been rated as “good” recently with 65% rated as “requires improvement” or 
“inadequate”.51 Each registered site receives its own rating and Ashford Hospital was 
rated as “good” and St Peter’s Hospital received “requires improvement”.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                           
51 Source: CQC NHS acute trust ratings data December 2013 to August 2014 as cited in p. 18 of The 
State of Health Care and Adult Social Care in England 2013/14. 
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Table 3 - CQC Rating of the Trust 

 

Table 4 - CQC Rating of St Peter’s Hospital 

 

 

Table 5 – CQC Rating of Ashford Hospital 
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The CQC identified a number of areas of outstanding practice within the Trust including: 

• Joint working between wards, the bereavement services, chaplaincy and 
mortuary 

• Caring staff throughout the hospital 

• Major incident procedures had been regularly tested involving external partners 

• The Older People’s Assessment and Liaison (OPAL) team enhanced the care of 
frail elderly patients 

• The electronic patient record system in the Intensive Care Unit 

• The dinosaur trail for children walking to theatre and the play therapy team 

• The Orthopaedic Early Supported Discharge Team’s continuity from hospital to 
home 

The CQC also identified a number of poor areas within the Trust and these are outlined 
in the next section. 
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CQC Registration Compliance Actions 

Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust has the following conditions on 
registration with the Care Quality Commission (CQC): 

In the March 2015 Inspection Reports the CQC issued the Trust with compliance action 
notices in 10 action areas across 2 regulated activity areas where the CQC has notified 
that essential standards of quality and safety have not been met: (1) Treatment of 
Disease, Disorder or Injury and (2) Diagnostic and Screening Procedures.  The specific 
Regulations of the Health and Social Care Act 2008 (Regulated Activities) Regulations 
2010 are outlined in the table below. 

Regulated 
Activity 

Regulation  Site Core Area(s)  Action  Action Category  

[1] [2] 9 (1)(b)(ii) – Care 
and Welfare of 
Service Users 

ASH Outpatients and 
diagnostic 
imaging 

1 Deteriorating patient 

[1] [2] 10 
(1)(a),(b),(c),(e)  – 
Assessing and 
Monitoring 
Quality of Service 
Provision 

SPH Critical care 2 Governance and risk management 
in critical care 

3 Patient experience – informing 
improvement of care quality 

[1] [2] 22 - Staffing SPH Critical care, 
Surgery, 
Paediatrics 

4 Adequacy of staffing levels 

[1] [2] 20(2)(a) - 
Records 

BOTH Trustwide 5 Security of record keeping 

Quality of documentation 

Privacy and dignity 

[1] 13 – 
Management of 
Medicines 

BOTH Trustwide 6 Safe use and storage of 
medicines 

• Storage 

• Safe practice 

ASH Outpatients and 
diagnostic 
imaging 

7 Specific poor practice regarding 
intravenous medication 

ASH Surgery  8 Medication prescribing poor 
practice – reason for ‘as required’ 
medication to be documented on 
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prescription charts 

ASH Medical Care  9 Safe and timely dispensing 
practice and procedures – delay in 
transit 

SPH Children and 
young people 

10 Medicines management training 
out of date in paediatric nursing 

 

In addition to the above actions which the Trust must take, the CQC has also outlined 
53 actions which the Trust should make to improve its services; of these 40 actions 
should be undertaken at St Peter’s Hospital and 13 actions pertain to Ashford Hospital.  
The items classified as ‘should’ are in a broad range of areas including governance and 
risk management, security of clinical areas, care of patients with complex needs, staff 
training and patient care.  Full details can be found on the CQC reports on 
http://www.cqc.org.uk/provider/RTK. 

The CQC stated that the Trust must send the CQC a report which specifies what action 
the Trust is going to take to meet these essential standards.  To comply with this 
requirement the Trust submitted its action plan to the CQC on 7 April 2015 where the 
Trust has outlined its high level improvement action areas with accountable officers and 
timescales.  The action plan will be monitored through the Trust’s CQC Quality Review 
Group which meets on a fortnightly basis, and this group will provide monthly action 
plan updates to the Integrated Governance and Assurance Committee52.  The Trust is 
committed to implementing the necessary improvements to resolve these compliance 
actions in a systematic and thorough manner, within realistic timescales.  For more 
information on how the Trust is progressing with the action plan refer to the Trust’s 
website on http://www.ashfordstpeters.nhs.uk/cqc. 

The Care Quality Commission has not taken enforcement action against Ashford & St 
Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust during the year ended 31 March 2015. 

 

Special Reviews Undertaken by the CQC Under Section  48 of the Health and 
Social Care Act 2008 
 

Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust has participated in a special review by 
the Care Quality Commission relating to the following areas during the 12 month period 
ended 31 March 2015. 

The Care Quality Commission conducted a pilot multi-inspectorate inspection of children’s 
safeguarding and the health and wellbeing of looked-after children.  The review was 
conducted under Section 48 of the Health and Social Care Act 2008 which permits the CQC 
to review the provision of healthcare and the exercise of functions of NHS England and 

                                                           
52 The Integrated Governance and Assurance Committee reports to Trust Board 
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Clinical Commissioning Groups.  The CQC has stated that it does not intend to publish this 
report53 on its website.   

This was a multi-agency inspection of which Ashford & St Peter’s NHS Foundation Trust was 
one of the participating organisations.  The key findings of the report are not being published 
as this was a pilot study. 

Ashford & St Peter’s NHS Foundation Trust intends to take the following action to address 
the conclusions or requirements reported by the CQC.  A draft action plan has been 
developed and will be monitored at the Children’s Safeguarding Steering Group.  

Ashford & St Peter’s NHS Foundation Trust has made the following progress by 12 May 
201554: the Trust attended a multi-agency regional workshop in May 2015 and contributed to 
the multi-agency plan. 

 

Healthcare Data Submitted to Secondary Uses Service  (SUS)55 
 

Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust submitted records during the 12 month 
period ended 31 March 2015 to the Secondary Uses Service for inclusion in the Hospital 
Episode Statistics which are included in the latest published data to January 2015: 

The percentage of records in the published data: 

- Which included the patient’s valid NHS number was: 
 

99.5% for admitted patient care 

99.8% for outpatient care 

98.1% for accident and emergency care. 

- Which included the patient’s valid General Medical Practice Code was: 
 

99.9% for admitted patient care 

99.8% for outpatient care 

99.7% for accident and emergency care. 

Comparative data showing completeness of data submitted to SUS in respect of NHS 
number and General Medical Practice Code over the past 3 years is outlined in the table 
below. 
                                                           
53 Review of Health Services for Children Looked After and Safeguarding in Surrey. CQC: Received 1 
May 2015. 
54 As at 31 March 2015 the report had not been issued, so progress is reported after year end. 
55 The Secondary Uses Service (SUS) is a repository for healthcare data in England.  SUS provides 
reports and data analysis which supports the NHS to deliver its healthcare services.  Refer to 
hscic.gov.uk 
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Chart 6:  Completeness of data submitted to Secondary Uses Service (SUS)  

Completeness of data submitted to Secondary 
Uses Service (SUS) (%) 

2012/13 
 

2013/14 
 

2014/15 
 

NHS Number  

Admitted patient care 98.9 99.4 99.5 

Outpatient care 98.3 99.1 99.8 

Accident and emergency care 95.1 97.6 98.1 

General Medical Practice Code  

Admitted patient care 99.8 99.8 99.9 

Outpatient care 99.7 99.6 99.8 

Accident and emergency care 99.7 99.5 99.7 
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Information Governance Assessment 

The Information Governance Toolkit is an online system which enables NHS organisations 
to assess themselves against the information governance policies and standards of the 
Department of Health56. 

Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust’s Information Governance 
Assessment Report overall score for the 12 months ending 31 March 2015 was 85% and the 
Trust was graded satisfactory. 

Chart 7:  Information Governance Toolkit Score 

Information Governance Toolkit Score  2013/14 
 

2014/15 
% 

Governance Assessment Report overall score 70% 85% 

Information Governance Toolkit grade satisfactory satisfactory 

 

During the year the Trust has undertaken actions to improve information governance 
including improving Caldicott Guardian assurance by focussing on information sharing for 
direct care alongside confidentiality improvement.  The planned implementation of an 
Electronic Medical Record will be a key component of the move towards better joined-up 
healthcare with partner health and social care organisations.  

Payment by Results Audits of Clinical Coding of NHS  Data 
 

Assurance over the quality of data which underlies payments made within the NHS is 
provided by the Payment by Results (PbR) Data Assurance Framework57.  Under the 
framework audits of the clinical coding at acute trusts are undertaken to review the accuracy 
of clinical coding.58 

Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust was subject to the Payment by 
Results clinical coding audit during the 12 months ended 31 March 2015 by Monitor.  The 
error rates reported in the latest published audit for that period for diagnoses and treatment 
coding (clinical coding) are not available to be disclosed as the final report has not been 
issued to the Trust. 

Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust was not subject to the Payment by 
Results Clinical Coding Audit during the 12 months ending 31 March 2014 by the Audit 
Commission.  For reference, the national mean data for trusts who were included in the 
2013/14 national audit sample is shown below for information.   

                                                           
56 Refer to the Department of Health’s Information Governance Toolkit on www.igt.hscic.gov.uk. 
57 The Quality of Clinical Coding in the NHS: Payment by Results Data Assurance Framework.  
Capita: September 2014. 
58 Clinical coding involves categorising a patient’s clinical care into a standardised national 
classification system. 
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In 2013/14 an internal audit of Payment by Results data was carried out for January 2014 
inpatient admitted patient care and summary results are shown below for information only.  A 
further local audit was undertaken through information governance of the quality of coded 
data, and those results are also shown for reference below. 

The results of the below audits should not be extrapolated further than the actual sample 
audited. 

Chart 8:  Payment by Results Clinical Coding Audit Error Rates  

Payment by Results Clinical 
Coding Audit Error Rates (%)  

2013/14 Local 
Information 

Governance Audit 

January 2014  
Local Internal 

Audit  

2013/14 
National 
Mean59 % 

Services reviewed within the 
sample 

Inpatient Inpatient admitted 
patient care 

Admitted 
patient 
care60 

Clinical codes incorrect Not stated Not stated 10.8 

Primary diagnosis coding error % 4 11.5 8.8 

Secondary diagnosis coding error % 4.1 2.7 11.4 

Primary procedure coding error % 6 3 6.7 

Secondary procedure coding error % 14.7 0.7 17.4 

  

Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust will be taking the following actions to 
improve data quality.  The Trust has a number of ongoing surveillance mechanisms to 
identify and progress improvements in coding including the Clinical Outcomes Steering 
Group, audit findings through the Clinical Effectiveness and National Audit Review Group 
and the Information Governance Steering Group. 

                                                           
59 Refer to The Quality of Clinical Coding in the NHS, Capita (2014) op. cit. p. 7. 
60 The audit focussed on comorbidities and complications (national theme) and areas of local concern 
selected by clinical commissioning groups 
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2.3 Performance Against Core Indicators 

NHS Foundation Trusts are required to report performance against a core set of indicators 
using data made available by the Health and Social Care Information Centre (HSCIC).  
Comparative data61 is shown for the prior period, the national average, and the highest and 
lowest scoring NHS acute trusts and foundation trusts.  The core quality indicators closely 
align with 5 domains specified in the NHS Outcomes Framework62 and each indicator is 
classified within the applicable domain. 

Domain 1: Preventing people from dying prematurely  

1. Summary hospital-level mortality indicator (SHMI )    

The Health and Social Care Information Centre has provided the following information when 
interpreting the SHMI63: “The SHMI compares the actual number of patients who die 
following hospitalisation at a trust with the number that would be expected to die on the basis 
of average England figures, given the characteristics of the patients treated there. For any 
given number of expected deaths, a range of observed deaths is considered to be ‘as 
expected’. If the observed number of deaths falls outside of this range, the trust in question 
is considered to have a higher or lower SHMI than expected. The SHMI includes deaths 
which occur in hospital or within 30 days of discharge and is calculated using Hospital 
Episode Statistics (HES) data linked to Office for National Statistics (ONS) death 
registrations data. The SHMI is published by the HSCIC as an official statistic on a quarterly 
basis, with each publication reporting on a 12-month period. The first publication was in 
October 2011 and this reported on discharges in the period April 2010 – March 2011. SHMI 
data for earlier reporting periods is not available.” 

Trusts are categorised into one three bandings:  
 
• Band 1 indicates that the trust’s mortality rate is ‘higher than expected’  
• Band 2 indicates that the trust’s mortality rate is ‘as expected’  
• Band 3 indicates that the trust’s mortality rate is ‘lower than expected’ 

The latest published SHMI was in April 2015 for data from the 12 months ending September 
2014. 

The SHMI includes all deaths reported of patients who were admitted to non-specialist acute 
trusts in England and either die whilst in hospital or in the 30 days following discharge.   

The palliative care indicator is designed to accompany the SHMI as the SHMI makes no 
adjustment for palliative care.  The indicator shows the deaths occurring under palliative care 
conditions for each provider reported in the SHMI as reflected by the measure percentage of 
deaths from palliative care coding64.   

 
                                                           
61 Where made available from the HSCIC datasets 
62 Refer to http://www.england.nhs.uk/resources/resources-for-ccgs/out-frwrk/ for information on the 
NHS Outcomes Framework and the 5 domains 
63 SHMI: Guidance for press teams and journalists.   
64 Palliative care coding is at either diagnosis or treatment specialty level. 
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Chart 9 below shows the Trust’s mortality banding as 3 which is lower than expected. 

Chart 9:  Mortality data 

Summary hospital -level 
mortality indicator 
(SHMI) 

Oct 2012 to 
Sept 2013 

Jan 2013 to 
Dec 2013 

April 2013 
to March 

2014 

July 2013 to 
June 2014 65 

Oct 2013-
Sept 2014 66 

Trust score 0.946 0.917 0.908 0.906 0.892 

Trust banding67 2 2 2 2 3 

National benchmark 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 

Lowest score nationally 
(most favourable) 

0.630 0.624 0.539 0.541 0.597 

Highest score nationally 
(least favourable) 

1.186 1.176 1.197 1.198 1.198 

 

The below table shows the percentage of deaths reported in the SHMI with palliative care 
coding.  Whilst the Trust tracks above average for coding for specialist palliative care this 
may reflect multiple factors including that patients have been seen by our specialist palliative 
care service, the availability of hospice care, or alternatively reflect detailed coding.  The 
Trust is evaluating whether to perform a targeted internal coding audit next year. 

 

Palliative care rate (%)  Oct 2012 to 
Sept 2013 

Jan 2013 to 
Dec 2013 

April 20 13 
to March 

2014 

July 2013 to 
June 2014 

Oct 2013-
Sept 2014 

Trust score 32 33.2 37.7 32.1 38.2 

National benchmark 21.2 22.0 23.6 24.6 25.3 

Lowest score nationally  0 1.3 6.4 7.4 0 

Highest score nationally  44.8 46.9 48.5 49.0 49.4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                           
65 Published 27 January 2015 
66 Published April 2015 
67 A banding of 3 means that the range of deaths is lower than expected 
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The following indicators split deaths into the context of being either occurring in hospital or 
outside hospital. 

Deaths in hospital (%)  Oct 2012 to 
Sept 2013 

Jan 2013 to 
Dec 2013 

April 2013 
to March 

2014 

July 2013 to 
June 2014 

Oct 2013-
Sept 2014 

Trust score 68.3 68.0 68.7 67.9 66.8 

National benchmark 73.1 72.7 72.2 71.7 71.6 

Lowest score nationally  63.1 65.0 63.2 61.4 60.9 

Highest score nationally  81.5 80.4 83.3 94.1 83.7 

 

Deaths out of hospital 
(%) 

Oct 2012 to 
Sept 2013 

Jan 2013 to 
Dec 2013 

April 2013 
to March 

2014 

July 2013 to 
June 2014 

Oct 2013-
Sept 2014 

Trust score 31.7 32.0 31.3 32.1 33.2 

National benchmark 26.9 27.3 27.8 28.3 28.4 

Lowest score nationally  18.5 19.6 16.7 5.9 16.3 

Highest score nationally  36.9 35.0 36.8 38.6 39.1 

 

Ashford & St Peter’s NHS Foundation Trust considers that this data is as described for the 
following reasons.  Mortality data is monitored at the Clinical Outcomes Steering Group and 
monthly at Trust Board.  Coding reviews are undertaken as part of the Payment by Results 
audit.  The Clinical Outcomes Steering Group undertakes deep dive reviews of data from 
clinical specialties.   

 

Ashford & St Peter’s NHS Foundation Trust intends to take the following actions to improve 
this percentage, and so the quality of its services.  We will continue active monitoring with 
tailored interventions through our Clinical Outcomes Steering Group. 

 

Domain 3: Helping people to recover from episodes o f ill health or following 
injury 

2. Patient Reported Outcome Measures 68  
 

Patient Reported Outcome Measures (PROMs) provide an indication of a patient’s health 
status or health-related quality of life from the patient’s perspective. This information is 
gathered from a questionnaire that patients complete before and after surgery. Patients 

                                                           
68 Refer to www.hscic.gov.uk/proms 
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undergoing hip and knee replacement, groin hernia and varicose veins procedures are 
invited to take part in this national study.  

The table below shows provisional data from April 2014 and final data for April 2011 to 
March 2014. The indicator used is the EQ-5D index casemix adjusted health gain.  

Table 10:  Patient reported outcome measures   

 

   

Hip replacement - primary  

 

Knee replacement - primary  

Period 2011/1269 2012/1370 2013/1471 2014/1572 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 

Trust 0.406 0.428 0.425 * 0.297 0.278 0.305 0.364 

National 0.416 0.438 0.436 0.442 0.302 0.319 0.323 0.328 

Lowest 0.306 0.319 0.342 0.350 0.180 0.195 0.215 0.249 

Highest 0.532 0.543 0.545 0.501 0.385 0.409 0.416 0.394 

 

 

   

Groin hernia 

 

 Varicose veins  

Period 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2011/12 2012 /13 2013/14 2014/15 

Trust 0.093 0.119 * * * * 0.025 * 

National 0.087 0.085 0.085 0.081 0.094 0.093 0.093 0.100 

Lowest -0.002 0.015 0.008 0.009 0.047 0.023 0.023 0.054 

Highest 0.143 0.157 0.135 0.125 0.167 0.175 0.150 0.142 

 

*Dataset does not record this item. 

 

Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust considers that this data is as 
described for the following reasons.  The Trust has a systematic process for collating data 

                                                           
69 2011/12 final data published October 2013 
70 2012/13 final data published August 2014 
71 2013/14 provisional data published February 2015, covering April 2013 to March 2014 
72 2014/15 provisional data published April 2015, covering April 2014 to September 2014 
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and outcomes and results are monitored at the Clinical Effectiveness and National Audit 
Review Group. 

Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust intends to take the following actions to 
improve this percentage, and so the quality of its services: The Trust has reviewed its 
performance and the Trust is not an outlier against national practice in respect of the 
casemix adjusted health gain.  The Trust is actively promoting regular clinical outcome 
review alongside ways of encouraging patient completion of assessment forms. 

3. Emergency readmission to hospital within 28 days  of discharge 73  
 

This indicator is defined as ‘the percentage of emergency patients readmitted to a hospital 
which forms part of the trust within 28 days of being discharged from a hospital which forms 
part of the trust during the reporting period’.74   

Table 11:  28 Day Readmissions  

Patient 
Age 

 

0-15 

 

≥16 

Period  2012/13 2013/14 2014/15  2012/13 2013/14 20 14/15 

Trust 6.3% 7.0% 7.2% 15.3% 14.6% 14.3% 

 

The Trust is unable to disclose national comparative data for this measure owing to the 
absence of this information within the national dataset currently.75  

Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust considers that this data is as 
described for the following reasons.  Data is uploaded to external sources in accordance 
with prescribed guidance and timescales.  Readmission data is reviewed by the Board 
monthly. 

Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust intends to take the following actions to 
improve this percentage, and so the quality of its services, by the items outlined on Priority 5, 
p. 79 which are to: 

• Continue the readmissions project76 led by the Medical Director. 
• Review the impact of the current pilot of contacting patients post discharge and 

determine if this scheme is beneficial for progression to other areas. 
• Contribute to the feedback process of the locality hub pilot project and continue 

dialogue with external partners as to a trajectory for potential system wide expansion. 

                                                           
73 This age split has been changed from ages 0-14 to 0-15, and from 15 and over to aged 16 or over 
this year.  Monitor has clarified that an error was made during the drafting of the national regulations 
and that the split of data should be 0-15; and 16 or over.  Refer to Monitor’s Detailed Requirements 
for Quality Reports 2014/15. 
74 Definition per NHS England Quality Account Data Dictionary 2014/15.   
75 As advised by the HSCIC on 8 May 2015.  National data is not expected until 2016. 
76 The Readmissions Project commenced in April 2013 
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Domain 4: Ensuring that people have a positive expe rience of care 

4. Responsiveness to the personal needs of patients   
 

Experience of inpatient care 

This indicator measures patient experience of inpatient care based on a selection of 
questions from the National Inpatient Survey77.  The national definition of this indicator is 
‘patient experience measured by scoring the results of a selection of questions from the 
National Inpatient Survey looking at a range of elements of hospital care.’ 78 The score is out 
of 100.  The data for the most recent Emergency and Elective Inpatients Survey was 
collected September 2014 to January 2015 and is expected to be published in Q1 2015.  
This data is not available at the time of compiling this report. 

The individual questions extracted from the National Inpatient Survey used to construct the 
indicator include the following areas:  

Access and waiting domain : time on waiting list, changes to admission date, waiting for a 
ward bed on arrival to hospital. 

Safe, high quality co-ordinated care domain : consistency of staff advice, delays on day of 
discharge, advice on warning signs post discharge. 

Better information, more choice domain : involvement in decision making, medication 
explanations, medication side effects. 

Building closer relationships domain : Explanation from doctors to questions, doctors 
approach,  explanation from nurses to questions, nurses approach. 

Clean, friendly, comfortable place to be domain : noise at night, cleanliness, food rating, 
privacy, adequacy of pain relief, respect and dignity. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                           
77 Figures per the Adult Inpatient Survey, completed by a sample of patients aged 16 years and over 
who have been discharged with at least one overnight stay. 
78 Refer to indicator 4b, Patient experience of hospital care, HSCIC indicator portal 
https://indicators.ic.nhs.uk/webview 
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Table12:  Patient experience per National Inpatient Survey 

Average patient experience score from National Inpa tient Survey  
selected questions  

 

 Trust  
2011/12 

Trust  
2012/13 

Trust  
2013/1479 

National  
2013/14 

Access and waiting domain  75.7 82.2 81.7 84.6 

Safe, high quality co -
ordinated care domain 

61.7 60.9 60.8 66.1 

Better information, more 
choice domain 

62.2 64.7 62.5 68.8 

Building closer relationships 
domain 

80.3 83.2 80.5 84.7 

Clean, friendly, comfortable 
place to be domain 

76.5 77.3 78.6 80.1 

Trust Score  71.3 73.7 72.8  

National average  75.6 76.5 76.9 

Lowest score nationally (least 
favourable) 

67.4 68.0 67.1 

Highes t score nationally 
(most favourable) 

87.8 88.2 87.0 

 

Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust considers that this data is as 
described for the following reasons.  The Trust contracts with an external organisation to 
distribute and collate survey responses. The Information Services Department undertakes a 
monthly validation exercise to ensure the sample population is surveyed in line with the 
national criteria. 

Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust intends to take the following actions to 
improve this score, and so the quality of its services, through ongoing focus on the key 
improvement areas of reducing  noise at night, providing medication explanations at the time 
of discharge, and ensuring explanations from doctors to questions. This year work has 
included a communications exercise on minimising night noise and a new leaflet on 
medications at the time of discharge will encourage patient empowerment in this area, 
particularly because a helpline number has now been provided. 

 

 

 

                                                           
79 National Inpatient Survey 2013, data release August 2014 
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5. Staff who would recommend the Trust to their fam ily or friends  

This indicator measures the percentage of staff employed by or under contract to the Trust 
during the reporting period who would recommend the Trust as a provider of care to their 
family or friends.  The data is from the National NHS Staff Survey and is the percentage of 
staff who either agreed, or strongly agreed, with the following statement – ‘If a friend or 
relative needed treatment I would be happy with the standard of care provided by this 
organisation.’ 80 

 

Table13:  Staff recommending the Trust  

Staff who would recommend the Trust to 
their family or friends  

2013 National 
Survey Data 

2014 National 
Survey Data 

Trust  62.2 64.7 

National average  64.5 64.7 

Lowest score nationally 81 (least 
favourable) 

39.6 38.2 

Highest score nationally (most favourable)  88.5 89.3 

 

Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust considers that this data is as 
described for the following reasons:  Data reported was reviewed by the Trust Board in 
March each year following publication and updates on the action plan are presented to Trust 
Board annually in September and the Employee Partnership Forum monitors progress. 

Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust intends to take the following actions to 
improve this percentage, and so the quality of its services, by progressing our tailored action 
plan which incorporates both corporate and divisional actions with specialist support for 
those areas where staff have suggested improvements are required in their areas. 

 

                                                           
80 Definition per http://indicators.ic.nhs.uk/webview Title 21. Staff who would recommend the Trust to 
their family or friends.  2014 data per http://www.nhsstaffsurveys.com/Page/1019/Latest-Results/Staff-
Survey-2013-Detailed%20Spreadsheets/  
81 For acute trusts 
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5. Friends and Family Test (FFT) 

In October 2014 NHS England modified the scoring for the FFT from the net promoter score 
to a simpler percentage recommended score.  The other sections of this report have 
reported on the original promoter score measure.  This is in order to report consistently with 
the targets set at the start of the year.   

Comparison of inpatient scores under original and n ew national scoring methodology 

 

Table 14  – FFT scores 

 

 

Inpatient scores are stable for both measures and maternity achieves consistently high 
scores.  The Accident and Emergency Department net promoter score of 48 remains below 
the target set by the Trust at the beginning of this year of 55.  The new recommended score 
is slightly lower than last month at 83.9% in March and feedback indicates this is partially 
owing to waiting time.  The emergency care pathway project includes improvements which 
address patient experience including patient streaming, modified assessment space and 
increased point of care testing.  Patient experience is a continuing priority area for 2015/16 
and our improvement initiatives for next year are on p. 81. 

Charts of response rate and satisfaction percent are shown below. 

Chart 15 – FFT response rate   Chart 16 – FFT satisfaction percent 
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Domain 5: Treating and caring for people in a safe environment and protecting 
them from avoidable harm 

6. Patients admitted to hospital who were risk asse ssed for venous thromoembolism 82 
 

The definition of this measure is the percentage of patients who were admitted to hospital 
and who were risk assessed for venous thromboembolism (VTE) during the reporting period.  

Table 17  – VTE risk assessment 

 

% risk assessed for VTE 

Percentage risk assessed for VTE 

 Q1 

Apr-Jun 
2013 

Q2 

Jul-Sep 
2013 

Q3 

Oct-Dec  

2013 

Q4  

Jan-Mar 
2014 

Q1  

Apr-Jun 
2014 

Q2 

Jul-Sep 
2014 

Q3  

Oct-Dec 
201483 

ASPH 95.2 95.4 96.3 98.1 98.3 97.7 97.8 

National 95.4 95.8 95.7 95.9 96.1 96.1 95.9 

Lowest 78.7 81.7 74.1 78.9 87.2 86.4 81.2 

Highest 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 

 

Ashford & St Peter’s NHS Foundation Trust considers that this data is as described for the 
following reasons.  The Trust has a systematic method for reviewing robustness of data 
collection and subsequent submission which includes validation of population completeness 
from source case-note review.  Results are reported quarterly to Trust Board.   

Ashford & St Peter’s NHS Foundation Trust intends to take the following actions to improve 
this percentage, and so the quality of its services: the Trust will work to achieve VTE 
Exemplar Status84 by 31 March 2016. 

 

7. Clostridium Difficile Infection 

Clostridium difficile infection is a type of serious bacterial infection which can affect the 
digestive system and it occurs mainly in vulnerable patient groups who have taken 

                                                           

 

 
83 Q4 2014/15 national data not available as at 8 May 2015. 
84 Part of the VTE England’s National VTE Prevention Programme 
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antibiotics.  Since 2007 the NHS has made considerable reductions in the numbers of 
C. difficile cases but sector data is now indicating that the level of infection may be 
approaching an irreducible minimum level such that irrespective of care quality 
infections will still occur.85 

The Clostridium difficile infection (CDI) objective for acute trusts has 2 components 
comprising a target number of CDI cases per 100,000 bed days and a maximum number of 
cases.  The national indicator is the rate per 100,000 bed days of Trust apportioned cases of 
C. difficile infection that have occurred within the Trust in patients aged 2 or over during the 
reporting period. 86   

Table 18  – Clostridium difficile infection 

          Clostridium difficile 
 

Target 2012/13 Target 2013/14 Target 2014/15 
Trust target for maximum number of cases in 12 
months 

 

20 15 
13 10 9 18 

 

            

Infection rate per 100,000 bed days 
 

  8.5 7.3 5.8 5.1 9.9 

National average - bed days 
 

  17.3   14.7   13.1 
Lowest score nationally - bed days (most 
favourable) 

 

  1.2 
  0   * 

Highest score nationally - bed days (least 
favourable) 

 

  30.6 
  37.1   * 

         

         * Data not yet reported. 
          

Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust considers that this data is as 
described for the following reasons.  All C. difficile cases for patients aged above 2 years are 
entered onto the Public Health Data Capture System and cases entered are signed off 
monthly by the Chief Executive.  There is a detailed surveillance structure incorporating root 
cause analyses for lapses in care with external monitoring quarterly by the Clinical 
Commissioning Group. 

Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust intends to take the following actions to 
improve this rate, and so the quality of its services, by progressing the 2015/16 C. difficile 
action plan.  Key elements of the action plan include improving antibiotic prescribing, patient 
isolation and environmental cleaning regimes. 

 

                                                           
85 Clostridium difficile infection objectives for NHS organisations in 2014/15 and guidance on sanction 
implementation.  NHS England February 2014. 
86 Data per http://indicators.ic.ac.nhs.uk/ item 24. Rate of C. difficile infection and the national dataset 
per https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/clostridium-difficile-infection-annual-data 
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8. Rate of patient safety incidents and percentage resulting in severe harm or death 

This national indicator is the number and, where available, rate of patient safety 
incidents that occurred within the Trust during the reporting period, and the percentage 
of such patient safety incidents that resulted in severe harm or death.87 Data is from the 
most recently published national dataset which is reported incidents between October 
2013 and March 2014. 

Table 19  – Patient safety incidents 

Patient safety incidents 
 

1 Oct 2012 - 
31 March 
2013 

April 2013 - 
30 Sept 
2013 

1 Oct 2013 - 
31 March 
2014 

Total number of incidents reported 1854 2070 1696 
Rate of incidents reported per 100 admissions 5.08 5.62 4.60 

Number of incidents causing severe harm  8 4 16 
% incidents causing severe harm / death 0.4% 0.2% 0.9% 

Number of incidents causing death 7 4 6 
% incidents causing death 0.4% 0.2% 0.4% 

 
Medium acute trust average 
 

  Medium acute trust average - rate of incidents reported per 100 
admissions 7.16 7.23 7.82 

Lowest rate of incidents reported per 100 admissions 0.8 3.6 2.2 
Highest rate of incidents reported per 100 admissions 17 14.4 16.8 

Median acute trust average - % incidents causing severe harm  0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 
Median acute trust average - % incidents causing death 0.2% 0.2% 0.25% 

National data from www.nrls.npsa.nhs.uk/patient-safety-data/ 

Lowest/highest national rates to nearest 0.5 rounded 
 

 

Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust considers that this data is as 
described for the following reasons.  Data validation this year has included a refinement of 
the process for assessing the criteria for uploads to NRLS.  A Datix user group was 
formulated to support divisional governance teams validate incidents at source.  Intranet 
web-based resource sheets provide guidance on the NRLS upload process and national 
criteria.   

Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust intends to take the following actions to 
improve this rate, and so the quality of its services, by continuing to monitor whether 

                                                           
87 Refer to Domain 5, Indicators 5a and 5b on HSCIC indicator portal. 
http://indicators.ic.ac.uk/webview.  Data is available from http://www.nrls.npsa.nhs.uk/resources/ 
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incidents are appropriately uploaded to the national platform to timescale and national 
reporting protocols.  A dedicated Datix Administrator provides specialist support to clinicians 
and oversees the validation process.  The Trust is committed to reducing harms and our 
quality priorities to achieve this are outlined in Section 2.1.1 on pages 76-78.  The Trust is 
actively promoting staff learning from incidents and the recently launched dedicated patient 
safety intranet site provides access to the learning from serious incident investigation reports 
alongside the Lessons Learned publications. 

Part 3: Other information 

3.1 Overview of the Quality of Care Against 2014/15  Priorities  

Performance against our Quality Improvement Priorit ies for 
2014/15  
 

We want to ensure the highest possible standards of quality for our patients, meeting and 
exceeding their expectations in terms of patient experience, patient safety and clinical 
effectiveness.  

In this section we describe our achievements against each of the key priorities we set 
ourselves in the previous year.  We held quarterly workshops with our stakeholders to 
monitor progress against our quality improvement priorities and reported progress to Trust 
Board quarterly.  Detailed monitoring is via the Integrated Governance and Assurance 
Committee. 

Patient Experience 

Priority 1 – To improve the care of patients with 
dementia and support carers  

Achievement against this priority  

Achieved in 2014/15  2013/14 2014/15 

90% of all emergency patients admitted to hospital 
aged 75 years and over to be screened for signs of 
dementia. 

Achieved 96.1%88 Achieved 95.7% 

Trust staff to be appropriately trained to care for 
patients with dementia.89 

- Achieved. 

Carers of people with dementia to feel adequately 
supported. 90 

- Achieved 

We will measure improvement through the Dementia 
CQUIN, which continues during 2014/15. Performance 

Partially Achieved Achieved 

                                                           
88 The target for screening remained at 90% for both 2013/14 and 2014/15 
89 This measure had a 90% target per the 2014/15 Quality Report however this was a typographical 
misstatement.  The intended target is as outlined above. 
90 As above, this measure has no numeric target. 
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will be monitored via CQUIN monitoring arrangements. 

Our other improvement work for dementia we planned for this year is outlined below.  

The Trust has commissioned a study whereby the 
Patient Association will seek to source carers’ 
experience. 

Led by the Trust Governors, the Trust worked in 
partnership with the Patients Association and 
the Patient Experience Group to survey the 
experience of carers of patients with dementia.  
Supporting carers is an ongoing priority for 
2015/16 and carer support through the Memory 
Café is outlined in Section 2.1.1 Priority 7. 

Within our Acute and Medicine Division, two wards 
will focus on stroke and elderly care. 

A hyper-acute stroke unit provides 
comprehensive care for stroke patients.  
Elderly care has a designated Consultant and 
the Older People’s Assessment and Liaison 
(OPAL) Team provides fast track assessment 
of eligible patients upon admission. 

A dementia strategy will be implemented to 
strengthen dementia awareness to all staff. 

The dementia strategy is currently being 
refreshed and this will be rolled out in 2015. 

Carer support will significantly be increased through 
education for ward staff, information for carers as 
well as other initiatives. 

Refer to the section on supporting carers above 
and on p. 120. 

Improved collaboration with external stakeholders 
through representation and involvement of local 
implementation groups. 

The Trust participated in the regional Enhancing 
Quality Programme for dementia.91   

Following feedback from a themed CQC Dementia 
inspection, the Trust will seek to make improvements. 

We have introduced the “This is me hospital 
passport” scheme which enables the personal 
needs of patients to be communicated to 
hospital staff to support the needs of patients 
with dementia. 

A focused training programme will be implemented 
during 2014/15. 

Achieved.  Refer to the commentary below on 
trust staff training. 

 

Trust staff training 

The Trust achieved its aim of demonstrating staff were appropriately trained to care for 
patients with dementia by achieving the training plan which had been agreed with our 
Clinical Commissioning Group by March 2015. Over 600 members of staff were trained. 
The Trust has recently appointed a Dementia and Admiral Nurse Lead and the dementia 
training plan is now under review for inclusion in the Dementia Strategy which is being 
refreshed. The 3 year dementia training plan will include Tier 1, 2 and 3 dementia training 
as specified by Health Education England. 

                                                           
91 Hosted by the Kent Surrey Sussex Academic Health Science Network 



 

122 | P a g e  

Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Annual Report 2014/2015 

Supporting carers 

The Trust achieved its aim of providing evidence of the monthly survey of dementia 
carers. However, the response rate was lower than hoped for and data quality could be 
improved. This survey is currently under review with plans to refresh the survey including 
ways of supporting carers to increase completion rates, opportunities for carers to identify 
themselves to obtain support resolving issues, and linking responses with influencing care 
improvements. An exciting dementia initiative next year will be the establishment of the 
Memory Café for carers of people with dementia in May 2015.  The performance over time 
for the percentage of emergency patients aged 75 years and over screened for signs of 
dementia is outlined below. 

Table 20 : Percentage of eligible patients appropriately screened for dementia 2013/14 to 
2014/15. 

 

 

The graph above demonstrates that the Trust performed higher than the target of >90% 
throughout the majority of 2013/14 and 2014/15.  Dementia is continuing as a priority area in 
2015/16 as shown in Priority 7 on p. 81 where our continued improvement initiatives are 
outlined. 
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Priority 2 – To provide safe, high quality discharge 
for patients  

Achievement against this priority  

Partia lly achieved  2014/15 

To increase the proportion of patients discharged 
before 14:00 hours. 
 
(There is no comparative data available for this 
measure as last year the measure was calculated at 
a different point in time). 
 

During 2014/15 this measure has been reported 
on as the number of wards who discharge 50% 
of patients before 14:00 hours.  The Trust has 
improved overall against this measure.  In April 
2014 2 wards were meeting the measure whilst  
by March 2015 5 wards were meeting the 
measure. 

Increase electronic discharge summaries sent to the 
General Practitioner within 24 hours of discharge. 

By 31 March 2015 the target of 95% was being 
achieved. 

Issue outpatient letters to General Practitioners within 
5 working days. 

Not achieved.  In March 2015 on average 10 
working days were needed despite the rollout of 
the new IT Dictate system.  Further actions are 
being taken with clinical divisions in order to 
improve our performance in line with the 
national standard in 2015/16. 

The Trust committed to monitoring discharge and re-
admission rates. 

Discharge information is reported on above.   
 
Readmission rates are reported on in Priority 9 
which follows. 

Our other improvement work for promoting safe, high  quality discharge is outlined below.  

The discharge team will continue to provide 
comprehensive support for staff to ensure safe, high 
quality discharge. 

The discharge team focusses upon patients 
with complex care needs.  The Trust has 
received positive feedback from the Clinical 
Commissioning Group on the quality of our 
Decision Support Tool (DST) submissions 
pertaining to assessing continuing healthcare 
following discharge.  New staff induction covers 
discharge planning including the process for 
setting estimated dates of discharge on the day 
of admission. 

The Senior Discharge Co-ordinator will attend the 
Nursing and Residential Homes forum meetings 
throughout the year. 

This was not achieved however the Trust is 
committed to this going forward. 

Work will commence to develop an Older People’s 
Assessment Liaison and RADAR model. 

Achieved, refer commentary below. 

The Trust will seek to roll out its Early Discharge 
Scheme, which is currently only implemented in 

This is under consideration and is carried 
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Orthopaedics. forward within Quality Priority 9 for 2015/16. 

A member of the discharge team will attend the 
Medworxx92 conference 2014. 

This was not achieved. 

Ward liaison roles will be created to reduce delays in 
patient journeys.  Remedial action will result in 
improving patient flow and reduce risks to patients with 
regards to prolonged stays in hospital. 

The ward liaison role was implemented in spring 
and September 2014.   Feedback indicated that 
further refinements in the scope of the role and 
the capacity to support it has led to this not 
being an active area of progression currently. 

 

Patient discharge 

Patient discharge is supported by trustwide flow monitoring using the RADAR modelling tool 
and at patient level using the LACE readmission risk tool.  The Trust has introduced the 
RADAR93 application which is a model that provides an overview of patient flow in the 
hospital.  Information is incorporated from various patient systems and includes the status of 
Accident and Emergency Department activity, bed base, estimated date of discharge setting 
and risk assessments.  The risk of patients being readmitted is calculated via the LACE 
score which is an international tool which assesses the likelihood of an individual patient 
being readmitted unexpectedly within 30 days of discharge. 

The timing and appropriateness of discharge is considered when planning and monitoring 
patients estimated discharge dates.   Board rounds undertaken the day before discharge 
support the process.  The emergency care pathway improvement initiative is considering a 
number of ways to streamline patient discharge including completing investigations on the 
day and transport scheduling.  Whilst the Trust is committed to continually improve the time 
of day at which patients are discharged, it is known that there are some patients with 
circumstances for whom a later time of discharge is nevertheless appropriate. 

The Older Persons Assessment and Liaison Team (OPAL) has a designated 
multidisciplinary team which focusses on fast track assessment of patients upon their initial 
admission to hospital.  

 

 

 

 

 

                                                           
92 Medworxx is an international provider who supplies enterprise software relating to patient flow 
information. 
93 RADAR: Results, Approaches, Deploy, Assess, Refine 
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Priority 3 – To improve all aspects of 
communication with patients  

Achievement against this priority  

Partially achieved in 2014/15  2013/14 2014/15 

Accident and Emergency (A&E) Department Friends 
and Family (FFT94) quarter four response rate ≥ 20% 

17.8% 21%  

Inpatients FFT quarter four response rate ≥ 30% 35.7% 38% 

Inpatients Friends and Family (FFT) net promoter 
score of >73 year to date (ytd) 95 

7296 75 

Maternity FFT net promoter score of >73 ytd 72.3 78.9 

Accident and Emergency Department FFT net 
promoter score of >55 ytd 

4897 48.4 

4 out of 5 targets above were met.  Refer to commentary below. 

Our other improvement work for communication with p atients is outlined below.  

The Trust will undertake an in-depth review of our 
complaints process, in line with the recommendations 
of the Clwyd-Hart Report98. 

Achieved, refer to below narrative. 

We will obtain feedback from complainants about the 
experiences of the complaints process, which will 
enable us to improve our communication with 
complainants. 

Work is ongoing with Healthwatch Surrey to 
engage patients and relatives who have 
complained and those who have felt unable to 
complain to gain feedback.  Feedback will be 
via an event and a questionnaire. 

We will introduce further initiatives to ensure patients 
and the public are central to improving quality 
improvement around communication such as Secret 
Shopper experience feedback. 

This project has not progressed owing to 
competing priorities, however, it is planned to 
commence in 2015/16. 

 

 

                                                           
94 Friends and Family Test (FFT) Score – for more information on the NHS Friends and Family Test 
refer to the NHS England website http://www.england.nhs.uk/ourwork/pe/fft/.  The test is a feedback 
tool that measures whether service users would recommend the services they used to others. 
95 Year to date score has been reported in respect of the FFT promoter scores. 
96 The target for Inpatients promoter score was increased from 70 in 2013/14 to 73 for 2014/15. 
97 The target for Accident and Emergency promoter score was decreased from 70 in 2013/14 to 55 for 
2014/15  
98 A Review of the NHS Hospitals Complaints System, Putting Patients Back in the Picture.  Right 
Honourable Ann Clywyd MP and Professor Tricia Hart.  October 2013. 
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Complaints process review 

The review has been completed and since January 2015 the new complaints process has 
been operational.  The new model features divisional clearance of grade99 1 and 2 
complaints whilst grade 3 and 4 complaints are launched through a weekly panel chaired 
by the Chief Nurse which is attended by a multidisciplinary group of clinicians and patient 
experience specialists.  This new process is proving successful and is resulting in 
complaints being progressed at earlier stages than previously.  Early indications show a 
reduction in the Trust’s response time to complaints, and a reduction in follow up 
complaints due the improved quality of response. 

Communication with patients – Friends and Family Te st  

The Trust has used the Friends and Family Test (FFT) as its prime marker for 
communication with patients and their families and friends. Q4 targets for response rate from 
both Accident and Emergency and Inpatient patients have been achieved. The historical net 
promoter score was achieved for both Inpatients and Maternity areas. 

The Accident and Emergency Department net promoter score of 48 remains below the target 
set by the Trust at the beginning of this year of 55. Recent feedback indicates that this is 
partially owing to waiting time.  The new recommended score is slightly lower than last 
month at 83.9% in March and feedback indicates this is partially owing to waiting time. The 
emergency care pathway project includes improvements which address patient experience 
including patient streaming, modified assessment space and increased point of care testing. 

Improvement of how the Trust communicates with patients is monitored by the Trust Board 
which receives monthly updates on this. 

The Friends and Family Test was extended to Outpatient areas and Day Surgery.   

 

                                                           
99 Complaints are graded according to a matrix which combines assessment of the harm suffered by 
the person concerned plus a measure of the frequency with which the event types occur.  Grade 1 is 
the lowest and grade 4 is the most severe. 
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Patient Safety 

 

Priority 4 – Improve the safety culture  Achievement against this priority  

Achieved in 2014/15  2014/15 

By the end of quarter three the Manchester Patient 
Safety Framework (MaPSaF) will be undertaken to 
assess the patient safety culture among staff.100 

The Manchester Patient Safety Framework 
(MaPSaF) assessment was implemented by the 
end of Q3 in line with expectations and an 
improvement action plan was presented to 
IGAC in March 2015. 

By the end of quarter four an improvement action plan 
will be developed. 

Plans for improvement have been developed 
and will be implemented and monitored via the 
Divisional Governance Frameworks throughout 
2015/16.  
 
Improvement plans include streamlining incident 
reporting on Datix to reduce reporting time, 
reviewing current models for learning for 
indcidents, and improved communication with 
junior doctors via email to mobile telephones. 

Our other improvement work for promoting improvemen t of the safety culture is outlined below.  

The Trust will continue to implement the Clinical 
Leadership Development and Organisational 
Development programmes. 

Implemented and achieved.  This is continuing 
as a significant ongoing work-in-progress for 
2015/16. 

 

The following additional initiatives were progressed from 2013/14: 

• The Trust has continued its emphasis on patient safety by convening improvement 
summits in areas where is the need for an Executive led drive to improve safety in 
an area of patient care where safety and other clinical quality concerns are 
emerging.  The outcomes from the summits were detailed multidisciplinary action 
plans which are divisionally monitored and reported to the Integrated Governance 
and Assurance Committee. 

 

• In 2013 mortality reviews whereby every in-hospital death is reviewed by a 
systematic process was commenced.  The Trust is not yet achieving its goal of 
reviewing 90% of deaths by the end of Q4 and in March 2015 44% of reviews had 

                                                           
100

 The Manchester Patient Safety Framework (MaPSaF) is a tool to help NHS organisations 
and healthcare teams assess their progress in developing a safety culture. 
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been undertaken.  Targeted intervention is being led by the Chief of Patient Safety 
in Q1 2015/16.  

• The Trust continues to participate in the Enhancing Quality and Enhanced 
Recovery clinical pathway regional improvement programmes101.  This year we 
commenced the pilot programme  to collect baseline data for the Chronic 
Obstructive Pulmonary Disease (COPD)102 pathway.   
 

• The Trust has continued to focus on being open and transparent with patients and 
service users when something goes wrong.  The Duty of Candour103 is now a 
statutory duty and specific information must now be provided to service users 
when notifiable safety incidents occur.  The Trust has updated our Being Open 
Policy this year and has included training on this in a booklet for staff.  The Duty of 
Candour is an ongoing priority for 2015/16 as outlined in Priority 2, p. 77. 
 

Other significant achievements regarding improving patient safety in 2014/15 included: 

• In January 2015 the Trust secured funding104 to commence a 30 month project to 
improve outcomes for patients with acute kidney injury (AKI) by introducing a 
package of interventions including an electronic AKI detection and alerting system, 
a tailor-made education package and a clinical care bundle. 
 

• In quarter four the Trust submitted its three year Safety Improvement Plan105 as 
part of the Sign Up to Safety Campaign.106  Priority areas included maternity care, 
pressure ulcers, venous thromboembolism, falls, and deteriorating patients. 

 

                                                           
101 The programmes are hosted by Kent, Surrey and Sussex Academic Health Science Network. 
102 COPD is a collection of long term lung conditions which lead to patients experiencing shortness of 
breath. 
103 Regulation 20: Duty of Candour, Health and Social Care Act 2008 (Regulated Activities) 
Regulations 2014. 
104 The project is funded by the Health Foundation as part of its new improvement programme, 
‘Scaling Up Improvement.’  The multi-centre programme led by Derby Hospitals NHS Foundation 
Trust involves a network of hospitals from Yorkshire and Surrey.  
105 A Safety Improvement Plan is an organisation’s plans for the next 3 to 5 years regarding patient 
safety and quality, in the context of achieving a reduction in avoidable harm.   
106 The campaign is associated with a discretionary incentive scheme from the NHS Litigation 
Authority.   
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Priority 5 – To improve harm free care as 
measured with the Safety Thermometer  

Achievement against this priority  

Achieved in 2014/15  2013/14 2014/15 

To maintain Safety Thermometer performance better 
than, (demonstrating a lower harm rate than), the 
national average for the percentage of patients with 
new harms 

Achieved107 Achieved 1.9% 

Percentage of new catheter associated urinary tract 
infection (CAUTI) 

Not achieved Achieved 0.2% 

Percentage of new pressure ulcers Achieved Achieved 1.0% 

Percentage of falls with harm Not achieved Achieved 0.6% 

 

The NHS Safety Thermometer programme108 is a way of nationally benchmarking 
avoidable hospital harms.  Data is collected on a single spot day each month to provide a 
snapshot of inpatient harms.  Safety Thermometer is again a priority area for 2015/16 refer 
to Priority 1, p. 77. 

Chart 21:  Percentage of patients with new harms 2013 - 15 

 

The Trust shows data compared with both national average and nearby acute trusts – 
Frimley Park Hospital NHS Foundation Trust (FPH) and The Royal Surrey County Hospital 
NHS Foundation Trust (RSCH). 

 

                                                           
107 The target for 2013/14 was to maintain new hospital-acquired harms below 6%.  In 2014/15 this 
target was changed to remaining below the national average level of harms.  In 2014/15 the Trust 
achieved percentage of new harms of 1.9% which is below the national average of 2.4%. 
108 For more information refer to www.safetythermometer.nhs.uk. 
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Chart 22:  Percentage of patients with new CAUTI 2013 - 15 

 

 

Chart 23:  Percentage of patients with new pressure ulcers 2013 - 15 

 

 

Chart 24:  Percentage of patients with falls with harm 2013 - 15 
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The following additional initiatives were progressed from 2013/14 regarding the aim to 
reduce inpatient falls: 

• Falls training is in line with the Trust’s training plan, as evidenced by attendance by 
wards at scheduled sessions. 

 

• A multidisciplinary approach to prevention of falls was progressed by 
implementation of the Medical Falls Identification and Intervention of Falls Risk tool 
which assesses a patient’s risk of a fall based upon medication and medical 
condition.  Training is multidisciplinary and includes physiotherapists and 
occupational therapists.   
 

• Performance against the Falls Strategy was last reviewed on 1 April 2015 and 
included assessing compliance with the falls prevention action plan.  New initiatives 
during the current year have included the use of prompt cards on medications 
associated with falls risk and other risk factors.  The following areas within the 
strategy are areas for improvement next year: review of adherence to the Medical 
Falls Identification and Intervention of Falls Risk tool and the falls prevention action 
plans. 

 

Priority 6 – To provide effective risk assessment 
and prophylaxis for hospital associated thrombus 
(HAT) 

Achievement a gainst this priority  

 
Partially achieved in 2014/15 

2013/14 2014/15 

Risk assess patients on admission for venous 
thromboembolism (VTE) with target of 97% for 
2014/15.109 
 

Achieved 96.3% overall Achieved 97.8 %  

Carry out root cause analysis of 100% of identified 
cases of hospital associated thrombus 

Achieved 100% Not achieved 95.8%110 

Prescribing of appropriate thromboprophylaxis 
(chemical) monitored monthly via audit with aim of 
achieving 80% 

Not applicable – this 
was a new measure for 

2014/15 

Not achieved 76.5% 

Our other improvement work for promoting prevention  of venous thromboembolism  is below  

Intermittent pneumatic compression devices for stroke These devices were successfully implemented 

                                                           
109 The target was increased to 97% from Q4 2013/14 onwards. 
110 Data for the 10 months to January 2015.  February and March analyses are not due, as the 
scheduled reporting timescale is 2 months hence. 
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patients will be implemented in August 2014. 

VTE specific competencies will be launched to provide 
a framework for the transfer of theoretical knowledge 
into practice.  Care plans for VTE will be developed. 

VTE competencies have been developed and 
are awaiting ratification. 

Care plans for the use of anti-embolic stockings 
(AES) and intermittent pneumatic compression 
(IPC) have been developed and a prompt for 
the completion of VTE risk assessment on 
admission and the appropriate VTE care plan 
have been included in the Adult Nursing 
Assessment document. 

Exploration of a patient information smart phone 
application (app) on VTE prevention. 

The possibility of a patient information smart 
phone app has been explored.  However, initial 
review indicated that app development would be 
a significant investment and this needs further 
consideration before a decision is made.  This 
will be undertaken in 2015/16. 

 

Root cause analysis narrowly missed target owing to several sets of medical notes being 
unretrievable as a result of the notes being  either in use offsite or not located. 

Prescribing of appropriate chemical thromboprophylaxis had a dip in performance at the 
beginning of the year due to process refinement.  In Q1 2014/15 it was determined that 
the time of undertaking the audit within the patient pathway needed modifying to capture 
the data appropriately and whilst following this change Q4 performance had risen to 
81.3% the overall impact was to narrowly miss the annual target. 

Chart 25:  VTE risk assessment rates 2013/14 and 2014/15  
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Priority 7 – To improve the quality of c are and 
clinical outcomes of patients with sepsis  

Achievement against this priority  

Achieved in 2014/15  2013/14 2014/15 

The CQUIN target is to increase compliance with the 
Sepsis Bundle (see glossary) within one hour of a 
patient’s diagnosis in the Accident and Emergency 
Department.  In quarter 4 the Trust must achieve 90% 
compliance with the Sepsis Six bundle for patients 
identified as having severe sepsis.  

Not applicable111 Achieved 90% 

 

The Sepsis Six bundle has been successfully implemented in the Accident and 
Emergency Department this year, supported by staff education and awareness training.  
Sepsis is now included in the junior doctor induction programme.  Antibiotic prescribing 
has been reviewed and revised guidance issued regarding use of broad spectrum 
antibiotics.  Sepsis criteria are incorporated in the Accident and Emergency casualty card 
used to prioritise patients upon arrival to hospital.  

In reporting against this measure the Trust has selected its population based upon those 
patients who have been identified as having severe sepsis.  Casenote validation has 
revealed that additional work needs to be done in refining the coding of patients with 
sepsis in order to assure on the completeness of the patients who are included in the audit 
and this will be progressed next year.   Further improvement work will continue in 2014/15 
as part of the National Sepsis CQUIN programme 2015/16.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                           
111 Priority 7 is a new measure for 2014/15 and data collection commenced from Q2 this year, so 
there is no comparative data for 2013/14. 
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Priority 8 – To improve the care of patients with 
diabetes and reduce their length of stay  

Achievement a gainst this priority  

Not achieved in 2014/15  2013/14 2014/15 

To increase the population of patients admitted who 
are screened for diabetes achieving target of 98%112 

Not achieved 81% Not achieved 90%  

Our other improvement work for improving care for p atients with diabetes is below.  

Continue to teach staff about diabetes care Diabetic Specialist Nurses provide staff training 
and drop-in sessions, including specialist 
training on the use of insulin pumps. 

Continued training for Diabetes Specialist Nurses New nurses are trained using the TREND113 
competencies.  TREND-UK is a working group 
of diabetes nurses which promotes appropriate 
change within diabetes nursing. 

Provide specialist training regarding use of insulin 
pumps 

Specialist training is provided for patients on 
using insulin pumps. 

Promote improved incident reporting relating to 
diabetes to identify areas needing improvement 

The Datix system has been modified  by 
including focussed  questions on diabetes in 
order to capture learning, particularly around 
falls and medicines management.   

 

The Think Glucose114 programme was commenced in 2013/14 and aims to improve 
referrals to the Diabetes care team and discharge planning.  Currently whilst referrals 
have become more appropriate and discharge planning has improved there is still further 
opportunity to minimise referrals being made on the patient’s intended day of discharge. 

Diabetes is a quality priority area next year. 

 

 

                                                           
112 Data capture to be measured by a spot test on one day per month to determine what percentage 
of applicable patients had capillary blood glucose testing within 24 hours of admission to hospital. 
113 Training, Research and Education for Nurses in Diabetes.   
114 The NHS Institute for Innovation and Improvement developed the Think Glucose programme to 
support Trusts to deliver a clinical pathway that improves the management of patients with diabetes 
as a secondary diagnosis. 
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Priority 9 – To reduce the hospital emergency 
readmission rate  

Achievement against this priority  

Not achieved in 2014/15  2013/14 2014/15 

Improve emergency 30 day readmissions to below 
2013/14 performance of 12.4% and achieve 12.2% by 
end of quarter 4 2014/15 

Not achieved 

Target: 10.6% by Q4 

Actual Q4:  12.9%  

Actual 2013/14: 12.5% 

Not achieved 

Target 12.2% by Q4 

Actual Q4: 12.4% 

Target <12.4% for full 
year 

Actual 2014/15: 12.6% 

Our other improvement work for improving the readmi ssion rate is below.  

Automate the LACE score to enable every admitted 
patient to be assessed for readmission risk 

All unplanned admissions get an automated 
electronic LACE115 score on RADAR.  High 
score patients have a risk alert sent to General 
Practitioners upon discharge.  The glossary 
provides information on these tools. 

Continue the teachback technique and roll the 
technique out to further specialties 

This was not continued within the 
Readmission Prevention Programme 2014/15. 

Continue and undertake further training on the 
ambulance service readmission prevention tool 

Training has been delivered for respiratory, 
cardiology, diabetes and palliative care. 

Introduce contact of all patients post discharge A pilot project is currently underway to contact 
post discharge patients from the Cardiology and 
Coronary Care Unit.  The 30 day readmission 
analysis will be undertaken in Q1 2015/16 and 
then wider rollout will be decided upon. 

 

Readmissions is a quality priority area in 2015/16, refer to Priority 5 on p. 79. 

 

 

 

                                                           
115 Refer to the glossary for more information on the LACE score and RADAR. 
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Chart 26:  30 day emergency readmission rates April 2013 onwards  

The target is an improvement goal for Q4 each year. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



137

 

 

3.2 Performance against Monitor Risk Assessment Fra mework indicators  
 

Monitor uses a limited set of national measures of access and outcome objectives as part of its governance assessment of a foundation 
trust.  Performance against these indicators is a trigger for detecting potential governance issues per the Monitor Risk Assessment 
Framework.  The national indicators and thresholds for acute trusts are shown below.116 

Referral to treatment time 

This indicator measures the percentage of Referral to Treatment (RTT) pathways within 18 weeks for completed admitted, non-admitted 
and incomplete pathways.117 

An admitted pathway is when a patient is admitted to hospital for treatment as either an inpatient or day case.  

A non-admitted pathway ends when a patient has treatment which did not require hospital admission or does not require treatment.   

An incomplete pathway reflects patients who are waiting to start treatment at the end of each month. 

Referral to treatment wait 
times 2013/14 Apr-14 May June Q1 July Aug Sept Q2 Oct Nov Dec Q3 Jan F eb Mar Q4 2014/15 Target
Admitted pathway 88.2% 81.3% 83.9% 84.2% 83.1% 87.4% 87.0% 90.0% 87.4% 89.8% 90.1% 92.6% 90.7% 89.3% 89.5% 87.8% 88.9% 87.5% >90%
Non-admitted pathway 97.3% 96.0% 95.9% 95.5% 95.8% 95.0% 95.2% 95.3% 95.2% 95.8% 95.1% 95.2% 95.4% 95.0% 95.1% 95.4% 95.2% 95.4% >95%
Incomplete pathway 96.9% 94.6% 95.3% 95.4% 95.1% 95.6% 96.0% 95.9% 95.8% 95.6% 95.8% 95.8% 95.7% 95.1% 95.2% 95.5% 95.3% 95.5% >92%  

Progress has been made with meeting the admitted standard but it is still not being achieved in some specialties. A recovery plan is in 
place for these and the divisions are undertaking work on streamlining pathways and undertaking process improvements along with 
providing additional capacity to reduce waiting times. This work has good engagement from clinicians.  
 

 

 

 

                                                           
116 Monitor Risk Assessment Framework updated March 2015.  Appendix A: Access targets and outcomes objectives. 
117 Everyone Counts: Planning for Patients 2014/15 – 2018/19.  Technical Definitions for Clinical Commissioning Groups and Area Teams.  Also Refer 
to the Department of Health Frequently Asked Questions on the Referral to Treatment Data Collection, Version 10. 



 

138 | P a g e  

Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Annual Report 2014/2015 

Cancer waits for initial appointment 

Under the NHS Constitution118 there should be a maximum wait of 2 weeks for a first outpatient appointment for patients referred 
urgently by their General Practitoner with suspected cancer. 

For patients referred urgently with breast symptoms where cancer was not initially suspected the wait for a first outpatient appointment 
should be a maximum of 2 weeks. 

The Trust has seen an increase in urgent cancer referrals in a number of key specialties; it is working with its commissioners to address 
these increases in demand where possible. The Trust is also working with North West Surrey CCG to reduce the incidences of declined 
or rearranged appointments which can lead to patients being seen outside the two-week timeframe.  

 

Cancer wait for initial 
appointment 2013/14 Apr-14 May June Q1 July Aug Sept Q2 Oct Nov Dec Q3 Jan F eb Mar Q4 2014/15 Target
2 week wait to first seen - 
urgent referrals 96.7% 94.2% 93.4% 92.9% 93.5% 94.1% 92.9% 93.1% 93.4% 92.3% 95.1% 94.1% 93.8% 88.4% 94.1% 90.5% 91.0% 92.9% >93%
2 week wait to first seen - 
breast patients 97.1% 94.1% 93.0% 93.0% 93.4% 93.4% 87.0% 92.2% 91.1% 95.2% 96.7% 98.5% 97.2% 93.0% 95.4% 97.7% 95.5% 94.3% >93%  

 

Cancer waits for initial treatment 

Under the NHS Constitution there should be a maximum two month (62 day) wait from urgent General Practitioner referral to first 
definitive treatment for cancer.  For all cancers the wait from referral from an NHS screening service to first definitive treatment should 
be a maximum of two months (62 days).  The wait from diagnosis to first definitive treatment for all cancers should be a maximum of one 
month (31 days). 

 

 

                                                           
118 Everyone Counts: Planning for Patients 2014/15 – 2018/19.  NHS England. 
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The Trust has recently had difficulty meeting the 62 day standard for urgent GP referrals due to delays caused by the Trust’s business 
continuity activities following emergency care pressures, an inability to fill gaps in essential clinician resources and a number of difficult 
cross-over pathways between the Trust and tertiary partners; these areas being addressed through a recovery action plan.  

 

Cancer waits for second / subsequent treatment 

Under the NHS Constitution the wait for second or subsequent surgical treatment for cancer should be a maximum of 31 days. 

The wait for second or subsequent chemotherapy for cancer should be a maximum of 31 days. 

The wait for second or subsequent treatment for radiotherapy should be a maximum of 31 days. 

Cancer waits for second / 
subsequent treatment 2013/14 Apr-14 May June Q1 July Aug Sept Q2 Oct Nov Dec Q3 Jan F eb Mar Q4 2014/15 Target
31 day wait - surgery 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 92.9% 88.9% 94.7% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 93.3% 90.9% 75.0% 86.8% 95.1% >94%
31 day wait - chemotherapy 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% >98%
31 day wait - radiotherapy - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - >94%  

Cancer wait times are a continued area of focus for the Trust. Work is being undertaken with primary care on patient engagement and 
referral management to improve compliance. A refreshed governance structure was introduced in 2014 and a new clinical lead for the 
Cancer Board and a Cancer Manager are now in place. 

 

Cancer wait for initial 
treament 2013/14 Apr-14 May June Q1 July Aug Sept Q2 Oct Nov Dec Q3 Jan F eb Mar Q4 2014/15 Target
62 day wait for first 
treatment - GP referral 90.0% 74.7% 83.1% 87.8% 82.2% 66.7% 82.8% 68.3% 72.0% 78.1% 81.9% 91.4% 84.1% 78.5% 77.4% 76.3% 77.5% 78.8% >85%
62 day wait for first 
treatment - Cancer 
screening 96.8% 100.0% 75.0% 85.7% 92.0% 100.0% 100.0% 91.7% 97.3% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% n/a n/a 100.0% 100.0% 96.1% >90%

Cancer wait from 
diagnosis to first treament
31 day wait - diagnosis to 
first treatment 99.6% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 98.9% 98.8% 97.4% 98.3% 98.1% 100.0% 96.0% 97.9% 98.9% 100.0% 98.4% 99.1% 98.8% >96%
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Accident and Emergency waits 

A patient should be admitted, transferred or discharged within 4 hours of arrival at an Accident and Emergency department under the 
NHS Constitution. 

Accident and Emergency 
waits 2013/14 Apr-14 May June Q1 July Aug Sept Q2 Oct Nov Dec Q3 Jan F eb Mar Q4 2014/15 Target
4 hour wait - arrival to 
admission, transfer or 
discharge 95.5% 97.0% 93.0% 95.8% 95.2% 93.9% 96.4% 95.4% 95.2% 91.4% 89.6% 84.7% 88.6% 92.0% 92.8% 91.4% 92.1% 92.7% >95%  

The Trust had a very difficult winter season and is still facing additional admissions and pressures from patients with complex care 
needs upon their discharge to the community.  The Trust is working with local health partners to support patient transfer upon discharge.  
Progress to improve hospital flow is being made implementing the dedicated Urgent Care System recovery programme in conjunction 
with North West Surrey Clinical Commissioning Group.  Key actions of the recovery programme include reconfiguration of the Accident 
and Emergency Department, improved diagnostics access, improving key clinical pathways, and community measures including access 
to patients’ packages of care. 

Clostridium difficile infection 

This data is reported in item 7, p. 118. 

Access to healthcare for people with a learning dis ability 

The Trust is required to certify compliance with healthcare access requirements for people with a learning disability.  The Department of 
Health in 2008 issued the publication ‘Healthcare for All’ which contains 6 areas as outlined below that form the basis of compliance. 

Learning disability access criteria 2013/14 2014/15

� �

� �

� �

� �

� �

� �

Yes Yes

f.  Protocols to audit practices for patients with learning disabilities and to demonstrate findings in routine public reports

Certification quarterly

a.  Mechanism to identify and flag patients; care pathways reasonably adjusted to meet patients' health needs

b.  Patient information provided about treatment options, complaints procedures and appointments

c.  Protocols to support family carers who support learning disability patients

d.  Protocols for training staff on providing healthcare to learning disability patients

e.  Protocols to encourage representation of people with learning disabilities and their carers
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3.3 Glossary 
 

• Clostridium difficile infection  is a type of serious bacterial infection which can affect the digestive system. 

• CQUIN The Commissioning for Quality and Innovation (CQUIN) programme is a commissioning payment framework which 
links income to the achievement of quality improvement goals. 

• Decision Support Tool (DST) is an NHS assessment tool used in assessing eligibility for NHS continuing healthcare.  For 
further information refer to http://www.nhs.uk/chq/Pages/eligibility-assessment-for-nhs-continuing-healthcare.aspx 

• Duty of Candour  is a legal requirement to be open and honest with patients when moderate harm, physical harm or death 
results from an incident.  Some forms of mental harm are also covered by the disclosure requirements. 

• Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV)  causes an acquired syndrome where the immune system progressively fails. 

• LACE score is an international tool which assesses the likelihood of an individual patient being readmitted unexpectedly within 
30 days of discharge. 

• Myomectomy  is the surgical removal of fibroids from the uterus. 

• Nasogastric tube  – a tube passed from the nose to the stomach which can be used for feeding or medication. 

• Nephrotic syndrome  is when the kidney filtration is impaired resulting in leakage of protein. 

• RADAR  is a model that provides an overview of patient flow in the hospital. The acronym stands for Results, Approaches, 
Deploy, Assess and Refine. 

• “Sepsis Six Bundle ” includes the following 6 measures: oxygen administration, intravenous fluids administration, blood culture 
sample, antibiotic administration, blood tests, and urine output monitoring. 

• Transcutaneous Electrical Nerve Stimulation (TENS)  is a pain relief method which involves transmitting electrical 
impulses to reduce pain perception.  

• Uterine artery embolisation  is a minimally invasive method of blocking the blood supply to the uterus. 

• Venous thromboembolism  (VTE) is when a blood clot forms in a vein. 
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Part 4 - Statements on the engagement process for the 
development of the quality accounts  

      

Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust  Council of Governors 

Governors, and particularly those who are members of the Patient Experience Group of the 
Council of Governors, have appreciated the opportunities given to attend and fully participate 
in the quarterly Quality Accounts Workshops.  These Governors see this as an important 
part of their role and the attendance is high.  There are many advantages in this process: 

• to receive first-hand accounts and explanations on the data from senior nurses who 
manage the various quality indicators at the 'grassroots' level, as well as those 
presenting the data 

• to be able to meet them and speak to them on a one to one basis during breaks in 
the workshop 

• to meet and hear contributions from the Clinical Commissioning Group, the County 
Council and Healthwatch senior staff and officials 

• to be part of the decision making leading to the development process for the quality 
accounts 

• to have recognised the expertise which some Governors have in health issues and 
their contribution valued. 

 

As mentioned earlier (Priority 1 on pages 120-122), the Patient Experience Group 
participated in conducting the survey undertaken in conjunction with the Patients Association 
relating to the involvement of carers in the treatment of patients with dementia and the 
support given to these carers.  As the initiatives develop, this will continue to be of interest to 
the Group and all Governors.  Likewise, one of the new measures (Priority 8 on p. 82), the 
Outpatient experience, is one which began from Governors’ initiative, and its inclusion is 
welcomed.   

Governors congratulate the Trust where there have been achievements (particularly adding 
the outcome of the CQC inspection), share disappointment where this has not happened in 
spite of strenuous efforts and offer support and assistance where appropriate for the 
priorities selected for the coming year.      
 

Keith Bradley, Governor and Chair of the Patient Ex perience Group 

2 May 2015 
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Healthwatch Surrey 

We welcome the opportunity to comment on this Quality Account. 

This opportunity has been considered taking into account our current priorities and the most 
effective way to achieve these. With this in mind we have taken the decision not to comment 
on your organisation’s Quality Account on this occasion. 

We look forward to continuing to work with your organisation over the next year. In particular 
we look forward to continuing discussions in 2015/16 around how to: 

• Amplify the voice of Young People 

• Make it easier to make NHS complaints 

• Increase involvement of people, patients and service users in decision making 

• Promote and support people, patient and service user focused cultures. 

 

Matthew Parris, Evidence and Insight Manager Health watch Surrey  

13 May 2015 
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Surrey County Council Health Scrutiny Committee 

 

Public Involvement 

The Surrey Health Scrutiny Committee delegated participation in the Trust’s Quality Account 
reporting to Mr Tim Evans. He attended regular public involvement events organised by the 
Trust throughout 2014/2015 and reports that these operated very well indeed with staff on 
hand to outline performance and answer questions from patients on quality measures. He 
noted that the Trust was achieving the quality criteria set nationally and that the meetings 
had the tangible benefit of raising awareness with the public. 
 
In addition, another Member of the Committee, Cllr Bill Barker OBE, is a County Council 
Appointed Governor at the Royal Surrey County Hospital and has been involved in the work 
on the planned merger between the two Trusts.  He reports that the recent events involving 
the Boards and Councils of Governors of the Trusts went very well indeed, enabling Elected 
Governors to represent patients' interests at the highest level. 
 
Quality of Services  

On 6 March 2015 I took part in the Care Quality Commission Quality Summit at Ashford & St 
Peter’s following the earlier inspection which had recorded an overall 'good' assessment.  I 
was impressed that prior to the inspection the Chief Executive, Suzanne Rankin, had 
anticipated the improvements that would be required and had drawn them to the attention of 
the Inspectors.  The Trust was therefore fully accepting of the required improvements and 
was proceeding to correct the faults that had been identified.  The Health Scrutiny 
Committee will arrange to be updated on progress in the implementation of the action plan. 
 
The Trust declared a major incident in order to be able to cope with unprecedented demand 
on Accident and Emergency during the last winter. The Health Scrutiny Committee invited 
the Chief Executive of the Trust along with the Clinical Commissioning Group to its public 
meeting of 18 March 2015 to explain the pressures on Accident and Emergency and how 
these had been managed. Members of the Committee were concerned to understand how 
the resilience of the Accident and Emergency department would be improved in case of a 
similar or larger level of demand next winter to safeguard the safety and quality of care.  The 
Committee expects to follow up on the plans for next winter later in 2015.  

 

Bill Chapman, Chairman Surrey Health Scrutiny Commi ttee 

22 May 2015 
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NHS North West Surrey Clinical Commissioning Group  

Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust  Quality Account 2014/15 
Commissioner Statement from NHS North West Surrey C linical Commissioning Group 
(NWS CCG) 

North West Surrey CCG (NWS CCG) welcomes the opportunity to comment on the Ashford 
& St Peter’s NHS Foundation Trust Quality Account for 2014/15.  Having reviewed the draft 
Quality Account document for 2014/15, the CCG is satisfied that this gives an overall 
accurate account and analysis of the quality of services.  This is in line with the data supplied 
by Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust during the year and reviewed as 
part of performance under the contract with NHS North West Surrey CCG.  From our review, 
the CCG believes the Quality Account is supported by relevant data, incorporates the 
mandated elements required and is satisfied it is accurate and provides appropriate 
evidence of the Trust’s quality improvement progress.   

The outcome of the Care Quality Commission Inspection which took place in December 
2014 is noted and the CCG commends the Trust on achieving an overall rating of “Good”.  
The Trust actively engaged NWS CCG as lead commissioner in the preparation work for the 
inspection and we continue to be engaged in the on-going action plan implementation.  

Quality improvement priorities for 2014/15 

The Trust is commended for their continued good work and emphasis on quality of patient 
care.  The CCG and other stakeholders have been involved in the Trust’s quarterly Quality 
Account workshops where performance against priorities identified for 2014/15 and the 
planning for 2015/16 took place.  The CCG is satisfied the priorities identified by the Trust 
comply with the Monitor Quality Account requirement in relation to Patient Safety, Clinical 
Effectiveness and Patient Experience. 

The account identifies progress against all previous priorities and specifically achievement in 
relation to: 

• Supporting patients with dementia and their carers 

• Complaints review undertaken and the impact this is having on the quality of 
complaints management 

• Improvement of harm-free care as measured within the Safety Thermometer 

The CCG welcomes the inclusion of the following issues within the Quality Account Priorities 
identified for 2015/16: 

• Embedding and measuring the safety culture (including Duty of Candour) 
• The Acute Kidney project work 
• Improving the experience of vulnerable groups 

 

Data Quality  

NWS CCG will continue to work with the Trust to ensure that data accuracy and reporting at 
all levels remains a key priority.  Commissioners are satisfied with the accuracy of the data 
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contained in the Account pending completion of final validation by auditors.  We will continue 
to work with the Trust to ensure that quality data is reported in a timely manner through clear 
information schedules.   

In conclusion the Trust is commended for their continued work and emphasis on quality and 
safety of patient care.  As Commissioner we have a positive relationship with the Trust and 
will continue to work together to ensure continuous improvement in the delivery of safe and 
effective services for patients. 

Clare Stone, Chief Nurse / Associate Director for Q uality 

NHS North West Surrey Clinical Commissioning Group  

14 May 2015 
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2014/15 Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in  respect of the 
Quality Report   

 The directors are required under the Health Act 2009 and the National Health Service 
(Quality Accounts) Regulations to prepare Quality Accounts for each financial year.  

Monitor has issued guidance to NHS foundation trust boards on the form and content of 
annual Quality Reports (which incorporate the above legal requirements) and on the 
arrangements that NHS foundation trust boards should put in place to support the data 
quality for the preparation of the Quality Report.  

In preparing the Quality Report, Directors are required to take steps to satisfy themselves 
that:  

• the content of the Quality Report meets the requirements set out in the NHS 
Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual 2014/15 and supporting guidance 
 

• the content of the Quality Report is not inconsistent with internal and external 
sources of information including:  

o Board minutes and papers for the period April 2014 to 28 May 2015  

o papers relating to quality reported to the Board over the period April 2014 to 28 
May 2015  

o feedback from commissioners dated 14 May 2015  

o feedback from governors dated 2 May 2015 

o feedback from local Healthwatch organisations dated 13 May 2015  

o the Trust’s complaints report published under regulation 18 of the Local Authority 
Social Services and NHS Complaints Regulations 2009, dated 30 April 2015 

o the 2013 national patient survey 8 April 2014 

o the 2014 national staff survey 24 February 2015 

o the Head of Internal Audit’s annual opinion over the Trust’s control environment 
dated 14 May 2015  

o Care Quality Commission Intelligent Monitoring Report  dated 1 December 2014  

• the Quality Report presents a balanced picture of the NHS foundation trust’s 
performance over the period covered 

• the performance information reported in the Quality Report is reliable and accurate  

• there are proper internal controls over the collection and reporting of the measures of 
performance included in the Quality Report, and these controls are subject to review 
to confirm that they are working effectively in practice  
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• the data underpinning the measures of performance reported in the Quality Report is 
robust and reliable, conforms to specified data quality standards and prescribed 
definitions, is subject to appropriate scrutiny and review and  

• the Quality Report has been prepared in accordance with Monitor’s annual reporting 
guidance (which incorporates the Quality Accounts regulations) (published at 
www.monitor.gov.uk/annualreportingmanual) as well as the standards to support 
data quality for the preparation of the Quality Report (available at 
www.monitor.gov.uk/annualreportingmanual). 

The Directors confirm to the best of their knowledge and belief they have complied with the 
above requirements in preparing the Quality Report.  

The Directors are confident in the quality of services we provide across our services and that 
for the majority of our quality and performance targets we meet the standards expected by 
and acceptable to our regulator and commissioners.  Further, the information in this Quality 
Account is provided from our data management systems and our quality improvement 
systems and to the best of our knowledge is accurate, and provides a true reflection of our 
organisation, with the exception of the following indicators which KPMG LLP Statutory 
Auditor has tested and is unable to issue opinions over for the below reasons.  The Directors 
are unable to confirm these items are accurate owing to the exceptions notified below. 

Mandated indicator 1 - Percentage of incomplete pathways within 18 weeks for patients on 
incomplete pathways at the end of the reporting period (“18 week RTT”) contained 
underlying system design weaknesses and sample testing errors relating to clock start and 
stop dates. 
 
Mandated indicator 2 - Maximum waiting time of 62 days from urgent GP referral to first 
treatment for all cancers (“62 day cancer waits”) contained system design weaknesses, 
limited data validation checks and sample testing errors including date exceptions. 
 
Local indicator - To improve the quality of care and clinical outcomes of patients with Sepsis 
(“Sepsis bundle”) has issues with the imprecise definition and reporting of data and its wider 
control environment and also with data errors pertaining to treatment times. 
 
Owing to the above exceptions the Directors are unable to confirm these items are accurate.  
The Trust is actively scoping the improvements needed to resolve the above issues as 
priority. 
 

By order of the Board  

 

Aileen McLeish     Suzanne Rankin  

Chairman Chief Executive 

28 May 2015      28 May 2015 
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Independent auditor’s report to the Council of Gove rnors of Ashford & 
St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust on the Qu ality Report  

We have been engaged by the Council of Governors of Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust to perform an independent assurance engagement in respect of Ashford 
& St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust’s Quality Report for the year ended 31 March 
2015 (the ‘Quality Report’) and certain performance indicators contained therein. 

Scope and subject matter 

The indicators for the year ended 31 March 2015 subject to limited assurance consist of the 
following two national priority indicators: 

• Percentage of incomplete pathways within 18 weeks for patients on incomplete 
pathways (“Referral to Treatment – incomplete pathways”); and 

• Maximum waiting time of 62 days from urgent GP referral to first treatment for all 
cancers (“62 day cancer waits”). 

We identified weaknesses in the design of the control environment in regard to the “referral to 
treatment – incomplete pathways” indicator. As a result of our testing of this indicator we also 
identified data errors, where data included within the indicator could not be agreed to supporting 
patient records. As a result we are not able to issue a limited assurance opinion in respect of 
the “referral to treatment – incomplete pathways” indicator. 

We identified weaknesses in the design of the control environment in regard to the “62 day 
cancer waits” indicator. As a result of our testing of this indicator we also identified data errors, 
where data included within the indicator could not be agreed to supporting patient records. 
As a result we are not able to issue a limited assurance opinion in respect of the“62 day 
cancer waits” indicator. 

Respective responsibilities of the directors and au ditors 

The directors are responsible for the content and the preparation of the Quality Report in 
accordance with the criteria set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual 
issued by Monitor. 

Our responsibility is to form a conclusion, based on limited assurance procedures, on whether 
anything has come to our attention that causes us to believe that: 

• the Quality Report is not prepared in all material respects in line with the criteria set 
out in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual; 

• the Quality Report is not consistent in all material respects with the sources 
specified in the Detailed Guidance for External Assurance on Quality Reports 
2014/15 (‘the Guidance’); and 

• the indicators in the Quality Report identified as having been the subject of limited 
assurance in the Quality Report are not reasonably stated in all material respects in 
accordance with the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual and the six 
dimensions of data quality set out in the Guidance. 
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We read the Quality Report and consider whether it addresses the content requirements of 
the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual and consider the implications for our 
report if we become aware of any material omissions. 

We read the other information contained in the Quality Report and consider whether it is 
materially inconsistent with: 

•  Board minutes for the period April 2014 to May 2015; 

• Papers relating to Quality reported to the Board over the period April 2014 to May 
2015; 

• Feedback from the Commissioners dated May 2015; 

• Feedback from local Healthwatch organisations dated May 2015; 

• The Trust’s complaints report published under regulation 18 of the Local Authority 
Social Services and NHS Complaints Regulations 2009, 2014/15; 

• The 2014/15 national patient survey; 

• The 2014/15 national staff survey; 

• Care Quality Commission quality and risk profiles/intelligent monitoring reports 
20 14/15; and 

• The 2014/15 Head of Internal Audit’s annual opinion over the Trust’s control 
environment. 

We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent 
misstatements or material inconsistencies with those documents (collectively, the 
‘documents’). Our responsibilities do not extend to any other information. 

We are in compliance with the applicable independence and competency requirements of the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW) Code of Ethics. Our team 
comprised assurance practitioners and relevant subject matter experts. 

This report, including the conclusion, has been prepared solely for the Council of Governors of 
Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust as a body, to assist the Council of 
Governors in reporting the NHS Foundation Trust’s quality agenda, performance and 
activities. We permit the disclosure of this report within the Annual Report for the year ended 
31 March 2015, to enable the Council of Governors to demonstrate they have discharged their 
governance responsibilities by commissioning an independent assurance report in 
connection with the indicator. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or 
assume responsibility to anyone other than the Council of Governors as a body and 
Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust for our work or this report, except 
where terms are expressly agreed and with our prior consent in writing. 

Assurance work performed  

We conducted this limited assurance engagement in accordance with International Standard on 
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) – ‘Assurance Engagements other than Audits or 
Reviews of Historical Financial Information’, issued by the International Auditing and 
Assurance Standards Board (‘ISAE 3000’). Our limited assurance procedures included: 
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• evaluating the design and implementation of the key processes and controls for 
managing and reporting the indicators; 

• making enquiries of management; 

• testing key management controls; 

• limited testing, on a selective basis, of the data used to calculate the indicator back to 
supporting documentation; 

• comparing the content requirements of the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting 
Manual to the categories reported in the Quality Report; and 

• reading the documents. 

A limited assurance engagement is smaller in scope than a reasonable assurance 
engagement. The nature, timing and extent of procedures for gathering sufficient appropriate 
evidence are deliberately limited relative to a reasonable assurance engagement. 

Non-financial performance information is subject to more inherent limitations than financial 
information, given the characteristics of the subject matter and the methods used for 
determining such information. 

The absence of a significant body of established practice on which to draw allows for the 
selection of different, but acceptable measurement techniques which can result in materially 
different measurements and can affect comparability. The precision of different measurement 
techniques may also vary. Furthermore, the nature and methods used to determine such 
information, as well as the measurement criteria and the precision of these criteria, may 
change over time. It is important to read the quality report in the context of the criteria set 
out in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual. 

The scope of our assurance work has not included governance over quality or the non-mandated 
indicator, which was determined locally by Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation 
Trust. 

Conclusion 

Based on the results of our procedures, nothing has come to our attention that causes us 
to believe that, for the year ended 31 March 2015: 

• the Quality Report is not prepared in all material respects in line with the criteria set 
out in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual; and 

• the Quality Report is not consistent in all material respects with the sources 
specified in the Guidance. 

 

 
KPMG LLP 
Chartered Accountants  
15 Canada Square 
London  E14 5GL 
29 May 2015 
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4.  NHS Foundation Trust Code of Governance 
 

Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust recognises that the 
capability of the Trust Board of Directors 
and Council of Governors is critical to the 
success of the Hospitals. Our ability to do 
what we do, and to do it well, will help us 
to serve our patients and our community.  

The Trust strives to continuously improve 
its processes, in line with key national 
guidance, to ensure safe, high quality 
services for our patients, and to provide a 
clear framework within which our staff can 
thrive. 

Each year we review our governance 
arrangements against the provisions of 

Monitor’s Code of Governance which sets 
the standard for best practice and the 
following disclosures give a clear and 
comprehensive picture of the Trust’s 
governance arrangements and how we 
apply the main principles. 

It is the responsibility of the Board of 
Directors to confirm that the Trust 
complies with the provisions of the Code 
of Governance or, where it does not, to 
provide an explanation which justifies 
departure from the Code in particular 
circumstances. For the year ending 31 
March 2015 the Trust complied with all the 
provisions of the Code of Governance 
published by Monitor in 2014.  

 

Board of Directors and the Council of Governors 

The Board has agreed a Trust 
Governance Framework which describes 
the roles of the Board and the Council. 
This confirms that the Council will carry 
out its statutory duties (further detail is 
given in the section on the Council below) 
and will be consulted on the Trust’s 
forward plans. 

The Board has agreed to meet formally 
and in public at least nine times per year, 
and considers items under four broad 
agenda headings: 

• Quality and safety 
• Performance 
• Strategy and planning 
• Regulatory 

 
In addition the Board meets in closed 
session, having published a framework 
setting out the types of matters normally 

dealt with in private. These typically 
include matters relating to individuals or 
matters of a commercial nature. 
The unitary Board of Directors is 
responsible for ensuring the Trust 
complies with its License, the mandatory 
guidance issued by Monitor, its 
Constitution and relevant statutory 
requirements and contractual obligations. 
The Board of Directors sets the Trust’s 
strategic aims, taking into consideration 
the views of the Council of Governors. The 
Board of Directors as a whole is 
responsible for ensuring the quality and 
safety of healthcare services, education, 
training and research delivered by the 
Trust. 

The Council of Governors represents the 
interests of the local community, both 
members of the public and staff who are 
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Foundation Trust members, and local 
stakeholders. The Council of Governors is 
not responsible for the day-to-day 
management of the organisation which is 
the responsibility of the Board of Directors, 
but the Council holds the Board to account 
via the Non-Executive Directors. 

The Board has approved a formal Scheme 
of Delegation of Authority and 
Responsibility and within this Scheme 

there is a Schedule of Matters Reserved 
for the Board. This Scheme forms an 
important part of the Trust’s system of 
internal controls.  

In the event of a dispute between the 
Board and the Council a disputes 
procedure is described in the Constitution. 

 

Composition of the Board  

The Board is made up of the Chairman, 
seven Non-Executive Directors and six 
Executive Directors. The Company 
Secretary attends all Board meetings. 

There have been a number of changes to 
the Board in the year.  

In April 2014 Andrew Liles announced that 
he would be stepping down from his role 
as Chief Executive on 31st August 2014 to 
pursue a career in health consultancy. 
Suzanne Rankin, the Trust’s Chief Nurse 
was appointed as Chief Executive from 1st 
September 2014. 

Heather Caudle, The Trust’s Associate 
Director of Quality was appointed Chief 
Nurse in September 2014. 

In July 2014 Jim Gollan stood down from 
his role as a Non-executive Director due to 
other work commitments. 

In September 2014 the Council of 
Governors appointed Nadeem Aziz and 
Peter Taylor as Non-Executive Directors. 
Both Nadeem and Peter had previously 
been Non-Executive Directors leaving in 
2010 and 2013 respectively. 

 

Introducing our Board of Directors 

Aileen McLeish, Chairman 

Aileen McLeish has 
been Chairman of 
Ashford & St Peter’s 
Hospitals since 
October 2008 having 
been a Non-executive 
Director of the Trust 
since November 2005.  
She obtained a degree 

in Mechanical Sciences from Girton 
College, Cambridge.  During her career 
Aileen has worked at Unilever PLC and H 
J Heinz Co Ltd in the UK where she 
became Group Financial Controller.  She 
then transferred to the not for profit sector 

as Director of Finance at Historic Royal 
Palaces followed by a move to WWF-UK 
as Director of Resources.  Aileen is a 
Fellow of the Royal Society of Arts, Fellow 
of the Institute of Directors, as well as a 
Fellow of the Chartered Institute of 
Management Accountants.   
 

In addition to chairing the Board of 
Directors and the Council of Governors, 
Aileen chairs the Nominations Committees 
(for both Executive Directors and Non-
Executive Directors) and is a member of 
the Remuneration Committee (Executive 
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Directors) and Charitable Funds Committee.  

 

Professor Philip Beesley, Non-executive Director an d Deputy Chairman 

Philip joined the Board 
in July 2008 and was 
appointed as the 
Deputy Chairman by 
the Council of 
Governors with effect 
from 11th February 
2011.  Philip is 

currently Emeritus Professor of 
Neuroscience and was previously Dean of 
Science and Vice Principal for Research 
at Royal Holloway University of London. 
By training, Philip is a biological scientist 
specialising in neuroscience and has been 
closely involved in the development of 
biomedical science at Royal Holloway and 
in the development of collaborative work 

with St. George’s University of London 
and Kingston University.  In his role as 
Dean of Science Philip is responsible for 
managing the seven Science Departments 
at Royal Holloway and is a member of the 
College’s Senior Management Team.  He 
has published some 70 research papers. 
Philip chairs the Integrated Governance 
and Assurance Committee and the Clinical 
Excellence Awards Committee, and is a 
member of the Workforce & 
Organisational Development Committee. 

 

Sue Ells, Non-executive Director 

Sue joined the Board in 
February 2009. Sue 
Ells has worked as a 
management 
consultant for more 
than 20 years.  Her 
specialism is 
transformation, change 
management and 

organisational development.  Aligning with 
business strategy, Sue has designed, 
managed and personally delivered a 
cross-section of change programmes in 
UK, Europe, US and Asian cultures and 
has a track record in developing high 

performing teams, coaching senior 
individuals and running audits of why 
major programmes and organisational 
changes fail, so that lessons can be learnt 
and future success assured. Sue has a 
degree in psychology, an MBA, and is a 
member of the British Psychological 
Society’s Occupational and Coaching 
Divisions. 
Sue chairs the Workforce & Organisational 
Development Committee and is a member 
of the Remuneration and Nominations 
Committees.  

 

 

Nadeem Aziz, Non-executive Director 

Nadeem re-joined the 
Board in September 2014 
having previously been a 
Non-Executive Director in 

2010. Nadeem has over 20 years of 
experience in financial planning. He has 
held a number of senior financial 
management positions in international 
companies including BBC TV, Sony, 
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Emirate Airlines, Seagram as well as 
becoming Director of Global Business 
Analysis for American Express and 
Director for European FP&A for EA 
Games. Later Nadeem went on to join 
Actavis, the 3rd largest generic 
pharmaceutical business in the world in 
2006, as Head of Group Financial 
Planning and later becoming Director of 
Internal Audit. 

Nadeem is now a partner with the world’s 
No 1 Business Coaching firm 

ActionCoach.  Nadeem is a Chartered 
Management Accountant, he has an MBA 
from Sheffield Business School and holds 
a Chartered Institute of Marketing Diploma 
and is a Fellow of the British Institute of 
Management. 

Nadeem chairs the Finance Committee 
and is a member of the Audit Committee. 

 

Clive Goodwin, Non-executive Director 

Clive joined the Board 
in March 2011 and 
was re-appointed by 
the Council of 
Governors for a further 
three year term in 

March 2014. Clive was appointed Senior 
Independent Director with effect from 31st 
January 2014.  He graduated from the 
University of Salford with a Bachelor of 
Science degree in Modern Languages and 
International Business. With 14 years of 
operating at Board level, he was a 
Commercial Director at British Telecom 

from 2008 to 2013 before moving to 
Vodafone Group Plc. as Global Head of 
Commercial Voice.  He became a member 
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
in 1997.  

Clive is Chair of the Remuneration 
Committee, a member of the Finance, 
Nominations and Audit Committes and is 
the Senior Independent Director. 
 

 

Terry Price, Non-executive Director 

Terry joined the Board in 
September 2008 
and has wide ranging 
Executive and Non-
executive Director 
experience in both the 
public and voluntary 
sectors. Currently he is 

Chair of three subsidiaries within the 
Thameswey Group of Companies (owned 
by Woking Borough Council) and a Board 
member of Community Building Services 
Ltd (a subsidiary of Affinity Sutton Housing 
Association).  

He is also Chair of the Audit and Risk 
Committee for the Immigration Services 
Commissioner, and is a member of the 
Audit and Standards Committee of 
Elmbridge Borough Council.   

In the voluntary sector, Terry is Chair of 
the Finance Committee and Chair of the 
Board of Governors at Esher Sixth Form 
College and a water skills instructor with 
1st Molesey Sea Scouts. 

Terry is a fully qualified CIPFA accountant.  

Terry is the Chair of the Audit Committee, 
and a member of both the Integrated 
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Governance Assurance Committee and the Clinical Governance Committee. 

 

 

 

 

Carolyn Simons, Non-executive Director

Carolyn joined the Board 
in November 2013.  Her 
executive career 
specialised in retail, and 
roles included working 
for Boots in buying and 
marketing, several years 
in pan European 

management consulting specialising in 
retail, Managing Director of a publicly 
quoted retail business and Commercial 
Director for Homebase.  Her current 
portfolio includes working with the Pennies 
Foundation on the Electronic Charity Box, 

a new way of charity fundraising, and 
chairing Hadassah UK, which supports the 
Hadassah Medical Organisation in 
Jerusalem. 

Carolyn is a member of the Integrated 
Governance and Assurance Committee 
and the Workforce & Organisational 
Development Committee. Carolyn is also 
Chair of the Charitable Funds Committee.

Peter Taylor, Non-Executive Director 

Peter re-joined the Board 
in September 2014 having 
previously been a Non-
executive Director from 
2008 to 2013. Peter 
worked until he retired 
with the South East 

England Development Agency, 
responsible for supporting small and 
medium size enterprises and promoting 
manufacturing and innovation. As an 
advisor to many industries he has an 
extensive knowledge of marketing, new 

product development and lean enterprise 
techniques. 

Peter has also held general management 
and marketing director roles at companies 
such as Unipart, The Rank Organisation, 
Grand Metropolitan (now Diageo) and 
Cadbury Schweppes and has recently 
stepped down as a member of 
Runnymede Borough Council where he 
was Chairman of the Housing Committee. 

Peter is a member of the Finance 
Committee. 

 

Suzanne Rankin, Chief Executive 

Suzanne was appointed 
Chief Executive in 
September 2014 having 
joined the Trust in 
December 2010 as Chief 

Nurse. Suzanne began her nursing and 
management career with the Royal Navy, 
including deployment during the 1990 Gulf 
War; a spell as Senior Nursing Officer at 
NATO Headquarters in Lisbon; and 
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Nursing Officer in charge of the 56-bed 
Trauma and Orthopaedic Unit at the 
former Royal Hospital Haslar in Gosport, 
Hampshire. Suzanne graduated with an 
MA in Defence Studies including 
advanced staff and command training 
from the Joint Services Command and 
Staff College in 2005.  
 

Suzanne joined the Ministry of Defence in 
2008 where she supported and advised 
the Surgeon General on nursing 
leadership and professional matters, and 
spent time in Iraq and Afghanistan. Prior 
to joining the Trust she was Deputy Chief 
Nurse for NHS South Central. 

 

Valerie Bartlett, Deputy Chief Executive 

Valerie joined the Trust 
in 2009 and has nearly 
15 years of Board level 
experience within the 
NHS, including 4 years 
as a Chief Executive of 
a mental health trust 

and 3 years as Director of Service 
Delivery at the Royal Cornwall Hospitals 
NHS Trust.  Graduating from Oxford, and 
with an MBA from Henley Management 
College, Valerie also has experience of 

working outside the NHS, in both local 
government and the voluntary sector.  
Valerie’s experience within the acute 
sector of the NHS includes leading on 
significant service redesign programmes 
and delivering programmes of substantial 
financial recovery and significant 
performance improvement. 

 

Dr David Fluck, Medical Director 

David obtained his 
MBBS, MRCP (UK) and 
FRCP (UK) from the 
University of London. 
He trained at a number 
of hospitals in London 
and the South East, 
including St 

Bartholomew's, Guys Hospital, and the 
Hammersmith Medical School. He held 
Registrar positions at Whipps Cross and 
the London Chest Hospital and was a 
Research Fellow at St Mary's Hospital.  
He joined Ashford & St Peter’s in 1996 as 
a Consultant Cardiologist, and was 
instrumental in developing services such 

as the Rapid Access Chest Pain Clinics 
and trans-oesophageal echocardiography.  
 

He has held the position of Consultant 
Cardiologist at St George’s Hospital since 
1996 and has been an Honorary Clinical 
Senior Lecturer at Imperial College of 
Science, Technology and Medicine since 
2001, and Postgradute Tutor from 2002 - 
2006. He was the Clinical Lead on the 
West Surrey Cardiac Network, from 2005 
to 2008. He became the Clinical Director 
for Medicine in 2006, and was appointed 
to Deputy Medical Director in 2010, before 
being appointed to his current role of 
Medical Director in 2012.  

 

Heather Caudle, Chief Nurse 
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Heather was appointed Chief Nurse in 
September 2014 having joined the Trust 
as Associate Director of Quality in October 
2011 going on to become the Deputy 
Chief Nurse in October 2013. 

Heather has an MSc in 
Family & Systemic 
Psychotherapy and is a 
registered nurse. With more 
than 20 years’ experience in 

Health and Social Care, Heather has 
worked as a nurse, systemic 
psychotherapist and strategic leader in 
acute, mental and supported housing 
sectors. Heather has a track record of 
developing and implementing 
transformational patient safety and quality 
improvement strategies across the health 
economies she has worked in. 

 

Simon Marshall, Director of Finance and Information  

Simon Marshall has a 
degree in Economics and 
is a Fellow of the 
Chartered Institute of 
Public Finance 
Accountants. Following 
10 years working with 
PricewaterhouseCoopers 

on finance assignments across central 

government, local government, health, 
education and charitable sectors he joined 
the NHS in 2002. Starting as Finance 
Director for Hounslow PCT, Simon moved 
in 2005 to become the Finance Director 
for the West Middlesex University Hospital 
NHS Trust. Simon joined the Trust in May 
2012. 

 

 

 

Louise McKenzie, Director of Workforce Transformati on 

Louise McKenzie joined 
the Trust in April 2013. 
She is a Member of the 
Chartered Institute of 
Personnel 
Development and holds 
a degree in Public 
Administration and 

Economics. Louise has worked in the NHS 
since 1994, primarily in the acute sector, 
in a number of senior HR roles including 
Head of Operational HR at Guys & St 

Thomas’ NHS Foundation Trust, Director 
of HR at Bromley Hospitals NHS Trust, 
and most recently as Director of HR and 
Organisational Development at South 
London Healthcare NHS Trust. In her 
previous role she was a member of the 
London Partnership Forum working with 
senior NHS managers and trade union 
organisations on workforce policy 
implementation and complex change 
management programmes. 

 

Significant Commitments of the Trust Chairman 

Aileen McLeish is the Deputy Chairman of 
The Mount School, York, Honorary 
President of the North West Surrey 
Branch of the NHS Retirement Fellowship 
and Chairman of Woking Museum and 

Arts and Crafts Centre (The Lightbox). 
She is a member of NHS Providers 
Quality Working Group and a member of 
the Advisory Group for Career Savvy 
Women. 
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Balance of Board Membership and Independence 

The Board of Directors is satisfied that its 
balance of knowledge, skills and 
experience is appropriate to the Board and 
its sub-committees. This conclusion is 
supported by the results of a skills audit of 
the Board conducted at the 
commencement of the appointment 
process for two non-executive directors in 
mid-2014.  

The Board has evaluated the 
circumstances and relationships of 

individual Non-Executive Directors which 
are relevant to the determination of the 
presumption of independence. The Board 
determines all of its Non-Executive 
Directors to be independent in character 
and judgement. 

All Non-executive Directors, including the 
Chairman, have made declarations 
concerning their independence with the 
last annual review taking place in April 
2015.  

 

 

Performance evaluation 

The Board of Directors recognises that a 
regular evaluation of its collective and 
individual director performance is critical to 
continuous development and high 
performance. During 2014/15 the Board 
worked with an external consultancy to 
identity individual & team strengths and 
limitations through a psychometric 
assessment process.  With this 
information, the Board has been able to 
look at how it can build on its team 
strengths and further examine our 
development needs in order to collectively 
improve our performance.  The 
assessment has given the Board a new 
perspective and has enabled us to 
understand one another at a deeper level, 
look at ways in which we can increase our 
self-awareness and improve our 
communication, teamwork and 
leadership.  Our 2015/16 development 
plan will continue to build on this work. 

The Board has designed and implemented 
robust performance evaluation processes, 
structures and systems in accordance with 
the Code of Effective Corporate 
Governance within the public sector and 

the Guide to statutory duties for NHS 
Foundation Trust Governors (published by 
Monitor).  The Senior Independent 
Director is the Chairman of the Board of 
Directors’ Remuneration Committee which 
oversees the remuneration and 
performance of Executive Directors.  The 
Chairman of the Trust undertakes the 
appraisal of the Chief Executive and the 
Non-executive Directors. The appraisal of 
the Non-executive Directors was 
conducted by the Chairman in accordance 
with the process agreed by the Council of 
Governors. The Chief Executive 
undertakes the appraisal of the Executive 
Directors.   

The Senior Independent Director has led 
the process for the appraisal of the 
Chairman in accordance with the process 
agreed by the Council of Governors. The 
outcome of the evaluation has been 
discussed and endorsed by the 
Remuneration and Appraisal Committee 
and will be reported to the Council of 
Governors in September 2015. 

In addition the performance of members of 
the Board is assessed in terms of the 
following: 

• Attendance at Board and 
Committee meetings 
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• Independence of individual 
directors 

• An effective contribution to the 
Board and Committees through the 
range and diversity of experience 
and skills 

• Strategic decision making and 
delivery of the Trust’s forward plan 

The Council of Governors holds the Non-
Executive Directors independently and 
collectively to account for the performance 
of the Board, and does this through 
receiving performance information and a 
process of constructive challenge at 
Council of Governor meetings and 
seminars with the Executive and Non-
Executive Directors. 

 

Access to the Register of Directors’ Interests 

Members of the public can gain access to 
the Register of Directors’ Interests by 
making a request to the Trust secretary, 
either at St Peter’s Hospital, Guildford Rd, 

Chertsey, KT16 0PZ , or via email 
foundation.trust@asph.nhs.uk or on 
01932 723110. 

Board meetings 

The Board met in open session nine times during 2014/15 and in closed session 10 times 
during 2014/15.  Directors’ attendance was as follows: 

Name End of term of office Open Board 
Meetings attended 

Closed Board 
Meetings attended 

Non-Executive Directors   

Nadeem Aziz* 10th September 2017 4 of 5 4 of 6 

Philip Beesley 15th July 2015 8 of 9 8 of 10 

Sue Ells 8th February 2016 9 of 9 10 of 10 

Jim Gollan 31st July 2014 3 of 3 3 of 3 

Clive Goodwin 30th March 2017 6 of 9 8 of 10 

Aileen McLeish 30th September 2015 9 of 9 10 of 10 

Terry Price 13th September 2015 9 of 9 9 of 10 

Carolyn Simons 1st November 2016 7 of 9 8 of 10 

Peter Taylor** 10th September 2017 5 of 5 6 of 6 

*Nadeem Aziz was appointed in September 2014. 
**Peter Taylor was appointed in September 2014. 
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Executive Directors Position Open Board 
Meetings attended 

Closed Board 
Meetings attended 

Valerie Bartlett Deputy Chief Executive 9 of 9 10 of 10 

Heather Caudle* Chief Nurse 4 of 5 4 of 6 

David Fluck Medical Director 6 of 9 7 of 10 

Andrew Liles** Chief Executive 4 of 4 4 of 4 

Simon Marshall Director of Finance & 
Information 

9 of 9 10 of 10 

Louise McKenzie Director of Workforce 
Transformation 

7 of 9 8 of 10 

Suzanne Rankin Chief Executive 9 of 9 10 of 10 

 

* Heather Caudle was appointed in September 2014 
**Andrew Liles left the Trust in August 2014 
 

Board Sub Committees 

The Board of Directors has the following sub committees: 

• Audit Committee 
• Finance Committee 
• Integrated Governance and Assurance Committee (IGAC) 
• Nominations Committee (Executive Directors) 
• Remuneration Committee (Executive Directors) 
• Strategy Committee 
• Workforce and Organisational Development Committee 
• Charitable Funds Committee 

 

Audit Committee  

Membership and Attendance 

The Audit Committee is chaired by Non-
executive Director Terry Price, and 
includes two other Non-executive 
Directors. Internal Audit (TIAA), External 

Audit (KPMG LLP) and the Local Counter 
Fraud Specialist (Gateway Assure Ltd) are 
all invited to attend the meetings. 

 

Discharging its responsibilities 

The Terms of Reference of the Audit 
Committee are approved by the Trust 
Board and these set out the duties and 
key responsibilities. The Committee 

prepares an annual report to the Trust 
Board setting out its operations during the 
year. 
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The Audit Committee assures the Trust 
Board that there is an effective system of 
integrated governance, risk management 
and internal control across the whole of 
the Trust’s activities that supports the 
achievement of the organisation’s 
objectives. In addition financial reporting 
and counter fraud measures are also 
reviewed.  In doing this the Audit 
Committee primarily utilises the work of 
internal audit, external audit and other 
external bodies.  The Audit Committee 
approves the annual work plans of internal 
audit, external audit and the Local Counter 
Fraud Specialist.  The Trust’s audit 
function is provided by TIAA.  

At its meeting in January 2015 the Audit 
Committee reviewed and agreed two 
significant audit opinion risks, in terms of 
their impact on our financial statements, 
as set out in the following two paragraphs. 

The Trust exercises judgement in 
determining the fair value of the different 
classes of assets held and the methods 
used to ensure the carrying values 
recorded each year reflect those fair 
values. Given the materiality in value, and 
the judgement involved in determining the 

carrying amounts of land and buildings, 
this has been identified as risk area for 
2014/15. The Trust has commissioned an 
independent valuer to undertake a 
revaluation exercise on land and buildings 
as at 1 April 2014 and has used this work 
to inform the balance included in the 
2014/15 financial statements. The Audit 
Committee have received update reports 
form management on this valuation 
exercise. 

The main source of income for the Trust is 
the provision of healthcare services to the 
public under contracts with NHS 
commissioners, which make up 98% of 
income from activities. Given the 
materiality in value, and the judgement 
used in relation to areas such as accruals 
for services not yet invoiced and partially 
completed spells, this has been identified 
as a risk in 2014/15. The Trust participates 
in the national Agreement of Balances 
exercise. The Agreement of Balances 
exercise identifies mismatches between 
receivable and payable balances 
recognised by the Trust  and its 
commissioners and all differences are 
investigated by the finance team.    

 

Policy for Safeguarding External Auditors’ Independence 

The external auditors were reappointed by 
the Council of Governors, following a 
tender exercise, at their meeting on 17th 
May 2012. 

In so far as the Trust has purchased work 
from its external auditors outside of the 
Audit Code in 2014/15, the external 
auditors’ objectivity and independence 
have been safeguarded. 

Responsibility for Preparing the Annual Accounts 

The Chief Executive is the Trust’s 
designated Accounting Officer with the 
duty to prepare the financial statement for 

each financial period in accordance with 
the National Health Service Act 2006.  

 

 

Finance Committee 

The Committee was chaired by Non-
executive Director Jim Gollan, and 

subsequently by Non-executive Director 
Nadeem Aziz.  The committee includes 
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two other Non-executive Directors, the 
Deputy Chief Executive and the Director of 
Finance and Information.  

The Finance Committee’s role is to review 
the financial and operational performance, 

position, risks and decision-making of the 
Trust. It gives assurance to the Board that 
this process of review is satisfactory and 
draws matters of importance to their 
attention.  

 

Nominations Committee (Executive Directors) 

The Nominations Committee comprises 
the Trust Chairman, who chairs the 
Committee, the Senior Independent 
Director and two further Non-executive 
Directors. 

The Committee has been established to 
appoint the Executive Directors including 
Interim appointments. The Committee is 
also responsible for evaluating the 
balance of skills, knowledge and 
experience on the Board of Directors and, 

in the light of this evaluation, preparing a 
description of the role and capabilities 
required for the appointment of Executive 
Directors. 

During the process of appointing a new 
Chief Executive this year, all Non-
executive Directors were made members 
of this committee.

 

Remuneration Committee (Executive Directors) 

A description of the work of the 
Remuneration Committee can be found 
within the Remuneration Report on p. 176. 
Attendance at meetings by its members is 

set out in the table below.  The Committee 
is chaired by Senior Independent Director, 
Clive Goodwin. 

 

 

Integrated Governance and Assurance Committee 

The Committee is chaired by Non-
executive Director Philip Beesley, and 
includes two other Non-executive 
Directors (including the Chair of the Audit 
Committee) and all the Executive 
Directors.  

The Integrated Governance Assurance 
Committee has a duty to ensure that the 
Trust’s governance systems, behaviours 

and processes relating to risk 
management, clinical and non-clinical 
governance, and the achievement of 
organisational objectives are effective, and 
provide the Board with the assurance 
required to govern effectively. The 
Committee works in association with the 
Audit Committee in matters of corporate 
governance. 

 

 

Strategy Committee  

The Committee is chaired by the Trust 
Chairman and membership includes the 
chairman of the Finance Committee and 
one other Non-Executive Director plus the 
Chief Executive, the Director of Finance 

and Information and the Medical Director. 
All other Board members are invited to 
attend the Committee but do not form part 
of the quorum. 
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The Committee’s role is to take a longer 
term view and formulate strategy for the 
organisation including major service 

developments, partnerships, mergers and 
acquisitions.  

 

 

Workforce and Organisational Development Committee  

The Committee is chaired by Non-
executive Director, Sue Ells and 
membership includes two other Non-
executive Directors plus all the Executive 
Directors - the Chief Executive, the Deputy 
Chief Executive, the Director of Workforce 
Transformation, the Chief Nurse, Medical 
Director and Director of Finance and 
Information. 

The Committee’s role is to provide 
assurance to the Board on workforce 
supply and demand, the development and 
delivery of the Trust’s workforce, 
organisational development, education 
and training and employee wellbeing 
strategies and a detailed review and 
challenge of the workforce and 
organisational development aspects of the 
Board Assurance Framework. 

 

Charitable Funds Committee 

The Committee is chaired by Non-
executive Director, Carolyn Simons and 
membership includes two other Non-
executive Directors plus the Director of 
Finance and Information, and the Chief 
Nurse.   

The Committee is responsible for the 
overall management of the Charitable 
Funds and provides strategic direction in 
accordance with objects and fulfilment of 
public benefit; and ensures compliance 
with governing documents, laws and 
obligations imposed by donors. 
 
The Committee is accountable to the Trust 
Board (as corporate Trustee) for the 
proper use of the charitable funds and to 
the public as a beneficiary of those funds.
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Details of Directors’ membership of Board sub committees and number of meetings attended are (including formal Council of Governors meetings):  

 

 Audit 
Committee 

Remuneration 
Committee 

Finance 
Committee 

Integrated 
Governance & 

Assurance 
Committee 

Nominations 
Committee 

Strategy 
Committee 

Member of/in 
attendance  

Workforce & 
Organisational 
Development 

Committee 

Charitable Funds 
Committee 

 

Council of 
Governors 

(in attendance) 
 

Nadeem Aziz* 2 of 3 n/a 6 of 7 n/a n/a 4 of 6 n/a n/a 1 of 2 

Valerie Bartlett n/a n/a 4 of 10 5 of 11 n/a 10 of 11 1 of 4 n/a 3 of 4 

Philip Beesley n/a 1 of 1 n/a 10 of 11 n/a 10 of 11 4 of 6 1 of 3 1 of 4 

Heather Caudle** n/a n/a n/a 9 of 11 n/a 5 of 7 4 of 4 1 of 1 2 of 3 

Sue Ells n/a 3 of 4 n/a n/a 9 of 11 10 of 11 6 of 6 n/a 4 of 4 

David Fluck n/a n/a n/a 5 of 11 n/a 9 of 11 2 of 6 n/a 1 of 4 

Jim Gollan*** 1 of 2 n/a 3 of 3 n/a n/a 3 of 6 n/a n/a 3 of 4 

Clive Goodwin 4 of 5 3 of 4 6 of 10 n/a 9 of 11 8 of 11 n/a n/a 2 of 4 

Andrew Liles**** n/a n/a n/a 2 of 4 n/a 4 of 4 0 of 2 n/a 1 of 1 

Simon Marshall n/a n/a 10 of 10 5 of 11 n/a 10 of 11 n/a 3 of 3 3 of 4 

Louise McKenzie n/a n/a n/a 4 of 11 n/a 8 of 11 5 of 6 n/a 3 of 4 

Aileen McLeish n/a 4 of 4 n/a n/a 10 of 11 10 of 11 n/a 2 of 3 4 of 4 (as Chair) 

Terry Price 5 of 5 1 of 1 3 of 5 10 of 11 n/a 8 of 11 n/a n/a 2 of 4 

Suzanne Rankin***** n/a n/a n/a 10 of 11 n/a 10 of 11 4 of 6 0 of 1 4 of 4 

Carolyn Simons n/a 3 of 4 n/a 8 of 11 10 of 11 9 of 11 3 of 6 3 of 3 4 of 4 

Peter Taylor****** 1 of 1 n/a 5 of 6 n/a 1 of 1 6 of 6 n/a n/a 2 of 2 

*Nadeem Aziz joined the Trust in September 2014 
**Heather Caudle was appointed Chief Nurse in September 2014 
***Jim Gollan left the Trust in July 2014 

****Andrew Liles left the Trust in August 2014 
*****Suzanne Rankin was appointed Chief Executive in September 2014 
******Peter Taylor joined the Trust in September 2014 
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Council of Governors 

How the Board of Directors and the Council of Gover nors operate 

The Board recognises the value and 
importance of engaging with Governors in 
order that the Governors may properly 
fulfil their role as a conduit between the 
Board and Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals 
NHS Foundation Trust’s stakeholders.  

The Board of Directors is responsible for 
the effective running of the organisation, 
whilst the Council of Governors holds the 
Non-Executive Directors to account for the 
performance of the Board of Directors. 
The Council does not delegate any of its 
statutory decision making to its 
committees or individual Governors, since 
the Constitution provides for committees 
to undertake advisory work only, with all 
decisions requiring ratification in a general 
Council meeting. 

In addition to the role of listening to, and 
reflecting back, the views of the 
membership to the Board and vice versa, 
the Council of Governors exercises 
statutory duties enshrined in law. These 

include the appointment of, and, if 
necessary, the removal of Non-Executive 
Directors and determining their 
remuneration. The Council also appoints 
an External Auditor and ratifies the 
appointment of the Chief Executive. The 
Council approves any changes to the 
Trust Constitution and any significant 
transactions the Trust may wish to enter 
into as defined within the Constitution. The 
Council has the right to be presented with 
the Annual Report and Accounts and to be 
consulted on forward plans being made by 
the Board. These roles provide a clear 
context for the Board to run the Trust, the 
execution of which is achieved through the 
Chief Executive and her Executive Team.  

The Governors have been consulted on 
the development of the Annual Plan 
2015/16 at two workshops held in October 
2014 and February 2015. Governors have 
also been involved in agreeing the 
priorities for the Quality Accounts. 

 

Understanding the views of the Council and Members 

Engagement by the Board with Governors 
takes many forms.  In 2014/15 the 
constructive working relationship has 
continued with discussion on a number of 
matters both in and out of Council 
meetings. As well as the quarterly Council 
meetings the Board and Governors also 
meet at least twice a year to discuss 
strategic issues and input into the Trust 
business plan. 

There are regular seminars and informal 
meetings open to all Governors and 
hosted by the Chairman and Chief 
Executive. All Governors have a ‘buddy’ 
Non-executive Director who is available as 

a point of contact to advise and support in 
addition to the support routinely offered by 
the Membership Office. 

All Directors are encouraged to attend the 
Council of Governors’ formal meetings. 
Governors have continued to take up the 
opportunity to attend the open Board 
meetings.
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Composition of the Council 

There are 27 seats on the Council of 
Governors including: 

• 17 public governors covering eight 
constituencies (currently there is 
one vacant role in the constituency 
of Richmond Upon Thames); 

• five staff governors covering five 
staff constituencies; and 

• five appointed governors from 
partnership organisations. 

The Chairman of the Board is also the 
Chairman of the Council of Governors. 
The Council of Governors re-appointed 
David Frank (Public Governor for Surrey 
Heath) as the Lead Governor in December 
2013 for a further two year period. 

The Council meets formally four times 
each year.  Details of the membership of 
the Council and the attendance of 
Governors are included in the table 
‘Register of Governors’. Executive and 
Non-executive Directors are also invited to 
attend the Council meetings. 

Governors’ initial terms of office started 
from the day that the Trust was authorised 
as a Foundation Trust; 1st December 
2010. Both the elected and appointed 
Governors hold office for three years but 
for the initial period seven Governors were 

appointed for two years to ensure that not 
all Council members were due for re-
election/appointment at the same date. 

Election to these seven Council seats took 
place in October 2012. Successful 
candidates were elected for a three-year 
term of office commencing on 1st 
December 2012 to 30th November 2015.  
Further elections for 15 seats took place in 
October 2013. Successful candidates 
were elected for a three year term of office 
commencing on 1st December 2013 until 
30th November 2016.  

We would like to acknowledge the 
contribution made by those Governors that 
stood down in 2014:  

Keith Goodger, Public Governor for 
Richmond Upon Thames, who resigned 
on 11th December 2014 due to other 
personal commitments. 

Susan Lockwood, Public Governor for 
Runnymede who resigned on 1st July 2014 
as she was moving out of the area.  A bye 
election took place on 19th September 
2014 with 894 voters being eligible to vote 
and there was a turnout of 27.5%.  The 
successful candidate, Danny Sparkes, 
commenced a period of one year and two 
months in office from 1st October 2014 to 
30th November 2015. 

 

Access to the Register of Interests 

All Governors are required to comply with 
the Trust’s code of conduct and declare 
any interests that may result in a potential 
conflict of interest in their role as Governor 
of the Trust. Members of the public can 
gain access to the Register of Governors’ 

Interests by making a request via the 
Membership and Engagement Manager at 
St Peter’s Hospital, Guildford Road, 
Chertsey, KT16 0PZ , or via email 
foundation.trust@asph.nhs.uk or by 
telephone on 01932 722063. 
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Contacting a Governor 

Members who wish to contact their 
Governor can do this via the Membership 
Office at St Peter’s Hospital, Guildford 
Road, Chertsey, KT16 0PZ or calling 

01932 722063. In addition, a special e-
based communication form is available via 
www.ashfordstpeters.nhs.uk  

 

Statutory Council of Governors’ Committees 

The Council of Governors has two Committees carrying out specific statutory duties. Details 
are provided below. 

1. Nomination and Appointments Committee 

The Nominations and Appointments 
Committee provides the Council of 
Governors with independent and objective 
recommendations in respect of the names 
of those individuals they consider suitable 
for appointment as Non-executive Director 
to the Board of Directors. 

The Committee met on two occasions 
during 2014 recommending to the Council 
the appointment of two Non-executive 
Directors: Nadeem Aziz and Peter Taylor. 

Membership and attendance is given 
below:

Nominations and Appointments Committee  Meetings attended  

Maurice Cohen (Public Governor – Woking and Guildford) 1 of 2 

Godfrey Freemantle (Public Governor – Hounslow) 2 of 2 

Sue Harris (Staff Governor – Nursing and Midwifery) 2 of 2 

Chris Howorth (Appointed Governor – The Royal Holloway, 
University of London) 

2 of 2 

Steve McCarthy (Public Governor – Elmbridge) 2 of 2 

Aileen McLeish (Trust and Committee Chairman) 2 of 2 

 

2. Remuneration and Appraisal Committee 

The Remuneration and Appraisal 
Committee makes recommendations to 
the Council of Governors concerning the 
remuneration and terms of appointment of 
any Non-executive Director and to 
endorse their appraisals. 

The Committee met on two occasions in 
2014 and approved the appraisal process 

to be used when appraising the Chairman; 
reviewed Chairman and Non-executive 
remuneration; endorsed the outcome of 
the Chairman’s appraisal and endorsed 
the appraisals of the Non- executive 
Directors.
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Membership and attendance is given below: 

Remuneration and Appraisal Committee  Meetings attended 

David Frank (Lead Governor and Committee Chairman, 
Public Governor – Surrey Heath) 

2 of 2 

Margaret Lenton (Public Governor – Windsor and 
Maidenhead) 

1 of 2 

Hugh Meares (Appointed Governor - Runnymede 
Borough Council) 

0 of 2 

Barbara Mogensen (Public Governor – Elmbridge) 1 of 2 

Paul Wills (Staff Governor - Healthcare Assistants / 
Allied Health Professionals / Healthcare Scientists) 

2 of 2 

 

Foundation Trust membership 

Members fall into two constituencies: 

Public Constituency; anyone living in the 
Boroughs of Elmbridge, Runnymede, 
Spelthorne, Woking and parts of the 
following Boroughs; Guildford, Hounslow, 
Richmond upon Thames, Surrey Heath 
and Windsor and Maidenhead. They are 
defined by electoral wards, each of which 
can elect one or more Governors as set 
out in the Constitution. Full details of the 
electoral wards included can be viewed on 
the Trust’s website. 

Staff Constituency; any permanent 
member of staff, including registered 
volunteers, can be a staff member. There 
are five classes which each elect one 
Governor; nursing and midwifery; medical 
and dental; ancillary / admin / clerical / 

managerial; allied health professionals 
and volunteers. Staff are automatically 
members unless they decide to opt out. 

 

Membership numbers as at 31 March 
2015 

Public: 7,117  

Staff:  3,622  

Total:  10,739  
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Developing our membership  

The Membership and Community 
Engagement Group of the Council of 
Governors was set up in March 2011 and 
leads on developing and implementing  
the Membership Strategy together with 
improving two way communications 
between Governors and members.  The 
Strategy was reviewed in April 2015 and 
contains targets for membership with a 
particular focus on areas where we know 
the Trust needs to develop a more 
representative membership:- 

• To increase membership in the 
marginally under-represented 
areas of Elmbridge and Hounslow; 
and 

• To increase membership in the 14-
16 age group. 

In addressing these priorities, the Trust 
continues to be mindful of hard to reach 
groups.  Following the successful student 
event held at the Trust in October 2013, 
the Membership Team attended the 
Spelthorne Careers Fair on 27th June 
2014.  This was a large event with 
students from local schools being invited 
to attend.  

The Group has been keen to encourage 
membership engagement activities and 
also considers ways of facilitating two way 
communications with members.  Surveys 
have been utilised in the past and will 
continue to feature during 2015. 

Feedback is encouraged through the 
Governor contact form on the Trust’s 

website and via personal communications 
either written or spoken. The Trust holds a 
number of Members’ Health Events 
throughout the year which provide a 
presentation and question and answer 
session on a number of health-related 
topics.  Events held between April 2014 
and March 2015 included two Partnership 
events, the Spelthorne Careers event, an 
Annual Members’ Meeting and a Venous 
Thromboembolism event. The Trust 
receives extremely positive feedback on 
the content of these events and the 
opportunity it provides for members to 
converse with Governors.  

Feedback is also welcomed and 
discussed by Governors who are 
members of the Patient Experience 
Group.  The Group meets around six 
times a year and the Chief of Patient 
Safety, Associate Director of Quality and 
Head of Patient Experience are invited to 
attend to give reports relating to the 
patient experience and also to enable 
issues and concerns to be raised and 
appropriate actions taken.  The Group 
also makes visits to departments and 
wards and meets senior clinical and nurse 
managers in order to be more effective in 
sharing the improvement of the patient 
experience. 

Governors are also involved in a range of 
other groups such as car parking, our 
PLACE (Patient-Led Assessment of the 
Care Environment) assessments, our 
Spring to Green campaign and our merger 
stakeholder panel.
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Register of Council of Governors  

 Name (Constituency / Organisation) 
Date elected or 

appointed 
Term of 
office 

Meetings            
attended 

Mr Roderick Archer (Public – Elmbridge) 1st Dec 2013 
3 years to 
30/11/16 

1 of 4 

Mr Simon Bhadye (Public – Spelthorne) 
1st Dec 2013 
(2nd term) 

3 years to 
30/11/16 

3 of 4 

Mr Keith Bradley (Public – Woking and 
Guildford) 

1st Dec 2013 
(2nd term) 

3 years to 
30/11/16 

4 of 4 

Mr Brian Catt (Public – Spelthorne) 
1st Dec 2013 
(2nd term) 

3 years to 
30/11/16 

3 of 4 

Dr Maurice Cohen (Public – Woking and 
Guildford)  

1st Dec 2013 
(2nd term) 

3 years to 
30/11/16 

4 of 4 

Mr Richard Docketty (Staff – Volunteers) 1st Dec 2013 
3 years to 
30/11/16 

3 of 4 

Mr David Frank (Public – Surrey Heath)  
1st Dec 2013 
(2nd term) 

3 years to 
30/11/16 

4 of 4 

Mr Godfrey Freemantle (Public – Hounslow)  
1st Dec 2013 
(2nd term) 

3 years to 
30/11/16 

4 of 4 

Dr Ann Gallagher (Stakeholder – University of 
Surrey) 

1st Dec 2013 
(2nd term) 

3 years to 
30/11/16 

2 of 4 

Mr Keith Goodger (Public – Richmond) 
1st Dec 2012 
(2nd term) 

2 years, one 
month - 
resigned 
11/12/14 

1 of 3 

Mr Arun Gupta (Staff – Medical and Dental ) 1st Dec 2012 
3 years to 
30/11/15 

3 of 4 

Ms Sue Harris (Staff - Nursing and Midwifery) 
1st Dec 2013 
(2nd term) 

3 years to 
30/11/16 

4 of 4 

Mr Chris Howorth (Stakeholder – Royal 
Holloway, University of London) 

1st Dec 2013 
(2nd term)  

3 years to 
30/11/16 

4 of 4 

Mrs Samantha Lamb (Staff – Admin and 
Clerical / Ancillary) 

1st Dec 2013 
(2nd term) 

3 years to 
30/11/16 

4 of 4 

Mrs Margaret Lenton (Public – Windsor and 
Maidenhead) 

1st Dec 2012 
(2nd term) 

3 years to 
30/11/15 

4 of 4 

Mrs Susan Lockwood (Public – Runnymede) 1st Dec 2012 

1 year, 7 
months - 
resigned 
1/07/14 

0 of 1 

Mr Steve McCarthy (Public – Elmbridge) 
1st Dec 2013 
(2nd term) 

3 years to 
30/11/16 

4 of 4 

Cllr. Hugh Meares (Stakeholder – Runnymede 
Borough Council)  

1st Dec 2013 
(2nd term) 

3 years to 
30/11/16 

2 of 4 
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 Name (Constituency / Organisation) 
Date elected or 

appointed 
Term of 
office 

Meetings            
attended 

Ms Barbara Mogensen (Public – Elmbridge) 1st Dec 2013 
3 years to 
30/11/16 

3 of 4 

Mrs Judith Moore (Public – Woking and 
Guildford) 

1st Dec 2013 
(2nd term) 

3 years to 
30/11/16 

4 of 4 

Cllr. Jean Pinkerton (Stakeholder – Spelthorne 
Borough Council) 

1st Dec 2013 
(2nd term) 

3 years to 
30/11/16 

2 of 4 

Mr Andrew Ryland (Public – Runnymede) 
1st Dec 2012 
(2nd term) 

3 years to 
30/11/15 

3 of 4 

Ms Denise Saliagopoulos (Public – Spelthorne) 1st Dec 2013 
3 years to 
30/11/16 

3 of 4 

Cllr. Michael Smith (Stakeholder - Woking 
Borough Council) 

1st Dec 2013 
(2nd term) 

3 years to 
30/11/16 

3 of 4 

Mrs Danny Sparkes (Public – Runnymede) 1st Oct 2014 
1 year, 2 
months to 
30/11/15 

2 of 2 

Mr Bhupendra Vyas (Public – Hounslow) 1st Dec 2013 
3 years to 
30/11/16 

1 of 4 

Mrs Tracy Ward (Public – Runnymede) 1st Dec 2012 
3 years to 
30/11/15 

2 of 4 

Mr Paul Wills (Staff – Allied Health 
Professionals, Healthcare Scientists) 

1st Dec 2012 
(2nd term) 

3 years to 
30/11/15 

2 of 4 
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5. Financial Report and Accounts  
 

 

Financial review 
 

For the year to 31 March 2015 the Trust achieved a deficit of £1.0m against a breakeven 
plan. An analysis is set out below – this is in the format reported to Monitor as part of the 
Compliance Framework and as such differs slightly from the Annual Accounts analysis. 
 
 2014/15 2013/14 
 Plan 

£m 
Actual  

£m 
Var 
£m 

Plan 
£m 

Actual  
£m 

Var 
£m 

Income  
Clinical Income  
Non-Clinical Income 

 
236.7 
15.5 

 
243.8 
16.8 

 
7.1 
1.3 

 
216.5 
16.1 

 
229.1 
16.6 

 
12.6 
0.5 

Total Income  252.2 260.6 8.4 232.6 245.7 13.1 
Expenses  
Pay Costs  
Non-Pay Costs 

 
-155.4 
-79.9 

 
-161.8 
-85.3 

 
-6.4 
-5.4 

 
-143.2 
-72.0 

 
-150.7 
-79.9 

 
-7.5 
-7.9 

 
Total Expenses  -235.3 -247.1 -11.8 -215.2 -230.6 -15.4 
EBITDA  16.9 13.5 -3.4 17.4 15.1 -2.3 
Depreciation & Amortisation 
Impairments, net of reversals 
Charitable contributions 
Interest (net) 
Non-operational expenses 
Dividend on PDC 

-9.4 
-0.5 
0.1 

-0.4 
-1.5 
-5.2 

-6.1 
-1.5 
0.1 

-0.3 
-1.5 
-5.2 

3.3 
-1.0 

- 
0.1 

- 
- 

-8.9 
-0.5 
0.2 

-0.1 
- 

-5.1 

-8.6 
- 

0.2 
-0.2 

- 
-5.1 

0.3 
0.5 

- 
-0.1 

- 
- 

       

Net surplus (deficit)  - -1.0 -1.0 3.0 1.4 -1.6 

 

Key movements year on year are set out 
below:  

• NHS clinical income increased by 
£14.7m (6.4%) year on year, 
despite a decrease in the national 
tariff for 2014/15. The largest 
increases in NHS clinical income 
occurred in outpatient activity 
which increased by £3.7m (8.4%) 
and other NHS clinical income 
£8.3m (13.6%). The latter included 
a £1.9m increase in income for 
chemotherapy and other tariff 
excluded drugs. 

• Pay costs were £11.1m (7.4%) 
higher than 2013/14. Reductions 
from cost improvement 
programmes were offset by the 
costs of meeting the increased 
activity levels (in general, 
increased activity has been 
covered by using agency staff 
which incur a premium) and 
incremental pay awards. Additional 
costs were generated in the Trust’s 
Accident & Emergency department 
and across the wards as the Trust 
looked to improve its emergency 
pathway and performance against 
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the 4hr target during an extremely 
challenging winter period.  

• Non-pay costs were £5.4m (6.8%) 
higher than 2013/14 which was 
mainly in clinical supplies used in 
delivering the additional income 
and outsourcing to address 18 
week pathway issues (up £2.0m). 
Drug costs were up £2.5m 
(14.2%), in part due to repatriated 
chemotherapy activity, and also 
due to an increase in other 
excluded drug costs, which are 
directly recovered through income 
at full cost.  

• The above led to a decreased 
EBITDA performance, which 
reduced by £1.6m (10.8%) year on 
year. The Trust’s EBITDA margin 
is now 5.2% compared to 6.2% in 
2013/14. Although this still 
benchmarks well with comparable 
Foundation Trusts, the continued 
deterioration in the wider NHS’ 
financial performance is clearly 
also being felt by the Trust. 

• Post EBITDA the Trust incurred 
£1.5m in non-operational 
expenditure in relation to merger 
activities – this being a mix of pay 
and non-pay costs. 

The Trust’s health service income from the 
provision of goods and services in 
England exceeded income from the 
provision of other services. Income from 
other services is used to support health 
services at the Trust. Further details on 
income can be found in notes 3 and 4 of 
the Annual Accounts which follow later on 
in this Annual Report. 

The cost improvement programme (CIP) 
delivered £14.9m of savings in 2014/15 
against a plan of £14.9m, with early 

slippages in the programme being 
compensated by replacement schemes in-
year. 

The Trust spent £11.0m on purchased 
capital during the period compared to 
£15.7m in 2013/14. The major areas of 
investment were:  

• replacing imaging equipment and 
associated building works £2.5m; 

• completion of the new Admissions 
Lounge at St Peter’s Hospital 
£0.8m; 

• ward refurbishment programme 
(Birch Ward) £0.8m; 

• Vital Signs nursing technology 
£0.6m; and 

• completion of the Abbey Centre 
midwifery led unit £0.1m. 

The majority of the capital programme was 
funded by internally generated resources; 
however in addition the Trust increased 
borrowings in the form of finance leases 
and also received £0.7m of Department of 
Health nursing technology funding for the 
Vital Signs scheme. 

Cash balances fluctuated throughout the 
financial year as the Trust over-performed 
in activity terms, incurring costs, but did 
not receive payment for the bulk of this 
over-performance until March 2015. The 
Trust ended the financial year with a cash 
balance of £10.5m. 

The Trust’s financial performance for the 
whole of the 2014/15 financial year was 
given a Continuity of Service Risk Rating 
of 3, against a plan of 3. The Continuity of 
Service Risk Ratings are given between 1 
and 4, where 4 is ‘low risk’. The metrics 
making up this rating are set out in the 
table below. 
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 2014/15 2013/14 
  

Metric 
 

Score 
 

 
Metric 

 
Score 

     
Debt Service Cover (50%) 1.78x 3 2.47x 3 
Liquidity (50%)  -6.8 3 -2.4 3 
     
Weighted score  3.0  3.0 
     
Continuity of Service Risk Rating  3  3 

 

After making enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Trust has 
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this 
reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the accounts. 
 

2015/16 Plan 

The 2015/16 financial year will provide 
further challenges for the Trust as the 
economic climate gets tougher, public 
finances tighten further and activity levels 
and complexity continue to increase. The 
Trust Board has approved and submitted 
to Monitor an annual plan that will deliver 
a deficit of £1.2m on planned income of 
£256.4m.  The plan assumes a cost 

improvement programme of £13.5m, 
capital investments of £10.4m and further 
merger costs of £1.0m.   

This will deliver a Continuity of Service 
Risk Rating of 3 for the full year, but 
quarters 1 and 2 will be a 2 before 
recovering in the latter half of the financial 
year. 
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Remuneration Report 
 

Remuneration Committee and Policy on Remuneration o f Senior Managers 

The Remuneration Committee consists of 
four Non-Executive Directors chaired by 
Senior Independent Director, Clive 
Goodwin and attended by Aileen McLeish, 
Sue Ells and Carolyn Simons. The 
Committee met four times. During the year 
a new Chief Executive appointment was 
made and all Non-Executive Directors 
were co-opted as members for the 
purpose of agreeing the remuneration. 
Attendance is set out on p. 165. 

The Remuneration Committee sets the 
policy, and the level, for remuneration and 
terms and conditions of the Executive 
Directors of the Trust. The Committee 

receives an annual report on the 
performance of Executive Directors. 
Mindful of its duties in managing public 
funds its policy is set to balance the need 
to appoint and retain Executive Directors 
within the Trust. In doing so it considers 
benchmarked information from external 
sources where required. All Executive 
Directors contracts were open-ended with 
notice periods of three to six months. 
There were no contracts containing a 
provision for compensation over and 
above legal entitlement for early 
termination. During 2014/15 all Executive 
Directors were paid through the Trust’s 
payroll. 

 

Remuneration of Chairman and Non-Executive Director s 

The remuneration of the Chairman and 
Non-Executive Directors is agreed by the 
Council of Governors following review by 

its Remuneration and Appraisal 
Committee. Details of this Committee               
are set out on p. 168. 

 

Expenses  

In 2014/15 the Trust paid out a total of 
£4,671 (2013/14 - £4,586) in expense 
payments to 8 (2013/14 - 8) Trust Board 
members. Further analysis of these 
expenses by Trust Board member is 
available on the Trust website at 
www.ashfordstpeters.nhs.uk/about-
us/about-the-trust/trust-board. 
 
The role of Governor of a Foundation 
Trust is voluntary but the NHS Act and the 

Constitution states that the Trust ‘may pay 
travelling and other expenses to members 
of the Council of Governors at rates 
decided by the Trust’. The Trust has a 
policy on such reimbursement and this 
was last reviewed and approved in May 
2015. In 2014/15 a total of £842 (2013/14 
- £1,172) was paid out in such expenses 
to 6 (2013/14 – 9) Governors. 

 

Median Salary 

The median remuneration of the Trust is 
£27,901 (2013/14 £27,901). This 
calculation is based on the full-time 
equivalent staff of the Trust on an 

annualised basis. The median is the total 
remuneration of the staff member lying in 
the middle of a linear distribution of the 
total staff of the Trust. Remuneration 
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includes all aspects of pay and excludes 
employers’ pension contributions. 

The mid-point of the banded remuneration 
of the highest paid Director is £172,500 
(2013/14 - £182,500). Further details on 

this remuneration are provided in table A 
of the section that follows. 

The ratio between the highest paid 
Director and the median salary is 6.2 
(2013/14 - 6.5). 

 

Salary and pension entitlements of senior managers for the year to 31 March 
2015 

The tables on the next page set out remuneration and pension benefit details for the 
reporting period. 
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A) Remuneration 
 2014/15 2013-14 
Name and Title  Salary  

(bands of 
£5,000) 

 

Other 
Remuneration  

(bands of 
£5,000) 

Benefits in 
Kind 

(Rounded 
to the 

nearest 
£100) 

All 
pension- 
related 

benefits 
(bands of 

£2,500) 

Total 
(bands of 

£5,000) 

Salary  
(bands of 

£5,000) 
 

Other 
Remuneration  

(bands of 
£5,000) 

Benefits in 
Kind 

(Rounded 
to the 

nearest 
£100) 

All 
pension- 
related 
benefits 

(bands of 
£2,500) 

Total 
(bands of 

£5,000) 

Executive Team  £000 £000 £00 £000 £000 £000 £000 £00 £000 £000 
Andrew Liles, Chief Executive (to 31 August 2014) 75-80 - 17  2.5-5.0    80-85 180-185 - 46 30.0-32.5 215-220 
Suzanne Rankin, Chief Executive (from 1 
September 2014) 
Acting Chief Executive (from 18 August 2014 to 
31 August 2014) 
Chief Nurse (to 17 August 2014) 

145-150 - 59 - 150-155 115-120 - 47 - 120-125 

Simon Marshall, Director of Finance & Information  130-135 - 31 12.5-15.0 145-150 125-130 - 28 25.0-27.5 155-160 
Dr David Fluck, Medical Director  40-45 125-130 37 - 170-175 40-45 120-125 - 60.0-62.5 225-230 
Valerie Bartlett, Deputy Chief Executive 135-140 - 45 10.0-12.5 150-155 130-135 - 42 25.0-27.5 165-170 
Raj Bhamber 
Director of Workforce and Organisational 
Development (to 6 May 2013) 

- - - - - 10-15 - - 2.5-5.0 10-15 

Louise McKenzie, Director of Workforce 
Transformation (from 29 April 2013) 

120-125 - 105 7.5-10.0 140-145 110-115 - 23 27.5-30.0 145-150 

Heather Caudle, Chief Nurse (from 1 September 
2014) 
Acting Chief Nurse (from 18 August 2014 to 31 
August 2014) 

65-70 - 26 40.0-42.5 110-115 - - - - - 

Chairman and Non -Executives            

Aileen McLeish, Chairman 40-45 - - - 40-45 40-45 - - - 40-45 
Carolyn Simons 
Non-Executive Director (from 1 November 2013) 

10-15 - - - 10-15 5-10 - - - 5-10 

Philip Beesley, Non-Executive Director  10-15 - - - 10-15 10-15 - - - 10-15 
Terry Price, Non-Executive Director  10-15 - - - 10-15 10-15 - - - 10-15 
Sue Ells, Non-Executive Director  10-15 - - - 10-15 10-15 - - - 10-15 
Jim Gollan, Non-Executive Director (to 31 July 
2014) 

0-5 - - - 0-5 10-15 - - - 10-15 

Clive Goodwin, Non-Executive Director  10-15 - - - 10-15 10-15 - - - 10-15 
Peter Taylor 
Non-Executive Director (to 31 October 2013 and 
then reappointed from 10 September 2014) 

5-10 - - - 5-10 5-10 - - - 5-10 

Nadeem Aziz 
Non-Executive Director (from 10 September 2014) 

5-10 - - - 5-10 - - - - - 
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a) Amount shown under Other Remuneration for Dr David Fluck relate to medical 
work as a Consultant at the Trust. 

b) Benefits in kind relate to benefits for lease cars (please note that these costs are 
shown in £ hundreds and not £ thousands in line with Monitor guidance). 

c) There were no annual performance-related bonuses paid.   
d) There were no long-term performance-related bonuses paid. 

e) There were no payments for compensation for loss of office. 
f)  Non-Executive Directors waive remuneration due for chairing sub-Committees of 

the Trust Board. No other remuneration was waived by directors, no allowances 
were paid in lieu and there were no payments in respect of golden hello’s. 

 
B)  Pension Benefits 

Name and Title  Real increase 
in pension at 

age 60   
 

(bands of 
£2,500) 

Real increase in 
lump sum at 

age 60   
 

(bands of 
£2,500) 

Total accrued 
pension at age 

60 at  
31 March 2015 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

Lump sum at 
age 60 related 

to accrued 
pension at  
31 March 

2015 
(bands of 

£5,000) 

Cash 
Equivalent 
Transfer 
Value at 

1 April 2014 
 

Cash 
Equivalent 
Transfer 
Value at  
31 March 

2015 
 

Real 
Increase/ 

(Decrease) 
in  

Cash 
Equivalent  
Transfer 

Value 

Employer’s 
Contribution 

to 
Stakeholder 

Pension 
(to nearest 

£100) 
 

Executive Team  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £00 
         
Andrew Liles  
Chief Executive (to 31 August 2014) 

0-2.5 0-2.5 35-40 115-120 
 

628 676 6 - 

Suzanne Rankin 
Chief Executive (from 1 September 2014) 
Acting Chief Executive (from 18 August 2014 to 31 
August 2014) 
Chief Nurse (to 17 August 2014) 

n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a - 

Simon Marshall 
Director of Finance & Information  

0-2.5 2.5-5.0 20-25 60-65 284 320 14 - 

Dr David Fluck 
Medical Director  

n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a - 

Valerie Bartlett 
Deputy Chief Executive  

0-2.5 2.5-5.0 45-50 135-140 807 870 21 - 

Louise McKenzie 
Director of Workforce Transformation  

0-2.5 0-2.5 25-30 80-85 370 401 11 - 

Heather Caudle 
Chief Nurse (from 1 September 2014) 
Acting Chief Nurse (from 18 August 2014 to 31 August 
2014) 

2.5-5.0 10.0-12.5 20-25 
 

60-65 215 315 29  

 
Notes: 

a) Suzanne Rankin opted out of the NHS Pension scheme on 1 November 2011. 
b) David Fluck opted out of the NHS Pension scheme on 1 April 2014. 
c) As Non-Executive Directors do not receive pensionable remuneration, there will be no entries in respect of pensions for Non-Executive Directors. 
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Cash Equivalent Transfer Values 

A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value 
(CETV) is the actuarially assessed 
capital value of the pension scheme 
benefits accrued by a member at a 
particular point in time. The benefits 
valued are the member’s accrued 
benefits and any contingent spouse’s 
pension payable from the scheme.  A 
CETV is a payment made by a pension 
scheme, or arrangement to secure 
pension benefits in another pension 
scheme or arrangement when the 
member leaves a scheme and chooses 
to transfer the benefits accrued in their 
former scheme.  The pension figures 
shown relate to the benefits that the 

individual has accrued as a consequence 
of their total membership of the pension 
scheme, not just their service in a senior 
capacity to which the disclosure applies.  
The CETV figures and other pension 
details include the value of any pension 
benefits in another scheme or 
arrangement which the individual has 
transferred to the NHS pension scheme.  
They also include any additional pension 
benefit accrued to the member as a 
result of their purchasing additional years 
of pension service in the scheme at their 
own cost.  CETVs are calculated within 
the guidelines and framework prescribed 
by the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries. 

 

Real Increase in CETV 

This reflects the increase in CETV 
effectively funded by the employer.  It 
takes account of the increase in accrued 
pension due to inflation, contributions 
paid by the employee (including the 

value of any benefits transferred from 
another pension scheme or 
arrangement) and uses common market 
valuation factors for the start and end of 
the period. 

 

Off Payroll Engagements 

As a result of the Review of Tax 
Arrangements of Public Sector 
appointees published by the Chief 
Secretary to the Treasury in 2012, the 
Trust is required to disclose the number 
of off-payroll engagements at a cost of 
over £220 per day and which last for 
longer than six months. Disclosures are 
set out in the tables below. 

For all off-payroll engagements as of 31 
March 2015, for more than £220 per day 
and that last longer than six months: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Off Payroll Engagements No 

Number of existing engagements as of 31 March 2015 3 
Of which, the number that have existed:  
   for less than one year at the time of reporting - 
   for between one and two years at the time of reporting - 
   for between two and three years at the time of reporting 1 
   for between three and four years at the time of reporting 1 
   for four or more years at the time of reporting 1 
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 No 
 

Number of new engagements, or those that reached six months in duration, 
between 1 April 2014 and 31 March 2015 2 

Number of new engagements which include contractual clauses giving the 
Trust the right to request assurance in relation to income tax and National 
Insurance obligations 

- 

Number for whom assurance has been requested - 
Of which:  
   assurance has been received - 
   assurance has not been received - 
   Engagements terminated as a result of assurance not being received - 

 

Of the two new engagements above, neither was in place on 31 March 2015.   

In accordance with Monitor guidance the Trust supported the review, and implemented the 
changes, in regard to off-payroll appointments. The Trust’s policy on the use of off-payroll 
transactions in relation to highly paid staff, defined as those at a cost of over £220 per day, is to 
ensure that all senior level appointments are made through the payroll where possible and off-
payroll assignments are used only for interim or locum engagements. The Trust is working with an 
external accountancy company to validate locum appointments to ensure they have the 
appropriate required assurance status, and are conducting an IR35 review where required. 

All Trust Board members were paid through the Trust’s payroll. 

 

 

 

 

Suzanne Rankin 
Accounting Officer 
28 May 2015 
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Statement of the Chief Executive’s Responsibilities  as the 
Accounting Officer of Ashford & St Peter’s Hospital s NHS 
Foundation Trust 
 

The NHS Act 2006 states that the Chief Executive is the Accounting Officer of the NHS Foundation 
Trust. The relevant responsibilities of the accounting officer, including their responsibility for the 
propriety and regularity of public finances for which they are answerable, and for the keeping of 
proper accounts, are set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum issued 
by Monitor. 
 
Under the NHS Act 2006, Monitor has directed Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation 
Trust to prepare for each financial year a statement of accounts in the form and on the basis set 
out in the Accounts Direction. The accounts are prepared on an accruals basis and must give a 
true and fair view of the state of affairs of Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 
and of its income and expenditure, total recognised gains and losses and cash flows for the 
financial year. 
 
In preparing the accounts, the Accounting Officer is required to comply with the requirements of the 
NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual and in particular to: 
 

• observe the Accounts Direction issued by Monitor, including the relevant accounting and 
disclosure requirements, and apply suitable accounting policies on a consistent basis; 

• make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis; 
• state whether applicable accounting standards as set out in the NHS Foundation Trust 

Annual Reporting Manual have been followed, and disclose and explain any material 
departures in the financial statements;  

• ensure that the use of public funds complies with the relevant legislation, delegated 
authorities and guidance; and 

• prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis. 
 
The Accounting Officer is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with 
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the NHS Foundation Trust and to enable 
him/her to ensure that the accounts comply with requirements outlined in the above mentioned Act. 
The Accounting Officer is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the NHS Foundation 
Trust and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other 
irregularities. 
 
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly discharged the responsibilities set out in 
Monitor's NHS Foundation Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum. 
 

 
 
 
Suzanne Rankin  
Chief Executive, 28 May 2015 
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Annual Governance  Statement 2014/15 

Scope of responsibility 

As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal control that 
supports the achievement of the NHS Foundation Trust’s policies, aims and objectives, whilst 
safeguarding the public funds and departmental assets for which I am personally responsible, in 
accordance with the responsibilities assigned to me. I am also responsible for ensuring that the 
NHS Foundation Trust is administered prudently and economically and that resources are applied 
efficiently and effectively. I also acknowledge my responsibilities as set out in the NHS Foundation 
Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum.

The purpose of the system of internal control 

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to 
eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide 
reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an 
ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the policies, aims 
and objectives of Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust, to evaluate the likelihood of 
those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, 
effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Ashford & St Peter’s 
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust for the year ended 31 March 2015 and up to the date of approval of 
the annual report and accounts.

Capacity to handle risk 

Risk Management is a corporate responsibility and the Trust Board has ultimate responsibility for 
ensuring that effective processes are in  place. The Trust Board is committed to the continuous 
development of a framework to manage risks in a structured and focused way in order to protect 
patients, staff and the public from harm and to protect the Trust from losses or damage to its 
reputation. 

The Trust’s approach to risk is set out in the Quality, Safety and Risk Management Strategy, which 
identifies the roles and responsibilities of Directors, managers and staff in relation to identification and 
management of risks. 

All senior managers and Directors are trained in risk management on joining the organisation and 
subsequently on a periodic basis in accordance with the Trust’s Mandatory Training policy. 

Through the Integrated Governance Assurance Committee (IGAC), which is chaired by a Non-
Executive Director and which I attend together with the Chair of the Audit Committee, Internal Audit, 
Executive Directors and senior managers, the Trust seeks to learn and share good practice through 
rigorous assessment of the Trust Risk Register and the Board Assurance Framework, and to cascade 
this information both to and from relevant Divisional teams through constructive challenge, training 
and support. 
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The risk and control framework 

The current Quality, Safety and Risk Management Strategy was the result of an extensive review and 
consultation by senior managers, clinicians and staff across the Trust in 2012 and is a five year 
strategy.   

Management decide, taking into account the grading of each risk, whether it is appropriate to tolerate, 
transfer, terminate or treat the risk. The rating for each risk will be matched to a certain level of 
management within the organisation. 

All Divisions monitor their quality and financial risks on a monthly basis with IGAC and the Trust Board 
monitoring the high scoring risks every three months. A risk assessment matrix is used to ensure a 
consistent approach is taken to assessing and responding to risks identified. The Trust’s strategic 
framework is based on four key strategic objectives: 

 

• Best Outcomes; 

• Excellent Experience; 

• Skilled and Motivated Teams; and 

• Top Productivity. 

 

The key risks to delivering these objectives are captured within the Board Assurance Framework and 
are as follows:   

 

Objective 1 - Best Outcomes                                                  
Key Risks  

1.1 If the quality governance and impact assessment processes fail during the design of CIPs this could 
lead to poor quality of care. 

1.2 If divergent and multiple organisational priorities compete with and undermine staff engagement 
leading to a distraction from the focus on high quality care. 

1.3 If there is poor capacity and flow in the emergency pathway and insufficient frequency in senior 
decision making this could result in poor outcomes and patient experience. 

1.4 If the Trust workforce was not appropriately aligned to demand and acuity, agency usage and pay 
costs, resulting in poor patient outcomes. 

1.5 If delivery of CQC inspection action plan slips this risks quality of service delivery, reputation and 
further regulatory action. 

Objective 2 - Excellent Experience  
Key Risks  

2.1 The Friends and Family results are not used as a driver for improvement leading to persistently poor 
experience. 

2.2 Lack of awareness of key issues relating to vulnerable groups may lead to compassionless care and 
poor patient experience. 

2.3 If the Trust fails to adopt the culture of a listening, kind and compassionate organisation in dealing with 
complaints then our patients, within the course of their care and treatment, will have a poor 
experience. 

2.4 Administrative delays and cancellations to appointments leading to poor patient experience. 
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Objective 3 - Skilled, Motivated Teams  
Key Risks 

3.1 The inability to recruit and retain high calibre staff would lead to lack of skilled and motivated teams. 

3.2 If individuals and teams do not feel valued or motivated resulting in poor patient care and staff 
experience and ineffective team working. 

Objective 4: Top Productivity  
Key Risks 

 4.1 Poor alignment of the clinical workforce around the Trust’s efficiency improvement programme could 
lead to insufficient productivity. 

4.2 A failure to deliver the clinical quality incentives (CQUINS), the performance standards or to respond to 
the admission thresholds/readmission caps/ambulance turnaround penalties within the 2014/15 
contract leads to an under recovery of income and reduction in productivity. 

4.3 A failure to deliver 2014/15 CIPs to the level required and/or pay and non-pay expenditure exceed 
budget without a compensating increase in income may lead to a reduction in productivity. 

4.4 Financial or service pressures on third party providers of health and social care or commissioners 
cause operational difficulties or to enforcement of contract levers more aggressively than expected 
leading to reduced income and inability to achieve top productivity. 

4.5 Excess demand could increase financial pressure due to emergency income on over-performance 
being received at marginal tariffs whilst additional staffing is paid at premium rates. 
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All Trust policies undergo a quality impact assessment. All Cost Improvement Plan changes 
are assessed in line with the quality and safety impact assessment policy. 

The Quality Governance Committee (QGC) has responsibility for overseeing progress and 
assurance for clinical quality standards. Divisions report to the QGC annually with a full 
report on clinical governance activities. The Committee receives quarterly exception reports 
from each Division describing variance from the quality plan trajectories with quality, 
experience, workforce and safety indicators and an action plan to get back on track. The 
Committee co-ordinates relevant benchmarking activities relating to key reports from the 
Care Quality Commission. The QGC has responsibility for overseeing the Committees or 
Groups shown under the QGC arm of the Quality, Safety and Risk Management structure. 

The Risk Scrutiny Committee (RSC) has responsibility for overseeing the Committees or 
Groups shown in the safety and risk arm of the Quality, Safety and Risk Management 
structure. The Committee will ensure adequate assurance is provided to IGAC to assure the 
Committee, Audit Committee and Trust Board that all regulation requirements are being 
met, or being actioned, where appropriate. The Committee reviews Divisions’ risk registers 
at every quarterly meeting to provide input into action plans and progress, and to ensure 
risks are appropriately mitigated. Where further actions are required, the Committee 
requests an update on those actions at the next meeting or earlier if required. The RSC has 
responsibility for reviewing the organisation wide risk register and providing a level of 
scrutiny and support to ensure risks are appropriately mitigated and actions are progressing. 
The RSC has responsibility for considering the themes identified from incident reporting, and 
ensuring Divisions and Departments’ issues and learning relating to clinical incidents are 
shared across the Divisions and wider organisation. The Committee ensures that risks 
identified by other safety committees are discussed and wider action taken if necessary. 
This is co-ordinated by the Chief of Patient Safety. 

IGAC receives reports from the Quality Governance Committee, the Risk Scrutiny Committee 
and the Patient Experience Monitoring Group. Below this there are divisional quality 
governance meetings, quality improvement discussions and specialty level performance 
reviews. These meetings support staff engagement and empowerment on quality, driving 
review of data and performance and encouraging a quality-focused culture throughout the 
Trust. In the 2013/14 year the Trust devolved its quality governance and quality improvement 
functions to the Clinical Divisions resulting in each Division having a quality lead supported by a 
quality team. 

Compliance with, and delivery of, the quality indicators within Trust contracts is actively 
monitored through a robust process with monthly internal scrutiny at a corporate level to 
manage the potential and active risks to quality and the delivery of clinical services. 

In respect of data quality, the Trust participates in the national data assurance audit as part of 
the Payment by Results Data Assurance Framework.  This audit provides the Trust with 
assurances about the accuracy of data collected and coded.  To ensure compliance and the 
appropriate management of data, the Trust has dedicated Data Quality and Clinical Coding 
Teams which proactively engage clinicians and clerical staff to encourage best practice in data 
entry and coding. These teams also address quality issues and processes that are in place to 
ensure timely identification of data quality issues and the remedial steps required.  Training on 
the Trust’s Patient Administration System and other key systems is mandatory at Induction, 
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and is followed up by an ongoing programme of training sessions that is available to staff 
throughout the year.   

The foundation trust is fully compliant with the registration requirements of the Care Quality 
Commission. 

As an employer with staff entitled to membership of the NHS Pension Scheme, control 
measures are in place to ensure all employer obligations contained within the Scheme 
regulations are complied with. This includes ensuring that deductions from salary, 
employer’s contributions and payments into the Scheme are in accordance with the 
Scheme rules, and that member Pension Scheme records are accurately updated in 
accordance with the timescales detailed in the Regulations. 

Control measures are in place to ensure that all the organisation’s obligations under equality, 
diversity and human rights legislation are complied with. 

The Foundation Trust has undertaken risk assessments and Carbon Reduction Delivery 
Plans are in place in accordance with emergency preparedness and civil contingency 
requirements, as based on UKCIP 2009 weather projects, to ensure that this organisation’s 
obligations under the Climate Change Act and the Adaptation Reporting requirements are 
complied with. 

Review of economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the use of resources 

The resources of the Trust are managed through various measures, including an 
established and tested budgetary control system, the consistent application of internal 
financial controls and effective procurement and tendering procedures. 

The Finance Committee is a sub-committee of the Trust Board and meets monthly, chaired 
by a Non-Executive Director. It reviews operational performance and finance reports as well 
as progress against the cost improvement programme. The Trust Board obtains assurance 
from the Finance Committee in respect of financial and budgetary management across the 
Trust. 

Each Division has a Divisional Director who is a clinician and who is actively involved in the 
business and devolved financial management of clinical services. Divisional scorecards are 
used to assess each Divisions performance, at a specialty and ward level, and these are 
reviewed at performance reviews held with Executive Directors. 

The Trust has continued to use and further develop Service Line Reporting (SLR) and 
Patient Level Costing during the year and there are clinical specialty leads within Divisions 
amongst whose responsibilities is the use and review of this data. These leads attend the 
performance reviews where SLR data is also discussed. 

Business cases and the financial evaluation of new investments are reviewed on a monthly 
basis, with subsequent approval by the Trust Executive Committee, Finance Committee or 
Trust Board according to the Scheme of Delegation. Service line information is used in 
support of clinical business cases. 

Our Internal Auditors include value for money considerations in their audit scope and action 
points. 
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Information governance  

During this year we have updated our policies and procedures to ensure a consistent 
approach across the Trust for achieving higher standards of information governance. 

All organisations processing NHS patient data are required to submit an annual Information 
Governance Toolkit return.  The Trust’s assessment for 2014/15 was graded ‘Satisfactory’ 
with an overall score of 85%.  This represents 26 out of the total 45 requirements being 
graded at the maximum ‘Level 3’, a four-fold increase on the previous year and puts us 
within the top 20% of Trusts nationally and the highest scores in Surrey. 

This year we have particularly focused on improving information sharing, ensuring our 
policies promote our duty to share information for direct care purposes whilst maintaining 
patient confidentiality.  Further areas of work have been identified for continued development 
in the next two to three years, and the work programme is regularly reviewed by the 
Information Governance Steering Group.  Leadership is provided at executive level by the 
Medical Director as Caldicott Guardian, acting as a champion for patient confidentiality, and 
the Director of Finance and Information as Senior Information Risk Owner. 

All Trust staff have a duty to report incidents such as breaches of confidentiality, however 
minor, so that lessons can be identified and used to inform future practice.  All information-
related incidents reported in 2014/15 were assessed in accordance with HSCIC’s (Health & 
Social Care Information Centre) guidance:119 

• All incidents are scored against a series of ‘sensitivity factors’, which increase or 
reduce the severity of an incident.  The available sensitivity factors were changed by 
HSCIC in-year, so incidents occurring after 7 Nov 14 were assessed using the new 
factors. 

• A score of 2 or more is graded as a ‘Level 2’ incident, reportable to the Department of 
Health and the Information Commissioner’s Office, and narrated individually in annual 
reports. 

• A score of 1 or below is graded as a ‘Level 1’ incident, reportable in aggregate in 
annual reports. 

• ‘Near misses’, where an incident is prevented due to fortunate events which were not 
part of pre-planned controls – or where a suspected breach is confirmed not to have 
been an actual breach – are graded at ‘Level 0’.  Near misses are not reportable but 
are used internally to improve Trust processes, in order to aid the prevention of actual 
incidents. 

‘Level 1’ and ‘Level 2’ incidents from 2014/15 are reported in the following table. 

                                                           
119 HSCIC “Checklist Guidance for Reporting, Managing and Investigating Information Governance and Cyber 
Security Serious Incidents Requiring Investigation” , Version 5.0 – 27 Feb 15; https://www.igt.hscic.gov.uk 
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Incidents reported to the Information Commissioner’ s Office 

The Trust recorded one incident at ‘Level 2’ severity, which was reported to the Department of 
Health and the Information Commissioner’s Office. 

Date of incident 
(month) 

Nature of incident Nature of data 
involved 

Number of data 
subjects 

potentially 
affected 

Notification steps 

Dec 2014 Disclosed in error – 
a sub-contracted 
system supplier 
was found to have 
configured patient 
demographic data 
reports to be 
emailed to its own 
support staff for 
technical testing 
purposes. 

 

For some data 
subjects: 

Check-in time; 
appointment time; 
clinic code; sex; 
date of birth. 

 

For other data 
subjects: 

Local hospital 
number; some or 
all of: ethnicity, 
religion, address 
and/or telephone 
number. 

 

Neither name nor 
NHS Number were 
included. 

 

1,202 None; individuals 
are unlikely to be 
identifiable from the 
reports in isolation. 

Further action on 
information risk 

The Trust identified the incident through proactive work to provide assurance on email 
security, and immediately instructed the supplier to amend the configuration.  The 
Trust has worked through its contracted suppliers to ensure that the organisation at 
fault applies adequate remedial measures and provides sufficient assurance for the 
future.  The full investigation report will be provided to the ICO when complete. 
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Other information incidents 

The Trust recorded the following additional incidents at ‘Level 1’ severity: 

Category Breach Type Total 

 

A 

 

Corruption or inability to recover electronic data 0 

 

B 

 

Disclosed in error 25 

 

C 

 

Lost in transit 0 

 

D 

 

Lost or stolen hardware 0 

 

E 

 

Lost or stolen paperwork 1 

 

F 

 

Non-secure disposal – hardware 0 

 

G 

 

Non-secure disposal – paperwork 1 

 

H 

 

Uploaded to website in error 0 

 

I 

 

 

Technical security failing 
0 

 

J 

 

Unauthorised access/disclosure 1 

 

K 

 

Other 3 
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Annual Quality Report 

The Directors are required under the Health Act 2009 and the National Health Service (Quality 
Accounts) Regulations 2010 (as amended) to prepare Quality Accounts for each financial year. 
Monitor has issued guidance to NHS Foundation Trust boards on the form and content of annual 
Quality Reports which incorporate the above legal requirements in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual 
Reporting Manual. 

The Board is assured that the Quality Report presents a balanced view and that there are appropriate 
controls in place to ensure the accuracy of data. 

The monthly quality report to the Trust Board provides assurance on a small number of key quality 
priorities, both local and national, relating to patient safety and experience and clinical effectiveness. 
On a quarterly basis the report includes the Quality Account dashboard and progress with the key 
priorities identified within the Quality Account. 

Stakeholder scrutiny and review of progress occurred during workshop sessions held during the year 
with reports back to the Trust Board. Our stakeholders include commissioners, governors and patient 
representatives from the Patient Panel. The CCG have provided a statement confirming that the draft 
Quality Account has been reviewed, that it is a "fair reflection" of the work at the Trust and includes 
the mandatory elements required. Further comments indicate "an overall accurate account and 
analysis of the quality of services" and that this correlates with data supplied by the Trust to the CCG 
during the year and reviewed as part of the Trust’s performance contract. 

A range of other reports and dashboards enable the Trust Board to monitor performance regularly and 
provide assurance on the final outcome data for the year. The Balanced Scorecard comprises four 
quadrants covering: quality of patient care and treatment (through best outcomes and excellent 
experience), maintaining and developing a skilled and motivated workforce and sustaining top 
financial productivity. This scorecard is a high level, visual, summary of key data and targets; results 
are seen at a glance due to RAG rating — Red (failing), Amber (underachieving), Green (delivering or 
exceeding the target). The Trust has also purchased services from CHKS to enable easy access to 
key quality and performance data. CHKS data is regularly reviewed and monitored by the Clinical 
Outcomes Steering Group, chaired by the Medical Director.  

KPMG LLP provides external assurance on the Quality Accounts by issuing a limited assurance report 
(limited in scope) on compliance with the Regulations (included in the Quality Accounts). Data quality 
and accuracy in the Quality Report is also subjected to an external audit by KPMG LLP.  

The Trust is confident that it measures elective waiting time in line with national rules for Referral to 
Treatment (RTT) reporting covering appropriate clock starts, stops and pauses as well as the 
appropriate inclusion and exclusion of non-RTT applicable patient pathways.  A review of data 
collection and processing rules was conducted during 2013/14 which resulted in a plan of remedial 
work signed off by the Elective Care Intensive Support Team (IST) in June 2014.  Between June and 
September 2014 a systematic review of all RTT data flows and reporting logic has been undertaken, 
supported by the IST, and this has led to a series of further changes to increase data accuracy and 
reduce the risk of error.  

An RTT compliance audit was conducted by the Trust’s independent internal auditors in July and 
August 2014. The audit reviewed case notes and PAS records of a sample of RTT pathways to verify 
the accuracy of the reported clock start and clock stop times, appropriate measurement of waiting 
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time and application measurement rules.  The results of this audit were published in December 2014 
and gave assurance that appropriate policies and procedures were being followed.  

Ongoing assurance is provided by weekly service-level meetings where Patient Tracking Lists are 
analysed to provide a first line validation and data quality check. Any inaccuracies are noted as 
actions and followed up the following week. The Trust has a team of Patient Pathway Co-ordinators 
responsible for reviewing RTT pathways. This team are responsible for identifying and rectifying 
incorrect clock starts, stops and pauses and merging duplicate pathways.  

As Chief Executive I am confident in the quality of services we provide across our services and that 
for the majority of our quality and performance targets we meet the standards expected by and 
acceptable to our regulator and commissioners.  Further, the information contained within the Quality 
Account is provided from our data management systems and our quality improvement systems and to 
the best of my knowledge is accurate, and provides a true reflection of our organisation, with the 
exception of the indicators which KPMG LLP (our Statutory Auditor) has tested as part of their work on 
the Quality Account and are detailed within that Account. On these indicators (Percentage of 
incomplete pathways within 18 weeks for patients on incomplete pathways at the end of the reporting 
period, Maximum waiting time of 62 days from urgent GP referral to first treatment for all cancers, To 
improve the quality of care and clinical outcomes of patients with Sepsis) KPMG have been unable to 
issue opinions and I am unable to confirm these items are accurate. The Trust is actively scoping the 
improvements needed to resolve the above issues as a priority

Review of effectiveness 

As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal 
control. My review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by the work of 
the internal auditors, clinical audit and the executive managers and clinical leads within the NHS 
Foundation Trust who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal 
control framework. I have drawn on the content of the Quality Report attached to this Annual 
Report and other performance information available to me. My review is also informed by 
comments made by the external auditors in their management letter and other reports. I have been 
advised on the implications of the result of my review of the effectiveness of the system of internal 
control by the Trust Board, the Audit Committee and IGAC, and a plan to address weaknesses 
and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place. 

The following information highlights some of the key methods that the Trust Board uses to be 
assured its system of internal control is effective.  

The Trust Board  ensures the effectiveness of the system of internal control through clear 
accountability and reporting arrangements. The Trust Board has reviewed its Standing Financial 
Instructions and Scheme of Delegation during the year. 

The Trust Board has reviewed the Board Assurance Framework on a quarterly basis and also 
receives regular information from IGAC on the operation of the Board Assurance Framework. In 
addition, the Trust Board has received regular reports on incidents, claims, complaint trends and 
Health and Safety. 

The Trust Board has established the Audit Committee and IGAC with specific focus on risk 
management; the Chairs of these Committees report to the Trust Board at the first available Trust 
Board meeting after each committee meeting. Urgent matters are escalated by the Committee 
chair to the Trust Board as deemed appropriate. 
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The Audit Committee  is a formal sub-committee of the Trust Board and is accountable to the 
Trust Board for reviewing the establishment and maintenance of an effective system of internal 
control and risk management. The Committee meets at least four times per year. The Audit 
Committee approves the Annual Audit plans for internal and external audit activities and ensures 
that recommendations to improve weaknesses in control arising from audits are actioned by 
executive management. The Annual Internal Audit Plan enables the Trust Board to be reassured 
that key internal financial controls and other matters relating to risk are regularly reviewed. During 
the year, the Committee has reviewed internal and external audit reports, Local Counter Fraud 
Specialist reports and policies and reviewed progress on meeting the requirements of the 
Assurance Framework. 

The Integrated Governance Assurance Committee  (IGAC) has a duty to ensure that the Trust’s 
governance systems, behaviours and processes relating to risk management, clinical and non-
clinical governance, and the achievement of organisational objectives are effective, and provide 
the Trust Board with the assurance required to govern effectively. The Committee met 11 times in 
the year and has been reviewing key areas of risk to ensure the Trust Board can have sufficient 
assurance. The Committee is supported by a range of groups including the Quality Governance 
Committee and Risk Scrutiny Committee and Patient Experience Monitoring Group. 

Over the year the Committee has reviewed progress on compliance with CQC Essential Standards 
and will track and monitor the progress with the CQC action plan following the inspection in 
December 2014. 

The Committee is monitoring the progress and effectiveness of the Quality, Safety and Risk 
Management Strategy 2012 to 2017. 

The Finance Committee’s  remit is to review the financial performance, position, risks and 
decision-making of the Trust. To the Trust Board it gives assurance that this process of review is 
satisfactory and draws matters of importance to their attention. 

The Workforce and Organisational Development Commit tee’s  role is to provide assurance to 
the Board on workforce supply and demand, the development and delivery of the Trust’s 
workforce, organisational development, education and training and employee wellbeing strategies 
and a detailed review and challenge of the workforce and organisational development aspects of 
the Board Assurance Framework 

Executive Directors  have clear responsibilities for internal control and risk management within 
their area of control. They also have corporate responsibility as Trust Board members. 

Internal Audit : The Trust has contracted with TIAA (formerly Parkhill Internal Audit Services) as 
the providers of internal audit services since 1 April 2012.  The contract specifies that the delivery 
of the internal audit function will continue to be in compliance with the NHS Internal Audit 
Standards and those of the Institute of Internal Auditors (UK). 

The annual opinion provided by the Head of Internal Audit for 2014/15 stated that significant 
assurance  can be given that there is a generally sound system of control designed to meet the 
organisation’s objectives and that controls are generally being applied consistently. 

External agencies:  Our Maternity Services continue to hold the highest standard for patient 
safety, CNST Level 3 (Clinical Negligence Scheme for Trusts) by the NHS Litigation Authority. The 
process of risk accreditation is still under review nationally. 

The Trust is compliant with all CQC Essential Standards.  

The Trust currently has a Green Governance rating with Monitor following their quarter three 
review in February and March 2015. 
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The Trust failed to meet the four hour waiting time target, the admitted Referral to Treatment Time 
target, the All cancers: 62-day wait for first treatment target, the Cancer 31 day wait for second or 
subsequent treatment – surgery target and the Cancer 2 week (all cancers) target in quarter four 
2014/15. The Trust Board has a good understanding of the external and internal issues which led, 
in part, to these failures and the actions in place to address them. Where appropriate, detailed 
action plans have been agreed with our Commissioners alongside trajectories to achievement. 
Performance against trajectories is reported to the Trust Board on a monthly basis. 
 
 
Conclusion 

I am reporting three significant internal control issues within the NHS Foundation Trust, being the 
failure to meet the four hour waiting time target, the admitted Referral to Treatment Time target and 
cancer targets in quarter four of 2014/15.

 

 

 
 

Suzanne Rankin 

Chief Executive 

28 May 2015 
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 Annual Accounts 
 

1 April 2014 – 31 March 2015 
 

Foreword to the Accounts 

These Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2015 have been prepared in accordance with                 
paragraphs 24 and 25 of Schedule 7 to the National Health Service Act 2006. 

 

 

Suzanne Rankin 
Accounting Officer 
Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 
28 May 2015 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE COUNCIL OF GOVE RNORS ONLY 

 
 
Opinions and conclusions arising from our audit  
 
1.  Our opinion on the financial statements is unmo dified  

 
We have audited the financial statements of Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust for 
the year ended 31 March 2015 set out on pages 200 to 240.  In our opinion:  

• The financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Trust’s affairs as at 31 March 
2015 and of the Trust’s income and expenditure for the year then ended; and  

 
• The financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the NHS Foundation Trust 

Annual Reporting Manual 2014/15.  
 
2.  Our assessment of risks of material misstatemen t  

 
In arriving at our audit opinion above on the financial statements the risks of material misstatement that 
had the greatest effect on our audit were as follows:  
 
Valuation of land and buildings - £149 million  

Refer to page 161 of the Annual Report, pages 206 to 209 and pages 227 to 229. 
 

The risk : Land and buildings are required to be maintained at up to date estimates of year-end 
market value in existing use (EUV) for non-specialised property assets in operational use, and, for 
specialised assets where no market value is readily ascertainable, the depreciated replacement 
cost of a modern equivalent asset that has the same service potential as the existing property 
(MEAV). There is significant judgment involved in determining the appropriate basis (EUV or 
MEAV) for each asset according to the degree of specialisation, as well as over the assumptions 
made in arriving at the valuation and the condition of the asset. In particular the MEAV basis 
requires an assumption as to whether the replacement asset would be situated on the existing site 
or, if more appropriate, on an alternative site, with a potentially significant effect on the valuation.  

In 2014/15 the Trust commissioned a full revaluation of land and buildings by an external valuer as 
at 1 April 2014.  
 
Our response : In this area our audit procedures included:  
• Assessing the competence, capability, objectivity and independence of the Trust’s external 

valuer and considering the terms of engagement of, and the instructions issued to, the valuer for 
consistency with the requirements of the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual;  

• Obtaining the instructions provided to the external valuer and checking that the list of properties 
to be valued was complete and in line with our knowledge of the Trust;  

• Critically assessing with the assistance of our own valuation specialists the appropriateness of 
the valuation bases and assumptions applied to a sample of material assets subject to the 
revaluation exercise by reference to property records held by the Trust on the condition of the 
assets, the basis of ownership and the basis of their use;  
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• Undertaking work to understand the basis upon which impairment to land and buildings had 
been classified by the Trust and determining whether the recognition of these losses in the 
financial statements complied with the requirements of the ARM; 

• Challenging with the assistance of our own valuation specialists the potential valuation 
differences between 1 April 2014 and 31 March 2015 of land and buildings by utilising Building 
Cost Information Service (Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors) tender price indices; and  

• Considering the adequacy of the disclosures about the key judgments and degree of estimation 
involved in arriving at the valuation and the related sensitivities.  

 
NHS income recognition - £238 million  

Refer to page 162 of the Annual Report, page 205 and pages 218 to 219. 
 
The risk : The main source of income for the Trust is the provision of healthcare services to the 
public under contracts with NHS commissioners, which make up (99%) of income from activities. 
The Trust participates in the Agreement of Balances (AoB) exercise which is mandated by the 
Department of Health (the Department), covering the English NHS only, for the purpose of 
ensuring that intra-NHS balances are eliminated on the consolidation of the Department’s resource 
account. The AoB exercise identifies mismatches between receivable and payable balances 
recognised by the Trust and its counter parties at the balance sheet date.  
Mismatches can occur for a number of reasons, but the most significant arise where the Trust and 
commissioners are yet to validate the level of estimated accruals for completed healthcare spells 
which have not yet been invoiced, accruals for non-contracted out-of-area treatments are not 
recognised by commissioners or are yet to be finalized. Where there is a lack of agreement, 
mismatches can be classified as formal disputes and referred to NHS England Area Teams for 
resolution.  

We do not consider NHS income to be at high risk of significant misstatement, or to be subject to a 
significant level of judgement. However, due to its materiality in the context of the financial 
statements as a whole NHS income is considered to be one of the areas which had the greatest 
effect on our overall audit strategy and allocation of resources in planning and completing our 
audit.  

Our response: In this area our audit procedures included:  

• Agreeing the income recorded in the Trust’s financial statements to the signed material 
contracts in place with key counter parties, and investigating significant contract variations 
supported by explanations provided by Trust officers;  

• Assessing third party confirmations from commissioners and other NHS bodies as part of the 
2014/15 Agreement of Balances (AoB) exercise and obtaining explanations for any significant 
variances; and  

• Testing a sample of income items from year end bank statements to support the work we have 
undertaken on completeness of income balances recorded in the financial statements and 
confirming that income has been recorded in the correct accounting period.  
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3.  Our application of materiality and an overview of the scope of our audit  
  

The materiality for the financial statements was set at £5.1 million, determined with reference to a 
benchmark of income from operations (of which it represents 2%). We consider income from operations 
to be more stable than a surplus-related benchmark.  
 
We report to the Audit Committee any uncorrected identified misstatements exceeding £200,000, in 
addition to other identified misstatements that warrant reporting on qualitative grounds. 
 
Our audit of the Trust was undertaken to the materiality level specified above and was performed at the 
Trust’s finance headquarters at Ashford Hospital in Ashford.  
 
4.  Our opinion on other matters prescribed by the Audit Code for NHS Foundation Trusts is 

unmodified  
 

In our opinion:  
 

• the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in 
accordance with the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual 2014/15; and  

 
• the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for 

which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.  
 

5. We have nothing to report in respect of the matt ers on which we are required to report by 
exception  

 

Under ISAs (UK&I) we are required to report to you if, based on the knowledge we acquired during 
our audit, we have identified other information in the annual report that contains a material 
inconsistency with either that knowledge or the financial statements, a material misstatement of 
fact, or that is otherwise misleading.  
 

In particular, we are required to report to you if:  

• we have identified material inconsistencies between the knowledge we acquired during our 
audit and the directors’ statement that they consider that the annual report and accounts taken 
as a whole is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for 
patients, regulators and other stakeholders to assess the Trust’s performance, business model 
and strategy; or  
 

• the Audit Committee’s commentary on page 161 of the Annual Report does not appropriately 
address matters communicated by us to the Audit Committee.  

 

Under the Audit Code for NHS Foundation Trusts we are required to report to you if in our opinion:  
 

• the Annual Governance Statement does not reflect the disclosure requirements set out in the 
NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual 2014/15, is misleading or is not consistent 
with our knowledge of the Trust and other information of which we are aware from our audit of 
the financial statements.  
 

• the Trust has not made proper arrangement for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness 
in its use of resources  
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We have nothing to report in respect of the above responsibilities.  
 

Certificate of audit completion  

We certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts of Ashford & St Peter’s NHS 
Foundation Trust in accordance with the requirements of Chapter 5 of Part 2 of the National 
Health Service Act 2006 and the Audit Code for NHS Foundation Trusts issued by Monitor.  
 
Our certificate is qualified in accordance with paragraph 5.12 of the Audit Code as whilst we have 
issued a limited assurance opinion in relation to the content of the quality report, we have not 
issued an opinion in relation to the Trust’s mandated indicators (18 week Referral to Treatment 
target and 62 day Cancer Waits).

Respective responsibilities of the accounting offic er and auditor  

As described more fully in the Statement of Accounting Officer’s Responsibilities on page 182 the 
accounting officer is responsible for the preparation of financial statements which give a true and 
fair view. Our responsibility is to audit, and express an opinion on, the financial statements in 
accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those 
standards require us to comply with the UK Ethical Standards for Auditors.  
 
Scope of an audit of financial statements performed  in accordance with ISAs (UK and 
Ireland)  

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is provided on our website at 
www.kpmg.com/uk/auditscopeother2014.  This report is made subject to important explanations 
regarding our responsibilities, as published on that website, which are incorporated into this report 
as if set out in full and should be read to provide an understanding of the purpose of this report, 
the work we have undertaken and the basis of our opinions.  
 
The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe ou r responsibilities  

This report is made solely to the Council of Governors of the Trust, as a body, in accordance with 
Schedule 10 of the National Health Service Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that 
we might state to the Council of Governors of the Trust, as a body, those matters we are required 
to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by 
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Council of Governors of 
the Trust, as a body, for our audit work, for this report or for the opinions we have formed.  
 
 

 
Neil Hewitson  
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor  
Chartered Accountants  
15 Canada Square  
London  
E14 5GL  
28 May 2015 
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 

    

Note 

 

2014/15 

 

2013/14 

  £’000 £’000 

INCOME    
    
Income from patient care activities 3 243,801 229,131 

Other operating income 4 19,013 16,766 

Operating expenses 6 (258,252) (239,161) 

  _______ _______ 

OPERATING SURPLUS  4,562 6,736 

FINANCE COSTS:     

Finance income 12 30 63 

Finance expense 13 (363) (258) 

Public dividend capital dividends payable  (5,187) (5,149) 

  ______ ______ 

RETAINED SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR   (958)     1,392   

Other Comprehensive Income:    

 

Impairment losses on property plant and 
equipment 

 (16,152) (688) 

Revaluations  16,214 - 

  _____ _____ 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSE) 
FOR THE YEAR 

    (896)  704  

    

 

The notes on pages 204 to 240 form part of these accounts.  

 

 

  

 

 



 

201 | P a g e  

Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Annual Report 2014/15 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2015  

  

Note 
 

31/03/15 
 

31/03/14 
 

       £’000      £’000 
NON-CURRENT ASSETS    

Property, plant and equipment 14 164,329 161,053 
Intangible assets 15 1,484 1,107 
Trade and other receivables 19 747 978 
  _______ _______ 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS  166,560 163,138 

CURRENT ASSETS    
Inventories                      18 4,516 4,299 
Trade and other receivables 19 15,534 16,068 
Cash and cash equivalents                        20 10,465 11,065 
  _______ _______ 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS   30,515 31,432 

  _______ _______ 
TOTAL ASSETS :   197,075 194,570 
CURRENT LIABILITIES     
Trade and other payables 21 (26,647) (26,930) 
Other liabilities 21 (2,113) (340) 
Borrowings 22 (1,411) (1,029) 
Provisions 24 (463) (358) 
  _______ _______ 
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES   (30,634) (28,657)  

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES   166,441 165,913 
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES      
Borrowings 22 (5,925) (5,090) 
Provisions 24 (300) (392) 
  _______ _______ 
TOTAL ASSETS EMPLOYED   160,216 160,431 
FINANCED BY TAXPAYERS’ EQUITY:     
Public dividend capital  88,259 87,578 
Income and expenditure reserve  5,160 6,118 
Revaluation reserve  66,797 66,735 
  _______ _______ 
TOTAL TAXPAYERS’ EQUITY   160,216 160,431 
    

 
The financial statements on pages 200 to 240 were approved by the Board on 28 May 2015 and     
signed on its behalf by: 
 

 
 
Suzanne Rankin, Accounting Officer 
Ashford and St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust, 28 May 2015
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN TAXPAYERS’ EQUITY FOR THE Y EAR ENDED                          
31 MARCH 2015 
   Public 

Dividend 
Capital 
(PDC) 

Retained 
Earnings  

Revaluation 
Reserve  

Total  

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
     
BALANCE AT 1  APRIL 2014  87,578 6,118 66,735 160,431 

CHANGES IN TAXPAYERS EQUITY FOR 
THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 

    

Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year - (958) - (958) 

Impairments - - (16,152) (16,152) 

Transfers between reserves - - - - 

Net gain on revaluation of property, plant 
and equipment 

- - 16,214 16,214 

Public Dividend Capital received 681 - - 681 

 ______ ______ ______ _______ 

BALANCE AT 31 MARCH 2015  88,259 5,160 66,797 160,216 

     

   Public 
Dividend 

Capital 
(PDC) 

Retained 
Earnings 

 

Revaluation  
Reserve  

 

Total  

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
     
BALANCE AT 1 APRIL 2013  85,934   4,671 67,478 158,083 

CHANGES IN TAXPAYERS EQUITY FOR 
THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014  

    

Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year - 1,392 - 1,392 

Impairments - - (688) (688) 

Transfers between reserves - 55 (55) - 

Public Dividend Capital received 1,644 - - 1,644 

 ______ ______ ______ _______ 

BALANCE AT 31 MARCH 2014   87,578   6,118  66,735  160,431 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH  2015 

 Note 2014/15 2013/14 

  £’000 £’000 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES     

Operating surplus  4,562 6,736 
Depreciation and amortisation  6,112 8,597 
Impairments  3,469 - 
Reversals of impairments  (2,030) - 
(Increase)/decrease in inventories  (217) 75 
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables  782 (3,953) 
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables  279 582 
Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities  1,773 (17) 
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 24 13 (205) 
Other movements in operating cash flows  (166) (210) 
  ______ ______ 

NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM OPERATING 
ACTIVITIES 

 14,577 11,605 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES     

Interest received  30 66 
(Payments) for property, plant and equipment  (9,188) (11,340) 
  ______ ______ 

NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM INVESTING 
ACTIVITIES 

  

(9,158) 

 

(11,274)  

NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) BEFORE 
FINANCING 

  

5,419 

 

331  

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES     

Public Dividend Capital received  681 1,644 
Capital element of finance lease rental payments  (1,159) (739) 
Interest element of finance lease  (363) (290) 
Dividends paid  (5,178) (5,120) 
  _______ _______ 

NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM FINANCING 
ACTIVITIES 

 (6,019) (4,505) 

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS 

 (600) (4,174) 

CASH (AND) CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE 
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 

 11,065 15,239 

  _______ _______ 
CASH (AND) CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 MARCH  20 10,465   11,065 
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 31 MARCH 2015  
 

1. Accounting policies   

Monitor has directed that the financial statements of NHS Foundation Trusts shall meet the 
accounting requirements of the NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual (ARM) which 
shall be agreed with HM Treasury. Consequently, the following financial statements have been 
prepared in accordance with the 2014/15 NHS Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual  

issued by Monitor. The accounting policies contained in that manual follow International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and HM Treasury’s Financial Reporting Manual (FReM) to the extent 
that they are meaningful and appropriate to NHS Foundation Trusts. The accounting policies have 
been applied consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation to the accounts. 

1.1 Accounting convention 

These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for 
the revaluation of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories and certain 
financial assets and financial liabilities 

1.2 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty 

In the application of the Trust’s accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily 
apparent from other sources.  The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical 
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.  Actual results may differ from 
those estimates and the estimates and underlying assumptions are continually reviewed.  
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if 
the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision 
affects both current and future periods. 

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies 

There were no areas of critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see below) 
that management has made in the process of applying the Trust’s accounting policies and that 
have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.  

Key sources of estimation uncertainty  

The Trust has included in its financial statements land and buildings of £148,954k.  The Trust 
underwent a full valuation of its land and buildings as at 1 April 2014 with the work being 
undertaken by the Trust’s Valuer who used their extensive knowledge of the physical estate and 
market factors in applying their professional judgement. The Trust considers that the value of land 
and buildings reported in the financial statements as at 31 March 2015 does not differ materially 
from the market value of those land and buildings at this date.  The value does not take into 
account potential future changes in market value which cannot be predicted with any certainty. 

There are no other key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation 
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. 
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1.3 Income 

Income in respect of services provided is recognised when, and to the extent that, performance 
occurs, and is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable.  The main source of 
revenue for the Trust is from commissioners for healthcare services.  Income relating to patient 
care spells that are part-completed at the year-end are apportioned across the financial years on 
the basis of length of stay at the end of the reporting period compared to expected total length of 
stay. 

Where income is received for a specific activity that is to be delivered in the following year, that 
income is deferred. 

The Trust receives income under the NHS Injury Cost Recovery Scheme, designed to reclaim the 
cost of treating injured individuals to whom personal injury compensation has subsequently been 
paid e.g. by an insurer.  The Trust recognises the income when it receives notification from the 
Department of Work and Pension's Compensation Recovery Unit that the individual has lodged a 
compensation claim. The income is measured at the agreed tariff for the treatments provided to 
the injured individual, less a provision for unsuccessful compensation claims and doubtful debts. 

1.4 Expenditure on employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits 

Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the period in which the 
service is received from employees. The cost of leave earned but not taken by employees at the 
end of the period is recognised in the financial statements to the extent that employees are 
permitted to carry forward leave into the following period. 

Pension costs 

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme.  The 
scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, General Practices 
and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State, in England and Wales. 
The scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their 
share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if 
it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS body of participating in the scheme is 
taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period.   

For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not 
funded by the scheme. The full amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged to 
operating expenses at the time the Trust commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the method 
of payment 

The National Employment Savings Scheme (NEST) is a defined contribution pension scheme that 
was created as part of the government’s workplace pensions reforms under the Pensions Act 
2008. Contributions to this scheme started in 2013/14 for applicable employees who are not 
members of the NHS Pensions Scheme.
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1.5 Expenditure on other goods and services 

Expenditure on other goods and services is recognised when, and to the extent that, they have 
been received and is measured at the fair value of those goods and services.  Expenditure is 
recognised in operating expenses except where it results in the creation of a non-current asset 
such as property, plant and equipment. 

 

1.6 Property, plant and equipment 

Recognition 

Property, plant and equipment is capitalised if: 

• it is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes; 
• it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential will be supplied 

to, the Trust; 
• it is expected to be used for more than one financial year; 
• the cost of the item can be measured reliably; and 

◊ the item has cost of at least £5,000; or 
◊ Collectively, a number of items have a cost of at least £5,000 and individually have a 

cost of more than £250, where the assets are functionally interdependent, they had 
broadly simultaneous purchase dates, are anticipated to have simultaneous disposal 
dates and are under single managerial control; or 

◊ Items form part of the initial equipping and setting-up cost of a new building, ward or 
unit, irrespective of their individual or collective cost. 
 

Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a number of components with significantly 
different asset lives, the components are treated as separate assets and depreciated over their 
own useful economic lives. 

Valuation 

All property, plant and equipment are measured initially at cost, representing the cost directly 
attributable to acquiring or constructing the asset and bringing it to the location and condition 
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. All assets are 
measured subsequently at fair value. 

Land and buildings used for the Trust’s services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the 
Statement of Financial Position at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of 
revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.  Revaluations 
are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that carrying amounts are not materially different 
from those that would be determined at the end of the reporting period.  Fair values are 
determined as follows: 

• Land and non-specialised buildings – market value for existing use 
• Specialised buildings – depreciated replacement cost 

 

Until 31 March 2008, the depreciated replacement cost of specialised buildings has been 
estimated for an exact replacement of the asset in its present location. HM Treasury has adopted 
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a standard approach to depreciated replacement cost valuations based on modern equivalent 
assets and, where it would meet the location requirements of the service being provided, an 
alternative site can be valued. 

Properties in the course of construction for service or administration purposes are carried at cost, 
less any impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees but not borrowing costs, which are 
recognised as expenses immediately, as allowed by IAS 23 for assets held at fair value.  Assets 
are revalued and depreciation commences when they are brought into use. 

Until 31 March 2008, fixtures and equipment were carried at replacement cost, as assessed by 
indexation and depreciation of historic cost. From 1 April 2008 indexation has ceased. The 
carrying value of existing assets at that date will be written off over their remaining useful lives and 
new fixtures and equipment are carried at depreciated historic cost as this is not considered to be 
materially different from fair value.  

An increase arising on revaluation is taken to the Revaluation Reserve except when it reverses an 
impairment for the same asset previously recognised in expenditure, in which case it is credited to 
expenditure to the extent of the decrease previously charged there. A revaluation decrease that 
does not result from a loss of economic value or service potential is recognised as an impairment 
charged to the Revaluation Reserve to the extent that there is a balance on the reserve for the 
asset and, thereafter, to expenditure. Impairment losses that arise from a clear consumption of 
economic benefit should be taken to expenditure. Gains and losses recognised in the Revaluation 
Reserve are reported as other comprehensive income in the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income.   

The Trust charges depreciation on revalued assets based on their revalued amount and not their 
cost. IAS 16 is not prescriptive on the accounting policy to be adopted by reporting entities in 
respect of this adjustment, and as the Trust does not have complete records of the historical cost 
of its assets, it now transfers such balances only on ultimate disposal. 

Subsequent expenditure 

Where subsequent expenditure enhances an asset beyond its original specification, the directly 
attributable cost is capitalised.  Where subsequent expenditure restores the asset to its original 
specification, the expenditure is capitalised and any existing carrying value of the item replaced is 
written-out and charged to operating expenses. 

 

1.7 Intangible assets 

Recognition 

Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance, which are capable of sale 
separately from the rest of the Trust’s business or which arise from contractual or other legal rights.  

They are recognised only when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service 
potential be provided to, the Trust; where the cost of the asset can be measured reliably, and where the 
cost is at least £5,000.   
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Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised at fair value. Software that is integral to 
the operating of hardware, for example an operating system, is capitalised as part of the relevant item 
of property, plant and equipment. Software that is not integral to the operation of hardware, for example 
application software, is capitalised as an intangible asset. Expenditure on research is not capitalised: it 
is recognised as an operating expense in the period in which it is incurred. Internally-generated assets 
are recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated: 

• the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use; 

• the intention to complete the intangible asset and use it; 

• the ability to sell or use the intangible asset; 

• how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits or service potential; 

• the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the intangible 
asset and sell or use it; and 

• the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its 
development.  

 

Measurement 

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible assets is the sum of the 
expenditure incurred from the date when the criteria above are initially met. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised, the expenditure is recognised in the period in which 
it is incurred. 

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at fair value by reference to an active 
market, or, where no active market exists, at amortised replacement cost (modern equivalent 
assets basis), indexed for relevant price increases, as a proxy for fair value. Internally-developed 
software is held at historic cost to reflect the opposing effects of increases in development costs 
and technological advances.   

  

1.8 Depreciation, amortisation and impairments 

Freehold land, properties under construction, and assets held for sale are not depreciated. 

Otherwise, depreciation and amortisation are charged to write off the costs or valuation of 
property, plant and equipment and intangible non-current assets, less any residual value, over 
their estimated useful lives, in a manner that reflects the consumption of economic benefits or 
service potential of the assets. The estimated useful life of an asset is the period over which the 
Trust expects to obtain economic benefits or service potential from the asset. This is specific to 
the Trust and may be shorter than the physical life of the asset itself. Estimated useful lives and 
residual values are reviewed each year end, with the effect of any changes, recognised on a 
prospective basis. Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their estimated useful 
lives.  

At each reporting period end, the Trust checks whether there is any indication that any of its 
tangible or intangible non-current assets have suffered an impairment loss. If there is indication of 
an impairment loss, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to determine whether there 
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has been a loss and, if so, its amount. Intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for 
impairment annually.   

A revaluation decrease that does not result from a loss of economic value or service potential is 
recognised as an impairment charged to the Revaluation Reserve to the extent that there is a 
balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to expenditure. Impairment losses that arise 
from a clear consumption of economic benefit should be taken to expenditure. Where an 
impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the 
revised estimate of the recoverable amount but capped at the amount that would have been 
determined had there been no initial impairment loss. The reversal of the impairment loss is 
credited to expenditure to the extent of the decrease previously charged there and thereafter to 
the Revaluation Reserve.

  

1.9 Donated and grant funded assets 

Donated and grant funded property, plant and equipment assets are capitalised at their fair value 
on receipt. The donation/grant is credited to income at the same time, unless the donor has 
imposed a condition that the future economic benefits embodied in the grant are to be consumed 
in a manner specified by the donor, in which case, the donation/grant is deferred within liabilities 
and is carried forward to future financial years to the extent that the condition has not yet been 
met. 

The donated and grant funded assets are subsequently accounted for in the same manner as 
other items of property, plant and equipment. 

 

1.10 Non-current assets held for sale 

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered 
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is 
regarded as met when the sale is highly probable, the asset is available for immediate sale in its 
present condition and management is committed to the sale, which is expected to qualify for 
recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification. Non-current assets 
held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair value less costs 
to sell. Fair value is open market value including alternative uses. 

The profit or loss arising on disposal of an asset is the difference between the sale proceeds and 
the carrying amount and is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. On disposal, 
the balance for the asset on the Revaluation Reserve is transferred to Retained Earnings. For 
donated and government-granted assets, a transfer is made to or from the relevant reserve to the 
profit/loss on disposal account so that no profit or loss is recognised in income or expenses. The 
remaining surplus or deficit in the Donated Asset is then transferred to Retained Earnings.  

Property, plant and equipment that is to be scrapped or demolished does not qualify for 
recognition as held for sale.  Instead, it is retained as an operational asset and its economic life is 
adjusted.  The asset is de-recognised when it is scrapped or demolished. 
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1.11  Leases 

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 
are transferred to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 

The Trust as lessee 

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are initially recognised, at the inception 
of the lease, at fair value or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments, with a 
matching liability for the lease obligation to the lessor.  Lease payments are apportioned between 
finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate on interest 
on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in calculating the Trust’s 
surplus/deficit. 

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease 
term. Lease incentives are recognised initially as a liability and subsequently as a reduction of 
rentals on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land and building components are separated and 
individually assessed as to whether they are operating or finance leases.  

 

1.12  Inventories 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value using the weighted average 
cost formula. 

This is considered to be a reasonable approximation to fair value due to the high turnover of 
stocks.   

   

1.13  Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of 
not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature in 3 months or less from the 
date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of 
change in value.   

In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are 
repayable on demand and that form an integral part of the Trust’s cash management. 

 

1.14  Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Trust has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result 
of a past event, it is probable that the Trust will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is 
the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting 
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties. Where the effect of the time value of money 
is significant, the estimated risk-adjusted cash flows are discounted using the short-; medium-; 
and/or long-term real discount rates published by HM Treasury for the financial year, except for 
early retirement provisions and injury benefit provisions which both use the HM Treasury’s 
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pension discount rate of 1.30% (2013/14: 1.80%) in real terms.  These rates are as follows where 
the real rate is 2.2% (2013/14: 2.2%):  

• Short-term; real rate minus 1.50% (2013/14: real rate minus 1.90%) 
• Medium-term; real rate minus 1.05% (2013/14: real rate minus 0.65%) 
• Long-term; real rate  

 

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be 
recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that 
reimbursements will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. 

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as a provision.  
An onerous contract is considered to exist where the Trust has a contract under which the 
unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits 
expected to be received under it. 

A restructuring provision is recognised when the Trust has developed a detailed formal plan for 
the restructuring and has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the 
restructuring by starting to implement the plan or announcing its main features to those affected 
by it. The measurement of a restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising 
from the restructuring, which are those amounts that are both necessarily entailed by the 
restructuring and not associated with ongoing activities of the entity. 

 

1.15  Clinical negligence costs 

The NHS Litigation Authority (NHSLA) operates a risk pooling scheme under which the Trust pays 
an annual contribution to the NHSLA which in return settles all clinical negligence claims.  The 
contribution is charged to expenditure. Although the NHSLA is administratively responsible for all 
clinical negligence cases the legal liability remains with the Trust. The total value of clinical 
negligence provisions carried by the NHSLA on behalf of the Trust is disclosed at note 24.  

 

1.16  Non-clinical risk pooling 

The Trust participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties 
Scheme.  Both are risk pooling schemes under which the Trust pays an annual contribution to the 
NHS Litigation Authority and, in return, receives assistance with the costs of claims arising. The 
annual membership contributions, and any excesses payable in respect of particular claims are 
charged to operating expenses as and when they become due. 

 

1.17  Contingencies 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will 
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not 
wholly within the control of the Trust, or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not 
probable that a payment will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation 
cannot be measured sufficiently reliably. A contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of a 
payment is remote.  
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A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be 
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly 
within the control of the Trust. A contingent asset is disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits 
is probable.   

Where the time value of money is material, contingencies are disclosed at their present value. 

 

1.18  Financial instruments and financial liabiliti es  

Recognition  

Financial assets and financial liabilities which arise from contracts for the purchase or sale of non-
financial items (such as goods or services), which are entered into in accordance with the Trust’s 
normal purchase, sale or usage requirements, are recognised when, and to the extent which, 
performance occurs i.e. when receipt or delivery of the goods or services is made.  
 
Financial assets or financial liabilities in respect of assets acquired or disposed of through finance 
leases are recognised and measured in accordance with the accounting policy for leases described 
above.  
 
All other financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Trust becomes a party to 
the contractual provisions of the instrument.  
 

De-recognition  

All financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have 
expired or the Trust has transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership.  
 
Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires. 
 

Classification and measurement  

Financial assets are categorised as ‘fair value through income and expenditure’, ‘loans and 
receivables’ or ‘available-for-sale financial assets’.  

Financial liabilities are classified as ‘fair value through income and expenditure’ or as ‘other 
financial liabilities’. 
  

Financial assets and financial liabilities at ‘fair value through income and expenditure’  

Financial assets and financial liabilities at ‘fair value through income and expenditure’ are financial 
assets or financial liabilities held for trading. A financial asset or financial liability is classified in this 
category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short-term. Derivatives are also 
categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Derivatives which are 
embedded in other contracts but which are not ‘closely-related’ to those contracts are separated-out 
from those contracts and measured in this category.  
 
Assets and liabilities in this category are classified as current assets and current liabilities.  
 
These financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, with transaction 
costs expensed in the income and expenditure account. Subsequent movements in the fair value 
are recognised as gains or losses in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 
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Loans and receivables  

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments with 
are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets.  
 
The trust’s loans and receivables comprise: cash and cash equivalents, NHS receivables, accrued 
income and ‘other receivables’.  
 
Loans and receivables are recognised initially at fair value, net of transactions costs, and are 
measured subsequently at amortised cost, using the effective interest method. The effective interest 
rate is the rate that discounts exactly estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the 
financial asset or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial 
asset.  
 
Interest on loans and receivables is calculated using the effective interest method and credited to 
the Statement of Comprehensive Income.  
 

Available-for-sale financial assets  

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets which are either designated 
in this category or not classified in any of the other categories. They are included in long-term 
assets unless the trust intends to dispose of them within 12 months of the Statement of Financial 
Position date.  

Available-for-sale financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, including transaction costs, 
and measured subsequently at fair value, with gains or losses recognised in reserves and 
reported in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as an item of ‘other comprehensive income’. 
When items classified as ‘available-for-sale’ are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value 
adjustments recognised are transferred from reserves and recognised in ‘Finance Costs’ in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income. 
 

 

Other financial liabilities  

All other financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, 
and measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The effective 
interest rate is the rate that discounts exactly estimated future cash payments through the 
expected life of the financial liability or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying 
amount of the financial liability.  

They are included in current liabilities except for amounts payable more than 12 months after the 
Statement of Financial Position date, which are classified as long-term liabilities.  

Interest on financial liabilities carried at amortised cost is calculated using the effective interest 
method and charged to Finance Costs. Interest on financial liabilities taken out to finance property, 
plant and equipment or intangible assets is not capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.  
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Determination of fair value  

For financial assets and financial liabilities carried at fair value, the carrying amounts are 
determined from quoted market prices where possible, otherwise by valuation techniques.  

 

Impairment of financial assets  

At the Statement of Financial Position date, the trust assesses whether any financial assets, other 
than those held at ‘fair value through income and expenditure’ are impaired. Financial assets are 
impaired and impairment losses are recognised if, and only if, there is objective evidence of 
impairment as a result of one or more events which occurred after the initial recognition of the 
asset and which has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the asset.  

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as 
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the revised future 
cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. The loss is recognised in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income and the carrying amount of the asset is reduced directly.  

 

1.19  Value Added Tax 

Most of the activities of the Trust are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does 
not apply and input tax on purchases   is not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the 
relevant expenditure category or included in the capitalised purchase cost of fixed assets. Where 
output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT. 

 

1.20  Foreign currencies 

The functional and presentational currencies of the trust are sterling. 

A transaction which is denominated in a foreign currency is translated into the functional currency at 
the spot exchange rate on the date of the transaction. 

Where the Trust has assets or liabilities denominated in a foreign currency at the Statement of 
Financial Position date: 

• monetary items (other than financial instruments measured at ‘fair value through income and 
expenditure’) are translated at the spot exchange rate on 31 March; 

• non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at historical cost are translated using the spot 
exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and 

• non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at fair value are translated using the spot 
exchange rate at the date the fair value was determined. 

 

Exchange gains or losses on monetary items (arising on settlement of the transaction or on re-
translation at the Statement of Financial Position date) are recognised in income or expense in the 
period in which they arise. 

Exchange gains or losses on non-monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in the same 
manner as other gains and losses on these items. 
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1.21 Corporation Tax 

The Trust has reviewed its operating activities and determined that as other trading activities are 
ancillary to the Trust’s core activities then the Trust has no liability for corporation tax. 

 

1.22  Third party assets 

Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on behalf of patients) are not recognised in 
the accounts since the Trust has no beneficial interest in them. Details of third party assets are 
given in Note 29 to the accounts. 

 

1.23  Public Dividend Capital (PDC) and PDC dividen d 

Public Dividend Capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity finance based on the excess of 
assets over liabilities at the time of establishment of the predecessor NHS Trust.  HM Treasury has 
determined that PDC is not a financial instrument within the meaning of IAS 32. 

An annual charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the Trust, is payable to the Department of 
Health as Public Dividend Capital dividend. The charge is calculated at the rate set by HM Treasury 
(currently 3.5%) on the average relevant net assets of the Trust during the financial year.  Relevant 
net assets are calculated as the value of all assets less the value of all liabilities, except for (i) 
donated assets, (ii) average daily cash balances held with the Government Banking Services (GBS) 
and National Loan Fund (NLF) deposits, excluding cash balances held in GBS accounts that relate 
to a short-term working capital facility and (iii) any PDC dividend balance receivable or payable.  In 
accordance with the requirements laid down by the Department of Health (as the issuer of PDC), 
the dividend for the year is calculated on the actual average relevant net assets as set out in the 
‘pre-audit’ version of the annual accounts.   

The dividend thus calculated is not revised should any adjustment to net assets occur as a result of 
the audit of the annual accounts. 

 

1.24  Losses and Special Payments 

Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it 
agreed funds for the health service or passed legislation. By their nature they are items that ideally 
should not arise. They are therefore subject to special control procedures compared with the 
generality of payments. They are divided into different categories, which govern the way that 
individual cases are handled. 

Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional headings in expenditure on an 
accruals basis, including losses which would have been made good through insurance cover had 
the Trusts not been bearing its own risks (with insurance premiums then being included as normal 
revenue expenditure). 

However the losses and special payments note is compiled directly from the losses and 
compensations register which reports on an accrual basis with the exception of provisions for future 
losses. 
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1.25  Subsidiaries 

Subsidiary entities are those over which the Trust is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns 
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over 
the entity.  

The income, expenses, assets, liabilities, equity and reserves of subsidiaries are consolidated in full 
into the appropriate financial statement lines. The capital and reserves attributable to minority 
interests are included as a separate item in the Statement of Financial Position.  

The amounts consolidated are drawn from the published financial statements of the subsidiaries for 
the year except where a subsidiary’s financial year end is before 1 January or after 1 July in which 
case the actual amounts for each month of the Trust’s financial year are obtained from the subsidiary 
and consolidated. 

Where subsidiaries’ accounting policies are not aligned with those of the Trust (including where they 
report under UK GAAP) then amounts are adjusted during consolidation where the differences are 
material.  Inter-entity balances, transactions and gains/losses are eliminated in full on consolidation.  

Subsidiaries which are classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount 
and ‘fair value less costs to sell’. 

The Trust is the corporate trustee of the linked NHS Charity, The Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals 
Charitable Fund.  The Trust has assessed its relationship to the charitable fund and determined it to 
be a subsidiary because the Trust is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns and other benefits 
for itself, patients and staff from its involvement with the charitable fund and has the ability to affect 
those returns and other benefits through its power over the fund.  However the transactions are 
immaterial in the context of the group and transactions have not been consolidated.  Details of the 
transactions with the charity are disclosed as related party transactions in note 28.  

 

1.26  Joint ventures 

Joint ventures are arrangements in which the Trust has joint control with one or more other parties, and 
where it has the rights to the net assets of the arrangement. Joint ventures are accounted for using the 
equity method. 
 

1.27 Joint operations 

Joint operations are arrangements in which the Trust has joint control with one or more other 
parties and has the rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the 
arrangement.  

The Trust runs Surrey Pathology Services with Frimley Health NHS Foundation Trust and Royal 
Surrey County Hospital NHS Foundation Trust. This meets the definition of a joint operation under 
IFRS 11. Under the contractual arrangement pathology services at the three Trusts are provided 
jointly. 

The Trust accounts for its share of the assets, liabilities, income and expenditure arising from the 
activities of Surrey Pathology Services, identified in accordance with the Pathology service 
agreement.  Accordingly Frimley Health NHS Foundation Trust and Royal Surrey County Hospital 
NHS Foundation Trust also account for their share of the assets, liabilities, income and expenditure 
in their financial statements. 
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1.28  Research and Development 

Research and development expenditure is charged against income in the year in which it is 
incurred, except insofar as development expenditure relates to a clearly defined project and the 
benefits of it can reasonably be regarded as assured. Expenditure so deferred is limited to the value 
of future benefits expected and is amortised through the Operating Cost Statement on a systematic 
basis over the period expected to benefit from the project. It should be revalued on the basis of 
current cost. The amortisation is calculated on the same basis as depreciation, on a quarterly basis. 

1.29  Accounting standards issued but not yet adopt ed 

The HM Treasury FReM does not require the following Standards and Interpretations to be applied 
in 2014/15 The application of the Standards as revised would not have a material impact on the 
accounts for 2014/15 were they applied in that year: 

• IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement – to be adopted from 2015/16 (adoption delayed by HM 
Treasury); 

• IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers - expected to be effective from 2017/18 but 
not yet EU adopted; 

• IFRS 9 Financial Instruments – expected to be effective from 2018/19 but not yet EU adopted;  
• IAS 36 (amendment) – recoverable amount disclosures – to be adopted from 2015/16 (aligned to 

IFRS 13 adoption); 
• Annual Improvements 2012 – effective from 2015/16 but not yet EU adopted; 
• Annual Improvements 2013 – effective from 2015/16 but not yet EU adopted; 
• IAS 19 (amendment) – employer contributions to defined benefit pension schemes - effective 

from 2015/16 but not yet EU adopted; and 
• IFRIC 21 Levies – EU adopted in June 2014 but not yet adopted by HM Treasury. 

2. Operating Segments 

The Trust Board receives financial information for the Trust as a whole, making decisions based on 
this. The Trust Executive Committee meets twice monthly and consists of the Trust Executive 
Directors and Divisional Directors for the Trust’s four Clinical Divisions. Segmental analysis is 
provided below for the total of these Clinical Divisions and Other, which includes the Corporate 
areas. The key data for these operating segments is: - 

 2014/15 2013/14 

 Clinical 
Divisions 

£’000 

Other 
 

£’000 

Total 
 

£’000 

Clinical 
Divisions 

£’000 

Other 
 

£’000 

Total 
 

£’000 

       

Income 248,974 13,840 262,814 234,036 11,861 245,897 

       

Expenditure (208,136) (55,636) (263,772) (192,314) (52,191) (244,505) 

 _______ _______ _______ _______ _______     ______ 

Contribution  40,838 (41,796) (958) 41,722 (40,330)     1,392 
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3. Income from patient care activities  
 

3.1 Income from activities 

   
2014/15 

 
2013/14 

 £’000 £’000 

Analysis by activity    

   

Elective income 52,541 51,615 

Non-elective income 56,596 55,653 

Outpatient income 48,003 44,274 

A & E income 11,759 11,195 

Other NHS clinical income 69,188 60,895 

Private Patient income 2,951 2,850 

Other non-protected clinical income 2,763 2,649 

 _______ _______ 

 243,801 229,131   

   

Activity by source    

   

NHS Foundation Trusts - 17 

Clinical Commissioning Groups and NHS England 238,087 223,614 

Local Authorities 1,955 1,632 

Non- NHS - Private patients 2,831 2,677 

 - Overseas patients (non-reciprocal) 120 173 

 - Injury cost recovery 627 829 

 - Other 181 189 

 _______ _______ 

 243,801 229,131 

   

 

Income from Commissioner Requested Services in 2014/15 was £231,747,000 (2013/14 - 
£219,184,000). 

Injury cost recovery income is subject to a provision for impairment of receivables of 18.9% to reflect 
expected rates of collection. 
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3.2 Income from overseas patients 

   
2014/15 

 
2013/14 

 £’000 £’000 

   

Income recognised this year 120 173 

Cash payments received in year 91 91 

Amounts added to the provision for impairment of receivables 53 (10) 

Amounts written off in year 24 49 

 
 

4. Other operating income 

  
2014/15 

 
2013/14 

 £’000 £’000 

   

Research and development 970 725 

Education and training 8,345 7,907 

Charitable and other contributions to expenditure 166 209 

Non-patient care services to other bodies 1,697 1,928 

Reversal of impairments to property, plant and equipment 2,030 - 

Other income:       

Car parking 1,994 1,740 

Estates recharges 461 612 

Pharmacy sales 856 877 

Nursery 994 1,007 

Profit on disposal of plant and equipment - 1 

Other 1,500 1,760 

 ______ ______ 

 19,013 16,766 

    

5. Revenue 

Revenue is almost totally from the supply of services. Revenue from the sale of goods is immaterial. 
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6. Operating expenses 

  
2014/15 

 
2013/14 

 £’000 £’000 

   
Services from NHS Foundation Trusts 1,042 1,107 

Services from NHS Trusts 164 561 

Services from Clinical Commissioning Groups and NHS 
England 

10 5 

Services from other NHS bodies 231 229 

Purchase of healthcare from non NHS bodies 9,523 7,969 

Employee benefits - Executive Directors 1,032 1,069 

Employee benefits - Non-Executive Directors 135 129 

Employee benefits - staff 160,994 149,475 

Drugs costs 20,131 17,581 

Supplies and services - clinical (excluding drugs) 31,961 30,432 

Supplies and services - general 3,589 3,610 

Establishment   2,330 2,419 

Transport 633 535 

Premises    8,451 8,472 

Increase/(decrease) in provision for impairment of 
receivables 

496 77 

Depreciation and amortisation 6,112 8,597 

Impairment of property, plant and equipment 3,469 - 

Auditors remuneration 83 65 

NHS clinical negligence scheme 4,490 4,629 

Legal fees 159 80 

Consultancy costs 2,004 1,007 

Training, courses and conferences 593 368 

Insurance  247 260 

Losses, ex gratia and special payments 23 162 

Other 350 323 

 _______ _______ 

 258,252 239,161 
This note includes irrecoverable VAT 
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Auditors’ remuneration  

 2014/15 2013/14 
  £’000 £’000 
    
Audit services – statutory audit  53 47 

Audit services – audit related regulatory reporting  16 8 

  ___ ___ 

  69  55 
This note excludes irrecoverable VAT 

 

Audit Liability Cap 

An engagement letter was signed on 5th March 2013 with KPMG. Currently the liability of KPMG, its 
members, partners and staff (whether in contract, negligence or otherwise) in respect of services 
provided in connection with or arising out of the audit is unlimited. The Trust must notify any claim 
within four years.  

 

7. Operating leases 

As lessee:   

 2014/15 2013/14 
  £’000 £’000 

Payments recognised as an expense:     
Minimum lease payments  461 402 

  ___ ___ 

Total  461  402  

 

 

 

 

 

 31/03/15 31/03/14 
  £’000 £’000 

Total future minimum lease payments:     
Not later than one year  350 421 

Between one and five years  681 764 

  ____ ____ 

Total  1,031  1,185  
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8. Employee costs and numbers 

8.1 Employee costs 

2014/15 2013/14 
Total  Permanently  

Employed 
Other 

 
Total  Permanently  

Employed 
Other 

 
£’000       £’000       £’000 £’000       £’000       £’000 

       
Salaries and wages 124,068 114,210 9,858 114,521 107,066 7,455 

Social security costs 10,006 9,310 696 9,301 8,783 518 

Employer contributions 
to NHS Pension scheme 

14,368 13,369 999 13,361 12,617 744 

Employer contributions 
to National Employment 
Savings Scheme 
(NEST) 

2 2 - 1 1 - 

Termination benefits - - - - - - 

Agency/contract staff 13,582 - 13,582 13,808 - 13,808 

 _______ _______ ______ _______ _______ ______ 

162,026 136,891 25,135 150,992 128,467 22,525 
 

Of which £431,000 (2013/14 - £448,000) is capitalised as part of capital projects.  Agency/contract staff 
costs for 2013/14 includes £2,250,000 relating to bank staff obtained through NHS Professionals. Bank 
staff are now paid direct by the Trust and hence included within salaries and wages in 2014/15. 

 

8.2 Staff Exit Packages  

There were no costs to the Trust in the financial year for redundancy payments or for early retirement 
payments (2013/14- £nil).  
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8.3 Average number of people employed 

2014/15 2013/14 

Total  Permanently  
Employed 

Other 
 

Total  Permanently  
Employed 

Other 
 

No. No. No. No. No. No. 
       
Medical and dental 480 480 - 469 469 - 

Administration and estates 885 885 - 809 809 - 

Healthcare assistants and other 
support staff 

498 498 - 452 452 - 

Nursing, midwifery and health 
visiting staff 

942 942 - 957 957 - 

Scientific, therapeutic and 
technical staff 

392 392 - 354 354 - 

Other 7 7 - 7 7 - 

Bank and agency staff 424 - 424 406 - 406 

 _____ _____ ___ _____ _____ ___ 

3,628 3,204 424 3,454 3,048 406 

Of which 8 (2013/14 - 8) are employed on capital projects. 

 

8.4 Directors’ remuneration 

  2014/15 2013/14 
Remuneration  Employer’s  

Pension 
Contributions  

Employer’s  
 NI 

Benefits  
in Kind  

Total  Total  

    £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Executive Directors 852 74 106 32 1,064 1,088
Non-Executive Directors 126 - 9 - 135 129

Further details can be found in the Remuneration Report which forms part of the Annual Report. 
 

8.5 Staff sickness absence  

 2014 2013 

Total days lost 21,427 21,060 

Total staff years worked 3,163 2,974 

Average working days lost (annualised) 6.8 7.1 

The note above is based on data for the calendar year 2014 in line with national guidance.  
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9. Pension costs 

9.1  NHS Pension Scheme 

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme. Details of 
the benefits payable under these provisions can be found on the NHS Pensions website at 
www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions. The scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers NHS 
employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State, in 
England and Wales. The scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to 
identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted 
for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the Trust of participating in the scheme is 
taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period. 

 

In order that the defined benefit obligations recognised in the financial statements do not differ 
materially from those  that  would be  determined  at the  reporting  date  by a  formal  actuarial 
valuation, the  FReM requires that “the period between formal valuations shall be four years, with 
approximate assessments in intervening years”. An outline of these follows: 

 

a) Accounting valuation 

A valuation of the scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary as at the end of the 
reporting period. This utilises an actuarial assessment for the previous accounting period in 
conjunction with updated membership and financial data for the current reporting period, and are 
accepted as providing suitably robust figures for financial reporting purposes. The valuation of the 
scheme liability as at 31 March 2015, is based on valuation data as 31 March 2014, updated to 31 
March 2015 with summary global member and accounting data. In undertaking this actuarial 
assessment, the methodology prescribed in IAS 19, relevant FReM interpretations, and the 
discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury have also been used. 

The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the scheme actuary report, which 
forms part of the annual NHS Pension Scheme (England and Wales) Pension Accounts, published 
annually. These accounts can be viewed on the NHS Pensions website. Copies can also be obtained 
from The Stationery Office.

 

b) Full actuarial (funding) valuation 

The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the 
scheme (taking into account its recent demographic experience), and to recommend the contribution 
rates. 

The last published actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was completed for the 
year ending 31 March 2012.  

The Scheme Regulations allow contribution rates to be set by the Secretary of State for Health, with the 
consent of HM Treasury, and consideration of the advice of the Scheme Actuary and appropriate 
employee and employer representatives as deemed appropriate. 
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c) Scheme provisions 

 

The NHS Pension Scheme provided defined benefits, which are summarised below. This list is an 
illustrative guide only, and is not intended to detail all the benefits provided by the Scheme or the 
specific conditions that must be met before these benefits can be obtained: 

 

The Scheme is a “final salary” scheme. Annual pensions are normally based on 1/80th for the 
1995 section and of the best of the last three years pensionable pay for each year of service, and 
1/60th for the 2008 section of reckonable pay per year of membership. Members who are 
practitioners as defined by the Scheme Regulations have their annual pensions based upon total 
pensionable earnings over the relevant pensionable service. 

 

With effect from 1 April 2008 members can choose to give up some of their annual pension for an 
additional tax free lump sum, up to a maximum amount permitted under HMRC rules. This new 
provision is known as “pension commutation”. 

 

Annual increases are applied to pension payments at rates defined by the Pensions (Increase) Act 
1971, and are based on changes in retail prices in the twelve months ending 30 September in the 
previous calendar year. From 2011/12 the Consumer Price Index (CPI) has been used and 
replaced the Retail Prices Index (RPI). 

 

Early payment of a pension, with enhancement, is available to members of the scheme who are 
permanently incapable of fulfilling their duties effectively through illness or infirmity. A death 
gratuity of twice final year’s pensionable pay for death in service, and five times their annual 
pension for death after retirement is payable. 

 

For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not 
funded by the scheme. The full amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged to the 
employer. 

Members can purchase additional service in the NHS Scheme and contribute to money purchase 
AVC’s run by the Scheme’s approved providers or by other Free Standing Additional Voluntary 
Contributions (FSAVC) providers. 

 

9.2  National Employment Savings Scheme (NEST) 

Employees who are not members of the NHS Pensions Scheme may join the National Employment 
Savings Scheme which is a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the Trust of participating in the 
scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period. 

 

10. Retirements due to ill-health 

During the year ended 31 March 2015 there were no early retirements (2013/14 - one) from the 
Trust agreed on the grounds of ill-health (2013/14 - £1,000).  
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11. Better Payment Practice Code  
 

11.1 Better Payment Practice Code - measure of comp liance 

2014/15 2013/14 

Number £’000 Number £’000 
   

Total Non-NHS trade invoices paid in the year 69,285 99,756 62,895 91,848 

Total Non-NHS trade invoices paid within target 59,883 79,957 56,281 79,407 

     
Percentage of Non-NHS trade invoices paid 
within target 

86.43% 80.15% 89.48% 86.45% 

     
Total NHS trade invoices paid in the year 1,900 16,238 1,872 18,199 

Total NHS trade invoices paid within target 758 9,541 922 12,282 

     
Percentage of NHS trade invoices paid 
within target 

39.89% 58.76% 49.25% 67.49% 

 
The Better Payment Practice Code requires the Trust to aim to pay all undisputed invoices 
by the due date or within 30 days of receipt of goods or a valid invoice, whichever is later. 

 

12. Finance income 

 2014/15 2013/14 
£’000 £’000 

Interest revenue    

Bank accounts 30 63 

 

 

13. Finance expense    

 2014/15 2013/14 
 £’000 £’000 
Interest costs    

Interest on obligations under finance leases 363 258 
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14. Property, plant and equipment 
 

2014/15 Land  Buildings  
excluding 
dwellings 

Assets under  
construction  

and payments 
on account 

Plant & 
machinery 

Transport & 
equipment 

Information  
technology 

Furniture & 
fittings 

Total  

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
 
Cost or  valuation at 1 April 2014 32,700 130,413 5,464 30,742 46 9,429 4,139 212,933 
Additions purchased - 1,638 4,422 1,120 24 713 457 8,374 
Additions leased - - 2,376 - - - - 2,376 
Additions donated - 44 - 122 - - - 166 
Reclassifications - 6,954 (9,939) 1,435 - 830 89 (631) 
Disposals other than by sale - - - (529) - (32) - (561) 
Revaluation/indexation gains - 16,214 - - - - - 16,214 
Impairments (3,620) (12,532) (690) - - - - (16,842) 
 ______ _______ _____ ______ __ _____ _____ _______ 
At 31 March 2015  29,080 142,731 1,633 32,890 70 10,940 4,685 222,029 
         
Depreciation at 1 April 2014  - 19,812 - 21,656 23 7,166 3,223 51,880 
Reclassifications - - - - - - - - 
Disposals other than by sale - - - (529) - (32) - (561) 
Impairments - 2,779 - - - - - 2,779 
Reversal of impairments credited 
to operating income 

 
- 

 
(2,030) 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
(2,030) 

Charged during the year - 2,296 - 2,036 4 984 312 5,632 
 ______ _______ _____ ______ __ _____ _____ ______ 
Depreciation at 31 March  2015            - 22,857         - 23,163 27 8,118 3,535 57,700 
         
Net book value at 31 March 2015  29,080 119,874 1,633 9,727 43 2,822 1,150 164,329 
         
Net book value  
Purchased 

 
29,080 

 
114,152 

 
1,633 

 
5,383 

 
43 

 
2,822 

 
1,145 

 
154,258 

Finance leased - 4,944 - 3,698 - - - 8,642 
Donated - 778 - 646 - - 5 1,429 
 ______ ______ _____ _____ __ _____ ___ _______ 
Total at 31 March 2015  29,080 119,874 1,633 9,727 43 2,822 1,150 164,329 
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2013/14 Land  Buildings  
excluding 
dwellings 

Assets under  
construction  

and payments 
on account 

Plant & 
machinery 

Transport & 
equipment 

Information  
technology 

Furniture & 
fittings 

Total  

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
 
Cost or  valuation at 1 April 2013 

 
32,700 

 
123,061 

 
4,170 

 
26,374 

 
22 

 
8,593 

 
3,964 

 
198,884 

Additions purchased - 714 7,819 1,466 24 393 148 10,564 
Additions leased - 379 2,897 1,737 -  - 5,013 
Additions donated - 33 - 176 -  - 209 
Reclassifications - 6,914 (9,422) 1,694 - 452 71 (291) 
Disposals other than by sale - - - (705) - (9) (44) (758) 
Revaluation/indexation gains - - - - - - - - 
Impairments - (688) - - - - - (688) 
 ______ _______  _____ ______ ___   _____ _____ _______ 
At 31 March 2014  32,700 130,413 5,464 30,742 46 9,429 4,139 212,933 
         
Depreciation at 1 April 2013  - 14,322 - 20,653 22 6,404 3,040 44,441 
Reclassifications - - - - - - - - 
Disposals other than by sale - - - (705) - (9) (44) (758) 
Impairments - - - - - - - - 
Charged during the year - 5,490 - 1,708 1 771 227 8,197 
 ______ ______ _____ ______ ___ _____ _____ ______ 
Depreciation at 31 March 2014            - 19,812         - 21,656 23 7,166 3,223 51,880 
         
Net book value at 31 March 2014  32,700 110,601 5,464 9,086 23 2,263 916 161,053 
         
Net book value  
Purchased 

 
32,700 

 
105,338 

 
5,464 

 
5,630 

 
23 

 
2,258 

 
906 

 
152,319 

Finance leased - 4,503 - 2,728 - - - 7,231 
Donated - 760 - 728 - 5 10 1,503 
 ______ _______ _____ _____ _ _____ ____ _______ 
Total at 31 March 2014  32,700 110,601 5,464 9,086 23 2,263 916 161,053 
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The Trust had its land and buildings revalued during the 2014/15 financial year by DTZ. This 
resulted in impairments and revaluations for 2014/15 as set out in the table above. The effects on 
income and expenditure and revaluation reserve are shown in note 16. 

 

The remaining economic lives of property, plant and equipment are: 

 

15. Intangible fixed assets 

2014/15 
Software  

   Licences  
Total  

 £’000 £’000 
   

Gross cost at 1 April 2014 3,298 3,298 
Reclassifications 631 631 
Additions purchased 226 226 
 _____ _____ 
Gross cost at 31 March 2015  4,155 4,155 
   
Amortisation at 1 April 2014 2,191 2,191 
Charged during the year 480 480 
 _____ _____ 
Amortisation at 31 March 2015  2,671 2,671 
   
Net book value    
- Purchased 1,479 1,479 
- Donated 5 5 
  _____ _____ 
Total at 31 March 2015  1,484 1,484 
    
    

 
 

 Minimum life 
(years) 

Maximum life 
(years) 

   
Land - 100 

Buildings excluding dwellings - 90 

Assets under Construction & Payments on Account - - 

Plant & Machinery - 15 

Transport Equipment - 10 

Information Technology - 10 

Furniture & Fittings - 10 
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2013/14 
Software  

   Licences  
Total  

 £’000 £’000 
   

Gross cost at 1 April 2013 5,369 5,369 
Reclassifications 291 291 
Additions purchased 87 87 
Disposals other than by sale (2,449) (2,449) 
 _____ _____ 
Gross cost at 31 March 2014  3,298 3,298 
   
Amortisation at 1 April 2013 4,240 4,240 
Charged during the year 400 400 
Disposals other than by sale (2,449) (2,449) 
 _____ _____ 
Amortisation at 31 March 2014  2,191 2,191 
   
Net book value    
- Purchased 1,095 1,095 
- Donated 12 12 
  _____ _____ 
Total at 31 March 2014  1,107 1,107 

 

The Revaluation Reserve balance for intangible assets is £nil (2013/14 - £nil).  

The remaining economic lives of intangible assets are: 

 Minimum life 
(years) 

Maximum lif e 
(years) 

Software - 5 

Licences & trademarks - 5 
 

16. Impairments 

Impairments of property, plant and equipment during the year are summarised below:  

 2014/15 2013/14 
 Income and 

Expenditure 
Revaluation 

Reserve 
Income and 

Expenditure 
Revaluation 

Reserve 
 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Revaluation of Estate     
- Impairment of Land - (3,620) - - 
- Revaluation of Buildings - 16,214 - - 
- Impairment of Buildings (2,394) (11,936) - - 
- Reversal of prior year Impairments 2,030 - - - 
Revaluation of New Builds (385) (596) - (688) 
Abandonment of Assets Under 
Construction 

 
(690) 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

     _____ _____ ___ _____ 
Total (net) (1,439)       62     - (688) 
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17. Capital commitments  

Contracted capital commitments were as follows:  

 31/03/15 31/03/14 

 £’000 £’000 

   

Property, plant and equipment    6,832 9,089 

Intangibles 2,028 - 

  _____    _____ 

Total  8,860 9,089 

 

As set out in Note 23, in 2013/14 the Trust entered into a Managed Equipment Service contract for 
Imaging equipment and £6,333,000 (2013/14 - £8,160,000) is included in the above total in respect 
of this contract. 

 

 

18. Inventories 
          

 31/03/15 31/03/14 

 £’000 £’000 

   

Drugs    931 736 

Consumables 3,557 3,529 

Energy 28 34 

 _____ _____ 

Total  4,516 4,299 

 

19. Trade and other receivables  

 

19.1 Trade and other receivables 
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              Current              Non-current  

 31/03/15 31/03/14 31/03/15 31/03/14 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

     

NHS receivables – 
revenue 

6,107 6,488 - - 

NHS receivables - capital 24 7 - - 

Receivables due from NHS 
charities – Revenue 

170 172 - - 

Provision for the impairment of 
receivables 

(1,404) (936) - - 

Prepayments 1,398 1,489 - - 

Accrued income 4,412 5,049 - - 

VAT 615 384 - - 

Other receivables 4,212 3,415 747 978 

 ______ ______ ____ ____ 

Total 15,534  16,068 747 978 

 

19.2 Receivables past their due date but not impair ed 

 31/03/15 31/03/14 
 £’000 £’000 

   
By up to three months 2,278 2,610 

By three to six months 11 1,224 

By more than six months - - 

 _____ _____ 

Total  2,289 3,834  
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19.3 Provision for impairment of receivables 

31/03/15 31/03/14 
 £’000 £’000 
   

Balance at 1 April  936 917 

Amount utilised (28) (58) 

Unused amounts reversed - (140) 

(Increase)/decrease in receivables impaired 496 217 

 ____ ____ 

Balance at 31 March   1,404  936 

 
 

20. Cash and cash equivalents  
 

 31/03/15 31/03/14 
 £’000 £’000 

   
Cash with Government Banking Service 10,394 11,015 

Commercial banks and cash in hand 71 50 

 ______ ______ 
Balance at 31 March  10,465 11,065 
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21. Trade and other payables  
 

The deferred income balance increased due to a 2015/16 contract payment being paid to 
the Trust earlier than expected. 

 

22. Borrowings 

 
              Current              Non-current  

 31/03/15 31/03/14 31/03/15 31/03/14 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Finance lease liabilities 1,411 1,029 5,925 5,090 

 
 
 
 

     Current  Non-current  

 31/03/15 31/03/14 31/03/15 31/03/14 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

NHS payables – revenue 2,038 2,259 - - 

NHS payables – capital 4 - - - 

Non NHS trade payables – 
revenue 

5,861 5,800 - - 

Non NHS trade payables  - capital 2,041 2,615 - - 

Other payables 6,439 5,918 - - 

Accruals 10,237 10,320 - - 

PDC dividend payable 27 18 - - 

 ______ ______ _ _ 

Trade and other 
payables 

26,647  26,930 -  - 

Deferred income 2,113 340 - - 

 ____ ____ _ _ 

Other liabilities  2,113  340 -  -   
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23. Finance lease obligations 
 

 

Amounts payable under finance leases:  Minimum lease  

payments 

 31/03/15 31/03/14 

 £’000 £’000 

   

Within one year 1,809 1,239 

Between one and five years 5,140 3,321 

Later than five years 2,723 2,351 

Less future finance charges (2,336) (792) 

 _____   _____ 

Net lease liabilities 7,336 6,119 

In 2013/14 the Trust entered into a ten year Managed Equipment Scheme for Imaging 
equipment and also entered into a ten year agreement for a Cardiac Catheterisation 
service. The property, plant and equipment under both of these schemes have been 
treated as finance lease arrangements. 

24. Provisions for liabilities and charges 

 Pensions 
relating 
to other 

staff 

Legal 
claims 

Restructuring  Other  Total  

 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

      

At 1 April 2014  345 62    -  343   750 

Arising during the year - 22 - 277 299 

Used during the year (53) (31) - (167) (251) 

Reversed unused - (6) - (29) (35) 

 ___ __ _ ___ ___ 

At 31 March 2015  292 47 - 424 763 
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Expected timing of cashflows: 
 
In the remainder of the 
spending  

     

Period to 31 March 2016 118 47 - 298 463 

Between1 April 2016 and 31 March 
2020 

165 - - 84 249 

Later than five years 9 - - 42 51 

 

As at 31 March 2015       

Current 118 47 - 298 463 

Non-Current 174 - - 126 300 

 

As at 31 March 2014       

Current 101 62 - 195 358 

Non-Current 244 - - 148 392 

 

Clinical negligence provisions 

Included in the provisions of the NHS 
Litigation Authority at 31 March 2015 
is £62,254,000 (2013/14 - 

£51,566,000) in respect of clinical 
negligence liabilities of the Trust. 

 
Legal claim provisions 

The majority of these provisions 
relate to claims under the Liabilities to 
Third Parties Scheme and Property 
Expenses Scheme, and are 
calculated based on information 
provided by the NHS Litigation 
Authority.  The amounts involved and 

the timing of the payments represents 
their best estimate of the outcome of 
each claim against the Trust. 

In addition to these provisions, 
contingent liabilities in respect of the 
claims are given in note 25. 

 

Other provisions 

Other provisions at 31 March 2015 include: - 

• two (2013/14: two) injury benefit cases of £147,000 (2013/14: £168,000) as notified 
to the Trust by the NHS Business Services Authority - Pensions Division;  

• £134,000 (2013/14: £nil) in respect of a junior doctor’s appeal against banding; and  
• £120,000 (2013/14: £nil) in respect of a consultant’s pay appeal. 
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25. Contingent assets/(liabilities) 
 

Other 
  
Other Contingent Liabilities for non-clinical negligence incidents total £12,000 (2013/14 - 
£21,000). 

 

26. Financial instruments  
 

27.1 Financial assets 
 

 31/03/15 31/03/14 

 Loans & 
Receivables 

Total  Loans & 
Receivables 

Total  

       £’000       £’000       £’000 £’000 

     

Trade Receivables 12,808 12,808 13,330 13,330 

Cash at bank and in hand 10,465 10,465 11,065 11,065 

 ______ ______ ______ ______ 

Total at 31 March 2015  23,273 23,273 24,395 24,395 

 

27.2 Financial liabilities 

 
31/03/15 

 
31/03/14 

 Other  Total   Other  Total  
      £’000 £’000       £’000 £’000 

    
Trade Payables 26,647 26,647 26,930 26,930 
Other borrowings 7,336 7,336 6,119 6,119 
Other financial liabilities 2,113 2,113 340 340 
 ______ _____ ______ _____ 
Total at 31 March 2015  36,096 36,096 33,389 33,389 

 

27.3 Financial risk management 

Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial 
instruments have had during the period in creating or changing the risks a body faces in 
undertaking its activities. Because of the continuing service provider relationship that the 
Trust has with the Clinical Commissioning Groups and the way those Clinical 
Commissioning Groups are financed, the Trust is not exposed to the degree of financial 
risk faced by business entities to which the financial reporting standards mainly apply. The 
Trust has limited powers to borrow or invest surplus funds and financial assets and 
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liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities rather than being held to 
change the risks facing the Trust in undertaking its activities. 

The Trust’s treasury management operations are carried out by the finance department, 
within parameters defined formally within the Trust’s Standing Financial Instructions and 
policies agreed by the Board of Directors. Trust treasury activity is subject to review by the 
Trust’s internal auditors.  

 

Currency Risk 

The Trust is principally a domestic organisation with the great majority of transactions, 
assets and liabilities being in the UK and sterling based. The Trust has no overseas 
operations. The Trust therefore has low exposure to currency rate fluctuations. 

 

Interest Rate Risk 

The Trust can borrow from Government for capital expenditure, subject to affordability. The 
borrowings are for 1-25 years, in line with the life of the associated assets, and interest is 
charged at the National Loans Fund rate, fixed for the life of the loan.  Interest charged on 
finance leased assets is at fixed rates of interest.  The Trust therefore has low exposure to 
interest rate fluctuations. 

 

Credit Risk 

Because of the majority of the Trust's income comes from contracts with other public sector 
bodies, the Trust has low exposure to credit risk. The maximum exposures as at 31 March 
2015 are in receivables from customers, as disclosed in the Trade and other receivables 
note.  The Trust recognises that the public sector funding environment, with the continued 
pressure of demand and its consequences for allocations for Clinical Commissioning 
Groups, leads to an increase in credit risk for the Trust. 

 

Liquidity risk 

The Trust's operating costs are incurred under contract with Clinical Commissioning 
Groups which are financed from resources voted annually by Parliament. The Trust funds it 
capital expenditure from internally generated funds and finance leases/borrowings. The 
Trust is not, therefore, exposed to significant liquidity risks. 
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27. Events after the reporting period  

There were no events after the reporting period requiring disclosure. 

 

28. Related party transactions  

During the year none of the Department of Health Ministers, Trust Board members or 
members of the key management staff, or parties related to any of them, has undertaken 
any material transactions with Ashford & St Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust. 

The Department of Health is regarded as a related party.  During the period Ashford & St 
Peter’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust has had a significant number of material 
transactions with the Department, and with other entities for which the Department is 
regarded as the parent Department. 

 

These entities are listed below: 
 

 

NHS Supply Chain is operated by DHL Supply Chain Limited on behalf of the NHS 
Business Services Authority. Entries in the table above against NHS Business Services 
Authority (NHS BSA) relate to FP10’s. NHS BSA recovers costs it has incurred in 
reimbursing third parties for prescription charges. 

In addition, the Trust has had a number of material transactions with other Government 
Departments and other central and local Government bodies. Most of these transactions 
have been with H M Revenue and Customs, Surrey County Council, Runnymede Borough 
Council and Spelthorne Borough Council.  

The Trust has also received revenue and capital payments from the Ashford & St Peter’s 
Hospitals Charitable Fund. The Board members of the Trust are also Trustees of this 

 Income  
£’000 

Expenditure
£’000 

Receivables
£’000 

Payables  
£’000 

     
NHS England 34,657 97 2,736 46 
Health Education England 8,336 2 94 2,037 
NHS North West Surrey CCG 172,273 10 2,424 10 
NHS Hounslow CCG 12,416 - 658 1 
NHS Surrey Downs CCG 5,089 - 1,314 - 
NHS Windsor, Ascot and Maidenhead CCG 4,247 - 370 - 
NHS Richmond CCG 1,628 - 187 - 
NHS Bracknell and Ascot CCG 1,392 - - 142 
NHS Guildford and Waverley CCG 1,641 - 16 - 
NHS Surrey Heath CCG 701 - - 4 
Frimley Health NHS Foundation Trust 310 397 100 834 
Royal Surrey County NHS Foundation Trust 1,186 3,021 630 1,026 
NHS Blood and Transplant - 1,310 - 11 
NHS Litigation Authority - 4,648 - - 
NHS Pensions Scheme - 14,368 - 2,036 
NHS Supply Chain - 5,706 - 373 
NHS Business Services Authority - 1,327 - 483 
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charity. The audited annual report and accounts of the Charity are available to the public 
on request. 

 

29. Third Party Assets 

The Trust held £9,000 cash at bank and in hand at 31 March 2015 (2013/14 - £9,000) which relates 
to monies held by the Trust on behalf of patients. This has been excluded from the cash and cash 
equivalents figure reported in the accounts.  

 

30. Losses and special payments 

Losses and special payments are transactions that Parliament would not have contemplated when 
it agreed funds for the health service or passed legislation.  By their nature they are items that 
ideally should not arise.  Payments are made in accordance with the HM Treasury publication 
“Managing Public Money”. 

There were 154 cases (2013/14 – 179) of losses and special payments totalling £95,000 paid in 
2014/15 (2013/14 - £169,000). There were no cases where the net payment exceeded £100,000. 
Total costs included in this note are on an accruals basis excluding provisions for future losses. 

  
 

 
31/03/15 

 
31/03/14 

 No. of Cases  Tota l No. of Cases  Total  
 £’000  £’000 
    

Losses of cash - - 1 - 
Bad debts and claims abandoned 96 28 124 59 
Ex gratia payments 58 67 54 110 
 ____ ___ ___ ___ 
Total at 31 March 2015  154 95 179 169 
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